
 

 

CITY OF STEAMBOAT SPRINGS 
 

AGENDA 
Regular Meeting NO. 2012-05 

Tuesday, March 06, 2012 
 

5:00 PM 
 
MEETING LOCATION: Citizens’ Meeting Room, Centennial Hall; 
    124 10th Street, Steamboat Springs, CO 
 
MEETING PROCEDURE: Comments from the Public are welcome at two different 
times during the course of the meeting: 1) Comments no longer than three (3) minutes 
on items not scheduled on the Agenda will be heard under Public Comment; and 2) 
Comments no longer than three (3) minutes on all scheduled public hearing items will 
be heard following the presentation by Staff or the Petitioner. Please wait until you are 
recognized by the Council President. 
 
With the exception of subjects brought up during Public Comment, on which no action 
will be taken or a decision made, the City Council may take action on, and may make a 
decision regarding, ANY item referred to in this agenda, including, without limitation, any 
item referenced for “review”, “update”, “report”, or “discussion”. It is City Council’s goal 
to adjourn all meetings by 10:00 p.m. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Public Comment will be provided at 7 p.m., or at the end of 
the meeting, (whichever comes first).  
 
CITY COUNCIL WILL MAKE NO DECISION NOR TAKE ACTION, EXCEPT TO DIRECT THE CITY 
MANAGER. THOSE ADDRESSING CITY COUNCIL ARE REQUESTED TO IDENTIFY THEMSELVES 
BY NAME AND ADDRESS. ALL COMMENTS SHALL NOT EXCEED THREE MINUTES. 
 
 
 
 ROLL CALL (5:00 PM) 
 
 PROCLAMATIONS: 
 

1. PROCLAMATION: A proclamation recognizing 2012 as "The Year of 
Water" in Steamboat Springs, Colorado.  

 



 

 

 COMMUNITY REPORTS/CITY COUNCIL DISCUSSION TOPIC: 
 

2. Vision 2030 Report. (Marsha Daughenbaugh) (15 minutes)  
 

3. Capital Improvements Program/Conservation Trust Fund. (Weber)  
 

 CONSENT CALENDAR: MOTIONS, RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES 
FIRST READINGS 

 
ITEMS ON THE CONSENT CALENDAR GENERALLY REQUIRE LITTLE COUNCIL 
DELIBERATION AND MAY BE APPROVED WITH A SINGLE MOTION. ANY MEMBER OF THE 
COUNCIL OR THE PUBLIC MAY WITHDRAW ANY ITEM FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR 
FOR FURTHER DISCUSSION AT ANY TIME PRIOR TO APPROVAL. 

 
4. RESOLUTION: A resolution supporting the grant application for a 

River Corridors Initiative Grant from the State Board of the Great 
Outdoors Colorado for the Yampa River System Legacy Project. 
(DelliQuadri)  

 
 PUBLIC HEARING: ORDINANCE SECOND READINGS 
 

THE CITY COUNCIL PRESIDENT OR PRESIDENT PRO-TEM WILL READ EACH ORDINANCE 
TITLE INTO THE RECORD. PUBLIC COMMENT WILL BE PROVIDED FOR EVERY 
ORDINANCE. 

 
5. SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE: An ordinance amending Section 

22-126 and Section 22-129 of the Steamboat Springs Revised 
Municipal Code implementing a onetime $25 Sales Tax application fee 
beginning June 1, 2012. (Vale) 

 
6. SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE: An ordinance amending Section 

12-82 (2) of the Steamboat Springs Revised Municipal Code 
implementing a $25 fee for a Special Activity Permit. (Franklin) 

 
7. SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE: An ordinance vacating a 10 foot 

wide utility easement in Lot 2, Burgess Creek Ridge Subdivision, 
Filing 2 and vacating a 10 foot wide utility easement in Lot 40, 
Rendezvous Trails Subdivision, Filing 2; providing an effective date 
and setting a hearing date. (Peasley) 

 

 PUBLIC COMMENT: PUBLIC COMMENT WILL BE PROVIDED AT 7 P.M., OR 
AT THE END OF THE MEETING, (WHICHEVER COMES FIRST). 

 
CITY COUNCIL WILL MAKE NO DECISION NOR TAKE ACTION, EXCEPT TO DIRECT THE 
CITY MANAGER. THOSE ADDRESSING CITY COUNCIL ARE REQUESTED TO IDENTIFY 
THEMSELVES BY NAME AND ADDRESS. ALL COMMENTS SHALL NOT EXCEED THREE 
MINUTES. 



 

 

 
 CONSENT CALENDAR - PLANNING COMMISSION REFERRALS: 
 

ITEMS ON THE CONSENT CALENDAR GENERALLY REQUIRE LITTLE OR NO COUNCIL 
DELIBERATION AND MAY BE APPROVED WITH A SINGLE MOTION. A CITY COUNCIL 
MEMBER MAY REQUEST AN ITEM(S) BE REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR FOR 
FURTHER DISCUSSION. ALL ORDINANCES APPROVED BY CONSENT SHALL BE READ 
INTO THE RECORD BY TITLE. 

 
8. FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE: An ordinance to amend Section 26-

65 Development Plan; amend Section 26-42 Development Review; 
amend Section 26-60 Pre-application Review; amend Section 26-78 
Minor Exterior Modification; and amend the Development Application 
Fee Schedule. (Keenan) 

 
 PUBLIC HEARING – PLANNING COMMISSION REFERRALS 
 

PUBLIC HEARING FORMAT: 
• Presentation by the Petitioner (estimated at 15 minutes).  Petitioner to state name and residence 
address/location. 
• Presentation by the Opposition. Same guidelines as above. 
• Public Comment by individuals (not to exceed 3 minutes). Individuals to state name and 
residence address/location. 
• City staff to provide a response. 

 
 There are no items scheduled for this portion of the agenda. 
  

 REPORTS 
 

9. Economic Development Update     
 

10. City Council     
 

11. Reports     
 

a. Agenda Review (Franklin):   
 

1. City Council agenda for March 20, 2012.   
 

2. City Council agenda for April 3, 2012.   
 

12. Staff Reports     
 

a. City Attorney's Update/Report. (Lettunich)   
 

1. Oil and Gas Update.   
 



 

 

b. Manager's Report: Ongoing Projects. (Roberts)   
 

2. Request for sponsorship for Oil and Gas Informational Public 
Meeting. (Roberts)   

 
c. Unnecessary Alarm Ordinance Discussion. (Rae)   

 
 OLD BUSINESS 
 

13. Minutes (Franklin) 
 

a. Regular Meeting 2012-03, February 7, 2012.   
 

b. Regular Meeting 2012-04, February 14, 2012.   
 
 ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
        BY:  JULIE FRANKLIN, CMC 

CITY CLERK 



 

 

AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  ##  11  
  

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  CCOOMMMMUUNNIICCAATTIIOONN  FFOORRMM 
 
 
FROM:  Julie Franklin, City Clerk 
 
DATE:   March 6, 2012 
 
ITEM:   A proclamation recognizing 2012 as “The Year of Water” in 

Steamboat Springs, Colorado. 
 
NEXT STEP:  To support the proclamation recognizing 2012 as “The Year 

of Water” in Steamboat Springs, Colorado. 
 
 
                  ___  DIRECTION 
                  ___   INFORMATION 
                  ___   ORDINANCE 
                  ___   MOTION 
                  _X_   PROCLAMATION 
 
 
I. REQUEST OR ISSUE: 
 
A proclamation recognizing 2012 as “The Year of Water” in Steamboat Springs, Colorado. 
 
II. BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
Geoff Blakeslee, Nature Conservancy, will be present to accept the proclamation. 
 
III. SUMMARY AND ALTERNATIVES: 
 
Staff recommends City Council support the above noted proclamation. 

���



A 
PR

O
CL

AM
AT

IO
N

 R
EC

O
G

N
IZ

IN
G

 
A 

PR
O

CL
AM

AT
IO

N
 R

EC
O

G
N

IZ
IN

G
 

A 
PR

O
CL

AM
AT

IO
N

 R
EC

O
G

N
IZ

IN
G

 
A 

PR
O

CL
AM

AT
IO

N
 R

EC
O

G
N

IZ
IN

G
 2

01
2 

AS
 “T

H
E 

YE
AR

 O
F 

W
AT

ER
” 

20
12

 A
S 

“T
H

E 
YE

AR
 O

F 
W

AT
ER

” 
20

12
 A

S 
“T

H
E 

YE
AR

 O
F 

W
AT

ER
” 

20
12

 A
S 

“T
H

E 
YE

AR
 O

F 
W

AT
ER

” I
N

 S
TE

AM
BO

AT
 S

PR
IN

G
S,

 C
O

LO
RA

D
O

.
IN

 S
TE

AM
BO

AT
 S

PR
IN

G
S,

 C
O

LO
RA

D
O

.
IN

 S
TE

AM
BO

AT
 S

PR
IN

G
S,

 C
O

LO
RA

D
O

.
IN

 S
TE

AM
BO

AT
 S

PR
IN

G
S,

 C
O

LO
RA

D
O

.    
    W

H
ER

EA
S

W
H

ER
EA

S
W

H
ER

EA
S

W
H

ER
EA

S,
 w

at
er

 i
s 

Co
lo

ra
do

’s 
m

os
t 

im
po

rt
an

t 
an

d 
pr

ec
io

us
 n

at
ur

al
 r

es
ou

rc
e 

an
d 

is
 i

nt
eg

ra
l 

to
 o

ur
 e

co
no

m
ic

, 
so

ci
et

al
, a

nd
 e

nv
ir

on
m

en
ta

l w
el

l-b
ei

ng
; a

nd
 p

ro
vi

de
s f

or
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

el
l b

ey
on

d 
th

e 
bo

un
da

ri
es

 o
f o

ur
 st

at
e;

 a
nd

  
 W

H
ER

EA
S

W
H

ER
EA

S
W

H
ER

EA
S

W
H

ER
EA

S,
 t

he
 Y

am
pa

 R
iv

er
 a

nd
 i

ts
 t

ri
bu

ta
ri

es
 s

us
ta

in
 o

ur
 c

om
m

un
ity

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 m

un
ic

ip
al

 w
at

er
 s

up
pl

ie
s, 

ag
ri

cu
ltu

ra
l i

rr
ig

at
io

n,
 a

nd
 re

cr
ea

tio
na

l a
m

en
iti

es
; a

nd
  

    W
H

ER
EA

S
W

H
ER

EA
S

W
H

ER
EA

S
W

H
ER

EA
S,

 th
e 

he
al

th
 a

nd
 w

el
l-b

ei
ng

 o
f t

he
 c

iti
ze

ns
 o

f S
te

am
bo

at
 S

pr
in

gs
 is

 d
ep

en
de

nt
 o

n 
a 

cl
ea

n 
an

d 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
w

at
er

 su
pp

ly
; a

nd
  

 W
H

ER
EA

S
W

H
ER

EA
S

W
H

ER
EA

S
W

H
ER

EA
S,

 t
he

 C
ity

 o
f 

St
ea

m
bo

at
 S

pr
in

gs
, 

th
e 

M
ou

nt
 W

er
ne

r 
W

at
er

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
an

d 
m

an
y 

co
m

m
un

ity
 p

ar
tn

er
s, 

re
ce

nt
ly

 a
do

pt
ed

 t
he

 2
01

1 
W

at
er

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
Pl

an
 t

o 
en

co
ur

ag
e 

re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

st
ew

ar
ds

hi
p 

of
 t

hi
s 

pr
ec

io
us

 n
at

ur
al

 
re

so
ur

ce
; a

nd
  

 W
H

ER
EA

S
W

H
ER

EA
S

W
H

ER
EA

S
W

H
ER

EA
S,

 w
at

er
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
is

 t
he

 f
ir

st
 s

te
p 

fo
r 

re
si

de
nt

s 
of

 S
te

am
bo

at
 S

pr
in

gs
 i

n 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

th
e 

gr
ow

in
g 

de
m

an
d 

on
 o

ur
 l

im
ite

d 
w

at
er

 s
up

pl
ie

s 
an

d 
th

e 
ne

ed
 t

o 
fin

d 
w

ay
s 

to
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

th
ei

r 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n,

 c
on

se
rv

at
io

n,
 a

nd
 

en
ha

nc
em

en
t; 

an
d 

 
 W

H
ER

EA
S

W
H

ER
EA

S
W

H
ER

EA
S

W
H

ER
EA

S,
 g

re
at

er
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
of

 w
at

er
 i

ss
ue

s 
ca

n 
be

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
co

m
m

un
ity

 e
du

ca
tio

n,
 a

ct
io

n,
 a

nd
 

ce
le

br
at

io
n;

 a
nd

 
 W

H
ER

EA
S

W
H

ER
EA

S
W

H
ER

EA
S

W
H

ER
EA

S,
 t

he
 C

ity
 o

f S
te

am
bo

at
 S

pr
in

gs
 d

es
ir

es
 t

o 
pr

ot
ec

t 
th

e 
w

at
er

 r
es

ou
rc

es
 t

ha
t 

m
ak

e 
St

ea
m

bo
at

 S
pr

in
gs

 a
 

w
or

ld
-c

la
ss

 co
m

m
un

ity
. 

 

���



 N
O

W
, T

H
ER

EF
O

RE
, B

E 
IT

 P
RO

CL
AI

M
ED

N
O

W
, T

H
ER

EF
O

RE
, B

E 
IT

 P
RO

CL
AI

M
ED

N
O

W
, T

H
ER

EF
O

RE
, B

E 
IT

 P
RO

CL
AI

M
ED

N
O

W
, T

H
ER

EF
O

RE
, B

E 
IT

 P
RO

CL
AI

M
ED

, b
y 

th
e C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 
of

 th
e C

ity
 of

 S
te

am
bo

at
 S

pr
in

gs
, C

ol
or

ad
o, 

th
at

 th
e 

ye
ar

 2
01

2 
is 

he
re

by
 d

ec
la

re
d 

"T
he

 Y
ea

r o
f W

at
er

" i
n 

St
ea

m
bo

at
 S

pr
in

gs
, C

ol
or

ad
o. 

   AD
O

PT
ED

 A
N

D
 A

PP
RO

VE
D

AD
O

PT
ED

 A
N

D
 A

PP
RO

VE
D

AD
O

PT
ED

 A
N

D
 A

PP
RO

VE
D

AD
O

PT
ED

 A
N

D
 A

PP
RO

VE
D

 th
is 

6T
H
 d

ay
 of

 M
ar

ch
, 2

01
2.

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
At

te
st

:
At

te
st

:
At

te
st

:
At

te
st

:    
 __

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
 

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

_ 
Ju

lie
 F

ra
nk

lin
, C

M
C 

 
Ba

rt
 K

ou
no

vs
ky

, P
re

si
de

nt
 

Ci
ty

 C
le

rk
 

St
ea

m
bo

at
 S

pr
in

gs
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il 

���



 

 

AGENDA ITEM # 2 
 

CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM 
 
 
FROM:  Julie Franklin, City Clerk (Marsha Daughenbaugh) 

 
DATE: March 6, 2012 

 
ITEM: Vision 2030 Report 
 
 
 ___ DIRECTION 
                   _X_  INFORMATION     
   ___  ORDINANCE 
   ___   MOTION 
 ___ RESOLUTION 
 
 
I.   REQUEST OR ISSUE: 
 
Marsha Daughenbaugh will be present to distribute the 2009 report, explain why it 
is ongoing and encourage Council to utilize the report in planning efforts. 
 

���



1VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org APRIL 2009

FINAL REPORT

ROUTT COUNTY, CO APRIL 2009

Heart and Soul of our Community

���

vdietrich


vdietrich




2 VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org                    APRIL 2009

For me, the heart and soul of the Yampa Valley 
is us – the people who call this amazing place 
home. Those of us who live here, work here and 
play here, also volunteer here. Our heritage of 
community events such as the Routt County Fair, 
Winter Carnival, Oak Creek’s Labor Day and, even 
more recently, North Routt’s Coureur du Bois ski 
race were all born from the spark of an individual’s 
idea and the volunteer ethic to make it happen. 
The legacy continues onward as our legions of 
volunteers continue to make these events happen 
today.

I am hopeful for the future of the Yampa Valley. 
Our dedicated and tireless pioneers have left their 
marks on our landscape and shaped our legacy. 
Those of us who are now taking the torch and 
leading our communities forward continue their 
visionary work. Vision 2030 will indeed become 
reality through the stewardship, passion and 
dedication of those who care enough to take ideas 
and turn them into action. I urge all of us to join 
together in this journey.

Tammie Delaney
Vision 2030 Project Manager

“The Yampa Valley has 

extraordinary people,”  

was something my mom, Marie Bowes, would 
often say when I was growing up. There is an 
incredible spirit of volunteerism within our area 
that confirms this to me on a daily basis. Folks 
see a need, and then take action to get it done.               

This has rung true for the Vision 2030 project. 
We were blessed with a very diverse, multi-
talented and energetic citizens’ committee whose 
daily occupations range from small business 
owners to ranchers, a retired military colonel, 
oil executives, professors, elected officials, and 
corporate officers. I am grateful for their time, 
talent, energy and concern for our community. 
Our group had incredible dedication to their 
primary role of listening to members of the 
community about what people value most and 
how to ensure those values are maintained. 

We heard from a very broad cross section 
of residents – more than five times the number 
of people who took the Vision 2020 survey 
answered the Vision 2030 survey. The Vision 
2030 Citizens’ Committee made certain that 
citizens’ concerns and intents were incorporated 
in this final report. Personal agendas were set 
aside and the benefit of the community as a 
whole was placed front and center.

���



3VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org APRIL 2009

TO THE PEOPLE OF ROUTT COUNTY:

Vision 2030 is a series of strong statements about the 
values that matter most to the people of Routt County. 
Just like the river that runs through it, the common thread 
of all of the communities within our county is our love for 
the Yampa Valley, our neighbors, heritage and sense of 
place. Throughout this report, as we speak of community, 
we are referring to the entire county.

Vision 2020, presented in 1994, set the stage for 
community input and has proven to be a strong planning 
and community development tool. It has been used by 
community planning commissions, county commissioners, 
grant writers, community activists and civic organizations. 
The report has helped develop and enforce strong master 
plans, foster community efforts and secure more than 
$25 million in grant funding. The Vision 2030 Citizens’ 
Committee has made every effort to build upon the Vision 
2020 document, strengthening and adding to the original 
concept. Along the way, we discovered that the values of 
14 years ago are even more important to the residents of 
Routt County today.

We are fortunate to have passionate leaders and public 
officials who truly desire what is best for our valley. Their 
love for Routt County and its people is apparent, giving 
their time to wisely guide our community into the future. 
They have often expressed that if they knew what our 
community valued, they could be more confident in their 
decision making, enabling them to stand fast in the face 
of opposition that could threaten those values. The Vision 
2030 process and this Report of Recommendations is that 
guide. It is the voice of the people of Routt County who 
chose to participate in this process.

Our heartfelt thanks to the citizens of Routt County 
for your time, insight and energies while participating in 
the Vision 2030 process. Your involvement in community 
meetings, answering surveys, volunteering and caring so 
deeply about this place we call home allowed this report 
to become valuable.

Because of your commitment, Routt County now has a 
clearer vision of our future.

When I came to the Yampa Valley nearly 30 
years ago I came to visit a friend for a couple 
of days.. Well, we all know how that goes: It 
started to snow, I stayed the season, met and 
married a wonderful man and the rest, as they 
say, is history. I, like so many of you, fell madly 
in love with this valley and decided to make it 
my home. We have raised our children here 
and own a small business near the mountain.

As the years rolled by, more people came 
to stay and our community grew. I often 
wondered, are we being careful with our 
valley? Are we being good stewards of this 
land that we have the privilege to live on?

Vision 2030 gave me the opportunity to do 
my part in ensuring that the Yampa Valley is 
looked after by those who love it most. It has 
been an honor to work side-by-side with so 
many passionate people of Routt County.

Kathy K Stokes
Vision 2030 Co-chair

I became involved with the Vision 2030 
process because of my love for this beautiful 
valley and the concerns that I have for 
our future. Having been born, raised and 
continuing to live on a cattle ranch in the Elk 
River Valley, I know the impacts that changes 
have had on our landscapes, wildlife, natural 
resources, culture, heritage and way of life. 
My biggest hope is that we are able to pass 
this wonderful life on to our children and their 
heirs in a way that will make them proud of 
us.

Vision 2030 has deepened my appreciation 
of and respect for the residents of Routt 
County who care so deeply about our future.

Marsha Daughenbaugh
Vision 2030 Co-chair

���



4 VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org                    APRIL 2009

The elements that shape 
a community dwell in the 
common values shared by its 
residents. These values are 
the essence of a community’s 
heart and soul.

Many interwoven layers work in concert to create 
the overall fabric of a community. Maintaining the 
integrity of that fabric is dependent upon balancing 
the interests and desires of citizens with an intuitive 
understanding of the community’s core values. 
Shaping a region’s future as growth and change 
come to bear on the sense of community requires a 
vision grounded in this balance. Therefore, defining 
our community’s 
heart and soul 
is the first step in 
recommending 
actions to shape a 
desired future.

Vision 2030 
is an innovative 
approach to 
decision-making that was inspired by a Routt 
County resident’s memo to city and county officials 
requesting a process to identify and define the 
community’s “heart and soul.” The memo was 
prompted by the City of Steamboat Springs’ 2005 
Community Survey, which included an open-
ended question asking respondents to “describe 
the elements of Steamboat Springs’ ‘sense of 
community,’ its ‘heart and soul,’ which are most 
important to you.” A group of individuals and local 
government representatives gathered to discuss the 
request. Several attendees noted that many of the 
issues brought forth from the memo and first meeting 

were addressed in the 1994 Vision 2020 report. 
Updating this document became the starting 
point of the Vision 2030 process.

The Vision 2030 Citizens’ Committee was 
created to develop and guide the process. 
Its goal has been to put together a broad, 
collaborative citizen’s effort to define the future 
of the Yampa River Valley, gathering the wisdom 
of valley residents, updating the 1994 Vision 
2020 Report, and encouraging region-wide 
stewardship of a community vision that retains 
and sustains our “heart and soul” assets for 
generations to come.

To achieve this goal, the committee needed 
to gather information from as many community 
members as possible. Seeking guidance from 
the forward-looking Vision 2020 format, the 

Vision 2030 
committee 
created an 
extensive and 
methodically 
implemented 
process to 
listen to what 
Routt County 

citizens want our community to look like in 
the next 20 years and synthesize those desires 
into recommended actions to achieve that 
vision. More than 1,600 residents representing 
a diverse cross section of Routt County 
participated in the Vision 2030 process. The 
result is the comprehensive set of Desired 
Outcomes and Recommended Actions, starting 
on page 17 of this report, that represent the 
community’s desired future.

The intent of Vision 2030 is to define the 
community’s vision, not to assign specific 
actions or methods, or to determine funding 

Heart and soul is defined as the unique features, 
resources, special places and core values 

that, if lost, would fundamentally diminish the quality 
of community and sense of well-being that compelled 

citizens to put down roots in Routt County.

INTRODUCTION

���



5VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org APRIL 2009

Table of contents

Executive summary .................................6

Methodology .........................................8

Discoveries...... ....................................11 

Desired outcomes,  
recommended outcomes ......................17

 Affordable housing ....................18

 Agriculture and open space .....21

 Arts and culture ..........................29

 Economic viability ......................32 

 Education .....................................34 

 Government ................................37

 Heritage .......................................41

 Planning ......................................44

 Recreation .......................................46

 Seniors .............................................48

 Sustainability ..................................51

 Transportation ................................56

 Youth..................................................58

What’s next? ...........................................61

Conclusions/connections .........................62

mechanisms. Those tasks will be addressed by 
experts and interested individuals. Vision 2030 
defines a path for actionable items based on our 
community’s core values that are essential to help 
guide future community efforts. It also lists desired 
outcomes that are the ideals or compass points in 
creating a vision for our community now and in 
the future. Vision 2030 also details recommended 
actions that are possible ways for achieving these 
outcomes. Some recommended actions in this 
report are already in progress.

Funding and/or implementation plans are still 
works in progress for some desired outcomes. 
However, all desired outcomes are identified in 
this report to acknowledge their importance to 

our citizens and to help elected officials and others 
set priorities so these outcomes can ultimately be 
achieved.

This report represents the work and commitment 
of countless volunteers. More importantly, it reflects 
the candid aspirations of thousands of Routt County 
residents. Just as the Vision 2020 report became 
an important tool for our community, so too the 
Vision 2030 report will become more valuable over 
time. We hope you are inspired to get involved by 
what you read in these pages. It is our collective 
involvement that will ensure that our heart and soul 
is preserved for future generations.

About the cover
The graphic on the cover represents words used by 
survey respondents who answered the question, “What 
do you most value about your community?” The size of 
the word is directly proportional to the number of times 
the word was used by the respondents.

Created at: www.wordle.net

INTRODUCTION

���



6 VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org                         APRIL 2009

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Imprinted upon us is a 
sense that we live in a  
special place that actually 
becomes part of our  
being. It is the essence of 
the legendary and fictitious 
“Yampa Valley Curse.”  As a 

community, we share the responsibility to shape our 

future. Together, through shared values and differ-
ences of opinion, we create a vision for a cohesive 
community.

The heart and soul of our community is the rea-
son people come here, put down roots and return. 
It is the driving force behind our community char-
acter. By describing what we value, we learn what 
constitutes heart and soul – the unique features, 
resources, special places and core values that are 
interconnected and, if lost, would fundamentally 
diminish the quality of community and sense of 
well-being.

Vision 2030 is an innovative approach to deci-
sion making. This values-driven method identifies a 
community’s core values so incremental decisions 
can ultimately ensure the things that really matter 
are enhanced and retained for future generations. 

Our community has said that heart and soul 
is a combination of friendly people, a clean and 
beautiful environment, good schools, manageable 
local governments, a diverse population, and an 
unmatched lifestyle of cultural, recreational and 
economic opportunities.

The past decade has revealed some widely-
shared concerns. We’re worried about having 
enough affordable housing. We wonder if growth 
will threaten our open space, Western ranching and 
farming heritage, traffic and our friendly, supportive 
community character.

This Vision 2030 report carries on the work of 
the 1994 Vision 2020 document, using a similar 
collaborative process. Through Vision 2020, we 
learned the components of what is important to us 
– those values that constitute our heart and soul 
and are most important to nurture into the future. 
Vision 2030 expands on this premise to affirm our 
shared values and recommend actions to preserve 
them. It relies on citizen surveys and a series of 
community gatherings that brought together people 
from every part of the greater Yampa Valley neigh-
borhood.

This report details the responses from each Routt 
County community and demonstrates that while 
there are some differences of opinion from one 
area of the county to another, there is surprising 
agreement about what is important and what needs 
to be done to protect the things we cherish about 
our home. Defining a community vision is only the 
first step; a vision must also incorporate a plan for 
action if we hope to achieve our goals.

All of the data in this report represent the com-
munity’s thoughts about the desired outcomes and 
recommended actions that might constitute such a 
plan. The Vision 2030 committee listened carefully, 
and this is what the citizens of Routt County said, 
listed in alphabetical order:

Affordable Housing Survey 
respondents named affordable housing among the 
three most threatened needs of the county. We are 
convinced that a balanced economy, as well as 
a diverse, inclusive populace, requires accessible 
and attractive housing that will shelter the full-time 
residents who are the backbone of our community.

Agriculture & Open Space We 
place great value on our Western ranching and 
farming heritage, with its emphasis on abundant 
clean water, protection of wildlife habitat and cor-
ridors, a sustainable, diverse economy, and the 
distinctive sense of place that goes with it.

��	



7VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org                     APRIL 2009

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Arts & Culture We have a long tradi-
tion of appreciating accessible, affordable and high-
quality arts and cultural opportunities for residents of 
all ages, and we encourage their continued success.

Economy We rely on a healthy regional 
economy that must be diverse, sustainable and 
productive while at the same time enhancing our 
community’s character and providing realistic  
opportunities for sustainable employment.

Education We place great importance on 
our schools, from pre-school through college, and 
we strive for a high-level, community-supported, in-
novative 21st century continuum of lifelong learning 
opportunities.

Government Our local governments 
have reputations for being accessible, responsive 
and accountable. We insist on their being fiscally  
responsible and service-oriented, and we support 
their efforts to create the infrastructure and services 
that will foster a strong economy and a safe,  
comfortable quality of life.

Heritage Nothing defines our regional 
identity as well as our Western history and heritage. 
We choose a lifestyle that promotes the protection 
and continued use of our historic built environments, 
the living reminders of our rich past.

Planning We understand that there will be 
growth, and that growth can be good, but we insist 
on paced and placed growth: growth that can be 
engineered and absorbed in such a way as to pre-
serve and enhance the community’s character.

Recreation Recreation is a celebrated 
aspect of life in our corner of Colorado. We treasure 
a recreational lifestyle that embraces all populations, 
ages, abilities and socio-economic backgrounds 
– one that goes hand-in-hand with our abiding love 
for the land.

Seniors Our seniors – our institutional 
memory and guides – deserve a well-planned 
variety of housing options, accessible trans-
portation, and a wide range of ways for stay-
ing connected to the communities they helped 
create.

Sustainability It is not enough for 
us to enjoy life here. We must find new avenues 
for keeping our heart and soul alive for future 
generations. That means healthy, clean air and 
water; respectful land-use practices; “green” 
building and living; and a lifestyle that leaves 
our neighborhood better than we found it.

Transportation We are a vehicle-
centered society, our roads, streets and parking 
lots are becoming increasingly crowded. We 
want our leaders to plan for a multi-modal, 
efficient, environmentally sound transportation 
system that will be sufficiently affordable and 
appealing that we might not need to use our 
cars quite so much.

Youth It truly takes a village to raise a 
child and we want our villages to provide pro-
grams and facilities that are caring and sup-
portive, healthy and safe for our youth. That 
means encouraging affordable and accessible 
child care for working families, and providing a 
family-friendly environment in which our young 
people can thrive.

What follows are the details of what the com-
munity said about where we should be going 
and how we might get there. This Vision 2030 
report is intended to be more than just a sum-
mary of the community’s opinions. It is meant 
to form the basis for a checklist for our progress 
in carrying out the plan to achieve the vision. In 
the end, we will all be the judges of how well we 
succeed.

��




8 VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org                           APRIL 2009

METHODOLOGY
The Vision 2030 Citizens’ Committee was 

charged with capturing the values and important 
qualities of our community to help future decision 
making by:

Gathering the wisdom of valley residents
Updating the 1994 Vision 2020 report
Defining a vision that retains and sustains our          

    heart and soul assets for generations to come       
     through community stewardship 

To ensure county-wide participation, a diverse 
group of Routt County citizens formed the Vision 
2030 Citizens’ Committee and met regularly to 
create a two-year collaborative process consisting 
of five phases:

Inviting small groups to participate in identifying 
elements of “heart and soul”

Listening and learning from large groups’ ideas 
and prioritizing them, using keypad polling 
technology

Designing “What if” scenarios to define future 
alternatives

Defining an approach to developing 
recommendations for actions

Putting ideas into action with a vision for 
the future with desired outcomes and 
recommended actions

This is a 20-year vision driven by long-term 
perspective. These recommendations may not 
identify all interested groups or individuals. 
Methodology and mechanisms for achieving 
the outcomes, including funding, are not 
determined by Vision 2030, but by post-report 
experts, champions and groups that carry these 
recommendations forward.

Actions on some recommendations may 

What this report does
Gathers information
Updates the Vision 2020 report
Defines a collective vision
Identifies desired outcomes 
Delivers recommendations for achievement

What this report does not do
Define methods for achieving desired       
     outcomes
Assign tasks to individuals or groups
Determine or generate funding
Monitor outcomes

What’s next 
Create a citizens’ stewardship committee 
and action groups to ensure that desired 
outcomes and recommended actions are
fulfilled. 

already be under way. Increased awareness and 
tracking of these efforts may be necessary.

The methods used to determine desired 
outcomes and recommendations involved 
participation from a wide cross-section 
of the community. These outcomes and 
recommendations are not the product of the 
committee, but of the participatory process that 
was both representative of the whole county 
and included a greater number of people than 
the Vision 2020 process. The committee’s role 
was to synthesize what it heard and to do it 
as deliberatively and accurately as possible. 
The outcomes and recommendations are a 
compilation of the expectations and desires of 
citizen participants from across Routt County, not 
of any one special interest group.

���



9VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org                      APRIL 2009

Project manager
58%

Staff 
expenses

8%

Advertising 3%
Writing of final report1%

Expenses for meetings 5%

Program expenses 3%

Meeting facilitation &  
technology 7%

Design/printing of final  
report

6%

Distribution  of final
 

report 9%

Genesis of the Vision 2030 Committee
Inspired by a Nov. 21, 2005 memo from a Routt County resident 

to city and county officials requesting a process to identify and 
define the community’s “heart and soul,” a group of individuals and 
local government representatives gathered to discuss the proposal. 
This request was prompted by the City of Steamboat Springs’ 2005 
community survey, conducted by Northwest Colorado Council of 
Governments, which included an open-ended question asking 
respondents to “describe the elements of Steamboat Springs’ ‘sense 
of community,’ its ‘heart and soul,’ which are most important to you.” 
Routt County Commissioner Nancy Stahoviak noted that many of the 
issues brought forth from the memo and first meeting were addressed 
in the 1994 Vision 2020 report. She and County Commissioner Diane 
Mitsch Bush participated in the earlier two-year visioning process and 
recognized the need for an update to this document. The 27 invited 
attendees at this meeting formed a steering committee and devised a 
budget and method for a new visioning process. Current Vision 2030 
committee members include some who participated in the 1992-94 
Vision 2020 project.

Citizens’ Committee
  

   Marsha Daughenbaugh  
          (Co-Chair, Elk River Valley)

Kathy Stokes (Co-Chair, Elk River Valley)
Tammie Delaney (Project Manager, West Routt)
Lynn Abbott (Steamboat Springs)
Steve Aigner* (Steamboat Springs)
Towny Anderson (Steamboat Springs)
Tracy Barnett (Steamboat Springs)
Meg Bentley (Steamboat Springs)
Maggie Berglund (Steamboat Springs)
Diane Brower * (Steamboat Springs)
Diane Mitsch Bush (Steamboat Springs)
Gretchen Daley (South Routt)
Tim Frentress (West Routt)
Jim Fulks* (Steamboat Springs)
Sandy Evans Hall (Steamboat Springs)
Judy Guerin (West Routt)
Todd Hagenbuch (South Routt)
Nancy Howell (Steamboat Springs)
George Hresko* (Steamboat Springs)
Paul Hughes (Steamboat Springs)
Marion Kahn (Steamboat Springs)
Karen Kosakowski (North Routt)
Stacey Kramer* (Steamboat Springs)
Holly Larson (Steamboat Springs)
Gavin Malia (Steamboat Springs)
CJ Mucklow (North Routt)
Lyman Orton (Steamboat Springs)
John Spezia (Steamboat Springs)
Karen Tussey* (South Routt)
Fred Wolf (North Routt)
* indicates committee chair

Funding
The budget is based on a two-year 

project. The City of Steamboat Springs and 
Routt County each contributed $77,000. 
This amount has been supplemented in 
contributions from in-kind and technology 
support from the Orton Family Foundation. 
Area businesses and other municipalities 
provided additional financial support.

Project Management
Tammie Delaney was hired as project manager to provide 

administrative and management support to the committee. The 
committee advertised the position of project manager, reviewed 
proposals and conducted interviews. The project manager has been 
responsible for support at all public meetings, project design, overall 
management, project coordination, meeting planning, coordination 
and facilitation, project communications and public relations.

METHODOLOGY

����



10 VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org                           APRIL 2009

METHODOLOGY

APRIL 2007

NOV 2007

MARCH 2008

AUG 2008

NOV 2008

APRIL 2009

Surveys created, distributed

Review of Vision 2020 

Public relations 

Community gatherings

Surveys completed

Published interim report

Established focus groups

Community gatherings 

Final report compilation begins

Final report

JAN 2008

Demographic information
What places, characteristics and aspects are most valued
What do you hope to see, feel or experience
What should be done
Rank importance vs. threatened

Survey to identify perceptions about Vision 2020 accomplishments
Review committee included 97 participants in seven meetings

Public service announcements for surveys on local media
Web site links to Vision 2030 incorporated on local websites
Meeting, survey announcements, ads & promotions
Newspaper articles in Steamboat Today & Pilot, The Local
YouTube video, posters and brochures, social networking
Slide show prepared by Routt County school children depitcting     
     things in the valley that are important to them 

Five community gatherings in North Routt, Steamboat Springs, West Routt and 
South Routt with round table discussions exploring “What do you most value 
about living here” and “Living here 20 years from now, what would enhance it -- 
making it better or easier to live here?” using keypad polling for prioritization.

1,200 residents responded. 

Data Analysis Committee compiled the findings from the gatherings and surveys, 
developing a database using citizens’ committee members and volunteers to analyze 
and categorize more than 7,600 responses. Comments were grouped into the 
following categories: amenities, beauty, community, culture, diversity, economy, 
environment, friendliness, government, heritage, housing, recreation, safety, small-
town feel, transportation, other.

Focus on key findings: community character and managing growth
Three distributions in Steamboat Pilot and Today
Findings discussed with Routt County commissioners and 
     Steamboat Springs City Council

Twelve focus groups with 60 participants with subject area expertise were tasked 
with developing “Desired Outcomes and Recommended Actions” from survey 
and gathering comments. These groups were: affordable housing, agriculture 
and open space, arts and culture, economy, education, government, heritage, 
planning, recreation, seniors, sustainability, and youth.

Presentations in North Routt, Steamboat Springs, South Routt, and West Routt to 
describe report findings, including focus on community character and managing 
growth, and to seek validation for these findings using roundtable discussions and 
keypad polling. Results reinforced findings of surveys and previous gatherings.

Led by a final report committee with 
technical assistance for writing and 
graphics sub-contracted. 

Full report distributed on website, to municipalities and 
county, and also upon request or in digital format.

Timeline of Vision 2030 progress

—

����



11VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org                    APRIL 2009

Participation
The Vision 2030 committee is confident that partici-

pants represent an accurate sample set of Routt Coun-
ty’s demographics. A total of more than 1,600 people, 
approximately 7% of Routt County’s total population 
and 11% of all county households, participated in the 
two-year process. More than 1,200 people completed 
the survey that was distributed online and in hard 
copy format. This was almost five times more than the 
number of people who responded to the Vision 2020 
survey. To ensure diverse participation, the Vision 2030 
committee encouraged input in surveys and at com-
munity gatherings, appealed to personal contacts and 
made presentations to “affinity” groups such as service 
organizations, school district employees, businesses 
and nonprofit organizations.

Participants were almost equally divided between 
men and women. Most were between 30-60 years old 
and had lived in Routt County for more than 10 years. 
The lack of participation in the 20-29 year age range 
is representative of the age shift in Routt County to an 
older demographic. Residents from all across Routt 
County and from a wide range of occupations partici-
pated on the Vision 2030 process.

As the Vision 2030 process continued over two 
years, it gained momentum, attracting new participants 
on the committee, in focus groups and at community 
gatherings. At the final community gatherings in No-
vember 2008, more than 40% of the attendees had 
not previously participated in the Vision 2030 process 
and overwhelmingly agreed with the earlier survey and 
gathering findings.

4%

7%

18%

21%27%

23%

Younger 
than 20 

20 to 29 

30 to 39 

40 to 49  50 to 59 

60+

3%

18%

17%
25%

29%

8%

Less than 1 year 

1 – 5 years 

6 – 10 years 

11 – 20 years 

21 – 40 
years 

More than 
40 years

7% 4%
2%

9%

28%

14%

10%

6%

13%

7%

7%

15%

13%
63%

2% North Routt

South Routt 

West Routt
Steamboat 

Springs

Other 

Construction, manufacturing, mining

Retail
Transportation, warehousing, or utilities

Finance, insurance, 
real estate, or rental/leasing

Professional, scientific, management, 
administration, or services

Educational, health, 
or social services

Arts, entertainment, recreation,
or accommodations

Agriculture or ranching

Retired or not 
employed

Other

Age

Length of 
time in
Routt 
County

Residence

Occupation

DISCOVERIES

����



12 VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org                      APRIL 2009

DISCOVERIES

WHAT WE HEARD
     In its role as a steering committee, Vision 2030’s responsibility was to gather comments from community 
members and relay that information back to the community, decision-makers and elected officials. The pro-
cess gave opportunity to everyone who chose to participate. The Vision 2030 Citizens’ Committee agenda 
encompassed three components: 

   • Review the Vision 2020 First Report of Recommendations
   • Identify our community’s heart and soul (what do we value)
   • Define recommendations to ensure values are preserved

Vision 2020 review
     A subcommittee reviewed the 1994 Vision 2020 
report to discuss the successes and challenges from the 
past 15 years. Focus groups within this subcommittee 
recommended further development on several items for 
the eight report categories. Vision 2030 focus groups 
then used these suggestions along with new data  
obtained from surveys and gatherings to help define 
desired outcomes and recommended actions.
     The Vision 2020 process led to successful formation 
of several citizen-led initiatives:

   • First Impressions of Routt County – a nonprofit orga-          
      nization that supports early childhood education
   • Purchase of Development Rights – a program that  
      helps landowners use conservation easements to 
      protect their land from development
    •Routt County Open Lands Plan – furthers open space  
      needs
    • Yampa Valley Recycles – a county-wide recycling 
      effort

     In addition, the Community Agriculture Alliance, 
Yampa Valley Partners, Yampa Valley Land Trust and ex-
panded medical services at Yampa Valley Medical Center 
all were inspired partly because individuals championed 
causes of interest recognized by Vision 2020. The report 
also helped several nonprofit organizations and the City 
of Steamboat Springs procure more than $25 million in 
grants for open space, trails, education, historic preser-
vation and transportation. The City of Steamboat Springs 
uses the Vision 2020 report as a gauge for determining if 
city goals are in line with community desires.

Survey question:  
What do we value?

North Routt

1. Community

2. Environment

3. Heritage

South Routt

1. Community

2. Friendliness

3. Recreation

Steamboat Springs

1. Community

2. Environment

3. Small-town feel

West Routt

1. Community

2. Education

3. Heritage

38%  

25%          

  13%                  

37%  

18%              

9%                      

43%

16%                 

11%                   

35%     

16%                

16%                

Complete responses to the survey and polling 
results from the community gatherings are  
available at: http://vision2030routt.org

����



13VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org                    APRIL 2009

What we value
    Survey respondents and gatherings partici-
pants clearly stated that they value a close-knit, 
friendly and caring community that is safe, val-
ues families and diversity, and takes pride in its 
Western and historic heritage. They overwhelm-
ingly identified preserving community character 
and concerns about changing economic devel-
opment patterns as the top priorities they would 
like to see addressed in the next 20 years.
Community character was mainly identified 
with a sense of community and small town feel, 
while changing economic development patterns 
primarily referred to managing growth. Commu-
nity respondents also identified the environment 
as the most important community character, 
while affordable housing is considered the most 
threatened.
     To ensure that the Vision 2030 committee 
had identified the top priorities for what the 
community wanted to preserve in the next 20 
years, the group took the findings back to coun-
ty residents for additional input at four county-
wide gatherings in November 2008. Facilitators 
described scenarios about the characteristics 
of managing growth and community character 
based on desired outcomes identified by focus 
groups. Again, participants at these gatherings 
overwhelmingly agreed that these characteristics 
are of utmost importance to preserve.

Responses from November 2008 community 
gatherings ranking item as ‘Very Important’ or 
‘Utmost Importance’ 

   • Sustainable economy (92%)
   • Community character 
     (89% very important/ 
       utmost importance)
   • Sense of community (89%)
   • Family friendliness (86%)
   • Managing growth (83%) 
   • Transportation (85%)
   • Housing patterns (83%)
   • Heritage (79%)

DISCOVERIES

Percent of respondents who said 
aspect is “most important”
Clean environment

Yampa River

Open space

Scenic views

Low crime rate

Good education

Recreational opportunities

Friendliness & kindness

Experience nature & wildlife

Local business

Percent of respondents who said 
aspect is “most threatened”
Affordable housing

Little traffic congestion

Ranching & farming

Open space

Scenic views

Clean environment

Local business

Yampa River

Historic character

Experience nature & wildlife

91.3%

87.2%   

86.5%   

83.3%    

80.3%     

79.1%     

74.1%       

72.9%       

68.9%        

66.9%         

48.7%

47.3%

44.8% 

38.8%   

32.7%     

26.7%       

26.7%       

26.3%        

25.4%        

19.5%           

     

The Vision 2030 survey listed 21 aspects of the 
community and asked respondents to describe 
them as most, somewhat, or not important/
threatened. The ten most common responses 
listed for most important and most threatened 
are listed below.

����



14 VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org                      APRIL 2009

DISCOVERIES

     The 2008 survey asked: In 20 years, what would you like to see? We 
heard many common phrases, like “small-town feel,” “growth,” and “open space.” This 
graphic divides the most frequently heard phrases and concepts into five thematic groups 
representing the primary comments received in responses. The five thematic groups are 
broken into smaller groups that identify specific qualities that respondants hoped to see in 
20 years.

Community character

35.9%

Economic 

development 

patterns

25%

Open space & 

agriculture

19.1%

Other

12.5%

Environmental

awareness 

Connections
to history/roots

Ranches/ranching

Character

Historic buildings

Western feel

Family-friendly community
Good schools

Low crime

Family/youth-friendly

Small-town feel
Sense of community

Small-town feel

Friendliness

Compact urban centers

Limited or 
no growth
27.4%

Managed growth

67.1%

7.4%

Growth
More growth

Diverse retail

Healthy economy

Economic diversity among residents

Ability to live and work locally

Affordable housing

Home ownership & size

Growth focused in urban cores

Diversified economy

No big-box stores

Young people can return

Access to public land

Ranch and
agricultural

land
26.3%

Open space

Scenic views

Wildlife

Wilderness access

Recreational access

Auto 
alternatives

Healthy 
environment

 Green building &
business practices

Healthy Yampa River

Clean air & water

Walkability

Expanded trails

Increased transit

Commuter rail 

More bike lanes

Other

70.8%

Expanded services

5.4% Improved governance 

4% Improved infrastructure 

Recreation center

Higher education

Cultural amenities

Open lands
65.1%

17.9%

7.5%

52.1%

29.9%

8.6%

8.2%

21.7%
70.1%

19.8%

����



15VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org                    APRIL 2009

DISCOVERIES
     Respondents who suggested ways to preserve those things that we value and hope to see in 20 years 
identified managing growth as the top priority. Themes below are listed by frequency of comments received. 
Since all comments that relate to a specific category were included regardless of the respondent’s stance, 
some suggestions will reflect opposite perspectives. 

Survey question: What should be done to ensure that what you hope to  
see, feel, or experience is still here in twenty years? 

Promote density in city/town centers, encourage affordable housing, 
ban big boxes, encourage growth of tourism and businesses, encour-
age full-time residency through taxes, improve analysis of development 
impacts, limit home size, ban chains, restrict building height, encour-
age lower density, enforce zoning

Conservation easements, preserve Emerald Mountain, support land 
trusts, require open space deeded with development

Enforce master plans and zoning, less government, city/county coop-
eration, long-term planning, enforce conflict of interest rules

Encourage affordable day care, require affordable housing, don’t 
require affordable housing, encourage diverse retail

Provide education programs about local history, encourage ability to 
live and work in same location, preserve ranches/ranching, historic 
preservation ordinance, protect downtown areas

Quotas on building construction, enforce zoning

Highway 40 bypass around Steamboat Springs, support bikes and 
pedestrians, improve regional transit system

Require renewable energy, improve recycling program, buy local 
products, provide environmental education programs

Focus policies on locals, individual participation, community events, be 
friendly, volunteer, provide education on heritage/traditions, welcome 
newcomers and tourists

Expand regional transit, expand trails and trail infrastructure, provide 
more sidewalks

Volunteer, become a committee member or community leader

Manage growth

Preserve open space

Other themes included: Promote healthy environment, preserve ranches, preserve historic buildings, be friendly, 
preserve local businesses, provide recreation access, support better infrastructure, support better schools, support 
the arts, support youth, support charities

THEME COMMENTS RECEIVED

Provide
better governance

Provide affordable living

Preserve character

Limit growth

Limit traffic congestion

Promote green living

Preserve 
sense of community

Promote 
auto alternatives

Participate

����



16 VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org                      APRIL 2009

Interconnections
     An interesting discovery was the interconnectivity 
of the responses to every aspect of the community. 
Much the way the cogs of a machine are connected 
to one another to drive the engine forward, every 
aspect of our community is connected. As we have 
grown, more cogs have been added to the engine, 
all working together to drive the community  
forward. Losing one piece of the mechanism affects 
the whole engine.
     Each focus group also looked at all survey 
responses and the Vision 2020 review to develop 
desired outcomes and recommended actions for  
13 separate categories. 

DISCOVERIES

     Focus groups worked independently from one 
another, reviewing results and comments that 
pertained to that specific group. A number of 
recommendations came out of the focus groups 
that naturally connect to one another. The groups 
recognized that respondents identified quality of 
life, the economy, government and infrastructure, 
and natural and cultural resources as encompass-
ing the community’s heart and soul while also af-
fecting each other. For example, the importance of 
public policies and partnerships that supported our 
agricultural heritage and Western traditions such 
as the Routt County Fair, Winter Carnival, and Oak 
Creek’s Labor Day celebration were suggested by 
both the agriculture and heritage focus groups. 

Government and infrastructure

Econom
y

                               
    

 Q
ua

lit
y o

f lif
e

Nat
ur

al
 a

nd

 cultural resources

TransportationPlanning

 Government

Affordable 
Housing 

Economic
Viability 

SustainabilityHeritage

Agriculture
& Open Space

Youth

Education

Seniors

Recreation

Arts 
& Culture

���	



17VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org   APRIL 2009

DESIRED OUTCOMES, RECOMMENDED ACTIONS

Desired outcomes are the ideals 

or compass points in creating a 

vision for our community now 

and in the future. Recommended 

actions are the possible ways 

in which these outcomes can be 

achieved. Some recommended actions 

in this report are already in progress. Other 

recommended actions may not have funding 

and/or appropriate mechanisms for achieving 

the desired outcomes available at this time, yet 

the necessary funding or mechanism may be 

realized in the future. These desires and actions 

are identified in this report to recognize their 

importance to our citizens and to help elected 

officials and other decision-makers prioritize so 

that these outcomes can ultimately be achieved. 

To prepare the Desired Outcomes and 

Recommended Actions, input from community 

gatherings and surveys was sorted and analyzed 

by Vision 2030 committee members into general 

focus areas. Twelve focus groups reviewed 

the comments received by more than 1,600 

Routt County citizens at the November 2007 

Gatherings and through surveys that were 

conducted in the months following. The focus 

groups comprised more than 60 community 

members who are either experts in or closely 

involved with the area of interest. All participants 

attended an overview meeting and workshop. 

Then they met in individual groups to review the 

1994 Vision 2020 focus group notes, the record 

of the November 2007 Gatherings, and the survey 

comments to validate the accuracy of the findings. 

Some areas of interest included more than 20 

pages of information. An additional 20 people 

participated in the transportation focus group using 

the 1994 Vision 2020 recommendations with 

input from the Transportation Solutions Group, a 

group that came together in the fall of 2008 and 

is facilitated by the Steamboat Springs Chamber 

Resort Association.  

Facilitators and group leaders ensured that 

participants objectively established outcomes 

and actions based solely on the comments from 

the Vision 2030 process and did not promote 

their own agendas. Each focus group developed 

desired outcomes and recommended actions that 

were subsequently divided into 13 categories. 

They also identified interest groups that might 

champion the actions and timelines. The outcomes 

and actions were presented at the four November 

2008 community gatherings in Hayden, Clark, 

Steamboat Springs and Yampa. Participants at 

these gatherings were asked to rank action items 

through keypad polling. 

What you read on these following pages reflect 

the desired outcomes and recommended actions 

developed from the comments, observations and 

aspirations of the Vision 2030 participants. These 
are listed in alphabetical order.

���




18 VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org    APRIL 2009

Public land use policy and 
processes need to increase the 
supply of available and suitable 
land, increase the density of living 
spaces and decrease housing 
costs in order to preserve and 
promote affordable housing (both 
ownership and rental) in Routt 
County. 

Governmental agencies; organizations such 
as Yampa Valley Housing Authority; housing 
advocacy groups; concerned interest groups; 
for-profit and non-profit entities; chambers; 
economic cevelopment commissions

Adjust community development policies and 
decision-making processes as needed to allow 
greater density and more developable land 
where appropriate in and adjacent to our 
existing communities and adapt to changing 
market demand.

Foster focused and effective political leadership 
that engages the community in dialogue and 
decision-making processes and which enables 
inclusive, affordable neighborhoods. 

Participation from the four municipalities of 
Steamboat Springs, Yampa, Hayden and Oak 
Creek on a regional organization or entity 
for affordable housing such as Yampa Valley 
Housing Authority that fosters collaboration and 
cooperation.    

Develop a regional plan for affordable 
housing and coordinate affordable housing 
programs and activities with collaboration and 
cooperation on a regional level.    

Continually update housing market (both 
ownership and rental) to review demand, 
availability and needs.

short term and 
ongoing

 
ongoing

 

ongoing

 

short term and 

ongoing

 

ongoing

Recommended actions Timeframe

LAND USE & SUPPLY

AFFORDABLE 
HOUSING

DESIRED OUTCOMES & RECOMMENDED ACTIONS

Desired outcome

V
IS

IO
N

 2
02

0 
TO

 R
EA

LI
TY

Affordable Housing recommendation: 
Create a regional housing authority

The Yampa Valley Housing Authority 
(YVHA) was formed in November 
2003 through collaboration between 
the City of Steamboat Springs 
and Routt County governments in 
response to growing concern for the 
lack of affordable housing for people 
living and working in the Yampa 
Valley.

Possible interest groups/stewards

AFFORDABLE HOUSING

����



19VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org   APRIL 2009

Create and implement 
mechanism(s) that fund 
affordable housing in Routt 
County.

Governmental agencies; organizations such 
as Yampa Valley Housing Authority; housing 
advocacy groups; concerned interest groups; 
forprofit and non-profit entities; chambers; 
economic development commissions; state 
funding sources and organizations

Encourage and support the coordination 
of regional housing collaboration with one 
lead agency such as Yampa Valley Housing 
Authority reflecting regional needs and 
participation from Hayden, Oak Creek, 
Steamboat Springs and Yampa. 

Develop and implement a county-wide 
educational component for affordable housing 
and seek combined effort and support from 
the four municipalities.

Identify a dedicated, ongoing funding source 
to implement affordable housing initiatives 
(land and projects) such as a ballot issue for a 
property tax or sales tax among others. 

Create a private donation fund that can act 
as a secondary source of funds for affordable 
housing.

short term and 
ongoing 
 
 
 
  

short term and 
ongoing 

 

short term and 
ongoing  
 
 

short term and 
ongoing  

FUNDING 
Recommended actions Timeframe

DESIRED OUTCOMES & RECOMMENDED ACTIONS: AFFORDABLE HOUSING

Desired outcome

Possible interest groups/stewards

Increase 
in income

Increase
in median 
home sale
price

Increase 
in rental 
costs

100%

80%

60%

40%

20%

0%

Percent increase in income vs. 
sale home prices and rental costs

Routt County: 2000 to 2008

Source: Routt County Housing Needs Assessment, 

BBC Research & Consulting

17%

75%

5%

����



20 VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org    APRIL 2009

Seek a balanced economy that 
provides services, meets needs 
and attracts and retains residents 
for a diverse community, and 
that simultaneously values open 
space and a sense of place 
while addressing the need for 
affordable housing and inclusive 
community.  

Governmental agencies; organizations such 
as Yampa Valley Housing Authority; housing 
advocacy groups; concerned interest groups; 
forprofit and non-profit entities; chambers; 
economic development commissions; state 
funding sources and organizations

Develop and implement methods that 
enable collaborative decision making (with 
developers, employers, governmental entities, 
workforce and community organizations) for 
solutions to affordable housing.  

Create or assign a lead organization such as 
Yampa Valley Housing Authority to collaborate 
with workforce employers and develop and 
implement an educational program that 
presents options to employers and helps to 
supply workforce housing for employees.  
 
Develop and implement outreach affordability 
education for community as a whole.  

Continue to define, identify and update 
housing product preferences of various age 
groups, building upon the Housing Demand 
Analysis and Needs Assessment in order to 
attract and retain residents who will evolve as 
committed members of the community. 

Research and implement public policy 
mechanisms that mitigate the economic 
distortion of an amenity-based region and 
enable a diverse socio-economic base (e.g. 
transfer fee assessments, consumption fees, 
housing land trusts, land cap restrictions).  

short term and 
ongoing

 
short term and 
ongoing

short term and 
ongoing

ongoing

 

ongoing

Recommended actions Timeframe

AWARENESS & EDUCATION 

FOR SUSTAINING A DIVERSE COMMUNITY  

DESIRED OUTCOMES & RECOMMENDED ACTIONS: AFFORDABLE HOUSING

Desired outcome

$118,875
$57.15/hr

$71,306
$34.28/hr

Utilities

$57,558
$27.67/hr

Retail
trade

$19,265
$9.26/hr

$23,421
$11.26/hr$12.56/hr

Income needed
for self-suff fficiency
(two adults*,
two children))

Income needed
for self-suff fficiency
(single adult)

Routt County highest- and lowest-paying industries
with self-sufficiency standard

$61,490

$22,361

Wholesale
trade

Accommodation
and food service

Arts/recreation
Entertainment

$26,121

The cost of living in Routt County is 
high. According to the Colorado Fiscal 
Policy Institute, an income of $22,361 
is required to meet basic costs — to 
be self-sufficient without government 
assistance. A higher income, $61,490, 
is required to support two children 
and two adults. The chart at the right 
compares the average incomes of Routt 
County’s highest- and lowest-paying 
industries with this standard.

Source: Community Indicators Project, Yampa 
Valley Partners, 2009

Management

Possible interest groups/stewards

����



21VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org   APRIL 2009

Recommended actionsDesired outcome Timeframe

 
AGRICULTURE & OPEN SPACE  

Vision 2020 recommended and the work of Vision 2030 confirms that comprehensive 
agriculture and open space strategies are necessary to preserve the “heart and soul” 
of the Yampa Valley.  Open space and agriculture are two general characteristics 
that the community uniquely identifies, values, and desires to preserve for future 
generations in Routt County.

Preserve, maintain and enhance 
our working agricultural 
landscapes; multi-generational 
ranching families; Western 
values; and cultural authenticity 
of our rural communities.  

County/city planning and elected officials; 
community museums and historical societies; 
organizations such as Western Heritage 
Partnership; Historic Routt County!; Community 
Agriculture Alliance; Cattlewomen/Cattlemen; 
chambers, Steamboat Ski Area, lodging 
industry, agriculture and environmental 
organizations

Continue to emphasize and advocate the 
importance of western agricultural heritage 
through planning, zoning and public policy. 

Continue to support entities that promote our 
western agricultural heritage.  

Maintain and develop strategic partnerships 
to promote and support the Western traditions 
such as the Routt County Fair; community 
rodeos, Winter Carnival, etc.   

Maintain and provide incentives for future 
historic easements and facades through public 
education and incentives. 

ongoing  

ongoing

 
ongoing

 
mid term

AGRICULTURE 

AGRICULTURE
& OPEN SPACE

DESIRED OUTCOMES & RECOMMENDED ACTIONS
V

IS
IO

N
 2

02
0 

TO
 R

EA
LI

TY The Community Agriculture 
Alliance was developed in 
1999, bridging agriculture, 
business, community and resort 
interests, and has helped to 
develop many of the Vision 
2020 recommendations, 
including cultural heritage 
tourism, value-added products, 
and more.

Possible interest groups/stewards

����



22 VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org    APRIL 2009

DESIRED OUTCOMES & RECOMMENDED ACTIONS: AGRICULTURE & OPEN SPACE

AGRICULTURE VIABILITY & SUSTAINABILITY

Preserve, maintain and enhance 
working ranches and promote 
agriculture as an economic base; 
support a sustainable and diverse 
economy that includes ranching, 
farming, agri-tourism and the 
harvesting of natural resource 
products.  

County/city planning and elected officials, 
Purchase of Development Rights board, develop 
a citizen group for transfer of development 
rights; CSU Routt County Extension; Routt 
County Sheriffs Office; Routt County 4-H; Routt 
County Conservation District; Routt County 
CattleWomen; Sustainability Council; Natural 
Resource Conservation Service, Community 
Agriculture Alliance; The Nature Conservancy, 
Deep Roots; Northwest Colorado Products; 
all agriculture, recreation and environmental 
groups: organizations such as local retailers, 
economic councils and MainStreet programs

Promote local products and diverse markets 
for local agriculture and natural resource 
products.     

Implement transfer of development rights 
program and continue support and renewal of 
the Purchase of Development Rights program.  

Foster educational programs and mediation 
options to help enforce fencing laws, water 
laws and land use issues.  

Enable local students to attend agricultural 
colleges by providing scholarships to 
agricultural schools and developing 
agricultural internships and mentoring 
programs within the county.       

Develop a land stewardship advocacy 
program that will promote efforts to encourage 
sustainable agriculture.     

Research water leasing and carbon 
sequestration programs.      

Continue to develop agriculture, recreation 
and environmental partnerships.   
  

short term ongoing

ongoing

short term

mid term and 
ongoing

mid term

long term

ongoing

Recommended actionsDesired outcome Timeframe

V
IS

IO
N

 2
02

0 
TO

 R
EA

LI
TY Vision 2020 recommended: 

“Identify and secure funding 
vehicle to buy open space and 
to leverage other funds.”

In 1996, Routt County’s 
Purchase of Development Rights 
program was voted in as a 
taxpayer-funded program. It 
was renewed in 2005.

Possible interest groups/stewards

����



23VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org   APRIL 2009

WATER 

Preserve, maintain and enhance 
the water resources of the Yampa 
Valley; increase awareness 
and emphasize the importance 
of water quality, quantity and 
conservation issues

County/city planning and elected officials; 
developers; develop a citizen’s group comprised 
of all agricultural and environmental groups 
concerned with water resources , government 
agencies, municipalities, agriculture producers, 
etc.; Colorado Division of Water Resources, 
Routt County Environmental Health, Colorado 
Department of Health and Public Safety, Natural 
Resource Conservation Services; Sustainability 
Council

Require that all new developments prove they 
can meet and/or provide for sufficient water 
quantity needs and maintain quality standards. 

Encourage active involvement and participation 
of agricultural, wildlife, forestry municipal, 
recreational and environmental interests in 
the Yampa-White River Basin Round Table 
and in regional water conservancy districts in 
order to aid in the protection and appropriate 
development of the water resources of the 
Yampa Valley.

Develop a citizens’ water group that is active 
in protecting water resources for the Yampa 
Valley in order to ensure continued agriculture, 
wildlife, forestry, municipal, and recreational 
usage.    

Be active on local water rights and water 
conservation projects to ensure adequate water 
quantity and quality.     

Be active in state and regional water discussions.

Encourage open communication with existing 
state-appointed groups.  

short term and 
ongoing

 
short term and 
ongoing

 
short term and 
ongoing

 
  

ongoing 
 

ongoing

ongoing

Recommended actionsDesired outcome Timeframe

DESIRED OUTCOMES & RECOMMENDED ACTIONS: AGRICULTURE & OPEN SPACE

Get involved: Yampa-White River Basin Roundtable
In 2005, the Colorado legislature created basin-wide water “roundtables” 
with mandatory inclusion of representatives of agriculture, recreation, 
environmental interests, and governmental interests.  The Yampa-White River 
Basin Roundtable meets quarterly, discusses and covers a broad range of 
water issues, and obtains funding for water needs assessments.  

The Upper Yampa Water Conservancy District, which includes the area from 
the headwaters of the Yampa River to below the Craig power plant, has been 
active for more than 30 years in protecting and appropriately developing 
the water resources of the Yampa Valley.  These meetings are public and 
interested citizens are encouraged to attend.

For more information, visit: http://ibcc.state.co.us/Basins/YampaWhite

Possible interest groups/stewards

����



24 VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org    APRIL 2009

Preserve, maintain and enhance 
recreational access on, and 
connecting to, public open 
space. 

County/city planning and elected officials, U.S. 
Forest Service, Bureau of Land Management, 
Colorado Division of Wildlife, City of 
Steamboat Springs Parks, Trails and Open 
Space; Colorado Department of Transportation; 
Routt County Road and Bridge  

Encourage decision-makers to develop and 
adhere to existing and future land use and 
recreation management plans.  

Ensure the development approval process 
includes a review that specifically addresses 
continued public access corridors.

Encourage linkage of urban areas to public 
open space and public transit in land use 
planning.    

Provide public road and trail easements. 

Develop usage criteria for trails and access.

Identify and prioritize high-usage roads for 
bicycle pathways.  

Support, develop and expand segregated 
recreation areas when usages are not 
compatible (e.g. snowmachine, cross-country 
skiing, horses, bikes, etc.).

Develop linkage to parks and trails in and 
around our communities.  

ongoing

mid term and 
ongoing 

 
ongoing 
 

ongoing

short-term

short-term

ongoing

ongoing

ACCESS TO OPEN SPACE
Recommended actions Timeframe

DESIRED OUTCOMES & RECOMMENDED ACTIONS: AGRICULTURE & OPEN SPACE

“In the year 
of 2030, I 
truly hope the 
marvelous view 
of Steamboat 
Lake is still 
here to touch 
my heart” — 
Grace Mark, 
North Routt 
Community 
Charter School

V
IS

IO
N

 2
02

0 
TO

 R
EA

LI
TY Vision 2020 recommended: 

“Create and implement the 
Routt County Agricultural Lands, 
Natural Areas and Open Space 
Resources Protection Plan.”

Routt County Open Lands Plan 
was established in 1995. It is 
a plan for the protection of 
agricultural lands, natural areas 
and open spaces.

Desired outcome

Possible interest groups/stewards

����



25VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org   APRIL 2009

Protect, maintain and enhance 
open space and view corridors to 
maintain our sense of place for 
current and future generations.

County/city planning and elected officials; 
Purchase of Development Rights board, 
develop a transfer of development rights 
citizens’ group; organizations such as Yampa 
Valley Land Trust; Colorado Department of 
Wildlife; Natural Resource and Conservation 
Services; Colorado Cattlemen’s Land Trust; 
private landowners; CSU Routt County 
Extension; private landscaping companies, 
builders and homeowners  

Adhere to existing and develop land use plans 
that establish a high priority for the protection 
of open space and view corridors.

Continue to require higher density in urban 
areas. 

Continue Routt County’s Purchase of 
Development Rights program and implement 
Transfer of Development Rights program.  

Encourage voluntary conservation easements 
and continue to support entities that facilitate 
them. 

Encourage and educate about the benefits of 
light pollution ordinances, ridgeline standards, 
increase skyline ordinance areas and 
underground utility line placements.      

Encourage native landscaping.    

Encourage and lobby for state legislation that 
minimizes fragmentation of open land parcels. 

ongoing

ongoing

 
ongoing 
 

ongoing 
 

ongoing 
 

ongoing 
 
ongoing

OPEN SPACE AND VIEW CORRIDORS
Recommended actions Timeframe

DESIRED OUTCOMES & RECOMMENDED ACTIONS: AGRICULTURE & OPEN SPACE

V
IS

IO
N

 2
02

0 
TO

 R
EA

LI
TY

Due in large part to Vision 
2020, many acres of 
agricultural and open lands 
have been placed under 
conservation easements 
and are under long-term 
protected status.

Source: Community Indicators 
Report, Yampa Valley Partners, 
2009

Routt County, 2007

49% Public
749,723 acres

51% Private
766,185 acres

55,526 acres protected
under conservation 

easements (7% of private land)

Desired outcome/actors

Possible interest groups/stewards

����



26 VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org    APRIL 2009

Protect, conserve and enhance 
the wildlife habitat, riparian 
areas and wetlands.  Prevent 
fragmentation of wildlife habitat, 
protect wildlife migration corridors 
and provide important transition 
zones from different habitat types.  

County/city planning and elected officials; 
current and future development projects;  U.S. 
Forest Service, Bureau of Land Management; 
Colorado Department of Wildlife; Routt 
County services (Road and Bridge, Planning), 
Natural Resource and Conservation Services; 
landowners 

Adhere to existing and develop future land 
use and wildlife habitat plans that promote the 
protection of these natural resources.      

Develop a comprehensive wildlife plan:  

Identify and honor habitat corridors;   

Identify and seek preservation of critical 
wildlife habitats; 

Develop and honor wildlife mitigation plans;  

Develop and honor a holistic, eco-system 
perspective that seeks preservation and 
enhancement of wildlife habitat and corridor 
planning; 

Seek methods to strengthen the weed and 
invasive species control program.   
  

Encourage water and soil conservation projects.

Provide incentives for wildlife habitat 
maintenance and stewardship.  

Preserve the river corridor through agriculture 
tax credits. 

Designate river corridors to provide further 
protection of rivers, while permitting the 
continued appropriate development of the water 
resources of the Yampa River for the benefit of 
the present and future residents of the Yampa 
River Valley.

Discourage any trans-basin diversions of Yampa 
River water.

ongoing

 
 
mid-term and long-
term

 

 
 

ongoing

ongoing 

ongoing

 
ongoing

 

ongoing

HABITAT, WILDLIFE, WATERS

Recommended actions Timeframe

DESIRED OUTCOMES & RECOMMENDED ACTIONS: AGRICULTURE & OPEN SPACE

Desired outcome

Possible interest groups/stewards

 “This is a special place to me 
because I love to go there, relax, 
catch frogs and I love to eat lunch 
there…I hope in the year 2030 
there will be more living trees 
where the noxious weeds are so 
there will be no more noxious 
weeds along the river.”  
— Tommy Bertram, Hayden Valley 
Elementary School

���	



27VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org   APRIL 2009

Support, encourage, and foster 
educational efforts to provide 
greater awareness of the values 
of open space and agriculture 
as they relate to the sustainability 
and the preservation of the 
character of our valley.

City/county planning and elected officials; 
Bureau of Land Management; U.S. Forest 
Service; Colorado Department of Wildlife; State 
Land Board, organizations such as the Nature 
Conservancy; local conservation groups; 
local ranches; Forest Health and Blue Stain 
programs; Natural Resource and Conservation 
Services; Farm Service Agency; Community 
Agriculture Alliance; Steamboat Springs Board 
of Realtors; Routt County Weed Board    

Communicate the efforts, successes and 
mechanisms of existing programs: federal, 
state, local, non-profits and organizations. 

Use existing public properties (i.e. Emerald 
Mountain, Legacy Ranch) as education 
opportunities about open space and 
agriculture, including public signage for public 
open space and conservation properties. 

Inform, educate and encourage all realtors 
to attend local land stewardship courses to 
encourage cooperative efforts.    

Strengthen public awareness efforts regarding 
weed and invasive species control programs.    

Support and further develop youth 
organizations that focus on agriculture and the 
environment.

Engender and foster a culture of community 
that nurtures partnerships and inclusivness. 

Continue to address estate planning and 
national issues that negatively impact 
agriculture.  

Develop actions to legislate or change the 
inheritance tax impacts. 

ongoing

short term and 
ongoing

 
ongoing

short term and 
ongoing

 
ongoing

ongoing

ongoing

short term and 
ongoing

EDUCATION & AWARENESS

Recommended actions Timeframe

DESIRED OUTCOMES & RECOMMENDED ACTIONS: AGRICULTURE & OPEN SPACE

Desired outcome

Possible interest groups/stewards

Yampa River

Emerald Mountain

Howelsen Hill

Downtown Steamboat 

Steamboat ski area

99

78

69

67

66

In its 2008 survey, Vision 2030 asked residents 
to name  “special places” in Routt County. The 
most popular response was the Yampa River. It 

was named by 99 out of 859 respondents. 

���




28 VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org    APRIL 2009

Support, encourage, and foster 
funding efforts that will sustain 
the values of public open space 
and agriculture as they relate to 
the preservation of the character 
of our valley.

City/county planning and elected officials; 
landowners and local citizens, local non-profits 
and programs; local agricultural and open 
space groups; economic councils, chambers; 
retailers, resort management companies; 
organizations such as cultural heritage tourism; 
Community Agriculture Alliance; Main Street 
program; corporate sponsorships, foundation 
grants and private donors; U.S. Forest Service; 
Bureau of Land Management; Colorado 
Department of Wildlife; CSU Routt County 
Extension and other agricultural entities  

Create an endowment fund for administration 
of local non-profit agencies and programs 
(such as Community Agriculture Alliance, 
Yampatika, Yampa Valley Land Trust, and 
other agricultural entities (e.g.:  Funding for 
the arts model from Strings)). 

Identify collaborative partnerships from 
agricultural/public open space groups so that 
available funds can be better used.  

Develop and implement collaborative 
partnerships that recognize and market the 
“value of the view” and sustain agriculture 
by creating a regional agriculture, working 
landscapes and public open space fund.  
 
Consider use tax, voluntary “check-
off” donations, grant funding and other 
mechanisms to be used for public open space 
and agricultural sustainability. 

Brand the “going green” appeal for agriculture 
and western heritage (ag-tourism, working 
landscapes, value of the view).

Create adoption programs for agriculture and 
public open space.  

Implement a consumption tax for excessive 
home sizes and part-time residency. 

Expanded funding for federal, state and local 
agencies. 

long-term

 
ongoing 
 

short term and 
ongoing

 
 
 
short term and 
ongoing

short term and 
ongoing

 
short term and 
ongoing

mid-term and 
ongoing 
 
mid-term and 
ongoing

FUNDING
Recommended actions Timeframe

DESIRED OUTCOMES & RECOMMENDED ACTIONS: AGRICULTURE & OPEN SPACE

Desired outcome

Possible interest groups/stewards

����



29VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org   APRIL 2009

Support creative arts and cultural 
opportunities.

Organizations such as Steamboat Springs Arts 
Council; Strings in the Mountains; schools; 
galleries; local artisans; Northwest Colorado 
Cultural Heritage Tourism; Colorado Mountain 
College; Colorado Northwestern Community 
College; museums

Develop new programs to adapt to changing 
community demographics. 

Continue and expand the types and quality of 
programming. 

Develop programs to attract arts events as 
destination motivators. 

Continue to have education and community 
outreach for people of all ages, both 
traditional and non-traditional audiences. 

Expand arts education as core curriculum in 
public schools from K-12.  

Present cultural heritage programming.

Expand outreach efforts in the Yampa Valley for 
all the arts.  

Create more opportunities for professional 
development.  

Expand workshops; seminars; master classes. 

ongoing

 
ongoing

 
ongoing

 
ongoing

ongoing

ongoing

 
ongoing

ongoing

 
ongoing

ARTS & CULTURE

To enhance our quality of life and sense of community, Vision 2030 participants said 
that we must maintain and create accessible, affordable and quality arts and cultural 
opportunities for audiences, performers, and artists while growing the creative arts 
industry as a significant contributor to the local economy.

PROGRAMS

Recommended actions Timeframe

ARTS
& CULTURE

DESIRED OUTCOMES & RECOMMENDED ACTIONS

Possible interest groups/stewards

Cultural heritage tourism 
is traveling to experience the 
places, artifacts and activities 
that authentically represent the 
stories and people of the past and 
present. It includes cultural, historic 
and natural resources.

����



30 VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org    APRIL 2009

Organizations such as Steamboat Springs Arts 
Council; Strings in the Mountains; schools; 
galleries; local artisans; Northwest Colorado 
Cultural Heritage Tourism; Colorado Mountain 
College; Colorado Northwestern Community 
College; museums; community support funds 
(SS); chamber; newspapers; radio

Expand audiences through programming, 
outreach, marketing, education, and venues. 
 
Recognize opportunities for free performances 
in unusual venues.  

Develop a community where performers and 
artists are valued and able to attain a viable 
standard of living and are supported through 
professional development and compensated 
for the work they do.  

Reach diverse audiences (ethnic,  
socio-economic, multi-generational).

Form a unifying arts organization that ties 
together amateurs and professionals. 

Develop a strong, collaborative organizational 
entity including for-profits and non-profits for 
advocacy, support, resources and education. 
 

ongoing 

short term and 
ongoing

short term and 
ongoing

 
 
 
ongoing

 
short term and 
ongoing

short term and 
ongoing

PEOPLE
Recommended actions Timeframe

DESIRED OUTCOMES & RECOMMENDED ACTIONS: ARTS & CULTURE

Possible interest groups/stewards

“This is the Art Depot near the 
Yampa River. The Art Depot is 
a historic site now in ’07 and if 
it was still here in ’30 it would 
be really cool. Steamboat is 
under construction and historic 
sites are being demolished.” 
— Malia Fraioli, Steamboat 
Springs Middle School

����



31VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org   APRIL 2009

Organizations such as Steamboat Springs Arts 
Council; Strings in the Mountains; schools; 
galleries; local srtisans; Northwest Colorado 
Cultural Heritage Tourism; Colorado Mountain 
College; Colorado Northwestern Community 
College; museums; community support funds 
(SS); chamber; newspapers; radio; National 
Endowment for Arts; foundations; government 
agencies; volunteer groups

Seek sustainable sources for ongoing public 
and private funding.  

Increase opportunities for grants (awareness, 
applications, ) and private contributions 
(foundations, business sponsorships & 
individual contributions). 

Funding and support by local government.

Private sponsorships, foundation grants, 
membership and individual contributions.

Tap local resources such as people with 
expertise. 

Engage community in the arts through 
volunteer opportunities.  

Develop a business plan to grow the creative 
arts industry.  

Build collaborations and partnerships to 
accomplish goals.  

short term and 
ongoing

short term and 
ongoing

 
 
ongoing

ongoing

 
ongoing

short term and 
ongoing 
 
short term and 
ongoing

short term and 
ongoing

RESOURCES
Recommended actions Timeframe

DESIRED OUTCOMES & RECOMMENDED ACTIONS: ARTS & CULTURE

Possible interest groups/stewards

Organizations such as Steamboat Springs Arts 
Council; Strings in the Mountains; schools; 
galleries; local artisans; Northwest Colorado 
Cultural Heritage Tourism; Colorado Mountain 
College; Colorado Northwestern Community 
College; museums; community support funds 
(SS); chamber; newspapers; radio

Create an arts center with classroom, 
exhibition, and performance space. 

Develop a theater with additional space for 
rehearsals, sets, etc. 

Winterize Strings as a facility for year-round 
performances.  

Explore creative use of existing venues. 

Develop committee to research venue options. 

mid term

 
mid term 

 
short term 

 
ongoing

short term

INFRASTRUCTURE
Recommended actions TimeframePossible interest groups/stewards

����



32 VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org    APRIL 2009

We will nurture and promote a 
regional, diverse, and sustainable 
economy, fostering a range of 
industries, employment, and 
resources and resulting in a 
variety of products and services.  
This will be provided by resources, 
initiatives for businesses, land use 
options, and transportation.

Economic development councils; chambers; 
organizations such as Yampa Valley Partners; 
MainStreet Steamboat; Routt County Livability 
Index; schools

ECONOMIC VIABILITY 

We will nurture a diverse, sustainable economy while enhancing the character of our 
community. 

Recommended actions Timeframe

Increase broad-band capacity through public 
private partnerships. 

Ensure county-wide cell-phone coverage. 

Pursue new technology, new industry sectors 
(e.g. location neutral businesses such as 
software programming, financial services, 
bio-tech industries), new energy economy 
(bio-fuels, waste to energy, etc.) in order to 
develop a diverse economy.  

Provide economic education that includes 
economic trending, research and bringing 
new information from the region’s businesses.

Continue to provide vocational training on a 
regional basis. 

Advocate for workforce attraction and 
retention including workforce housing, 
international workers, and more.   

short term to mid 
term

short term

mid term

 
short term

short term 

short and mid term

RESOURCES 

ECONOMIC
VIABILITY

DESIRED OUTCOMES & RECOMMENDED ACTIONS

Desired outcome

V
IS

IO
N

 2
02

0 
TO

 R
EA

LI
TY

 
Vision 2020 recommended: Support development  
of telecommunications infrastructure

In 2003, the “Beanpole Project” was formed by 
the Yampa Valley Economic Development Council.  
The Beanpole Project was part of a state-funded 
technology initiative to bring high-speed Internet 
access to every county seat in the state, and then 
spread the connection to public facilities such as 
government buildings, schools and libraries.

Possible interest groups/stewards

����



33VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org   APRIL 2009

INITIATIVES FOR BUSINESSES
Recommended actions Timeframe

Colleges such as Colorado Mountain College; 
organizations such as Northwest Colorado 
Council of Governments

Fund Small Business Resource Center long-term.

Create local incubator program. 

Create a micro-loan fund and access to capital. 

mid term

mid term

mid term

Colleges such as Colorado Mountain College; 
planning schools

Implement entrepreneurial advocacy and seek 
adaptive zoning that enables entrepreneurial 
activities. 

Create enterprise zones and industrial parks to 
encourage economic development and office 
space availability.

short term

 

short term

LAND USE OPTIONS
Recommended actions Timeframe

DESIRED OUTCOMES & RECOMMENDED ACTIONS: ECONOMIC VIABILITY

Possible interest groups/stewards

Possible interest groups/stewards

TRANSPORTATION 

Recommended actions Timeframe

Organizations such as the Transportation 
Solutions Group; Yampa Valley Airport 
Commission; County/City Government; 
Chambers; Cultural Heritage Tourism

Develop railhead access for large-scale 
transport. 

Form regional transportation authority 
to provide and maintain transportation 
infrastructure and opportunities. 

Enhance all-season, all-weather air access 
to ensure commuting, tourism and business 
activities. 

Investigate options for high speed rail 
for regional and state-wide transit and 
movement of workforce within the region. 

Emphasize ease of access for urban areas.

mid term

short term

ongoing

long term

ongoing

Possible interest groups/stewards

����



34 VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org    APRIL 2009

EDUCATION 

The educational systems in the Yampa Valley will offer an exemplary and exceptional 
level of community-supported 21st century innovative education that is sufficiently 
funded, serves a spectrum of learners and makes collaborative use of all available 
educational resources.  

EDUCATIONAL CLIMATE

Recommended actions Timeframe

Foster an educational climate that 
creates access to a variety of 21st 
century educational opportunities 
from early childhood education 
through lifelong learning. 

Public and private schools; school boards; 
Colorado Mountain College; Colorado 
Northwestern Community College; 
organizations such as First Impressions; 
Education Fund Board; Rocky Mountain Youth 
Corps; Yampatika 

Maintain and enhance high quality, accessible 
facilities, fitting the community character, with 
current and innovative technology for all types 
of learners.  

Increase a regional funding base that is fair 
and equitable to all educational entities in 
Routt County to provide services to all student 
populations.  

Enhance collaboration on a county-wide level 
to provide educational services, work-force 
development, and comprehensive resources. 
 

ongoing 

short term and 
ongoing 

ongoing

EDUCATION

DESIRED OUTCOMES & RECOMMENDED ACTIONS

Desired outcome

Possible interest groups/stewards

����



35VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org   APRIL 2009

DESIRED OUTCOMES & RECOMMENDED ACTIONS: EDUCATION

21st CENTURY LEARNING 
Recommended actions Timeframe

In order to create 21st century 
learners we will emphasize an 
educational environment that 
fosters innovative and creative 
problem solving skills.  

Public and private schools; school boards; 
Colorado Mountain College; Colorado 
Northwestern Community College; First 
Impressions; non-profit organizations; 
community agencies and organizations

Enhance school collaboration with community 
agencies and resources to promote family 
health and well-being that will foster learning. 
  

ongoing

Desired outcome

Possible interest groups/stewards

Recommended actions Timeframe

Provide collaborative 
opportunities to attract and retain 
exceptional educators and staff 
who will facilitate educational 
success.   

Public and Private Schools; School Boards; 
Colorado Mountain College; Colorado 
Northwestern Community College; First 
Impressions; non-profit organizations; 
community agencies and organizations

Attract and retain experienced, educated and 
adaptable educators capable of meeting a 
variety of educational needs.  

Develop and enhance efforts that demonstrate 
the value and respect for educators by 
providing adequate compensation, training, 
development and resources.  

Collaborate with community efforts to provide 
affordable living alternatives within each 
community.  

Enhance educational opportunities by 
collaborating with community entities in the 
arts, humanities, recreation, agriculture and 
heritage.  

ongoing

short term and 
ongoing

ongoing

ongoing

EXCEPTIONAL STAFF 
Desired outcome

Possible interest groups/stewards

����



36 VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org    APRIL 2009

QUALITY EDUCATION 
Recommended actions Timeframe

Promote quality education 
through maintaining small, 
personable, community-based 
learning environments that 
emphasize high-achievement 
and foster innovative, creative 
problem-solving.  

Public and private schools; school boards; 
Colorado Mountain College; Colorado 
Northwestern Community College; 
organizations such as First Impressions; 
Education Fund Board

Maintain a caring and welcoming, safe and 
secure school environment with small class sizes 
through appropriate student to teacher ratios. 

Promote outreach and volunteer programs that 
integrate the learning environment with our 
communities.  

Adapt our educational resources to meet the 
needs of our changing learner demographics in 
order to attain high achievement.  

ongoing

 

ongoing 

 

ongoing

Desired outcome

Possible interest groups/stewards

DESIRED OUTCOMES & RECOMMENDED ACTIONS: EDUCATION

Gathering poll results, 2008
Proposed recommendation: 
Promote school outreach and volunteer programs 
that integrate the learning environment with our 
communities.

Completely agree

Partly agree

Neutral

Partly disagree

Completely disagree

 50.3%                          

35.6%                                     

11.0%                                                         

1.8%                                                                  

1.2%                                                                  

���	



37VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org   APRIL 2009

GOVERNMENT

Routt County currently enjoys a wide variety of governmental and semi-governmental 
services that are provided by water and sanitation districts, fire districts, school districts, 
library districts, municipalities and county administration.

FISCAL RESPONSIBILITY

Recommended actions Timeframe

Governmental entities within 
Routt County will be fiscally 
responsible.

 

Governmental agencies; municipalities; county 

Planning ahead (at least one to five years) for 
providing desired services and facilities at the 
highest level that is commensurate with the 
resources that they expect to have. 

Proposing a system of taxation that is, at any 
given time, understandable, productive, fair 
and progressive.  

Supplementing tax revenues with appropriate 
charges for services, grants and increases in 
productivity.

Adopting annual budgets that are reflective 
of their citizens’ needs and desires while 
taking into consideration existing economic 
conditions.

Adopt a five year capital improvement plan and 
review and update it on a regular basis. 

Explore options for regular review of changing 
financial demographics as they relate to tax 
structure.

Periodically review fee structures to ensure 
appropriate charges for services.  Continuously 
review productivity to ensure efficiency, seeking 
new methodology and techniques. 

Without sacrificing services, allow flexibility 
during budgeting periods to adapt to changing 
conditions.  

short term; annual

 
mid term

 
 
short term and 
ongoing 

ongoing

GOVERNMENT

DESIRED OUTCOMES & RECOMMENDED ACTIONS

Desired outcome

Possible interest groups/stewards

���




38 VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org    APRIL 2009

PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY, WELFARE
Recommended actions Timeframe

Law enforcement, emergency 
services, public health and 
welfare agencies, all of whom 
exist to protect and serve, will be 
community- and service-oriented 
to help ensure the desired 
community character. 

Governmental/public service agencies; county; 
municipalities; water districts

Continue to uphold the highest standards 
in recruiting and retaining public service 
professionals. 

Programs such as Neighborhood Watch, 
Community Policing and Elder Watch should 
be encouraged. 

Continue citizen education programs such 
as TIPS, CPR, emergency preparedness, 
Firewise and others to build safer and healthier 
communities. 

Support efforts to maintain or improve air and 
water quality. 

Ensure the provision of affordable, quality 
physical health and mental health services.  

ongoing 
 

short term and 
ongoing 

short term and 
ongoing 
 

ongoing 

ongoing

DESIRED OUTCOMES & RECOMMENDED ACTIONS: GOVERNMENT

Desired outcome

Possible interest groups/stewards

INFRASTRUCTURE 
Recommended actions Timeframe

Government entities will continue 
to provide adequate water 
and sewer capacity, roads and 
bridges, public facilities and 
parks, and communication and 
transportation networks.

Municipalities; county; water districts; 
developers; non-governmental organizations; 
corporations; Yampa Valley Economic 
Development Council; Northwest Council of 
Governments; Associated Governments of 
Northwest Colorado

Determine the water and sewer capacities 
needed to meet the needs of projected growth 
within Routt County. Work with development 
interests to provide those capacities.   

Seek supplemental revenues and collaborative 
partnerships to provide for ongoing 
maintenance and improvement of roads 
and bridges, public facilities and parks, and 
communication and transportation networks.

Work to maintain and update the 
technological standards of the communication 
infrastructure to meet the needs of our citizens. 

Form a Regional Transportation Authority 
or other regional methodology to provide 
a collaborative, coordinated approach to 
addressing transportation needs.  

ongoing 
 
 

ongoing 
 
 
  

  ongoing 
 
 

short term

Desired outcome

Possible interest groups/stewards

����



39VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org   APRIL 2009

CITIZEN INVOLVEMENT
Recommended actionsDesired outcome Timeframe

Governments must constantly 
seek ways of bringing citizens into 
the legislative and administrative 
processes that affect their lives, 
and give them opportunities to 
make their needs and opinions 
known.  Local governments have 
long received high marks for 
accessibility, responsiveness and 
accountability, but continuous 
citizen involvement is essential 
if Routt County governments 
are to maintain openness and 
transparency in their dealings. 

All concerned; government; agencies; elected 
officials; citizens and beyond 

Maintain and enhance collaborative decision-
making that is based upon seeking “common 
interests” rather than “positions.” 

Citizens are encouraged to provide feedback 
to elected officials and government agencies 
in all steps of the governmental process, 
including planning, budgeting, and other 
aspects.  

Local governmental entities will ensure 
the accessibility of government through 
effective and efficient communications using 
advanced technology while keeping a feel of 
personalized service. 

Variable and personalized service delivery 
methods will be maintained and enhanced 
to maintain a “small-town feel” and meet the 
needs of all citizens (e.g. water bills paid in-
person, online, or at supermarkets). 

Continue to ensure the accessibility to public 
elected officials, boards and commissions 
through active participation in community life.

ongoing

ongoing

 

ongoing 
 
 
 

ongoing   
 

ongoing

DESIRED OUTCOMES & RECOMMENDED ACTIONS: GOVERNMENT

Possible interest groups/stewards

����



40 VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org    APRIL 2009

IMPLEMENTATION OF COMMUNITY VISION 
Recommended actions Timeframe

The Vision 2030 Report will serve 
Routt County decision-makers 
with clear statements of citizens’ 
wishes, recommendations for 
fulfilling those wishes, and 
encouragement in that mission.  
A community vision without 
a plan to achieve it is a goal 
never reached.  Governmental 
decision-making will direct 
resources and efforts toward 
making that vision real.

Governmental agencies; planning bodies; 
citizen groups 

Governmental agencies are highly 
encouraged to regularly review, update, 
integrate and implement Master Plans after 
seeking citizen input and direction.  

Continue to manage public expectations 
for decision-making through education and 
communication efforts.    

Develop and include in community master 
plans a “community character” standard that 
will encourage developers to show how well 
their proposal supports the important aspects 
of community character that Vision 2030 has 
identified. 

County and local planning departments 
should prepare an annual “report” which 
measures the implementation status of the 
variety of master plans and community visions.   
This report will be published and reviewed at a 
public meeting where public comment can be 
taken.  

Continue to seek public input through regular 
community surveys, both formal and informal, 
and set measurable public service standards. 

mid term updates; 
ongoing for existing

 
 
ongoing 
 

 

short term

 
 
 
 
 
short term and 
ongoing 
 
 
 
 

midterm and 
ongoing

DESIRED OUTCOMES & RECOMMENDED ACTIONS: GOVERNMENT

Community character 
includes the sense of community, 

family friendliness and a 
connection to our history, roots 

and sense of place.

Desired outcome

Possible interest groups/stewards

Gathering poll results, 2008
Proposed recommendation: 
County and local planning departments should 
prepare an annual “report card” that measures the 
implementation status of master plans and community 
visions. Report card results will be published and 
reviewed at a public meeting where publilc comment 
can be taken.

Completely agree

Partly agree

Neutral

Partly disagree

Completely disagree

 39.6%                          

  35.4%                            

15.2%                                               

6.7%                                                       

3.0%                                                          

����



41VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org   APRIL 2009

HERITAGE

BUILT ENVIRONMENT 

Recommended actions Timeframe

Preserve the elements and 
promote the protection and 
continued use of our built 
environments that reflect the 
heritage of Routt County.

Citizens; planning commissions and planning 
staff; elected officials; Historic Preservation 
Advisory Committee; Routt County Historic 
Preservation Board; Partners in Preservation; 
Historic Routt County!; MainStreet Steamboat 
Springs; schools; colleges and museums; 
Yampa Valley Recycles; chambers of 
commerce, Sustainability Committee

Design and implement an evaluation process 
for the impacts of proposed actions (decision 
making or policies) on historic resources.  

Define, encourage and adopt a community 
preservation ethic that encompasses our 
western heritage, small town feel and 
friendliness as the basis for policy-making and 
from which decisions and development impacts 
are evaluated.  

Instill a historic preservation education and 
ethic for K-12 and beyond.   

Implement sustainable building practices 
that include historic preservation as a green 
initiative.

Develop, seek public approval and implement 
a Purchase of Development Rights Fund for 
historic buildings .  Build capacity to buy-down 
the difference between existing square footage 
and the maximum allowable by zoning and to 
purchase façade easements.   

Seek and research methods to develop and 
implement financial incentives for owners of 
historic properties who agree to preserve their 
properties in coordination with a Purchase of 
Development Rights fund. 

short term 

 
 
ongoing 
 
 
 
 

ongoing 

short term 
 

mid term 
 
 
 

mid term

HERITAGE

DESIRED OUTCOMES & RECOMMENDED ACTIONS

Desired outcome

Possible interest groups/stewards

“This has been a school for my grandma, my grand 
uncle and now it is a school for me. I want it to be a 
school for kids in the future.” — Will Anderson,  
North Routt Community Charter School

����



42 VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org    APRIL 2009

CULTURAL LANDSCAPE 

Recommended actions Timeframe

Preserve the elements and 
patterns of the rural cultural 
landscape shaped by agriculture, 
mining, recreation, the arts, 
forestry, industry, transportation, 
water and commerce.  

Economic development councils; chambers; 
organizations such as Community Agriculture 
Alliance; Yampa Valley Land Trust and others; 
citizens; government; elected officials; 
finance directors; schools; colleges; planning 
commissions; grocers; Historic Routt County!, 
museums

Encourage public policy and economic 
development that promotes and enhances the 
financial viability of local farming and ranching 
to maintain the cultural landscape.  

Encourage preservation of the structures that 
contribute to and help define the cultural 
landscape.  

Foster the stewardship of our heritage through 
education and awareness in k-12 and life-long 
learning.   

Identify the elements and patterns of the 
cultural landscape and use this as the 
framework to incorporate into future design 
and new construction.   

Preserve and maintain the integrity of 
conservation and access easements on those 
properties that contribute to our cultural 
landscape.    

Connect people to their food sources and 
teach them where their food comes from.

Invest in and implement cultural heritage 
tourism programs that interpret and showcase 
local history.  

Transform the Legacy Ranch and other public 
spaces into interpretive centers for agriculture 
and the working landscape.   

Continue to expand the County Purchase 
of Development Rights (PDR) program to 
fund conservation/ preservation of cultural 
landscapes.   

Seek methods to develop and implement 
financial incentives for property owners in 
coordination with Purchase of Development 
Rights program.   

ongoing

 
short term and 
ongoing 

ongoing 
 

mid term

 
 
 
ongoing

 
 
 
ongoing

 
short term and 
ongoing 

mid term 

mid term

mid term

DESIRED OUTCOMES & RECOMMENDED ACTIONS: HERITAGE

What is a cultural landscape?

“Distinct geographical areas or properties 
uniquely representing the combined work 
of nature and of man.” — World Heritage 
Committee 

“A geographic area, including both cultural 
and natural resources and the wildlife or 
domestic animals therein, associated with a 
historic event, activity, or person or exhibiting 
other cultural or aesthetic values.” — National 
Park Service 

What is cultural heritage tourism?

“Traveling to experience the places and 
activities that authentically represent the stories 
and people of the past and present. It includes 
historic, cultural and natural resources.” — 
National Trust for Historic Preservation 

Desired outcomes

57.9%
27.5%                      

8.2%                                       
           5.8%                                        

.6%                                              
            

Completely agree
Partly agree

Neutral
Partly disagree

Completely disagree

“I would encourage public policy and economic 
development that promotes and enhances the financial 
viability of local farming and ranching to maintain the 
cultural landscape.”  
Source: Vision 2030 gatherings, 2008

Possible interest groups/stewards

����



43VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org   APRIL 2009

REGIONAL IDENTITY 
Recommended actions Timeframe

Western heritage continues to 
define us.  Outdoor recreation, 
agriculture and arts and culture 
events are the backbone and 
building blocks of our regional 
identity.

Economic development councils, chambers, 
business communities, local governments; 
citizens, planning officials, planning 
commissions, elected officials, media, 
organizations such as MainStreet Steamboat 
Springs; Community Agriculture Alliance; 
Historic Routt County!; Steamboat Springs 
Winter Sport Club

Encourage economic development that builds 
from our natural and historical resources and 
our western heritage.   

Encourage and foster local gathering places.  

Continue to support traditional events and 
celebrations (Winter Carnival; Routt County 
Fair; Labor Day; Fourth of July; Colorado 
Days, Olympic Legacy, rodeo; homecomings, 
etc.) and encourage new traditions to evolve 
that reinforce our western heritage (farmers 
markets, South Meets West, Coureur des Bois, 
Steamboat Springs Marathon, etc.). 

ongoing

short term and 
ongoing
 
ongoing

 

DESIRED OUTCOMES & RECOMMENDED ACTIONS: HERITAGE

Desired outcome

Possible interest groups/stewards

“We must not lose our ranching heritage ... it  is a special thing to drive down 
Rabbit Ears Pass & see the hay fields & the Yampa. We must protect it.”  
— Steamboat Springs resident

����



44 VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org    APRIL 2009

PLANNING

PACED & PLACED GROWTH 

Recommended actions Timeframe

Paced Growth 

Develop regulations and 
guidelines for paced growth that 
are incremental, where growth 
can be limited and absorbed in a 
way that retains or enhances the 
community character (e.g. growth 
caps; square footage restrictions; 
limits on building permits).

Placed Growth

Support the maintenance of 
open space and preservation of 
rural ranching character while 
preventing sprawl.  Encourage 
urban density tied to existing 
transportation corridors.  Use 
existing tools, such as design 
standards, urban growth 
boundary and transfer of 
development rights to achieve 
these goals.

City(s) and county planning departments/
code enforcement/compliance personnel; 
county commissioners; city councils; planning 
commission. 

Identify and promote location and direction for 
growth by innovative zoning and urban growth 
boundaries throughout the county and four 
municipalities.  

Research, design and implement growth 
management processes and tools that 
are deemed proven successes in similar 
communities and regions. 

Ensure city and county officials collaborate on 
growth control tools and implementation. 

Cultivate better regional collaboration among 
municipalities regarding growth issues.  

short term and 
ongoing

short term and 
ongoing

short term 

short term

PLANNING

DESIRED OUTCOMES & RECOMMENDED ACTIONS

Desired outcome

Possible interest groups/stewards

Gathering poll results, 2008
Proposed recommendation: 
Paced growth: Develop regulations and guidelines 
to limit the rate of new building in particular areas.

Completely agree

Partly agree

Neutral

Partly disagree

Completely disagree

 47.3%                          

29.1%                                       

8.1%                                                           

8.8%                                                           

6.8%                                                              

Proposed recommendation: 
Placed growth: Encourage urban density tied to 
existing transportation corridors and use existing tools, 
such as urban growth boundaries and transfer of 
development rights programs to achieve these goals.

Completely agree

Partly agree

Neutral

Partly disagree

Completely disagree

 53.5%                          

30.3%                                           

7.7%                                                               

7.0%                                                               

1.4%                                                                     

����



45VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org   APRIL 2009

COMMUNICATION & PARTICIPATION 
Recommended actions Timeframe

Improve communication and 
pursue participation in the public 
process, encouraging citizens to 
become directly involved in the 
planning and decision-making 
process of growth-management 
with the intent to build mutual 
trust and respect between citizens 
and decision-makers.

City; county planning departments; elected 
officials; citizens committees; newspapers

Develop awareness of the existing participation 
tools (phone, radio, television and webcast 
use). 

Research and implement tools and technology 
to increase public awareness and participation 
in managing growth (community kiosks, 
websites, advertising and new, innovative 
techniques).  

Establishment of a weekly newspaper insert (i.e. 
Development Activity This Week) that publishes 
weekly development applications, informing 
the public as to major planning decisions 
and encouraging involvement ahead of time. 
Create a funding line item in budget for cost 
of insert or negotiate with local newspaper for 
insert subsidized by ad sales. Cost could be 
offset by hybrid of both. 

short term and 
ongoing 

short term and 
ongoing 
 
 

short term

DESIRED OUTCOMES & RECOMMENDED ACTIONS: PLANNING

Desired outcome

Possible interest groups/stewards

ENFORCEMENT & STRINGENCY 
Recommended actions Timeframe

Decision-makers must recognize 
that citizens expect master plans 
to be upheld and enforced and 
that plans need to be regularly 
updated with specificity and 
clarity to minimize interpretation.

City/county planning staff;elected officials; 
citizens

Require timing and scheduled updates of city, 
county and area plans and identify responsible 
parties for updating plans.    

City and county review plans annually

Plans are updated every five years. 

Enforce existing municipal and county planning 
regulations.

Use annual “State of the City” and “State 
of the County” planning forums as tools for 
citizen input and measures of accountability.   

 

short term; mid term; 
long term

 

ongoing 

short term  

Desired outcome

Possible interest groups/stewards

����



46 VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org    APRIL 2009

RECREATION  

Recreation is one of the key components to the lifestyle, culture and character of Routt 
County and should ensure inclusivity for all populations, ages, genders, abilities and 
socio-economic backgrounds.

FUNDING
Recommended actions Timeframe

Enhance recreational 
opportunities through 
development of sustainable 
funding utilizing a county-wide 
collaborative partnership.  

Government;  city, towns, county; public land 
agencies; non-profit recreation organizations; 
municipalities; community foundations

Develop and implement a countywide 
recreation organization or coalition that: 

Develops and coordinates partnerships, 
both public and private;  

Leverages larger funds;  

Distributes funding through grants;  

Develops and supports volunteer coalitions. 

Research the development and implemention 
of a county-wide recreation district, 
organization or coalition to ensure financial 
sustainability for recreation.    

Combine municipal efforts  

Implement regional programming  

Encourage county and municipal participation 
in open space, recreation and trails 
coordination for non-incorporated areas of the 
county that are adjacent to municipalities.  

Develop a cost analysis of operating programs 
and facilities. 

Develop mechanisms that identify those 
activities that should be self-supporting and 
those that need subsidization.    

short term 

 
long term

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
mid term

 

short term  

 

short-term

RECREATION

DESIRED OUTCOMES & RECOMMENDED ACTIONS

TOP 3 ASPECTS OF YOUR COMMUNITY

27.7%
19.6%      

8.8%                     

25.5%
15.5%            

10.8%                 

26.9%
15.2%             

13.7%              

27.4%
13.6%              

12.4%                 

Environment
Recreation
Amenities

Environment
Recreation
Community

Environment
Recreation

Beauty

Environment
Beauty

Community

Steamboat 
Springs

West
Routt

North 
Routt

Sourth
Routt

Desired outcome

Possible interest groups/stewards

Survey question:  
What three aspects of this 
area have special meaning 
or importance to you?

���	



47VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org   APRIL 2009

AMENITIES 
Recommended actions Timeframe

Ensure that a variety of quality 
recreational amenities is 
available, both outdoor and 
indoor, organized and non-
organized, that support diverse 
recreational activities and meet 
the needs of a changing and 
growing population

Government; elected officials; community 
foundations; non-profit recreation 
organizations; municipalities; schools, 
businesses; developers; private landowners and 
interest groups such as Friends of the Yampa  

Decision-makers adhere to parks and 
recreation plans.   

Develop a county-wide recreation organization 
or coalition that ensures the coordination and 
linkage of parks and recreation master plans 
and ensures these reflect the greatest public 
interest and are not led by special interest 
groups.   

Provide safe and affordable opportunities 
for youth including teen programs and after-
school programs.  

Research and develop a bike/pedestrian trail 
that connects all county municipalities.  

Access to recreational amenities should be 
encouraged in proximity to urban areas 
and neighborhoods in both city and county 
planning processes and in planning new 
developments.  

Coordinate and ensure a diversity of park 
options between natural open space and 
those with developed amenities. Amenities in 
parks have a variety of design applications 
that provides both natural environment and 
landscaped options.    

Foster collaborative efforts and written 
agreements among schools, government, 
businesses and non-profits (including arts 
and culture entities) to ensure access and 
opportunity for both organized (leagues, 
competitions, etc) and non-organized indoor 
and outdoor activities (e.g. pick-up games, 
dog parks, drop-in sports, etc.).   

Encourage the inclusion of multi-use, multi-
purpose recreational amenities in new public 
and private developments.   

Form a county-wide coalition and partnership 
for recreation on and access to the Yampa 
River to assist with coordination of activities 
and the health and sustainability of the river.  

ongoing

 
short term

 
 
 
 
 
short term  

 
short to long term

 
ongoing

 
 
 
 
ongoing

 
 
 
 
 
ongoing

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
ongoing

ongoing

 

DESIRED OUTCOMES & RECOMMENDED ACTIONS: RECREATION

Desired outcome/actors

Possible interest groups/stewards

���




48 VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org    APRIL 2009

SENIORS

Develop adequate housing, facilities and transportation to ensure that the seniors can 
reside in Routt County for as long as they desire, through all the phases of aging.

HOUSING & FACILITIES 
Recommended actions Timeframe

Seniors should able to live in 
their existing homes as long as 
possible and stay in Routt County 
in the event they can no longer 
live at home.  There should be a 
well-planned, graduated tier of 
housing options as seniors move 
through different phases of aging.

Northwest Colorado Visiting Nurses Association; 
Routt County Council on Aging; state agencies; 
AARP; governmental agencies; Yampa Valley 
Medical Center 

Live at home independently as long as 
possible.  

Live independently in affordable senior 
housing.  

Live with support from family, but needs an 
additional level of care:  

Live-in assisted care facilities;  

Live in nursing facilities;  

Live in respite and palliative care 
facilities.  

ongoing

 
ongoing 

ongoing

SENIORS

DESIRED OUTCOMES & RECOMMENDED ACTIONS

Of those who attended Vision 2030’s 2008 
gatherings, 81% said they would be willing to 
help fund services to be provided to help seniors 
to live at home; 12% said they would be willing 
to volunteer their time to this outcome.

Desired outcome/actors

Possible interest groups/stewards

����



49VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org   APRIL 2009

TRANSPORTATION
Recommended actions Timeframe

Seniors must have access to 
adequate transportation services 
where in a large, mountainous 
geographical area with severe 
weather, transportation becomes 
a critical lifeline for many rural 
seniors. 

Seniors need to be able to 
get out of their homes to do 
necessary chores or to make 
connections with their community, 
contributing to their quality of life.  

Northwest Colorado Visiting Nurses Association 
(e.g. Aging Well; Haven; Rollingstone; 
Hospice); Routt County Council on Aging; 
State agencies; AARP; Governmental agencies; 
YV Medical Center; for-profit and non-profit 
entities

Keep existing free bus service in Steamboat 
Springs. 

Continue low-cost transportation from outlying 
areas such as Hayden and Craig.  

Expand low-cost transportation from North and 
South Routt. 

Create sliding scale payment for seniors.  

Increase services for frail and disabled seniors. 

ongoing 
 
 
ongoing 
 
 
short term

 
short term 

short term

DESIRED OUTCOMES & RECOMMENDED ACTIONS: SENIORS

Desired outcome

Possible interest groups/stewards

Gathering poll results, 2008
Proposed recommendation: 
Provide housing options, care facilities, transportation, 
and other services that enable seniors to live in their 
existing home.

Completely agree

Partly agree

Neutral

Partly disagree

Completely disagree

50.6%

34.1%           

11.2%                               

3.5%                                        

.6%                                            

����



50 VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org    APRIL 2009

PROGRAMS & SERVICES 
Recommended actions Timeframe

Continue to enhance existing 
senior programs and services in 
Routt County while developing 
new programs and services to 
meet the demands of the future.  

Northwest Colorado Visiting Nurses Association 
(e.g. Aging Well; Haven; Rollingstone; 
Hospice); Routt County Council on Aging; 
state agencies; AARP; governmental agencies; 
Yampa Valley Medical Center; for-profit and 
non-profit entities; businesses; schools

Continue and support existing programs. 

Create new programs for volunteers, 
connecting businesses in need of help with 
seniors willing to give their time and expertise. 
 
Create new programs that integrate seniors 
with younger generations as a way to share 
their incredible wealth of knowledge and 
wisdom.

Encourage private businesses, such as 
Steamboat Ski & Resort Corp, Old Town Hot 
Springs, Strings and retail stores, to provide 
discount days or other programs to help 
seniors participate in community amenities 
they may not be able to afford.  

ongoing

ongoing 

 

 

ongoing 
 

 
ongoing 

DESIRED OUTCOMES & RECOMMENDED ACTIONS: SENIORS

Desired outcome

SUSTAINABILITY 
Recommended actions Timeframe

Ensure that future generations 
of seniors will have the same 
opportunity to retire and live in 
Routt County for as long as they 
desire.  

Northwest Colorado Visiting Nurses Association 
(e.g. Aging Well; Haven; Rollingstone; 
Hospice); Routt County Council on Aging; 
citizens

Create a belief system that values seniors. 

Secure funding and provide incentives for 
senior services.

ongoing

short term and 
ongoing 

Desired outcome

Possible interest groups/stewards

Possible interest groups/stewards

����



51VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org   APRIL 2009

SUSTAINABILITY

Sustainability enhances the current quality of life for future generations by setting goals 
and measuring progress toward attaining clean water, clean air, affordability, clean 
renewable energy sources, and a diversified economy.

 

AIR QUALITY
Recommended actions Timeframe

Maintain or enhance existing 
air quality for future generations 
that includes both health based 
standards and visibility.

Citizen action groups; governmental agencies; 
individuals and organizations

Ensure compliance with the National Ambient 
Air Quality Standards county-wide. 

Educate to encourage retrofit or replacement 
of solid fuel burning devices to cleaner 
technology. 

Develop a mechanism to enforce emission 
standards for internal combustion engines.

Recognize and encourage continued support 
of municipal street sweeping. 

Encourage dust suppression on applicable 
county roads.  

Enforce current policies that reduce light 
pollution and develop uniform standards. 

Educate to encourage retrofit of existing light 
fixtures to protect the dark sky.

Seek methods to reduce vehicle miles 
traveled.

short term; ongoing 

short-term; ongoing

ongoing

ongoing

 
ongoing

 
ongoing

 
ongoing

  
ongoing

SUSTAINABILITY

DESIRED OUTCOMES & RECOMMENDED ACTIONS

Desired outcome

180

160

140

120

100

80

60

40

20

0
1990     1995    2000     2005

mi
cro

gr
am

s p
er

 cu
bic

 m
ete

r

24-hour maximum

annual average

V
IS

IO
N

 2
02

0 
TO

 R
EA

LI
TY Air quality in 

downtown Steamboat 
Springs has improved 
since 1990. 

Source: Community 
Indicators Report, Yampa 
Valley Partners, 2009

Possible interest groups/stewards

����



52 VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org    APRIL 2009

WATER QUALITY & QUANTITY 

Recommended actions Timeframe

Ensure the integrity of our water 
supply, both in quantity and 
quality, for future generations.

Citizen action groups; governmental agencies; 
individuals and organizations; Upper Yampa 
Water Conservancy District and Yampa-White 
River Basin Roundtable

Establish ongoing monitoring mechanisms for 
water quantity flow and quality measurements.

Continue to monitor and expand gauging 
stations for appropriate historic, baseline flows 
and on-going comparisons. 

Continue to conduct critical species monitoring 
mechanisms.  

Implement water monitoring program to 
address water quality and quantity issues and 
update existing city and county regulations and 
procedures as necessary:   

Section 208 Clean Water Act;  

Colorado Point Discharge Elimination 
System Program MS4;  

County zoning and sub-division regulations; 
 
Routt County 1041 regulations—areas and 
activities of state interest;  

State, County and Local regulations for 
storm water management and erosion 
control techniques (e.g. City of Steamboat 
Springs Green Building Code and 
Watershed Protection Ordinance); 

Mitigation of contaminated sites and 
pursue funding mechanisms in place. 

Continue to support and expand public 
education and awareness for water quality and 
water quantity, including best management 
practices for non-point sources.

Develop forestry practices to prevent erosion 
and address beetle-kill impacts on the 
watersheds. 

 

short term; ongoing

 
ongoing

 
 
ongoing

 
short term; ongoing

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ongoing

 
 
 
short term

DESIRED OUTCOMES & RECOMMENDED ACTIONS: SUSTAINABILITY

Desired outcome

Irrigation                Industrial             
Evaporation           Municipal

   1998    1999     2000   2001    2002    2003  

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

140,000
Acre-feet

0

Most of the water diverted from the 
Yampa River is used for irrigation. 
The quantity of water used for 
irrigation increased dramatically 
between 2000 and 2003. 

Source: Community Indicators Report, 
Yampa Valley Partners, 2009

Possible interest groups/stewards

����



53VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org   APRIL 2009

LAND STEWARDSHIP 

Growth management and land use planning should be compatible with sustainable land use 
practices including protection of bio-diversity and conservation of natural resources  [applicable 
action items are listed within Agriculture/Open Space and Planning]

Use clean, renewable energy, with 
conservation, diversification, and 
mitigation of fossil fuel impacts 
that focus upon sustainable 
technologies and practices 
to meet the needs of future 
generations.

Public utilities, governmental agencies, 
individuals and organizations

ENERGY 

Support and encourage efforts of organizations 
in collaboration with governmental agencies to 
promote conservation, encourage renewable 
energy sources, and implement energy 
strategies. 

Immediately implement energy conservation 
programs.  

Immediately implement a renewable energy 
mitigation program that funds and supports 
local renewable energy efforts.  

Develop a plan to implement reduction of 
greenhouse gas emissions through mechanisms 
such as impact fees, mineral severance tax, 
carbon footprint tax, renewal energy mitigation 
programs and others.  

Diversify, promote and incentivize grid energy 
sources including solar, wind, geo-thermal, 
bio-fuels (waste to energy, pellets), efficient 
domestic fossil fuels and additional alternatives. 

Recommended actions Timeframe

ongoing

 
 
 
 
short term

 
short term 

mid term

 
 
 
 
mid-term; on-going

DESIRED OUTCOMES & RECOMMENDED ACTIONS: SUSTAINABILITY

Desired outcome

Desired outcome

Possible interest groups/stewards

����



54 VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org    APRIL 2009

BUILT INFRASTRUCTURE 

Recommended actions Timeframe

Build and locate it right the 
first time.  Built infrastructure, 
both old and new, considers 
environmental, social and 
economic impacts to plan 
for future generations.  Use 
existing infrastructure when 
possible, including renovation, 
preservation and use of historic 
assets to ensure community 
character and heritage.  

Governmental agencies, public utilities; 
organizations

Develop an inventory of existing 
infrastructure, including water, wastewater 
and energy transmission, for communities 
in Routt County to better determine how to 
accommodate future needs.  

Research, develop and provide incentives for 
preservation of historic buildings to bring up 
to modern energy-efficient standards.   

Develop a plan and adopt a standard to 
obtain efficient energy use and zero waste 
buildings by 2030.     

Encourage the development and 
implementation of water conservation 
standards.   

Reduce the use of raw materials, re-use 
materials that can be used and recycle other 
materials which can be used to create new 
projects.  Encourage source separation and 
recycling of waste materials on new and 
demolition projects.    

short term

 
 
 
 
mid term 
 

mid term 
 

short term; ongoing 
 

short term; ongoing

DESIRED OUTCOMES & RECOMMENDED ACTIONS: SUSTAINABILITY

Desired outcome

Possible interest groups/stewards

These two trees have been standing next to our school since it began. 
They remind us how change can be beautiful if done right.”  
— Madison King, North Routt Community Charter School

����



55VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org   APRIL 2009

GREEN LIVING 

Recommended actions Timeframe

Create, educate and implement 
safe and convenient choices for 
self-sufficient living that reduces 
individual carbon footprints and 
enhances the greater public 
health, safety and security.  

All interested parties; public/private partnerships 
and governmental agencies 

Maximize the options for transportation 
choices, including pedestrian, bike, car-
sharing, transit and more.    

Address the recycling barriers of an isolated 
community.  

Continue to support efforts of Yampa Valley 
Recycles, Home ReSource and the Yampa 
Valley Sustainability Council.  

Pursue large funding sources through the 
Governor’s Energy Office to enable rail 
transportation options and more.   

Determine ways to reduce and re-use 
food, yard, beetle kill, manure and other 
compostable waste through Green Waste 
programs.  

Create and promote programs that encourage 
and enable local food production, marketing, 
sales and consumption including community-
supported agriculture, greenhouses, co-ops 
and more.  

Provide for appropriate local recycling and/or 
disposal of hazardous materials.  

Continue to educate and support business 
efforts that ensure environmental, economic 
and social sustainability.   

mid term; ongoing

 
 
ongoing; short term

 
ongoing

 
 
short term

short term; ongoing

 
   
short term

 
 
 
 
short term; ongoing 

ongoing

  

DESIRED OUTCOMES & RECOMMENDED ACTIONS: SUSTAINABILITY

Desired outcome

V
IS

IO
N

 2
02

0 
TO

 R
EA

LI
TY

Successes from Vision 2020 include formation in February 1998 of Yampa Valley 
Recycles, a dedicated group of citizens, representing Routt County, concerned 
with promoting the recycling of solid waste and educating the public on reducing, 
re-using, and recycling.  

“YVR believes it is possible for people to co-exist with the environment without depleting 
natural resources or polluting the environment. We aim to expand and support 
comprehensive recycling programs in the Yampa Valley by educating, promoting, and 
implementing creative solutions to help communities reduce, reuse, and recycle. We have 
a strong sense of citizenship towards our community, both locally and globally. We feel a 
responsibility to encourage a “Stewardship of the Earth” in the projects we promote and in 
the way we live our lives.”

Possible interest groups/stewards

����



56 VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org    APRIL 2009

Create a multi-modal 
transportation system of corridors, 
highways and pathways that 
will relieve congestion and 
move people throughout the 
Yampa Valley in an efficient, 
environmentally sound, affordable 
and appealing manner. This 
system will more effectively link 
local communities with each other 
and facilitate regional, national 
and international connections.

Governmental agencies, commercial interests, 
individuals, and organizations

Establish a local funding source to share and 
initiate future transportation projects.

Establish a Regional Transportation Authority 
to coordinate the planning, funding 
and implementation of an integrated 
transportation system.

Expand and develop transit centers throughout 
the valley. Transit centers are hubs for our 
multi-modal transportation system comprised 
of commuter rail lines, walking paths, bike and 
equestrian trails, tramway, vans, buses and 
taxis.

Seek opportunities to create land bank for 
future park-and-rides.

Continue to develop alternative parking 
options for ski area access.

Upgrade Walton Creek parking lot.

Develop transit site at east end of town.

Park and ride in Hayden. 

Park and ride centers to be included for 
future developments.

Expand our attractive system of paths, 
walkways and mountain routes in a way 
that encourages transit use and pedestrian 
orientation.

Seek opportunities for easements and 
pathways for route access.

Add bike racks to commercial buildings.

DESIRED OUTCOMES & RECOMMENDED ACTIONS

Recommended actions TimeframeDesired outcome

Possible interest groups/stewards

short term

mid term

short term; ongoing

TRANSPORTATION

TRANSPORTATION

 

These recommendations are proposed by the Transportation Solutions Group.

���	



57VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org   APRIL 2009

Expand bus service to airports and throughout the county.

Develop transit pods or hubs within the Steamboat area for mountain, Pine Grove; Downtown 
and West Steamboat areas with interconnecting systems.

Collaborate with private businesses and organizations to provide airport and county-wide bus 
service.

Seek van pool options.

Consider express buses during certain times of days.

Provide heated bus stops.

Ensure that local land use planning processes assess the transportation ramifications of all 
planning and development petitions.

Re-configure traffic generation centers (schools, post offices, etc.) to reduce congestion impacts 
and determine feasibility for local solutions to congestion.

Encourage construction of basic commercial services—like grocery stores—in growth centers to 
reduce unnecessary trips and avoidable traffic congestion.

New commercial offices and retail establishments should be located as close as possible to trails, 
sidewalks and transit stops to encourage transit use and to enable pedestrian access.

Preserve rail corridors and opportunities for commuter rail systems to enable future construction of 
a commuter rail system connecting all parts of the community, distant ski areas, and feeding into a 
statewide and national passenger train system.

Continue to seek opportunities to improve local transit and parking within Steamboat Springs.

Explore and develop alternative routes through Steamboat Springs.

Seek consolidation of shuttle services for traffic reduction and efficiency.

Develop ongoing management of shuttles, system and partnerships with shuttle agencies, public-
private partnerships and company partnerships.

Seek opportunities to improve parking capacity and develop systems for parking management.

Develop ongoing plans for regional airports.

Increased capacity and ramp capacity at the Yampa Valley Regional Airport.

Increased general aviation at both airports.

Continue to maintain the existing infrastructure for roads and transportation.

Upgrade of Routt County roads 129 and 14 for shoulder improvement.

Upgrade of Colorado Highway 131 shoulders.

Encourage telecommuting and flexible work and school schedules.

Phase in expansion and improvement of existing public transit.

Recommended actions Timeframe

ongoing

short term

short term; ongoing

ongoing

ongoing

ongoing

ongoing

ongoing

DESIRED OUTCOMES & RECOMMENDED ACTIONS: TRANSPORTATION

���




58 VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org    APRIL 2009

YOUTH

ACTIVITIES, PROGRAMS, JOBS 

Recommended actions Timeframe

Promote diverse activities, 
programs, transportation and 
facilities that include youth in a 
caring, supportive and healthy 
community.

Develop youth centers county-wide to provide 
youth with gathering places and programs.

Develop and build a centralized facility where 
youth serving organizations reside and where 
all volunteer efforts are coordinated for 
meaningful community service. 

Expand and enhance a transportation network 
that connects the community to youth activities, 
programs and locations.   

Encourage strong, accessible and affordable 
programs that collaborate with community and 
youth organizations to ensure broad interest 
areas are addressed, including artistic and 
cultural options. 

Support and enhance programs to foster 
community mentoring, civic engagement and a 
volunteer ethic.  

Develop and implement a career development 
program that mentors youth for work ethics, life 
skills and career choices.

Support county-wide collaboration to ensure 
youth needs are supported and met in the 
outlying rural areas.  

Provide education and awareness for 
sustainable practices for generations to come 
for earth stewardship, from consuming choices 
to recycling and more. 

short and mid term

 
mid term  
 
 

mid term; ongoing

 
 
ongoing 

 
 
 
 
ongoing

 
 
short term  

 
ongoing

 

ongoing 

YOUTH

DESIRED OUTCOMES & RECOMMENDED ACTIONS

Desired outcome

Gathering poll results, 2008
Proposed recommendation: 
Develop youth centers county-wide to provide youth 
with gathering places and programs.

Completely agree

Partly agree

Neutral

Partly disagree

Completely disagree

38%                         

27.7%                                

19.9%                                    

10.3%                                            

3.6%                                                     

����



59VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org   APRIL 2009

CHILD CARE
Recommended actions Timeframe

Develop affordable and 
accessible early childhood care 
and educational options in our 
communities

Create and develop innovative partnerships 
and collaborative efforts to provide subsidized 
childcare options for low to moderate income 
families. 

Recruit, retain and reward early childhood care 
providers to ensure availability of consistent, 
quality childcare options.   

short term; ongoing 

 
 
 
ongoing

Promote a multi-generational 
community that connects families 
of diverse socio-economic levels 
in order to maintain the Yampa 
Valley as a “great place to raise 
kids.”

Promote community awareness and embrace 
the researched developmental assets that 
support and create a strong sense of caring for 
our youth. 

Seek innovative partnerships to promote and 
develop community awareness for youth literacy 
and education.  

Promote affordable housing initiatives to foster 
a family-oriented community.

Provide a wide variety of community programs 
and activities that focus on youth and their 
needs (e.g. school and sports activities, 
recreation programs, theater, arts and more). 
     

ongoing 

 
ongoing

short term; ongoing

 
 
ongoing

DESIRED OUTCOMES & RECOMMENDED ACTIONS: YOUTH

FAMILY-ORIENTED COMMUNITY 
Recommended actions Timeframe

Desired outcome

Desired outcome

Gathering poll results, 2008
Proposed recommendation: 
Create and develop innovative partnerships and 
collaborative efforts to help fund childcare for low- to 
moderate-income families.

Completely agree

Partly agree

Neutral

Partly disagree

Completely disagree

 47.3%                          

32.7%                                      

10.9%                                                  

6.1%                                                        

3.0%                                                               

����



60 VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org    APRIL 2009

HEALTH & SAFETY 
Recommended actions Timeframe

Provide a community that is a 
healthy and safe place to raise 
kids. 

Support and provide a healthy youth culture 
that is drug, tobacco and alcohol free (e.g. 
compliance checks, discourage alcohol 
consumption at family-oriented activities, 
places for youth to congregate).  
 
Develop informal and formal local gathering 
places for youth that are drug and alcohol free 
(e.g. new library).  

Explore affordable health care plans for 
families to ensure access to health care 
options. 

Develop awareness for healthy eating, exercise 
and living. 

Continue to provide partnerships with law 
enforcement and youth to protect and serve. 

Develop and implement strong mental health 
programs for youth (e.g. suicide prevention, 
grief and counseling support systems). 

Expand and enhance a transportation network 
that safely connects the community to youth 
activities, programs and locations.  

Promote safe, affordable and licensed early 
childhood care.  

ongoing 
 
 
 
 
 
ongoing 
 

short term 
 
 
 
short term and 
ongoing

ongoing 

short term and 
ongoing 

short term and 
ongoing 
 
 
short term and 
ongoing

DESIRED OUTCOMES & RECOMMENDED ACTIONS: YOUTH

Desired outcome

����



61VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org APRIL 2009

WHAT’S NEXT
Citizens’ Stewardship Committee
   To ensure that the voice of the community is 

heard and its desires are carried out by decision 

makers, the Vision 2030 Citizens’ Committee 

strongly recommends that one entity embrace 

this document as a whole, track progress and be 

accountable for achieving the desired outcomes. 

Because retaining the heart and soul of Yampa 

Valley is a long term vision, the challenge will be 

sustaining the effort over time.

    Vision 2030’s fulfillment of the desired outcomes 

and recommended actions and its measure of 

success is dependent upon a post-report Citizens’ 

Stewardship Committee. This committee will meet 

regularly to track the progress and will include 

representation from all parts of Routt County and 

all areas of Routt County life. The composition of 

the citizens’ stewardship committee is important. 

The majority of the committee should be citizen 

volunteers and will also include representation from 

all municipalities and county governments.   

     The stewardship committee will need 

administrative support from county and municipal 

planning personnel, or may opt to hire a 

coordinator. To ensure continuity and assist in the 

transition between the activation of the Citizens’ 

Stewardship Committee and the Vision 2030 final 

report publication/acceptance by municipalities, 

the Citizens’ Committee for Vision 2030 should 

continue to meet to provide a transition until the 

Citizens’ Stewardship Committee is functioning.

    The primary role of the Citizens’ Stewardship 

Committee is to: 

     • Convene around the desired outcomes and     

        recommended actions to implement items.

     • Monitor progress, successes, challenges and   

        emerging new opportunities.

     • Assure appropriate performance measures 

        are selected and used.

     • Report successes and annual progress 

        through yearly gatherings.

     • Maintain and routinely update the Vision 

         2030 web site to communicate the function     

         and actions of the committee.

     • Develop timeline for implementation.

     • Develop specific action steps.

     • Set measureable goals.

Action groups
   The Citizens’ Stewardship Committee may form action groups that will focus on specific areas 

of interest, such as transportation, growth management, etc. The action groups’ roles are to 

convene around the desired outcomes and recommended actions; monitor their progress, 

successes, challenges and emerging new opportunities; and report on these areas as necessary 

and required to the citizens’ stewardship committee. 

����



62 VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org                    APRIL 2009

CONCLUSIONS & CONNECTIONS 

Since the publication of the 
Vision 2020 report in 1994, the 
Yampa Valley has experienced 
unprecedented growth. In the face 
of this expansion, we risk losing, or 
forever altering, those attributes 
from which our heart and soul are 
derived. A primary theme in the Vision 2030 
report is “Sense of Community.” The importance 
and relevance of our community character remains 
integral to our region today and is considered 
the highest valued aspect that residents want to 
maintain. It is not an exaggeration to say our 
community character is, indeed, our “heart and 
soul.” It is the essence of our special place that, if 
lost, will never be recovered.

Over the past two years, the Vision 2030 
Citizens Committee learned repeatedly how 
important our community character is to residents 
of Routt County. It encompasses family friendliness 
(all ages from infants to seniors), our Western 
heritage (historic buildings and our agricultural 
values and open space), and a sense of community 
(knowing each other and taking care of one 
another). We also learned that each of these 
components of community character is supported 
by “managing our growth,” described as the pace 
and placement of new development, paying close 
attention to the affordability of living in our region, 
economic sustainability and transportation systems.

If we nurture our community character as we 
grow, and recognize its importance to our decision-
making process, we will begin to understand and 
realize the benefits to every sector of our valley, 
including ranching, tourism and being one of the 
best places in the nation to live. We cannot afford 
to take for granted our open space, ranches, 
access to outdoor recreation and high quality of 
life where we know our neighbors and have a high 
level of trust and respect for one another. These 

attributes can be nurtured and retained for our 
future. Our heart and soul benefits not only residents 
of the Yampa Valley, but visitors and everyone who 
works here and makes our community a special 
place.

Based on what we heard about the desired 
outcomes during the Vision 2030 process, we 
encourage a process of policy- and decision-
making that is based on community character. 
Each and every proposed policy and decision 
should be weighed against its impact and potential 
consequences to our community character – our 
heart and soul. If the net result is a diminishment of 
this core asset, we should question the wisdom of 
adopting or approving.

Vision 2030 is an innovative, values-based 
approach to community decision-making. 
Incremental decisions that are based on core values 
are initially less tangible than readily understood 
traditional methods such as tax revenues. The Vision 
2030 process of exploring what people value most 
and how to ensure these values are retained for 
our future, helps us understand that community 
character, heritage, family-friendliness, sense of 
community and commitment to our environment 
are central components of our heart and soul. 
Measurements such as keypad polling helped 
quantify these often intangible values to make the 
approach objective and ultimately effective.

All the recommendations in this Vision 2030 
report are important, yet we heard that those 
that help enhance community character and are 
accomplished through managing growth are of 
highest priority. As decisions are made within our 
community, understanding our core values will 
enable us to determine if we are achieving the 
desired outcomes of our actions. If Routt County in 
2030 is to retain the essence of our heart and soul, 
we must make decisions that retain the community 
character we value.

����



63VISION 2030 FINAL REPORT   •  http://www.vision2030routt.org                APRIL 2009

The following data and information were gathered over the course of the Vision 2030 
project may be viewed on the project website at www.vision2030routt.org.

• Vision 2020 Review Meeting Notes 
• Vision 2020 Summary Reports
• Vision 2030 Survey Responses – Master Data Sheet
• Vision 2030 November 2007 Gathering Results
• Vision 2030 November 2008 Gathering Results
• Vision 2030 Citizen’s Committee Meeting Minutes
• Vision 2030 Stewardship Committee

CONCLUSIONS & CONNECTIONS 

����



P
O

 B
ox

 1
5

6
8

 
H

ay
de

n
 C

O
 8

1
6

3
9

 
  V

is
io

n 
20

30
 is

 a
 jo

in
t 

ef
fo

rt
 o

f 
R

ou
tt

 C
ou

nt
y 

an
d 

th
e 

Ci
ty

 o
f 

St
ea

m
bo

at
 S

pr
in

gs
  

PR
SR

T
 S

T
D

 
U

.S
. P

O
ST

A
G

E
 P

A
ID

 
St

ea
m

bo
at

 S
pr

in
gs

 
C

ol
or

ad
o 

Pe
rm

it 
21

 

So
ut

h 
Ro

ut
t P

ho
to

 c
ou

rt
es

y 
of

 G
er

i B
ru

gg
in

k 

E
C

R
W

SS
 

Po
st

al
 P

at
ro

n 
R

ou
tt

 C
ou

nt
y 

C
ol

or
ad

o 

Th
is

 is
 y

ou
r 

pe
rs

on
al

 c
op

y 
of

 
ou

r 
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
’ v

is
io

n.
 

 W
e 

ho
pe

 y
ou

 w
ill

 u
se

 it
 a

nd
 r

ef
er

 
to

 it
 fo

r 
ye

ar
s 

to
 c

om
e.

 
Vi

si
on

 2
03

0 
Ci

tiz
en

s 
Co

m
m

itt
ee

 
Ju

ne
 2

00
9 

����



 

 

AGENDA ITEM # 3 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  CCOOMMMMUUNNIICCAATTIIOONN  FFOORRMM  
 
 
FROM:   Kim Weber, Director of Financial Services (Ext 250) 
    
THROUGH:  Jon Roberts, City Manager (Ext. 218) 
 
DATE:    March 6, 2012 
 
ITEM:    Capital Improvement Program/Conservation Trust Fund 
 
NEXT STEP:  Discussion and provide direction to staff regarding use of 

 Conservation Trust Funds. 
 
 
                     X_ INFORMATION 
                     X_  DIRECTION 
 
 
I.   REQUEST OR ISSUE:  
 
The available Conservation Trust Fund dollars (Colorado Lottery Proceeds) were 
requested to be used for the Howelsen Hill Centennial Projects during the 2012 budget 
process.  City Council requested these funds not be earmarked for any project until they 
had a clear picture of what projects these funds could be used for.  City Council also 
voted that one of their goals for the year was to review in detail the Capital 
Improvements Program.   

 
During this presentation there will be an overview of where the Conservation Trust Funds 
come from, what types of projects are eligible projects, and detailed information about 
each project that is currently on the City’s 6-year Capital Improvement Program. 

 
II. RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Provide direction of use of available Conservation Trust Funds. 
 
III.  FISCAL IMPACTS: 
  
Current available Conservation Trust Fund dollars are $321,320.  The City of Steamboat 
Springs typically received about $110,000/year.  
 

���



 

 

 
 
 
IV. BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

 
The Conservation Trust Fund dollars were last used for Howelsen Ski Hill snowmaking 
improvements and lighting improvements for $225,710.90.  Prior to that the funds were 
used for the construction of the new Tennis Center.  

 
 
Howelsen Hill Centennial Campaign Background Information: 

 
The original fundraising plan for the Howelsen Hill Centennial Campaign included an 
anticipated congressional earmark, private contributions, private foundation and GOCO 
grants, as well as already budgeted funds from City Council.   

 
Private donors reached their fundraising goal of $300,000.  Grant funding brought in 
$42,000 more than projected, however the City did not receive the planned congressional 
earmark of $700,000, leaving the entire campaign short of funds.  Staff worked with the 
Centennial Campaign Committee and the Steamboat Springs Winter Sports Club to reduce 
the scope of work for the project, so that the current gap in funding needed to complete 
the campaign and construct the summer ski jump is now $342,951.   

 
However, the challenge grant of $100,000 from the Gates Foundation requires the project 
to be fully funded by June.  The $700,000 special initiative grant from GOCO requires that 
the project be complete by December 2013.  To ensure meeting this deadline, the City 
would need to start construction of the ski jump this year.  In order to construct the jump 
this year, the City needs to secure needed funds and give the notice to proceed to the 
winning construction firm in the next few weeks.   

 
A total of 546 donors have contributed to the Howelsen Hill Centennial Campaign, with 
individual donations directed toward different campaign elements.  Donations specific to 
snowmaking and lighting have been spent.  Currently the City has $231,471 in donations 
and pledges for the ski jump.  Donors to the City received a tax credit through the 
existing enterprise zone, as well as the ability to deduct the donation as a charitable 
contribution.  As a result of the enterprise zone tax credit, it would be problematic for the 
City to return donations to the campaign. 

 
Allocating Colorado Conservation Trust funds to the project now would enable the City to 
meet the Gates Foundation challenge grant and to utilize the GOCO funds for the project. 
If the City does not meet the challenge grant or the GOCO deadline, we lose those funds, 
however are still left with the private donations to the City for the project. 

 
 

V. LEGAL ISSUES: 

���



 

 

 
Use of the Conservation Trust Funds must follow the guidelines set forth by the 
Department of Local Affairs. 
 
 
 
VI.   CONFLICTS OR ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES: 
  
None noted. 
 
VII. SUMMARY AND ALTERNATIVES: 

 
Earmark the Conservation Trust Fund dollars for a specific project or continue to let the 
money accrue for a future project.   
 
 

���



EL
IG

IB
LE

 F
O

R

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

  C
O

N
SE

R
VA

TI
O

N
 

TR
U

ST
 F

U
N

D
S 

C
ity

 C
os

t
O

ut
si

de
 

R
ev

en
ue

 T
ot

al
 E

xp
en

se
 

C
ity

 C
os

t
O

ut
si

de
 

R
ev

en
ue

 T
ot

al
 

Ex
pe

ns
e 

C
ity

 C
os

t
O

ut
si

de
 

R
ev

en
ue

 T
ot

al
 

Ex
pe

ns
e 

C
ity

 C
os

t
O

ut
si

de
 

R
ev

en
ue

 T
ot

al
 

Ex
pe

ns
e 

C
ity

 C
os

t
O

ut
si

de
 

R
ev

en
ue

 T
ot

al
 

Ex
pe

ns
e 

C
ity

 C
os

t
O

ut
si

de
 

R
ev

en
ue

 T
ot

al
 

Ex
pe

ns
e 

C
ity

 C
os

t
O

ut
si

de
 

R
ev

en
ue

 T
ot

al
 

Ex
pe

ns
e 

C
ity

 C
os

t
O

ut
si

de
 

R
ev

en
ue

 T
ot

al
 E

xp
en

se
 

C
IT

Y 
C

LE
R

K
D

oc
um

en
ts

 M
an

ag
em

en
t S

ys
te

m
45

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

45
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
13

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

 
13

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

17
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
17

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

  

FA
C

IL
IT

IE
S

C
om

m
un

ity
 H

ou
se

 a
t L

itt
le

 T
oo

ts
 P

ar
k

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
40

,0
00

   
   

   
   

80
,0

00
   

   
   

   
12

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

40
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

80
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

12
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

Le
ga

cy
 R

an
ch

 H
is

to
ric

 R
en

ov
at

io
n

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
60

,0
00

   
   

   
   

12
0,

00
0

   
   

   
 

18
0,

00
0

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
60

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
12

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
18

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
O

ld
 C

ha
m

be
r B

ui
ld

in
g 

(Y
V

LT
)

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
40

,0
00

   
   

   
   

11
0,

00
0

   
   

   
 

15
0,

00
0

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
40

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
11

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
15

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
M

es
a 

S
ch

oo
l H

ou
se

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

59
,3

86
   

   
   

   
59

,3
86

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

30
,0

00
   

   
   

   
70

,0
00

   
   

   
   

10
0,

00
0

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
30

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
12

9,
38

6
   

   
   

   
15

9,
38

6
   

   
   

   
   

 
D

ep
ot

 R
en

ov
at

io
ns

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
11

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
11

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
35

,0
00

   
   

   
   

72
,0

00
   

   
   

   
10

7,
00

0
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

35
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

18
2,

00
0

   
   

   
   

21
7,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

FI
N

AN
C

IA
L 

SE
R

VI
C

ES
A

cc
ou

nt
in

g/
Fi

na
nc

e 
S

of
tw

ar
e

20
6,

00
0

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
6,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

50
,0

00
   

   
   

   
50

,0
00

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
25

6,
00

0
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

25
6,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

   
  S

ub
to

ta
l

25
1,

00
0

   
   

   
 

59
,3

86
   

   
   

   
31

0,
38

6
   

   
   

   
   

 
18

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
11

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
29

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
65

,0
00

   
   

   
   

14
2,

00
0

   
   

   
 

20
7,

00
0

   
   

   
 

40
,0

00
   

   
   

   
11

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
15

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
40

,0
00

   
   

   
   

80
,0

00
   

   
   

   
12

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
60

,0
00

   
   

   
   

12
0,

00
0

   
   

   
 

18
0,

00
0

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
63

6,
00

0
   

   
   

   
62

1,
38

6
   

   
   

   
1,

25
7,

38
6

   
   

   
   

  

PU
B

LI
C

 W
O

R
K

S:
P

ed
es

tri
an

/B
ic

yc
le

 B
as

e 
A

re
a 

C
on

ne
ct

io
ns

21
0,

00
0

   
   

   
 

21
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

11
0,

00
0

   
   

   
 

11
0,

00
0

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
32

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

32
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

G
os

sa
rd

 P
ar

kw
ay

25
0,

00
0

   
   

   
 

25
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
25

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

25
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

C
as

ey
's

 P
on

d 
Tr

ai
l

C
TF

25
,5

00
   

   
   

   
10

2,
00

0
   

   
   

 
12

7,
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
55

,5
00

   
   

   
   

22
2,

00
0

   
   

   
 

27
7,

50
0

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
81

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
32

4,
00

0
   

   
   

   
40

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
Fi

sh
 C

re
ek

 T
ra

il
C

TF
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

40
,0

00
   

   
   

   
16

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
20

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

40
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

16
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

20
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

U
S

 4
0 

S
ou

th
 C

or
rid

or
 A

cc
es

s 
C

on
tro

l P
la

n
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

85
,0

00
   

   
   

   
85

,0
00

   
   

   
   

17
0,

00
0

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
85

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
85

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
17

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
C

ity
 P

ar
ki

ng
 L

ot
 P

av
em

en
t M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 P

ro
gr

am
20

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
20

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
10

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
75

,0
00

   
   

   
   

75
,0

00
   

   
   

   
75

,0
00

   
   

   
   

75
,0

00
   

   
   

   
75

,0
00

   
   

   
   

75
,0

00
   

   
   

   
10

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
10

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
75

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
75

,0
00

   
   

   
   

70
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
70

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
S

tre
et

 C
ra

ck
fil

lin
g

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
70

,0
00

   
   

   
   

70
,0

00
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
70

,0
00

   
   

   
   

70
,0

00
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
70

,0
00

   
   

   
   

70
,0

00
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

21
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
21

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
M

as
te

r T
ra

ns
po

rta
tio

n 
P

la
n

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
15

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
15

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

15
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
15

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 

C
AP

IT
AL

 IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

T 
PR

O
G

R
AM

20
15

20
16

20
17

TO
TA

L
20

11
20

12
20

13
20

14

M
as

te
r T

ra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

P
la

n
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

15
0,

00
0

   
   

   
 

15
0,

00
0

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
15

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

15
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

11
th

 S
tre

et
 B

rid
ge

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
10

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
10

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
60

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
60

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

70
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
70

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
S

to
rm

w
at

er
 S

ys
te

m
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
-P

la
n

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
20

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
20

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
U

til
ity

 U
nd

er
gr

ou
nd

in
g

65
,0

00
   

   
   

   
65

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
65

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

65
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
A

lte
rn

at
e 

M
od

e 
&

 S
af

et
y 

E
nh

an
ce

m
en

ts
37

,3
50

   
   

   
   

20
,3

50
   

   
   

   
57

,7
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

50
,0

00
   

   
   

   
50

,0
00

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
87

,3
50

   
   

   
   

  
20

,3
50

   
   

   
   

  
10

7,
70

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
B

ut
ch

er
kn

ife
 C

re
ek

 F
lo

od
pl

ai
n 

M
iti

ga
tio

n
50

,0
00

   
   

   
   

50
,0

00
   

   
   

   
10

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

50
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

50
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

10
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

C
en

tra
l P

ar
k 

D
riv

e 
R

ec
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

90
,0

00
   

   
   

   
90

,0
00

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
90

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

90
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
D

ow
nt

ow
n 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

30
,0

00
   

   
   

   
30

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
30

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

30
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
P

av
em

en
t M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 P

ro
gr

am
70

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
70

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
70

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
70

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
70

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
70

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
70

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
70

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
70

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
70

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
70

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
70

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
70

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
70

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
4,

90
0,

00
0

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

4,
90

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
  

   
  S

ub
to

ta
l

1,
56

7,
85

0
   

   
 

17
2,

35
0

   
   

   
 

1,
74

0,
20

0
   

   
   

   
  

1,
37

5,
50

0
   

   
 

22
2,

00
0

   
   

   
 

1,
59

7,
50

0
   

   
 

1,
05

0,
00

0
   

   
 

24
5,

00
0

   
   

   
 

1,
29

5,
00

0
   

   
 

94
5,

00
0

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

94
5,

00
0

   
   

   
 

1,
37

5,
00

0
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
37

5,
00

0
   

   
 

87
0,

00
0

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

87
0,

00
0

   
   

   
 

77
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

77
5,

00
0

   
   

   
 

7,
95

8,
35

0
   

   
   

63
9,

35
0

   
   

   
   

8,
59

7,
70

0
   

   
   

   
  

PL
AN

N
IN

G
 &

 H
IS

TO
R

IC
 P

R
ES

ER
VA

TI
O

N
:

R
es

to
ra

tio
n 

of
 C

ity
-O

w
ne

d 
S

pr
in

gs
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

35
,0

00
   

   
   

   
95

,0
00

   
   

   
   

13
0,

00
0

   
   

   
 

35
,0

00
   

   
   

   
95

,0
00

   
   

   
   

13
0,

00
0

   
   

   
 

35
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

95
,0

00
   

   
   

   
13

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
10

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
28

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
39

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
   

  S
ub

to
ta

l
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

35
,0

00
   

   
   

   
95

,0
00

   
   

   
   

13
0,

00
0

   
   

   
 

35
,0

00
   

   
   

   
95

,0
00

   
   

   
   

13
0,

00
0

   
   

   
 

35
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

95
,0

00
   

   
   

   
13

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
10

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
28

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
39

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 

TR
AN

SI
T:

Tr
an

si
t F

le
et

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t
16

5,
00

0
   

   
   

 
50

4,
00

0
   

   
   

 
66

9,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
22

2,
40

0
   

   
   

 
38

1,
60

0
   

   
   

 
60

4,
00

0
   

   
   

 
25

2,
84

0
   

   
   

 
1,

01
1,

36
0

   
   

 
1,

26
4,

20
0

   
   

 
26

5,
48

2
   

   
   

 
1,

06
1,

92
8

   
   

 
1,

32
7,

41
0

   
   

 
27

8,
75

6
   

   
   

 
1,

11
5,

02
4

   
   

 
1,

39
3,

78
0

   
   

 
29

2,
69

4
   

   
   

 
1,

17
0,

77
6

   
   

 
1,

46
3,

47
0

   
   

 
30

7,
32

9
   

   
   

   
1,

22
9,

31
4

   
   

 
1,

53
6,

64
3

   
   

 
1,

78
4,

50
1

   
   

   
6,

47
4,

00
2

   
   

   
8,

25
8,

50
3

   
   

   
   

  
C

on
cr

et
e 

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t i
n 

S
S

T 
P

ar
ki

ng
 L

ot
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

75
,0

00
   

   
   

   
75

,0
00

   
   

   
   

75
,0

00
   

   
   

   
75

,0
00

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

75
,0

00
   

   
   

   
75

,0
00

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
22

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

22
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

R
ad

io
 G

P
S

 S
ys

te
m

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
16

,4
21

   
   

   
   

65
,6

83
   

   
   

   
82

,1
04

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
16

,4
21

   
   

   
   

  
65

,6
83

   
   

   
   

  
82

,1
04

   
   

   
   

   
   

A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

Fu
el

s 
P

la
nn

in
g 

G
ra

nt
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

7,
50

0
   

   
   

   
  

30
,0

00
   

   
   

   
37

,5
00

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
7,

50
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

30
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

37
,5

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
W

al
to

n 
C

re
ek

 P
ar

k 
&

 R
id

e 
P

av
em

en
t/R

es
tro

om
12

1,
62

4
   

   
   

 
53

9,
28

1
   

   
   

 
66

0,
90

5
   

   
   

   
   

 
11

,0
00

   
   

   
   

55
,0

00
   

   
   

   
66

,0
00

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
13

2,
62

4
   

   
   

   
59

4,
28

1
   

   
   

   
72

6,
90

5
   

   
   

   
   

 
   

  S
ub

to
ta

l
28

6,
62

4
   

   
   

 
1,

04
3,

28
1

   
   

 
1,

32
9,

90
5

   
   

   
   

  
33

2,
32

1
   

   
   

 
53

2,
28

3
   

   
   

 
86

4,
60

4
   

   
   

 
32

7,
84

0
   

   
   

 
1,

01
1,

36
0

   
   

 
1,

33
9,

20
0

   
   

 
26

5,
48

2
   

   
   

 
1,

06
1,

92
8

   
   

 
1,

32
7,

41
0

   
   

 
27

8,
75

6
   

   
   

 
1,

11
5,

02
4

   
   

 
1,

39
3,

78
0

   
   

 
36

7,
69

4
   

   
   

 
1,

17
0,

77
6

   
   

 
1,

53
8,

47
0

   
   

 
30

7,
32

9
   

   
   

   
1,

22
9,

31
4

   
   

 
1,

53
6,

64
3

   
   

 
2,

16
6,

04
6

   
   

   
7,

16
3,

96
6

   
   

   
9,

33
0,

01
2

   
   

   
   

  

FI
R

E 
D

EP
AR

TM
EN

T
N

ew
 H

w
y 

40
 A

cc
es

s 
(M

t. 
Fi

re
 S

ta
tio

n)
47

,0
00

   
   

   
   

23
,0

00
   

   
   

   
70

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

55
,4

93
   

   
   

   
23

,7
82

   
   

   
   

79
,2

75
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

10
2,

49
3

   
   

   
   

46
,7

82
   

   
   

   
  

14
9,

27
5

   
   

   
   

   
 

N
ew

 F
ire

 T
ra

in
in

g 
Fa

ci
lit

y
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

25
,0

00
   

   
   

   
10

,0
00

   
   

   
   

35
,0

00
   

   
   

   
40

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
45

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
85

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

42
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

46
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

88
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

Fi
re

 A
pp

ar
at

us
 R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t (

Fl
ee

t R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t F
un

d)
37

4,
00

0
   

   
   

 
15

6,
00

0
   

   
   

 
53

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
25

1,
37

0
   

   
   

 
13

3,
00

0
   

   
   

 
38

4,
37

0
   

   
   

 
26

7,
00

0
   

   
   

 
13

3,
00

0
   

   
   

 
40

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
26

7,
00

0
   

   
   

 
13

3,
00

0
   

   
   

 
40

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
26

7,
00

0
   

   
   

 
13

3,
00

0
   

   
   

 
40

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
26

7,
00

0
   

   
   

 
13

3,
00

0
   

   
   

 
40

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
26

7,
00

0
   

   
   

   
13

3,
00

0
   

   
   

 
40

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
1,

96
0,

37
0

   
   

   
95

4,
00

0
   

   
   

   
2,

91
4,

37
0

   
   

   
   

  
   

  S
ub

to
ta

l
42

1,
00

0
   

   
   

 
17

9,
00

0
   

   
   

 
60

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
30

6,
86

3
   

   
   

 
15

6,
78

2
   

   
   

 
46

3,
64

5
   

   
   

 
26

7,
00

0
   

   
   

 
13

3,
00

0
   

   
   

 
40

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
29

2,
00

0
   

   
   

 
14

3,
00

0
   

   
   

 
43

5,
00

0
   

   
   

 
66

7,
00

0
   

   
   

 
58

3,
00

0
   

   
   

 
1,

25
0,

00
0

   
   

 
26

7,
00

0
   

   
   

 
13

3,
00

0
   

   
   

 
40

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
26

7,
00

0
   

   
   

   
13

3,
00

0
   

   
   

 
40

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
2,

48
7,

86
3

   
   

   
1,

46
0,

78
2

   
   

   
3,

94
8,

64
5

   
   

   
   

  
   

  S
ub

to
ta

l
42

1,
00

0
   

   
   

 
17

9,
00

0
   

   
   

 
60

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
30

6,
86

3
   

   
   

 
15

6,
78

2
   

   
   

 
46

3,
64

5
   

   
   

 
26

7,
00

0
   

   
   

 
13

3,
00

0
   

   
   

 
40

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
29

2,
00

0
   

   
   

 
14

3,
00

0
   

   
   

 
43

5,
00

0
   

   
   

 
66

7,
00

0
   

   
   

 
58

3,
00

0
   

   
   

 
1,

25
0,

00
0

   
   

 
26

7,
00

0
   

   
   

 
13

3,
00

0
   

   
   

 
40

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
26

7,
00

0
   

   
   

   
13

3,
00

0
   

   
   

 
40

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
2,

48
7,

86
3

   
   

   
1,

46
0,

78
2

   
   

   
3,

94
8,

64
5

   
   

   
   

  

PA
R

K
S,

 O
PE

N
 S

PA
C

E 
&

 R
EC

R
EA

TI
O

N
:

B
al

l f
ie

ld
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
20

,0
00

   
   

   
   

15
,0

00
   

   
   

   
35

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

21
5,

00
0

   
   

   
 

21
5,

00
0

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

22
5,

00
0

   
   

   
 

22
5,

00
0

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
46

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
15

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
47

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
E

m
er

al
d 

M
ou

nt
ai

n 
Tr

ai
ls

 &
 L

in
ka

ge
s-

 2
01

2 
P

la
n

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
50

,0
00

   
   

   
   

50
,0

00
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
50

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
50

,0
00

   
   

   
   

   
   

R
aw

 W
at

er
 Ir

rig
at

io
n 

S
ys

te
m

s 
fo

r P
ar

ks
25

,0
00

   
   

   
   

25
,0

00
   

   
   

   
   

   
40

,0
00

   
   

   
   

10
,0

00
   

   
   

   
50

,0
00

   
   

   
   

40
,0

00
   

   
   

   
10

,0
00

   
   

   
   

50
,0

00
   

   
   

   
50

,0
00

   
   

   
   

10
,0

00
   

   
   

   
60

,0
00

   
   

   
   

40
,0

00
   

   
   

   
10

,0
00

   
   

   
   

50
,0

00
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

19
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

40
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

23
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

S
ka

te
 P

ar
k 

A
cc

es
s 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
(L

ag
oo

n 
C

ou
rt)

**
P

A
R

TI
A

L*
*

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
1,

60
0,

00
0

   
   

 
1,

80
0,

00
0

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

1,
60

0,
00

0
   

   
   

1,
80

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
  

W
es

t L
in

co
ln

 P
ar

k 
B

rid
ge

39
,7

60
   

   
   

   
75

0,
32

1
   

   
   

 
79

0,
08

1
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

39
,7

60
   

   
   

   
  

75
0,

32
1

   
   

   
   

79
0,

08
1

   
   

   
   

   
 

Su
bt

ot
al

84
,7

60
   

   
   

   
76

5,
32

1
   

   
   

 
85

0,
08

1
   

   
   

   
   

 
45

5,
00

0
   

   
   

 
1,

66
0,

00
0

   
   

 
2,

11
5,

00
0

   
   

 
40

,0
00

   
   

   
   

10
,0

00
   

   
   

   
50

,0
00

   
   

   
   

50
,0

00
   

   
   

   
10

,0
00

   
   

   
   

60
,0

00
   

   
   

   
26

5,
00

0
   

   
   

 
10

,0
00

   
   

   
   

27
5,

00
0

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
89

4,
76

0
   

   
   

   
2,

45
5,

32
1

   
   

   
3,

35
0,

08
1

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

To
ta

l C
ap

ita
l P

ro
je

ct
s 

Fu
nd

2,
61

1,
23

4
$ 

 
2,

21
9,

33
8

$ 
 

4,
83

0,
57

2
$ 

   
   

 
2,

64
9,

68
4

$ 
 

2,
68

1,
06

5
$ 

 
5,

33
0,

74
9

$ 
 

1,
74

9,
84

0
$ 

 
1,

54
1,

36
0

$ 
 

3,
29

1,
20

0
$ 

 
1,

59
2,

48
2

$ 
 

1,
32

4,
92

8
$ 

 
2,

91
7,

41
0

$ 
 

2,
66

0,
75

6
$ 

 
1,

88
3,

02
4

$ 
 

4,
54

3,
78

0
$ 

 
1,

59
9,

69
4

$ 
 

1,
51

8,
77

6
$ 

 
3,

11
8,

47
0

$ 
 

1,
38

4,
32

9
$ 

   
1,

45
7,

31
4

$ 
 

2,
84

1,
64

3
$ 

 
14

,2
48

,0
19

$ 
 

12
,6

25
,8

05
$ 

 
26

,8
73

,8
24

$ 
   

  

G
EN

ER
AL

 F
U

N
D

 S
U

PP
O

R
TE

D
 E

N
TE

R
PR

IS
E 

FU
N

D
S

TE
N

N
IS

 C
EN

TE
R

 F
U

N
D

C
la

y 
C

ou
rt 

R
es

ur
fa

ci
ng

C
TF

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
11

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
11

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

11
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
11

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
   

  S
ub

to
ta

l
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

11
0,

00
0

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

11
0,

00
0

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
11

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

11
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

R
EH

D
ER

 F
U

N
D

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

Fi
rs

t N
at

io
na

l B
an

k 
B

ui
ld

in
g 

R
eh

ab
ili

ta
tio

n 
&

 R
es

to
ra

tio
n

26
5,

00
0

   
   

   
 

15
0,

00
0

   
   

   
 

41
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

35
0,

00
0

   
   

   
 

35
0,

00
0

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

40
0,

00
0

   
   

   
 

40
0,

00
0

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
26

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
90

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
1,

16
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

  
   

  S
ub

to
ta

l
26

5,
00

0
   

   
   

 
15

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
41

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
35

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
35

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
40

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
40

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

26
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

90
0,

00
0

   
   

   
   

1,
16

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
  

H
O

W
EL

SE
N

 H
IL

L 
SK

I A
R

EA
H

ow
el

se
n 

H
ill

 L
ig

ht
in

g/
C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n/
Ti

m
in

g
C

TF
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
0,

00
0

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
0,

00
0

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

85
,0

00
   

   
   

   
85

,0
00

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
28

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

28
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

H
ow

el
se

n 
H

ill
 C

en
te

nn
ia

l P
ro

je
ct

s
C

TF
26

9,
50

0
   

   
   

 
31

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
57

9,
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

2,
08

5
   

   
   

 
94

3,
58

0
   

   
   

 
1,

04
5,

66
5

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

37
1,

58
5

   
   

   
   

1,
25

3,
58

0
   

   
   

1,
62

5,
16

5
   

   
   

   
  

H
ow

el
se

n 
H

ill
 S

ta
bi

liz
at

io
n 

&
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
S

tu
di

es
35

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
35

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
25

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
25

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
11

5,
00

0
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
11

5,
00

0
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

71
5,

00
0

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
71

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
   

  S
ub

to
ta

l
61

9,
50

0
   

   
   

 
31

0,
00

0
   

   
   

 
92

9,
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
55

2,
08

5
   

   
   

 
94

3,
58

0
   

   
   

 
1,

49
5,

66
5

   
   

 
11

5,
00

0
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
11

5,
00

0
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
85

,0
00

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

85
,0

00
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
37

1,
58

5
   

   
   

1,
25

3,
58

0
   

   
   

2,
62

5,
16

5
   

   
   

   
  

AI
R

PO
R

T 
FU

N
D

AI
R

PO
R

T 
FU

N
D

La
nd

 A
cq

ui
si

tio
n 

fo
r a

pp
ro

ac
h 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n/
pa

ve
m

en
t m

ai
nt

.
3,

94
7

   
   

   
   

  
15

3,
94

7
   

   
   

 
15

7,
89

4
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

3,
94

7
   

   
   

   
   

 
15

3,
94

7
   

   
   

   
15

7,
89

4
   

   
   

   
   

 
G

A
 E

nt
itl

em
en

t A
lp

ha
 C

on
ne

ct
or

 R
el

oc
at

io
n 

P
ha

se
 1

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
11

,8
42

   
   

   
   

46
1,

48
2

   
   

   
 

47
3,

32
4

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
11

,8
42

   
   

   
   

  
46

1,
48

2
   

   
   

   
47

3,
32

4
   

   
   

   
   

 
P

av
em

en
t P

re
se

rv
at

io
n

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
3,

94
7

   
   

   
   

  
15

3,
94

7
   

   
   

 
15

7,
89

4
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

3,
94

7
   

   
   

   
   

 
15

3,
94

7
   

   
   

   
15

7,
89

4
   

   
   

   
   

 
FA

A
 G

A
 E

nt
itl

em
en

t t
o 

be
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

3,
94

7
   

   
   

   
  

15
3,

94
7

   
   

   
 

15
7,

89
4

   
   

   
 

3,
94

7
   

   
   

   
   

 
15

3,
94

7
   

   
   

 
15

7,
89

4
   

   
   

 
7,

89
4

   
   

   
   

   
 

30
7,

89
4

   
   

   
   

31
5,

78
8

   
   

   
   

   
 

S
m

ar
tw

oo
l i

m
po

rv
em

en
ts

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
94

6,
50

0
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
94

6,
50

0
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

94
6,

50
0

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
94

6,
50

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
M

FS
 H

an
ga

r P
ur

ch
as

e/
10

0L
L 

S
el

f S
er

vi
ce

 Is
la

nd
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

56
,2

86
   

   
   

   
86

1,
84

2
   

   
   

 
91

8,
12

8
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

56
,2

86
   

   
   

   
  

86
1,

84
2

   
   

   
   

91
8,

12
8

   
   

   
   

   
 

R
un

w
ay

 1
4 

R
P

Z 
FA

A
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
44

,4
44

   
   

   
   

40
0,

00
0

   
   

   
 

44
4,

44
4

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
44

,4
44

   
   

   
   

  
40

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
44

4,
44

4
   

   
   

   
   

 
La

nd
 A

cq
ui

si
tio

n 
fo

r R
un

w
ay

 3
2 

P
ar

tia
l P

ar
al

le
l T

ax
iw

ay
44

,4
44

   
   

   
   

40
0,

00
0

   
   

   
 

44
4,

44
4

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
44

,4
44

   
   

   
   

  
40

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
44

4,
44

4
   

   
   

   
   

 
   

  S
ub

to
ta

l
48

,3
91

   
   

   
   

55
3,

94
7

   
   

   
 

60
2,

33
8

   
   

   
   

   
 

99
0,

94
4

   
   

   
 

40
0,

00
0

   
   

   
 

1,
39

0,
94

4
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

68
,1

28
   

   
   

   
1,

32
3,

32
4

   
   

 
1,

39
1,

45
2

   
   

 
3,

94
7

   
   

   
   

  
15

3,
94

7
   

   
   

 
15

7,
89

4
   

   
   

 
3,

94
7

   
   

   
   

  
15

3,
94

7
   

   
   

 
15

7,
89

4
   

   
   

 
3,

94
7

   
   

   
   

   
 

15
3,

94
7

   
   

   
 

15
7,

89
4

   
   

   
 

1,
11

9,
30

4
   

   
   

2,
73

9,
11

2
   

   
   

3,
85

8,
41

6
   

   
   

   
  

G
R

AN
D

 T
O

TA
L

3,
54

4,
12

5
$ 

 
3,

23
3,

28
5

$ 
 

6,
77

7,
41

0
$ 

   
   

 
-

$ 
4,

19
2,

71
3

$ 
 

4,
02

4,
64

5
$ 

 
8,

21
7,

35
8

$ 
 

1,
97

4,
84

0
$ 

 
1,

89
1,

36
0

$ 
 

3,
86

6,
20

0
$ 

 
1,

66
0,

61
0

$ 
 

3,
04

8,
25

2
$ 

 
4,

70
8,

86
2

$ 
 

2,
66

4,
70

3
$ 

 
2,

03
6,

97
1

$ 
 

4,
70

1,
67

4
$ 

 
1,

68
8,

64
1

$ 
 

1,
67

2,
72

3
$ 

 
3,

36
1,

36
4

$ 
 

1,
38

8,
27

6
$ 

   
1,

61
1,

26
1

$ 
 

2,
99

9,
53

7
$ 

 
17

,1
13

,9
08

$ 
 

17
,5

18
,4

97
$ 

 
34

,6
32

,4
05

$ 
   

  

���



Possible Use of Conservation Trust Funds 

*

���



*Conservation Trust Fund 
*Administered by Department of Local Affairs 

*40% of net proceeds of the Colorado Lottery is 
distributed to municipalities and counties in 
proportion to their population. 

*50% goes to Great Outdoors Colorado. 

*10% goes to Colorado State Parks. 

���



*Eligible Uses of Conservation Trust Funds 
* Capital Expenditures related to Parks, Open Space, 

and Recreation.  For Example: 

* Athletic fields & courts 

* Campgrounds 

* Skate parks 

* Skating rinks 

* Playgrounds 

* Soccer fields 

* Pavilions & Shelters 

* Ski jumps 

* Fairgrounds 

 

 

 

 

 

��	



 

��




 

���



 

����



 

����



����



����



����



����



����



���	



���




����



����



����



����



����



����



����



����



���	



���




����



����



����



����



����



����



����



����



���	



���




����



����



����



����



����



����



����



����



���	



���




����



����



����



����



����



����



����



����



���	



 

 

AGENDA ITEM # 4 
 

     CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM 
              
 
FROM:  Winnie DelliQuadri, Government Programs Manager (Ext. 257) 
   Chris Wilson, Director, Parks, Open Space, and Recreation Svs 

 (x317) 
 
THROUGH:  Jon B. Roberts, City Manager (Ext. 228) 
 
DATE:  March 6, 2012 
 
RE:    A Resolution supporting the grant application for a River 

 Corridors Initiative Grant from the State Board of the Great 
 Outdoors Colorado for the Yampa River System Legacy 
 Project. 

 
NEXT STEP:  To provide direction regarding the GOCO grant application: 

1) Authorize resolution to submit a grant application to GOCO 
2) Direction on submission on requested partial grant requests 

 
        
                   ___     DIRECTION 
      ___ INFORMATION 
           ___  ORDINANCE 
      _X_  MOTION 
        X   RESOLUTION 
 
 
I.        REQUEST OR ISSUE:   
The City has been invited to submit a grant application in partnership with Yampa Valley 
Land Trust to Great Outdoors Colorado’s River Corridors Initiative for grant funds to 
develop the access to Bear River Park as well as river access and river recreation 
improvements at Bear River Park, Fournier Open Space, Town Run (Weiss Park to 
Stockbridge Park) and River Creek Park.  GOCO requires a standard resolution as a part of 
the application process.  City Council provided the $300,000 cash match in the 2012 
budget with the direction that these funds leverage $1.5 million in grant funds.  To date, 
$150,000 has been leveraged.  The full GOCO grant request is for $1.6 million and would 
meet council’s directive.  However, in this special initiative, the City has been asked to 

���



 

 

provide a 75%, 50%, and 25% level grant request.  The partial grant amounts would 
utilize the full City match, but would not leverage the $1.5 million as directed by Council.  
Staff request City Council direction regarding the partial grant requests. 

 
 
II. RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Given the benefit of the project, staff recommends that City Council approve the 
resolution. 

 
Motion:  To support the Grant Application for a River Corridors Initiative 
grant from the State Board of the Great Outdoors Colorado for the Yampa 
River System Legacy Project.   
 
Staff also request direction on whether or not to submit partial grant requests at the 
75%, 50% and 25% levels, as follows: 
 
75% - $1,202,252 grant request 
50% - $   801,295 grant request 
25% - $   412,103 grant request 
 

III.   FISCAL IMPACTS: 
 
 Proposed Revenues: CITY PROJECTS 

Grant Request: $1,603,005 
BLM AGO grant 150,000   Awarded grant funds 
Partner contributions 35,000   Anticipated – not req’d for min match 
City In-Kind Match 111,099   Staff time/equipment 
City Cash Match 300,000   In 2012 CIP budget  

 Total Revenue $2,199,104  
 
 Proposed Expenditure: CITY PROJECTS 

Bear River Park $  740,164   Access road, sidewalk, river access 
Fournier Property 323,757   Access improvements, in-river work 
Town Run 584,503   River access, in-river work 
River Creek park 550,680   In-river work 

 Total Expenditures $2,199,104  
 
Partial grant requests would decrease GOCO funding amounts with concurrent 
decreases to project scope and expenditures, as follows: 
 
75% - $1,202,252 grant request 

���



 

 

50% - $   801,295 grant request 
25% - $   412,103 grant request 
 
Note:  The Yampa Valley Land Trust is a co-applicant to GOCO.  The Land Trust will 
request $2,054,500 in GOCO grant funds and will be solely responsible for providing 
their required match of $862,000. 

 
 
 
IV.  BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

 
Through the Yampa River System Legacy Partnership, the City and the Yampa Valley Land 
Trust developed a joint project and presented a concept paper to GOCO for the proposed 
Yampa River System Legacy project.  The City/Land Trust were one of 17 concept papers 
invited to submit a full application for grant funding.  Within the overall grant request, the 
Land Trust is requesting grant funds for conservation of open space.  The City is 
requesting funds to develop access to Bear River Park and to improve and enhance river 
recreation on city owned lands along the Yampa River – each identified river based activity 
is listed as a need in the Yampa River Structural Master Plan, which was adopted by the 
City of Steamboat Springs in November 2008.  City projects include: 

• Bear River Park:  Final reclamation of former wastewater lagoons on the 
property will provide the opportunity for the entire park to be developed and 
open to the public.  Constructing roadway access and parking will provide 
meaningful public access to the Park and its segment of the Yampa River.  
Constructing a restroom will enhance existing and future recreational 
experiences at the site.  Finally, constructing formal and informal river access at 
Bear River Park will develop new river based recreational opportunities in the 
community and will expand the reach of the river used for intensive recreation, 
including commercial tubing, by 63% or approximately .76 mile of reach of the 
river.  Partial funding at the 50% and 25% levels removes the restroom from 
the project. 

• Fournier Open Space:  Excavation of the river channel will create the depth 
needed for boating and angling recreation, bank stabilization and construction of 
a formal river access point will facilitate recreational access and use of the river, 
aquatic habitat improvements will enhance angling experiences and planting 
trees and native vegetation will create natural shade will enhance wildlife 
watching and other passive recreational use of the property.  Improving 
driveway access and parking and installing picnic amenities will enhance the 
overall recreational access and use of the property.  Partial funding at the 25% 
level removes the project entirely. 

���



 

 

• Town Run:  Bank stabilization and revegetation activities in heavily used areas 
will enhance river recreational access and use by children and families, 
constructing new and enhancing existing formal river access points will expand 
public recreational use of the river, and creating channel improvements and new 
boating structures for kayaks, tubes and rafts will improve recreational 
opportunities and the recreational value of the river in the community.  Partial 
funding at the 50% and 25% level remove various river access points and 
boating structures.  At the 25% level, only project components in Weiss park are 
included. 

• River Creek Park:  Carrying out channel improvements, wetlands enhancement, 
bank stabilization and revegetation, and aquatic habitat improvements in order 
to enhance passive recreational use of the Yampa River in this area, including 
wildlife watching, fishing / angling opportunities, and kayaking and rafting for 
youth and novice boaters.  Partial funding at the 75% and 50% level reduce the 
length of river addressed within the Park to that area near the parking on the 
property.  The project is completely removed at the 25% level. 

 
 

V. LEGAL ISSUES: 
 
None at this time. 
 
VI.  CONFLICTS OR ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES: 
 

 All work within the Yampa River will be required to obtain proper Army Corps of Engineers 
permits. 
 
VII. SUMMARY AND ALTERNATIVES: 
 

City Council  may choose to: 
• approve submittal of the grant application  
• decide not to submit the grant application 
• defer until a future round of funding. 

 

���



CITY OF STEAMBOAT SPRINGS 
 

RESOLUTION NO. ________ 
 

A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE GRANT APPLICATION FOR A 
RIVER CORRIDORS INITIATIVE GRANT FROM THE STATE BOARD 
OF THE GREAT OUTDOORS COLORADO FOR THE YAMPA RIVER 
SYSTEM LEGACY PROJECT. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Steamboat Springs is requesting $1,603,005 and the Yampa 
Valley Land Trust is requesting approximately $2,054,500, for a total grant request of 
$3,657,505 from Great Outdoors Colorado for the Yampa River System Legacy Project; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, Great Outdoors Colorado requires that the City Council of the City of 
Steamboat Springs state its support for the Great Outdoors Colorado grant application for 
the Yampa River Legacy Project; and if the grant is awarded, the City of Steamboat 
Springs supports the completion of the project. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
STEAMBOAT SPRINGS, COLORADO, THAT: 
 
  Section 1.  The City Council of the City of Steamboat Springs hereby approves 
and strongly supports the application to Great Outdoors Colorado for the Yampa River 
System Legacy Project. 
 
  Section 2.  If the grant is awarded, the City Council of the City of Steamboat 
Springs strongly supports the completion of the project. 
 
  Section 3. The City Council of the City of Steamboat Springs acknowledges that 
the grant application includes matching funds for City proposed projects which the City of 
Steamboat Springs is solely responsible to provide if a grant is awarded. 

 
  Section 4.  The City Council of the City of Steamboat Springs has secured and will 
appropriate those matching funds required for City proposed projects and authorizes the 
expenditure of funds necessary to meet the terms and obligations of any Grant awarded.  
 
  Section 5.  If the grant is awarded, the City Council of the City of Steamboat 
Springs hereby authorizes the City Manager to sign the grant agreement with Great 
Outdoors Colorado.   

 
 
 
 
 
 

���



PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this    day of    , 2012. 
 
         
 
        
             
        __________________________ 
       Bart Kounovsky, President 
       Steamboat Springs City Council 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________ 
Julie Franklin, CMC 
City Clerk 
 

���



 

 

AGENDA ITEM # 5 
 

CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM 
 
 
FROM:  Sarah Vale and Andy Barnhart – Sales Tax Auditors (Ext. 

251) 
 
THROUGH:  Kim Weber – Finance Director (Ext. 250) 
 
DATE:  March 6, 2012 
 
RE:   Second reading of an ordinance amending Section 22-126 

and Section 22-129 of the Steamboat Springs Revised 
Municipal Code implementing a onetime $25 Sales Tax 
application fee beginning June 1, 2012  

 
 
 ___  DIRECTION 
                 ___  INFORMATION     
   _X_  ORDINANCE 
   ___   MOTION 
 ___ RESOLUTION 
                        
                              
 
I.  REQUEST OR ISSUE:    
 
The purpose of this communication form is for City Council to approve an ordinance 
implementing a onetime $25 license fee for new sales tax applicants beginning June 1, 
2012.  

 
Each new license application requires administrative time to enter the applicant’s 
information in the system and set up the physical file, in addition to printing sales tax 
returns and licenses. It also requires administrative costs to print the documents and 
mail them.  

 
Currently, with no fee, many business owners complete the application before 
committing to selling products, costing the city time and money, and then decide to not 
pursue the business venture. In addition, they often do not close the account, creating 
a delinquency that sales tax staff must follow up on.  

���



 

 

 
The Police Department would also like us to collect a form from these businesses 
providing them with contact information of the responsible party for when they need to 
contact businesses during hours that they are closed.  This would be a new form and 
process that we currently do not do. 
 
II.  RECOMMENDED ACTION:   

 
Pass an ordinance creating a onetime application fee of $25 in order to recoup some 
administrative costs associated with new sales tax licenses.  

 
III.  FISCAL IMPACTS: 

 
Approximately $7,500/year in additional revenue. 

 
IV. BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
Management Team discussed the possibility of a onetime application fee for sales tax 
licenses as a part of looking for other revenue sources.  This idea was presented to City 
Council at the January 17th City Council meeting and instructed staff to move forward with 
it.   

 
License fees are standard operating practice for most home rule municipalities in 
Colorado. In a survey conducted, 14 out of 18 cities charge a sales tax license fee in order 
to recoup some administrative costs. The state also charges a license fee annually. The 
City of Steamboat Springs has not charged a license fee in the past. 

 
V.  LEGAL ISSUES: 
  
None. 
 
VI. CONFLICTS OR ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES: 
  
None. 
  
VII. SUMMARY AND ALTERNATIVES: 

 
1.) Council can pass an ordinance implementing a onetime application fee of 

$25 for new sales tax license applicants beginning June 1, 2012. 1st 
reading of ordinance occurred on February 7, 2012.  

 
2.) Council can choose to keep the sales tax code as written with no license 

fee in place.  

���



CITY OF STEAMBOAT SPRINGS, COLORADO 
 

ORDINANCE NO. _______ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 22-126 AND 
SECTION 22-129 OF THE STEAMBOAT SPRINGS REVISED 
MUNICIPAL CODE IMPLEMENTING A ONETIME $25 SALES 
TAX APPLICATION FEE BEGINNING JUNE 1, 2012. 
 
WHEREAS, City Council wishes to offset costs incurred during the 

creation of a new sales tax account by implementing a onetime $25 application 
fee. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF STEAMBOAT SPRINGS, COLORADO: 
 

Section 1. The Steamboat Springs Municipal Code shall be amended as 
follows: 
 
Note:  Words struck out (word) are to be removed. 
 Words highlighted in yellow are to be added. 
 
Steamboat Springs, Colorado, Code of Ordinances 
Part II – Steamboat Springs Revised Municipal Code 
Chapter 22 – Taxation 
Article III – Sales, Use and Accommodations Taxes 
Division 2. – Administration And Enforcement 
Subdivision II. – Licenses 
 
Sec. 22-126. - License required; issuance; term. 
 
It shall be unlawful for any Person to engage in the Business of selling at Retail 
or purchasing at Retail, as the same is defined in this article, Tangible Personal 
Property and services subject to the Tax imposed by this article, without first 
having obtained a License therefore, which License shall be granted and issued 
by the City Treasurer, without fee for a onetime $25 fee, and shall be in force 
and effect until terminated or revoked. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

���



Sec. 22-129. - Single event License. 
A Person conducting a singular Sales event may apply to the City for a License to 
engage in the Business of selling at Retail for a temporary period of time. The 
application shall state the name and address of the Person applying for such 
License, the name and location of the Person's organization, including the street 
number of such organization, and such other information as the City Treasurer 
may require. The onetime license fee will not apply to single event licenses 
where a deposit is required. (Refer to section 22-143(f).) 
 
INTRODUCED, READ AND ORDERED PUBLISHED, as provided by law, by 
the City Council of the City of Steamboat Springs, at its regular meeting held on 
the _____ day of __________________, 2012. 
 
  
 
 _____________________________ 
 Bart Kounovsky, President 
 Steamboat Springs City Council 
ATTEST:  
 
_________________ 
Julie Franklin, CMC 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 FINALLY READ, PASSED AND APPROVED this          day of 
____________________, 2012. 
 
 
 _____________________________ 
 Bart Kounovsky, President 
 Steamboat Springs City Council 
ATTEST:  
 
_________________ 
Julie Franklin, CMC 
City Clerk 

���



 

 

AGENDA ITEM # 6 
 

CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM 
 
 
FROM:  Julie Franklin, City Clerk (Ext. 248) 
 
THROUGH:  Jon Roberts, City Manager (Ext. 218) 
 
DATE:  March 6, 2012 
 
RE:   Second reading of an ordinance amending Section 12-82 (2) 

of the Steamboat Springs Revised Municipal Code 
implementing a $25 fee for a Special Activity Permit. 

 
 
 ___  DIRECTION 
                 ___  INFORMATION     
   _X_  ORDINANCE 
   ___   MOTION 
 ___ RESOLUTION 
                        
                              
 
I.  REQUEST OR ISSUE:    
 
Motion to approve the second reading of the above noted ordinance. The ordinance 
would take effect March 16, 2012. 

 
II.  FISCAL IMPACTS: 

 
Approximately $1,100/year in additional revenue. 

 
IV. BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 

 
The City Clerk’s Office issues Special Activity Permits to community groups who put on 
events that impact the community and require two or more City services. These events 
range in type and impact from the Mustang Round Up and the Free Summer Concert 
Series to the Month of the Young Child Parade or Pioneer Day Block Party.  
 
Management Team discussed the possibility of an application fee for a Special Activity 

���



 

 

Permit in an attempt to offset some of the costs of putting on these events in the 
community. Not only is there an administrative cost, but the cost to provide the City 
services (closing streets, providing Community Service Officers). This idea was presented 
to City Council at the January 17, 2012 City Council meeting and Council instructed staff to 
move forward.   

 
Many municipalities charge a fee for such permits ranging from $25-$300 most with a 
tiered format. Management Team’s consensus was to charge a fee of $25 per event, per 
year. 

 
V.  LEGAL ISSUES: 
  

 None. 
 
VI. CONFLICTS OR ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES: 
  

 None. 
  
VII. SUMMARY AND ALTERNATIVES: 

 
1.) Pass the ordinance implementing an application fee of $25 for Special 

Activity Permits effective March 16, 2012. 
 

2.) Direct staff to bring back more information or more options. 
 

3.) Continue the status quo of no fee. 
 
 

���



CITY OF STEAMBOAT SPRINGS, COLORADO 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 12-82 (2) OF THE 
STEAMBOAT SPRINGS REVISED MUNICIPAL CODE 
IMPLEMENTING A $25 FEE FOR A SPECIAL ACTIVITY 
PERMIT. 
 
WHEREAS, a community event which requires two or more City Services 

requires the issuance of a Special Activity Permit; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has expressed the need to offset some of the 

costs incurred to the City to provide City services to these events. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF STEAMBOAT SPRINGS, COLORADO: 
  

Section 1.  Section 12-82 of the Steamboat Springs Revised Municipal 
Code shall be amended as follows: 
 
 Section 2.   (2) At the time of filing the application, a special activity 
permit fee shall be paid to the city clerk to defray administrative costs. The 
special activity permit fee shall be ($25.00) per event/application. Permit fees 
shall be paid into the City of Steamboat Springs General Fund. 
 
INTRODUCED, READ AND ORDERED PUBLISHED, as provided by law, by 
the City Council of the City of Steamboat Springs, at its regular meeting held on 
the _____ day of ________________, 2012 
 
 
  
 _____________________________ 
 Bart Kounovsky, President 
 Steamboat Springs City Council 
ATTEST:  
 
_________________ 
Julie Franklin, CMC 
City Clerk 
   
 
 
 

���



 FINALLY READ, PASSED AND APPROVED this     day of 
_____________           , 2012. 
 
 
 
 
 _____________________________ 
 Bart Kounovsky, President 
 Steamboat Springs City Council 
ATTEST:  
 
_________________ 
Julie Franklin, CMC 
City Clerk 

���



 

 

 AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  ##  77  
 
  CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  CCOOMMMMUUNNIICCAATTIIOONN  FFOORRMM                                             

 
FROM:  Jason K. Peasley, AICP, City Planner (Ext. 229) 

Tyler Gibbs, AIA, Director of Planning and Community Development 
(Ext. 244)  

 
THROUGH:  Jon Roberts, City Manager (Ext. 228) 

 
DATE:  March 6, 2012 
 
ITEM:   Second reading of an ordinance vacating a 10 foot wide utility 

easement in Lot 2, Burgess Creek Ridge Subdivision, Filing 2 and 
vacating a 10 foot wide utility easement in Lot 40, Rendezvous Trails 
Subdivision, Filing 2; providing an effective date and setting a 
hearing date.  

 
NEXT STEP:  The applicant may apply for a final plat to finalize the easement 

vacation. 
 

                                                                                                                       
                      X   ORDINANCE 
                    ___ RESOLUTION 
                      X   MOTION 
                    ___  DIRECTION 
                    ___ INFORMATION                                                                                                                     

 
                                                            
PROJECT NAME: Rendezvous Trails Subdivision Filing 2, Lot 40 and Burgess Creek 

Ridge Subdivision Filing 2, Lot 2 #PP-11-03 
 
PETITION:   A request to vacate a ten (10) foot wide utility easement in 

Rendezvous Trails Subdivision, Filing 2, Lot 40 and to vacate a ten 
(10) foot wide utility easement in Burgess Creek Ridge Subdivision, 
Filing 2, Lot 2 

 
LOCATION:   2493 and 2529 Ridge Road 
 
APPLICANT: Ridge Road LLC c/o Ed Becker, Mountain Architecture, P.O. Box 

770420, Steamboat Springs, CO 80477 (970) 879-5764  
 

	��



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM 
Rendezvous Trails Subdivision Filing 2, Lot 4 and Burgess Creek Ridge Subdivision Filing 2, 
Lot 2 #PP-11-03 (Easement Vacation) 
March 6, 2012 

 

 
1. Background Information: 
 
The applicant is proposing to vacate a ten (10) foot wide utility easement in 
Rendezvous Trails Subdivision, Filing 2, Lot 40 and to vacate a ten (10) foot wide utility 
easement in Burgess Creek Ridge Subdivision, Filing 2, Lot 2 to facilitate the adjustment 
of a common lot line.   
 
The applicant has provided sign-offs from all of the applicable utility companies.  The City 
is required to vacate all easements with an ordinance as well as through recordation of a 
Final Plat.   
 
2. Recommended Motion: 
 
Based on the sign-offs and information provided by all of the applicable utility 
companies, staff recommends approval of the ordinance vacating the easement 
described above.   

 
3. List of Attachments: 
 
Attachment 1 – Utility company signoffs 
Attachment 2 – Easement vacation exhibit 
 
 
 
 

	��



	��

vdietrich


vdietrich


vdietrich


vdietrich


vdietrich


vdietrich


vdietrich


vdietrich


vdietrich
Attachment 1

vdietrich


vdietrich


vdietrich




	��



	��



	��



	�	



	�


vdietrich


vdietrich


vdietrich


vdietrich


vdietrich
Attachment 2



CITY OF STEAMBOAT SPRINGS, COLORADO 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE VACATING A 10 FOOT WIDE UTILITY 
EASEMENT IN LOT 2, BURGESS CREEK RIDGE 
SUBDIVISION, FILING 2 AND VACATING A 10 FOOT WIDE 
UTILITY EASEMENT IN LOT 40, RENDEZVOUS TRAILS 
SUBDIVISION, FILING 2; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 
AND SETTING A HEARING DATE. 
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with Chapter 20, Art. I, Div. 3 of the 

Steamboat Springs Revised Municipal Code, the owner of Lot 2 Burgess Creek 
Ridge Subdivision, Filing 2 and Lot 40 Rendezvous Trails Subdivision, Filing 2 
have requested a vacation of two ten (10) foot wide utility easements to facilitate 
the adjustment of a common lot line; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Public Utility providers having reviewed the request and 

determined that the two ten (10) foot wide utility easements are not a necessary 
part of the District’s public utility system; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that vacating the subject public utility 

easement will promote the public interest by removing unnecessary easements. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF STEAMBOAT SPRINGS, COLORADO: 
 
Section 1.  That the easement described in the attached Exhibit “A” is 

hereby vacated. 
 
 Section 2.  That pursuant to Section 7-11 of the Charter of the City of 
Steamboat Springs, Colorado, the second publication of this ordinance may be by 
reference, utilizing the ordinance title. 
 
 Section 3.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this 
Ordinance is for any reason held to be invalid, such decision shall not affect the 
validity of the remaining portion of this Ordinance. 
 
 Section 4.  The City Council hereby finds, determines and declares that 
this ordinance is necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, 
health, and safety. 
 

Section 5.  This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon the 
expiration of five (5) days from and after its publication following final passage, 

	��



as provided in Section 7.6 (h) of the Steamboat Springs Home Rule Charter or 
upon recordation of the plat for the Rendezvous Trails Subdivision, Filing 2, Lot 
40 and Burgess Creek Ridge Subdivision, Filing 2, Lot 2, whichever occurs later.  
 

Section 6.  A public hearing on this ordinance shall be held on March 6, 
2012 at 5:00 P.M. in the Citizens Hall meeting room, Centennial Hall, Steamboat 
Springs, Colorado. 
 
 INTRODUCED, READ AND ORDERED PUBLISHED, as provided by 
law, by the City Council of the City of Steamboat Springs, at its regular meeting 
held on the _____ day of ________________, 2012. 
 
 
       
      ____________________________   
      Bart Kounovsky, President 
      Steamboat Springs City Council 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________ 
Julie Franklin, CMC 
City Clerk 
 
  
 FINALLY READ, PASSED AND APPROVED this ____ day of 
_____________, 2012. 
 
       
      ____________________________   
      Bart Kounovsky, President 
      Steamboat Springs City Council 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________ 
Julie Franklin, CMC 
City Clerk 
 

	���



	���

vdietrich


vdietrich


vdietrich


vdietrich


vdietrich


vdietrich
Exhibit A



 

 

AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  ##  88  
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  CCOOMMMMUUNNIICCAATTIIOONN  FFOORRMM 
 

FROM:  Bob Keenan, Senior Planner (Ext. 260)     
Tyler Gibbs, AIA, Director of Planning and Community Development 
(Ext. 244) 

 
THROUGH:  Jon Roberts, City Manager, (Ext. 228) 
 
DATE:  March 6, 2012 
 
ITEM:   An ordinance to amend Section 26-65 Development Plan; amend 

Section 26-42 Development Review; amend Section 26-60 Pre-
application Review; amend Section 26-78 Minor Exterior 
Modification; and amend the Development Application Fee 
Schedule 

 
NEXT STEP:           If City Council approves the first reading, the second reading will 

be heard on March 20, 2012. 
 

                                                                                                                       
                     _X   ORDINANCE 
                           RESOLUTION 
                        _ MOTION 
                           DIRECTION 
                           INFORMATION 
                                                                                                                     

 
                                               
PROJECT NAME: #TXT-12-01: Short Term Changes - Amendments to Development 

Plan, Pre-Application, Minor Exterior Modification, Conditional Use, 
and Fee Schedule.  Text Amendments to the Community 
Development Code (CDC) 

 
PETITION:   A text amendment to Section 26-65 Development Plan to allow for 

Conceptual Development Review; amend Section 26-42 Development 
Review to remove pre-application review from public hearings, 
amend Section 26-60 pre-application review to remove pre-
application review from public hearings; amend Section 26-78 Minor 
exterior modification to allow review of accessory structures that are 
less than 1,500 square-feet; and to amend the Development 
Application Fee Schedule to reduce Development Plan fees for 


��



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM 
#TXT-12-01: Permitted Use Table and Definitions and Use Criteria.  Text Amendments to the 
Community Development Code (CDC)  
March 6, 2012    

 2

Conditional Uses, create a fee for amending Community Housing 
Plans, create a fee for Administrative Final Development Plans, create 
a fee for Final Development Plan vesting extension requests, and to 
update the fee regarding Pre-Application review by Planning 
Commission and City Council. 

 
APPLICANT: City of Steamboat Springs 
   124 10th Street 
   Steamboat Springs, CO 80487 
   
PC ACTION:  Planning Commission voted to approve on February 23, 2012; Vote: 7-

0;  
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
As previously identified in Planning Staff’s CDC application process framework discussions 
with the City Council, there are opportunities for short term or interim revisions to the CDC 
regarding Development Plan (conceptual development plan), Minor Exterior Modification, 
Pre-Application Review, and Conditional Use applications.  These short term revisions may 
provide increased efficiency in development review while staff works through the large 
format changes over the course of the year.  These proposed changes are explained in 
greater detail below.  To facilitate these changes we have developed an ordinance to this 
affect.   Please see proposed ordinance.  
 
Development Plan- Changes to the development plan application process include allowing 
the process known as Development Plan Lite or Conceptual Development Plan (CDP) to be 
codified.  This Conceptual Development Plan process will be allowed in addition to the 
existing Development Plan process and will allow for reduced submittal requirements with 
the same review procedures.  These changes are anticipated to be short term or interim 
changes as staff has been directed to revise the Development Plan process as a whole as 
part of the “framework” changes.  Please see attachment 1, Planning Staff Report, for 
CDP submittal requirements.    
 
We have also created a revised Ptarmigan Inn staff report and motion, for reference only, 
to showcase how a CDP staff report and motion would appear and to clearly identify what 
is being approved.  Please see attachment 1, Planning Staff Report, for CDP submittal 
requirements.    
 
Minor Exterior Modification (MEM)- Staff proposes to amend the MEM process to allow for 
accessory structures of 1,500 square-feet or less to also be process administratively.  
Currently, only additions of 1,500 square- feet or less can be processed as such.  Staff 
finds that this change will help facilitate greater administrative review of low impact 
development.  


��



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM 
#TXT-12-01: Permitted Use Table and Definitions and Use Criteria.  Text Amendments to the 
Community Development Code (CDC)  
March 6, 2012    

 3

 
Conditional Uses- Currently, conditional uses that are not associated with new 
development (i.e.: hot dog cart/outdoor sales) must be processed as a Development Plan 
and therefore must pay the $1,500 application fee; the same as full-scale development.  
Staff has decided, for the interim, to reduce the fees specific to conditional uses that 
require no site development review to $500. The long term changes will incorporate a new 
Conditional Use Permit or CUP.   
 
Pre-Application - Also, with the addition of the new Conceptual Development Plan process, 
staff finds that there is no longer a need for the Pre-Application review that goes to the 
Planning Commission and City Council.   This section will be removed.   
 
Fees- While we are changing the fee schedule in regards to reducing Conditional Use 
review fees and Pre-Application review to Planning Commission and City Council, we 
decided to update the schedule to incorporate other processes that currently do not have 
a set fee but do demand staff hours for review.  Staff estimates these fees based upon 
whether other departments are involved ie: TAC review, the hours involved at $50 per 
hour.  These include:   

1. Administrative Final Development Plan ($1,000 base fee) – Includes TAC review, 
and 10 hours of Planning staff time. 

2. Community Housing Plan Amendment ($500) – At 10 hours 
3. Final Development Plan extended vesting requests for previously approved FDPs 

with standard 3 year vesting ($500) – At 10 hours 
4. Conditional Use Review ($500) – At 10 hours  

 
It is important to note that staff plans on conducting a full audit of the fee schedule as 
part of the larger CDC changes that we are working on this year.  
 
Please see attachment 1, Planning Commission Staff Report, for more detailed 
information.   
 
Planning Commission Discussion: 

The Planning Commission discussion was rather light as these changes have been vetted 
through numerous worksessions.  Previous discussion centered on the need for the 
Conceptual Development Plan (CDP) motion and staff reports to clearly demonstrate what 
is being approved (a sample staff report and motion is included in the attached Planning 
Commission Staff Report).  Also, there was discussion on whether a Final Development 
Plan (FDP) had to be exactly the same, or consistent, with the previously approved CDP.  
Staff proposes that a FDP has to be within substantial conformance as defined in the 
Community Development Code.  Substantial conformance allows a limited amount of 
flexibility in regards minor changes from CDP to FDP.   


��



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM 
#TXT-12-01: Permitted Use Table and Definitions and Use Criteria.  Text Amendments to the 
Community Development Code (CDC)  
March 6, 2012    

 4

Other minor comments were made on fixing typographical errors within the proposed 
ordinance.  The attached ordinance has been revised to account for these changes.  

Please see attachment 2, meeting minutes, for more information.  

Public Comment: 

There was no public comment at this meeting.  

Recommended Motion: 

On February 23, 2012, with a vote of 7-0, the Planning Commission recommended 
approval of the proposed ordinance contained within #TXT-12-01 that amends Section 
26-65 Development Plan, Section 26-42 Development Review, Section 26-60 Pre-
application Review, Section 26-78 Minor Exterior Modification, and the Development 
Application Fee Schedule.  

 
List of attachments: 
 
Attachment 1 – PC Staff Report TXT-11-15 
Attachment 2 – Draft Planning Commission Minutes – February 23, 2012 


��



��
��

33//$$1111,,11**��&&220000,,6666,,2211��&&2200008811,,&&$$77,,2211��))225500�
BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
)520�� � %RE�.HHQDQ��6HQLRU�3ODQQHU��([W�������
�
7+528*+�� � 7\OHU�*LEEV��$,$��'LUHFWRU�RI�3ODQQLQJ�	�&RPPXQLW\�'HYHORSPHQW��([W��

������
� � � � �
'$7(��� � )HEUXDU\�����������
�
,7(0�� � � �7;7��������6KRUW�7HUP�&KDQJHV��$PHQGPHQWV�WR�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ��3UH�

$SSOLFDWLRQ��0LQRU�([WHULRU�0RGL ILFDWLRQ��&RQGLWLRQDO�8VH��DQG�)HH�
6FKHGXOH�

�
1(;7�67(3�� � 3ODQQLQJ�&RP PLVVLRQ¶V�UHFRP PHQGDWLRQ�ZLOO�EH�I RUZDUGHG�WR�WKH�&LW\�

&RXQFLO�IRU�)LUVW�5HDGLQJ�RI�WKLV�2UGLQDQFH�RQ�0DUFK����������
BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�
�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
������������������������;�25',1$1&(�
����������������������������5(62/87,21�
������������������������;�027,21�
������������������������B�� ',5(&7,21�
����������������������������,1)250$7,21�
�BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB���
�
352-(&7�1$0(�� �7;7��������6KRUW�7HUP�&KDQJHV��$PHQGPHQWV�WR�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ��3UH�

$SSOLFDWLRQ��0LQRU�([WHULRU�0RGL ILFDWLRQ��&RQGLWLRQDO�8VH��DQG�)HH�
6FKHGXOH�

3(7,7,21���� � $�WH[W�DP HQGPHQW�WR�6HFWLRQ�������'HYHORSP HQW�3ODQ�WR�DOORZ�IRU�
&RQFHSWXDO�'HYHORSP HQW�5HYLHZ��DP HQG�6HFWLRQ�������'HYHORSP HQW�
5HYLHZ�WR�UHP RYH�SUH�DSSOLFDWLRQ� UHYLHZ�IURP �SXEOLF�KHDULQJV��DP HQG�
6HFWLRQ�������SUH�DSSOLFDWLRQ�UHYLHZ�WR� UHPRYH�SUH�DSSOLFDWLRQ�UHYLHZ�IURP �
SXEOLF�KHDULQJV��DP HQG�6HFWLRQ�������0L QRU�H[WHULRU�P RGLILFDWLRQ�WR�DOORZ�
UHYLHZ�RI�DFFHVVRU\�VWUXFWXUHV�WKDW� DUH�OHVV�WKDQ�������VTXDUH�IHHW��DQG�WR�
DPHQG�WKH�'HYHORSP HQW�$SSOLFDWLRQ�)HH�6FKHGXOH�WR�UHGXFH�'HYHORSP HQW�
3ODQ�IHHV�IRU�&RQGLWLRQDO�8VHV��FUHDWH�D�IHH�IRU�DP HQGLQJ�&RP PXQLW\�
+RXVLQJ�3ODQV��FUHDWH�D�IHH�IRU�$GP LQLVWUDWLYH�)LQDO�'HYHORSP HQW�3ODQV��
FUHDWH�D�IHH�IRU�)LQDO�'HYHORSP HQW�3ODQ�YHVWLQJ�H[WHQVLRQ�UHTXHVWV��DQG�WR�
XSGDWH�WKH�IHH�UHJDUGLQJ�3UH�$SSOL FDWLRQ�UHYLHZ�E\�3ODQQLQJ�&RP PLVVLRQ�
DQG�&LW\�&RXQFLO��

��� 
��

vdietrich


vdietrich


vdietrich


vdietrich


vdietrich


vdietrich


vdietrich


vdietrich
Attachment 1

vdietrich


vdietrich




3/$11,1*�&200,66,21�&20081,&$7,21�)250�
�7;7��������6KRUW�7HUP�5HYLVLRQV�±�&'3��3UH�$SSOLFDWLRQ��0(0��&RQGLWLRQDO�8VH��)HHV��
)HEUXDU\���������� ���������� ���
�
$33/,&$17���� &LW\�RI�6WHDP ERDW�6SULQJV��'HSDUWP HQW�RI�3ODQQLQJ�DQG�&RP PXQLW\�

'HYHORSPHQW��F�R�%RE�.HHQDQ��6HQLRU �3ODQQHU��&HQWHQQLDO�+DOO�������� WK�
6WUHHW��32�%R[���������6WHDPERDW�6SULQJV��&2�����������������������

�

,�� &20081,7<�'(9(/230(17�&2'(��&'&��±�67$))�$1$/<6,6�6800$5<�

&'&���6HFWLRQ�������'�� �&ULWHULD�IRU�DSSURYDO��$SSURYDO�RI�WKH�DPHQGPHQW�VKDOO�EH�JUDQWHG�RQO\� LI�LW�
DSSHDUV�E\�FOHDU�DQG�FRQYLQFLQJ�HYLGHQFH�SUHVHQWHG�GXU LQJ�WKH�SXEOLF�KHDULQJ�EHIRUH�SODQQLQJ�FRPPLVVLRQ�
RU�FLW\�FRXQFLO�WKDW�WKH�IROORZLQJ�FRQGLWLRQV�H[LVW��

&216,67(17�6XEVHFWLRQ�
<HV� 1R� 1$�

127(6�

��� &RQIRUPLW\�ZLWK�WKH�FRP PXQLW\�
SODQ�� 5� � � ��

��� (UURU�RU�JRDO�REMHFWLYH�� 5� � � �
��� 3XEOLF�KHDOWK��VDIHW\��	�ZHOIDUH� 5� � � �
6WDII�)LQGLQJ��6WDII�ILQGV�WKDW�WKH�SURSRVHG�&RPPXQLW\�'HYHORSPHQW�&RGH�7H[W�$PHQGPHQWV��
�7;7��������WR�6HFWLRQ�������'HYHORSP HQW�3ODQ��6HFWLRQ�������'HYHORSPHQW�5HYLHZ��6HFWLRQ�
������3UH�$SSOLFDWLRQ�5HYLHZ��6 HFWLRQ�������0LQRU�([WHULRU�0RGLILFDWLRQ��DQG�DP HQGPHQW�RI�
WKH�'HYHORSP HQW�$SSOLFDWLRQ�)HH�6FKHGXOH�� DUH�FRQVLVWHQW�ZLWK�WKH�FULWHULD�I RU�DSSURYDO�SHU�
&'&�6HF��������'���
�

�
,,�� %$&.*5281'� �
�
$V�LGHQWLILHG�LQ�WKH�3ODQQLQJ�6WDII¶V�SUHYLRXV� &'&�)UDPHZRUN�GLVFXVVLRQV��WKHUH�DUH�RSSRUWXQLWLHV�
IRU�VKRUW�WHUP �RU�LQWHULP �UHYLVLRQV�WR�WKH� &'&�UHJDUGLQJ�'HYHORSP HQW�3ODQ��FRQFHSWXDO�
GHYHORSPHQW�SODQ���0LQRU�([WHULRU�0RGLILFDWL RQ��3UH�$SSOLFDWLRQ�5HYLHZ��DQG�&RQGLWLRQDO�8VH�
DSSOLFDWLRQV���7KHVH�SURSRVHG�FKDQJHV�DUH�H[SODLQH G�LQ�JUHDWHU�GHWDLO�EHORZ���7R�IDFLOLWDWH�WKHVH�
FKDQJHV�ZH�KDYH�GHYHORSHG�DQ�RUGLQDQFH�WR�WKLV�DIIHFW���� 3OHDVH�VHH�DWWDFKPHQW���IRU�SURSRVHG�
RUGLQDQFH���
�
,,,�� '(6&5,37,21�
�
'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ ��&KDQJHV�WR�WKH�GHYHORSP HQW�SODQ�D SSOLFDWLRQ�SURFHVV�LQFOXGH�DOORZLQJ�WKH�
SURFHVV�NQRZQ�DV�'HYHORSP HQW�3ODQ�/LWH�RU�&RQFHS WXDO�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ��&'3��WR�EH�FRGLILHG�� �
7KLV�&RQFHSWXDO�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ�SURFHVV�ZLOO�EH �DOORZHG�LQ�DGGLWLRQ�WR�WKH�H[LVWLQJ�'HYHORSP HQW�
3ODQ�SURFHVV�DQG�ZLOO�DOORZ�I RU�UHGXFHG�VXEP LWWDO�UHTXLUHPHQWV�ZLWK�WKH�VDP H�UHYLHZ�SURFHGXUHV�� �
7KHVH�FKDQJHV�DUH�DQWLFLSDWHG�WR�EH�VKRUW�WHUP�RU�LQWHULP�FKDQJHV�DV�VWDII�KDV�EHHQ�GLUHFWHG�WR�UHYLVH�
WKH�'HYHORSP HQW�3ODQ�SURFHVV�DV�D�ZKROH� DV�SDUW�RI�WKH�³IUDP HZRUN´�FKDQJHV��� 3OHDVH�VHH�
DWWDFKPHQW���IRU�&'3�VXEPLWWDO�UHTXLUHPHQWV����
�
:H�KDYH�DOVR�FUHDWHG�D�UHYLVHG�VWDII�UHSRUW�D QG�PRWLRQ��IRU�UHIHUHQFH�RQO\��WR�VKRZFDVH�KRZ�D�&'3�
VWDII�UHSRUW�DQG�PRWLRQ�ZRXOG�DSSHDU���3OHDVH�VHH�DWWDFKPHQW���IRU�WKLV�GRFXPHQW���
�

��� 
��



3/$11,1*�&200,66,21�&20081,&$7,21�)250�
�7;7��������6KRUW�7HUP�5HYLVLRQV�±�&'3��3UH�$SSOLFDWLRQ��0(0��&RQGLWLRQDO�8VH��)HHV��
)HEUXDU\���������� ���������� ���
0LQRU�([WHULRU�0RGLILFDWLRQ��0(0� ��$V�SUHYLRXVO\�GLVFXVVHG�DW�SROLF\�ZRUNVHVVLRQV��ZH�ZLOO�
DPHQG�WKH�0(0�SURFHVV�WR�DOORZ�IRU�DFFHVVRU\�VWUX FWXUHV�RI�������VTXDUH�IHHW�RU�OHVV�WR�DOVR�EH�
SURFHVV�DGPLQLVWUDWLYHO\���&XUUHQWO\��RQO\�DGGLWLRQV� RI�������VTXDUH��IHHW�RU�OHVV�FDQ�EH�SURFHVVHG�DV�
VXFK���6WDI I�I LQGV�WKDW�WKLV�FKDQJH�ZLOO�KHOS�I DFLOLWDWH�JUHDWHU�DGP LQLVWUDWLYH�UHYLHZ�RI �ORZ�LP SDFW�
GHYHORSPHQW���
�
&RQGLWLRQDO�8VHV��&XUUHQWO\��FRQGLWLRQDO�XVHV�WKDW�DUH�QRW�DVVRFLDWHG�ZLWK�QHZ�GHYHORSPHQW��L�H���KRW�
GRJ�FDUW�RXWGRRU�VDOHV��PXVW�EH�SURFHVVHG�DV�D�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ�DQG�WKHUHIRUH�PXVW�SD\�WKH��������
DSSOLFDWLRQ�IHH��WKH�VDPH�DV�IXOO�VFDOH�GHYHORSPHQW���6WDII�KDV�GHFLGHG��IRU�WKH�LQWHULP ��WR�UHGXFH�WKH�
IHHV�VSHFLILF�WR�FRQGLWLRQDO�XVHV�WKDW�UHTXLUH� QR�VLWH�GHYHORSP HQW�UHYLHZ�WR�������7KH�ORQJ�WHUP �
FKDQJHV�ZLOO�LQFRUSRUDWH�D�QHZ�&RQGLWLRQDO�8VH�3HUPLW�RU�&83����
�
3UH�$SSOLFDWLRQ���$OVR��ZLWK�WKH�DGGLWLRQ�RI�WKH�QHZ�&RQ FHSWXDO�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ�SURFHVV��VWDII�
ILQGV�WKDW�WKHUH�LV�QR�ORQJHU�D�QHHG�IRU�WKH�3U H�$SSOLFDWLRQ�UHYLHZ�WKDW�JRHV�WR�WKH�3ODQQLQJ�
&RPPLVVLRQ�DQG�&LW\�&RXQFLO����7KLV�VHFWLRQ�ZLOO�EH�UHPRYHG����
�
)HHV��:KLOH�ZH�DUH�FKDQJLQJ�WKH�IHH�VFKHGXOH�LQ�UH JDUGV�WR�UHGXFLQJ�&RQGLWLRQDO�8VH�UHYLHZ�IHHV�
DQG�3UH�$SSOLFDWLRQ�UHYLHZ�WR�3ODQQLQJ�&RP PLVVLRQ�DQG�&LW\�&RXQFLO��ZH�GHFLGHG�WR�XSGDWH�WKH�
VFKHGXOH�WR�LQFRUSRUDWH�RWKHU�SURFHVVHV�WKDW�FXUUHQWO\�GR�QRW�KDYH�D�VHW�IHH�EXW�GR�GHPDQG�VWDII�KRXUV�
IRU�UHYLHZ���6WDII�HVWLP DWHV�WKHVH�IHHV�EDVHG� XSRQ�ZKHWKHU�RWKHU�GHSDUWP HQWV�DUH�LQYROYHG�LH��7$&�
UHYLHZ��WKH�KRXUV�LQYROYHG�DW�����SHU�KRXU���7KHVH�LQFOXGH����

��� $GPLQLVWUDWLYH�)LQDO�'HYHORSP HQW�3ODQ��������� EDVH�IHH��±�,QFOXGHV�7$&�UHYLHZ��DQG����
KRXUV�RI�3ODQQLQJ�VWDII�WLPH��

��� &RPPXQLW\�+RXVLQJ�3ODQ�$PHQGPHQW��������±�$W����KRXUV�
��� )LQDO�'HYHORSP HQW�3ODQ�H[WHQGHG�YHVWLQJ�UH TXHVWV�IRU�SUHYLRXVO\�DSSURYHG�)'3V�ZLWK�

VWDQGDUG���\HDU�YHVWLQJ��������±�$W����KRXUV�
��� &RQGLWLRQDO�8VH�5HYLHZ��������±�$W����KRXUV��

�
3OHDVH�VHH�WKH�DWWDFKHG�RUGLQDQFH�IRU�WKH�SURSRVHG�WH[W�DPHQGPHQWV����
�
,9�� &5,7(5,$�)25�5(9,(:�$1'�$33529$/�

&'&�6HF���������&'&�WH[W�DPHQGPHQWV���
�

�G��&ULWHULD�IRU�DSSURYDO� �,Q�FRQVLGHULQJ�DQ\�DSSOLFDWLRQ� IRU�DPHQGPHQW�WR�WKH�&'&��WKH�
IROORZLQJ�FULWHULD�VKDOO�JRYHUQ�XQOHVV�RWKHUZLVH�H[SUHVVO\�UHTXLUHG�E\�WKH�&'&��$SSURYDO�
RI�WKH�DP HQGPHQW�VKDOO�EH�JUDQWHG�RQO\�LI� LW�DSSHDUV�E\�FOHDU�DQG�FRQYLQFLQJ�HYLGHQFH�
SUHVHQWHG�GXULQJ�WKH�SXEOLF�KHDULQJ�EHIRUH�SODQQLQJ�FRP PLVVLRQ�RU�FLW\�FRXQFLO�WKDW�WKH�
IROORZLQJ�FRQGLWLRQV�H[LVW��
�
����� &RQIRUPDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�FRPPXQLW\�SODQ� �7KH�DP HQGPHQW�WR�WKH�&'&�ZLOO�

VXEVWDQWLDOO\�FRQIRUP�ZLWK�DQG�IXUWKHU�WK H�FRPPXQLW\�SODQ
 V�SUHIHUUHG�GLUHFWLRQ�
DQG�SROLFLHV��

�
�6WDII� $QDO\VLV��&RQVLVWHQW��7KH�SURSRVHG�&'&�7H[W�$P HQGPHQW�LV�FRQVLVWHQW�

ZLWK�WKH�IROORZLQJ�6WHDPERDW�6SULQJV�$UHD�&RPPXQLW\�3ODQ�JRDOV��

��� 
�	



3/$11,1*�&200,66,21�&20081,&$7,21�)250�
�7;7��������6KRUW�7HUP�5HYLVLRQV�±�&'3��3UH�$SSOLFDWLRQ��0(0��&RQGLWLRQDO�8VH��)HHV��
)HEUXDU\���������� ���������� ���

�
x� 3ROLF\�&'������(QFRXUDJH�KLJK�TXDOLW\�VLWH�SODQQLQJ�DQG�EXLOGLQJ�GHVLJQ���
x� *RDO�('����6WHDPERDW�6SULQJV�ZLOO�VXSSRUW�WKH�PDLQWHQDQFH�DQG�H[SDQVLRQ�RI�

ORFDO�EXVLQHVVHV��
x� 3ROLF\�('������6XSSRUW�RSSRUWXQLWLHV�WR� H[SDQG�DQG�LQFUHDVH�WKH�QXP EHU�RI�

ORFDO�EXVLQHVVHV�LQ�6WHDPERDW�6SULQJV��
x� *RDO�('����6WHDP ERDW�6SULQJV�ZLOO�P DLQWDLQ�LWV�UROH�DV�D�UHJLRQDO�HFRQRP LF�

FHQWHU��
�

����� (UURU�RU�JRDO�REMHFWLYH� �7KH�DPHQGPHQW�WR�WKH�&'&�Z LOO�FRUUHFW�DQ�HUURU��RU�ZLOO�
IXUWKHU�D�SXEOLF�JRDO�RU�REMHFWLYH��

�
�6WDII� $QDO\VLV��&RQVLVWHQW��7KH�SURSRVHG�&'&�7H[W�$P HQGPHQW�ZLOO�IXUWKHU�WKH�

&RPPXQLW\¶V�JRDOV�DQG�REMHFWLYHV�DV�RXWOLQ HG�DERYH���7KLV�FKDQJH�LV�QRW�EHLQJ�
PDGH�WR�DGGUHVV�DQ�³HUURU´�LQ�WKH�FRGH����

�
����� 3XEOLF�VDIHW\� �7KH�DP HQGPHQW�WR�WKH�&'&�LV�Q HFHVVDU\�WR�HQVXUH�SXEOLF�KHDOWK��

VDIHW\�DQG�ZHOIDUH��
�

�6WDII� $QDO\VLV���&RQVLVWHQW��7KH�SURSRVHG�&'&�7H[W�$PHQGPHQWV�LV�QHFHVVDU\�WR�
HQVXUH�WKH�SXEOLF�KHDOWK��VDIHW\�DQG�ZHOIDUH�E\�IXUWKHULQJ�WKH�JRDOV�DQG�SROLFLHV�RI�
WKH�6WHDPERDW�6SULQJV�$UHD�&RPPXQLW\�3ODQ�����

�
9�� 67$))�),1',1*�	�&21',7,216�
6WDII�ILQGV�WKDW�WKH�SURSRVHG�&RPPXQLW\�'HYHORSPHQW�&RGH�7H[W�$PHQGPHQWV���7;7��������WR�
6HFWLRQ�������'HYHORSP HQW�3ODQ��6HFWLRQ���� ���'HYHORSP HQW�5HYLHZ��6HFWLRQ�������3UH�
$SSOLFDWLRQ�5HYLHZ��6HFWLRQ�������0LQRU�([WH ULRU�0RGLILFDWLRQ��DQG�DP HQGPHQW�RI�WKH�
'HYHORSPHQW�$SSOLFDWLRQ�)HH�6FKHGXOH�� DUH�FRQVLVWHQW�ZLWK�WKH�FULWHULD�I RU�DSSURYDO�SHU�&'&�
6HF��������'���
�
9,�� $77$&+(0(176�
�
����3URSRVHG�2UGLQDQFH��
����6XEPLWWDO�5HTXLUHPHQWV�
����6DPSOH�6WDII�5HSRUW�DQG�0RWLRQ�±�3WDUPLJDQ�,QQ�
�

��� 
�




&,7<�2)�67($0%2$7�635,1*6�
�

25',1$1&(�12���BBBBB�
�

$1�25',1$1&(�7 2�$0(1'�6( &7,21�������'(9(/230(17�
3/$1��$0(1'�6 (&7,21��� ����'(9( /230(17�5(9,(: ��
$0(1'�6(&7,21�������35(�$33/,&$7,21�5(9,(:��$0(1'�
6(&7,21�������0,125�(;7(5,2 5�02',),&$7, 21��$0(1'�
7+(�'(9(/230(17�$33/,&$7,21�)((�6&+('8/(��
�
:+(5($6��WKH�&LW\�&RXQFLO�DGRSWHG�WKH�UHYLVHG�&RPPXQLW\�'HYHORSPHQW�&RGH�

DV�2UGLQDQFH�������RQ�-XO\�����������DQG�
�
:+(5($6��WKH�&LW\ �RI�6WHDP ERDW�6SULQJV �LV�FRPP LWWHG�WR �D�UHJX ODU��RQJRLQJ �

UHYLHZ�RI�WKH�&RPPXQLW\�'HYHORSPHQW�&RGH�VR �WKDW�WKH�SURYLVLRQV�FRQWDLQHG�WKHUHLQ�DUH�
UHOHYDQW�DQG�DSSOLFDEOH�WR�WKH�FRPPXQLW\�DW�DQ\�JLYHQ�SRLQW�LQ�WLPH��DQG�

�
:+(5($6��WKH�&LW\�& RXQFLO�KDV�GHWHUP LQHG�WKDW�LW�LV�SURSHU �DQG�QHFHVVDU\�WR�

DOORZ�IRU�WKH�FRQFHSWX DO�UHYLHZ�DQG�DSSU RYDO�RI�GHYHORSP HQW�SODQV�DQG�ZLWK�WKLV�
FRQFHSWXDO�UHYLHZ�LW�LV�QR�ORQJHU�QHFHVVDU\�WR�KDYH�SUH�DSSOLFDWLRQ�UHYLHZ�DW�WKH�3ODQQLQJ�
&RPPLVVLRQ�DQG�&LW\�&RXQFLO�OHYHO��DQG�

�
:+(5($6��WKH�&LW\�&RXQFLO�KDV�IRXQG�LW� DSSURSULDWH�WR�P RGLI\�W KH�P LQRU�

H[WHULRU�PRGLILFDWLRQ�SURFHVV�WR�DOORZ�WKH�DGPLQLVWUDWLYH�UHYLHZ�RI�DFFHVVRU\�V WUXFWXUHV�
RI�������VTXDUH�IHHW�RU�OHVV��DQG�

�
:+(5($6��WKH�&LW\�& RXQFLO�ILQGV�LW�DS SURSULDWH�WR�XSGDWH�WKH�'HYHORSP HQW�

$SSOLFDWLRQ�)HH�6FKHG XOH�WR�DOOR Z�I RU�D�UHG XFHG�FRQGLWLRQDO�XV H�D SSOLFDWLRQ�I HH��WR�
DPHQG�WKH�SUH�DSSOLFDWLRQ�IHH��DQG�WR�FUHD WH�QHZ�IHHV�IRU��FR PPXQLW\�KRXVLQJ�SODQ�
DPHQGPHQW��DGPLQLVWUDWLYH�ILQDO�GHYHORSP HQW�SODQ��DQG�ILQDO�GHYHORSP HQW�SODQ�YHVWLQJ�
H[WHQVLRQ�UHTXHVWV��DQG���

�
�
12:��7+(5()25(��WKH�&LW\�&R XQFLO�RI �WKH � &LW\�RI�6WHDP ERDW�6SULQJV�RUGDLQV�DV�
IROORZV���
�

6(&7,21���
�

1HZ�ODQJXDJH�LQ�EROG�DQG�ROG�ODQJXDJH�LQ�VWULNHWKURXJK��
�
6HF���������'HYHORSPHQW�SODQ���
�
�D��3XUSRVH��7KH�GHYHORSPHQW�SODQ�LV�LQWHQGHG�WR�DOORZ�SXEOLF�UHYLHZ�RI�GHYHORSPHQW�
SURSRVDOV�DW�D�OHYHO�RI�GHWDLO�FRPPHQVXUDWH�ZLWK�WKH�W\SH�RI�GHYHORSPHQW�SODQ�
UHTXHVWHG�ZKHUH�LQIRUPHG�GHFLVLRQV�FDQ�EH�PDGH�E\�WKH�SODQQLQJ�FRPPLVVLRQ�DQG�FLW\�
FRXQFLO���

� �

$WWDFKPHQW�� ��� 
��



�
�E��$SSOLFDELOLW\��$SSURYDO�RI�D�GHYHORSPHQW�SODQ�LV�UHTXLUHG�IRU��
�
�� ���� $SSOLFDWLRQV�IRU�D�FRQGLWLRQDO�XVH��ZKHQ�WKH�GHYHORSPHQW�SODQ�LV�XWLOL]HG�

IRU�D�FRQGLWLRQDO�XVH�WKDW�GRHV�QRW�LQYROYH�H[WHUQDO�PRGLILFDWLRQV�WR�D�
VWUXFWXUH��QR�ILQDO�GHYHORSPHQW�SODQ�LV�UHTXLUHG���

�
�� ���� $SSOLFDWLRQV�IRU�GHYHORSPHQW�RI�D�VLWH�ZLWK�38'��RU�D�PDMRU�DPHQGPHQW�

WR�DQ�H[LVWLQJ�38'�SXUVXDQW�WR�VHFWLRQ�������RU��������
�
�� ���� $SSOLFDWLRQV�IRU�GHYHORSPHQW�RI�D�VLWH�UHTXHVWLQJ�WZR�����RU�IHZHU�

YDULDWLRQV�WR�GLPHQVLRQDO��RU�GHYHORSPHQW�VWDQGDUGV�OLVWHG�LQ�DUWLFOH�9��
GHYHORSPHQW�VWDQGDUGV�ZKHUH�VXFK�YDULDWLRQV�GR�QRW�TXDOLI\�DV�PLQRU�
DGMXVWPHQWV�LQ�VHFWLRQ��������

�
�� ���� $SSOLFDWLRQV�IRU�D�YDULDWLRQ�IURP�PRUH�WKDQ�WZR�����GLPHQVLRQDO��RU�

GHYHORSPHQW�VWDQGDUGV�OLVWHG�LQ�DUWLFOH�9�GHYHORSPHQW�VWDQGDUGV��ZKHUH�
VXFK�YDULDQFHV�GR�QRW�TXDOLI\�DV�PLQRU�DGMXVWPHQWV��VHFWLRQ���������6XFK�
DSSOLFDWLRQV�VKDOO�EH�SURFHVVHG�DV�D�38'�SXUVXDQW�WR�VHFWLRQ�������RU����
�����)RU�WKH�SXUSRVHV�RI�GHWHUPLQLQJ�WKH�QXPEHU�RI�YDULDWLRQV��HDFK�
GLPHQVLRQDO�VWDQGDUG��UHJDUGOHVV�RI�WKH�QXPEHU�RI�EXLOGLQJV�LW�LV�DSSOLHG�
WR��VKDOO�FRXQW�IRU�RQH�YDULDWLRQ��HDFK�GHYHORSPHQW�VWDQGDUG�SURYLVLRQ�
VKDOO�FRXQW�DV�RQH�YDULDWLRQ��([DPSOH�RI�WKLV�LV�ZKHQ�D�IURQW�VHWEDFN�DQG�
VLGH�VHWEDFN�YDULDQFH�DUH�UHTXHVWHG��WKDW�FRQVWLWXWHV�WZR�����YDULDWLRQV��
([DPSOH��ZKHQ�D�SDUNLQJ�VSDFH�DQG�SDUNLQJ�VL]H�YDULDWLRQ�DUH�UHTXHVWHG��
WKDW�VKDOO�FRQVWLWXWH�WZR�����YDULDWLRQV��([DPSOH��ZKHQ�D�IURQW�VHWEDFN�
YDULDWLRQ�LV�UHTXHVWHG�IRU�DQ\�QXPEHU�RI�VWUXFWXUHV��WKDW�FRQVWLWXWHV�RQH�
YDULDWLRQ���

�
� ���� ,Q�DGGLWLRQ�WR�VXEVHFWLRQ�������E�����	�����DERYH��D�FRQFHSWXDO�UHYLHZ�

RI�D�GHYHORSPHQW�SODQ�LV�SHUPLWWHG��&RQFHSWXDO�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ��
IRU�DSSOLFDWLRQV�IRU�GHYHORSPHQW�RI�D�VLWH�ZKHUH�DQ�DSSOLFDQW�LV�
UHTXHVWLQJ�OLPLWHG�DSSURYDO�SHU�VXEVHFWLRQ�������H�����EHORZ����

�
�F��6XEPLWWDO�UHTXLUHPHQWV��6XEPLWWDO�UHTXLUHPHQWV�DUH�VHW�IRUWK�LQ�IRUPV�PDLQWDLQHG�E\�
WKH�GLUHFWRU���
�
�G��&ULWHULD�IRU�UHYLHZ�DQG�DSSURYDO��1R�GHYHORSPHQW�SODQ�VKDOO�EH�DSSURYHG�XQOHVV�WKH�
SODQQLQJ�FRPPLVVLRQ�DQG�FLW\�FRXQFLO�ILQG�WKDW�WKH�SODQ�PHHWV�DOO�RI�WKH�IROORZLQJ�
FULWHULD��
�
�� ���� &RQIRUPLW\�ZLWK�FRPPXQLW\�SODQ��7KH�GHYHORSPHQW�SODQ�VLJQLILFDQWO\�

IXUWKHUV�WKH�SUHIHUUHG�GLUHFWLRQ�DQG�SROLFLHV�RXWOLQHG�LQ�WKH�FRPPXQLW\�
SODQ�RU�DSSURYHG�PDVWHU�SODQV��

�
�� ���� &RQVLVWHQF\�ZLWK�VXUURXQGLQJ�XVHV��7KH�SURSRVHG�GHYHORSPHQW�VKDOO�EH�

� �

��� 
���



FRQVLVWHQW�ZLWK�WKH�FKDUDFWHU�RI�WKH�LPPHGLDWH�YLFLQLW\�RI�WKH�SDUFHO�
SURSRVHG�IRU�GHYHORSPHQW��RU�VKDOO�HQKDQFH�RU�FRPSOLPHQW�WKH�PL[WXUH�RI�
XVHV��VWUXFWXUHV�DQG�DFWLYLWLHV�SUHVHQW�LQ�WKH�LPPHGLDWH�YLFLQLW\��

�
�� ���� 0LQLPL]H�DGYHUVH�LPSDFWV��7KH�GHVLJQ�DQG�RSHUDWLQJ�FKDUDFWHULVWLFV�RI�WKH�

SURSRVHG�GHYHORSPHQW�VKDOO�PLQLPL]H�DQ\�DGYHUVH�LPSDFWV�RQ�VXUURXQGLQJ�
XVHV�DQG�VKDOO�QRW�FDXVH�D�QXLVDQFH��FRQVLGHULQJ�IDFWRUV�VXFK�DV�SURSRVHG�
VHWEDFNV��SODQQHG�KRXUV�RI�RSHUDWLRQ��DQG�WKH�SRWHQWLDO�IRU�RGRUV��QRLVH��
VPRNH��GXVW��JODUH��YLEUDWLRQV��VKDGRZV��DQG�YLVXDO�LPSDFWV�IURP�WKH�
SURSRVHG�GHYHORSPHQW��

�
�� ���� $FFHVV��$FFHVV�WR�WKH�VLWH�VKDOO�EH�DGHTXDWH�IRU�WKH�SURSRVHG�GHYHORSPHQW��

FRQVLGHULQJ�WKH�ZLGWK��JUDGHV��DQG�FDSDFLWLHV�RI�DGMDFHQW�VWUHHWV�DQG�
LQWHUVHFWLRQV�DQG�WKH�HQWUDQFH�WR�WKH�VLWH��7KH�DGHTXDF\�RI�WKH�IDFLOLWLHV�
SURYLGHG�IRU�DQ\�QHFHVVDU\�VHUYLFH�GHOLYHU\��SDUNLQJ�DQG�ORDGLQJ��DQG�
WUDVK�UHPRYDO�VKDOO�DOVR�EH�FRQVLGHUHG��:KHQ�DSSURSULDWH��SXEOLF�
WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ�RU�RWKHU�SXEOLF�RU�SULYDWH�WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ�VHUYLFHV�DQG�
DSSURSULDWH�SHGHVWULDQ�IDFLOLWLHV�VKDOO�EH�PDGH�DYDLODEOH�WR�VHUYH�WKH�XVH��

�
�� ���� 0LQLPL]H�HQYLURQPHQWDO�LPSDFWV��7KH�SURSRVHG�GHYHORSPHQW�VKDOO�

PLQLPL]H�LWV�DGYHUVH�LPSDFWV�RQ�WKH�QDWXUDO�HQYLURQPHQW��LQFOXGLQJ�ZDWHU�
TXDOLW\��DLU�TXDOLW\��ZLOGOLIH�KDELWDW��YHJHWDWLRQ��ZHWODQGV��DQG�QDWXUDO�
ODQGIRUPV��

�
�� ���� 3KDVLQJ��,I�WKH�SURSRVHG�GHYHORSPHQW�LV�WR�EH�GHYHORSHG�LQ�SKDVHV��WKHQ�

HDFK�SKDVH�VKDOO�FRQWDLQ�WKH�UHTXLUHG�VWUHHWV��XWLOLWLHV��ODQGVFDSLQJ��DQG�
RWKHU�LPSURYHPHQWV�WKDW�DUH�QHFHVVDU\�DQG�GHVLUDEOH�IRU�UHVLGHQWV�RI�WKH�
SURMHFW�IRU�WKDW�SKDVH��(DFK�SKDVH�RI�WKH�SKDVLQJ�SODQ�VKDOO�PHHW�WKH�
UHTXLUHPHQWV�RI�WKH�&'&�RQ�LWV�RZQ�XQOHVV�D�YDULDWLRQ�LV�JUDQWHG��,I�WKH�
GHYHORSPHQW�LQFRUSRUDWHV�DQ\�DPHQLWLHV�IRU�WKH�EHQHILW�RI�WKH�FLW\��VXFK�DV�
WUDLO�FRQQHFWLRQV��WKHVH�VKDOO�EH�FRQVWUXFWHG�ZLWKLQ�WKH�ILUVW�SKDVH�RI�WKH�
SURMHFW��RU��LI�WKLV�LV�QRW�SUDFWLFDO��WKHQ�DV�HDUO\�LQ�WKH�SURMHFW�DV�LV�
UHDVRQDEOH��

�
�� ���� &RPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�RWKHU�VWDQGDUGV��7KH�SURSRVHG�GHYHORSPHQW�VKDOO�

FRPSO\�ZLWK�DOO�RWKHU�DSSOLFDEOH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�RI�WKLV�&'&��LQFOXGLQJ�
DUWLFOH�9��GHYHORSPHQW�VWDQGDUGV��

�
�� ���� 9DULDQFH�FULWHULD��'HYHORSPHQW�SODQV��LQ�DOO�]RQH�GLVWULFWV�ZLWK�WKH�

H[FHSWLRQ�RI�WKH�*RQGROD�RQH��*�����*RQGROD�WZR��*�����UHVRUW�UHVLGHQWLDO�
RQH��55�����DQG�UHVRUW�UHVLGHQWLDO�WZR��55����VHHNLQJ�YDULDWLRQ�IURP�XS�WR�
WZR�����RI�GLPHQVLRQDO��GHYHORSPHQW�RU�VXEGLYLVLRQ�VWDQGDUGV�OLVWHG�LQ�
DUWLFOH�9��GHYHORSPHQW�VWDQGDUGV�DQG�DUWLFOH�9,,��VXEGLYLVLRQ�VWDQGDUGV��
ZKHUH�VXFK�YDULDQFHV�GR�QRW�TXDOLI\�DV�PLQRU�DGMXVWPHQWV�VKDOO�PHHW�WKH�
IROORZLQJ�FULWHULD�IRU�DSSURYDO�LQ�DGGLWLRQ�WR�WKH�FULWHULD�LQ�VXEVHFWLRQV����
���H�����������

� �

��� 
���



�
�� D�� /HJDO�XVH��7KH�SURSHUW\�DQG�WKH�XVH�RI�VXFK�SURSHUW\�IRU�ZKLFK�WKH�

YDULDQFH�LV�UHTXHVWHG�LV�LQ�IXOO�FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�DOO�UHTXLUHPHQWV�RI�
WKH�]RQH�GLVWULFW�LQ�ZKLFK�WKH�SURSHUW\�LV�ORFDWHG��RU�WKHUH�LV�D�OHJDO�
QRQFRQIRUPLQJ�VWUXFWXUH�RU�ORW��RU�WKHUH�LV�D�FRQIRUPLQJ�VWUXFWXUH�
KRXVLQJ�D�OHJDO�QRQFRQIRUPLQJ�XVH��1R�YDULDQFH�PD\�EH�JUDQWHG�
ZKLFK�ZRXOG�SHUPLW�RU�H[SDQG�DQ\�XQODZIXO�XVH�RI�SURSHUW\��

�
�� E�� ,QMXU\�WR�DGMRLQLQJ�SURSHUW\�PLWLJDWHG��7KH�YDULDQFH�ZLOO�QRW�

SHUPDQHQWO\�LQMXUH�RU�DGYHUVHO\�LPSDFW�OHJDO�FRQIRUPLQJ�XVHV�RI�
DGMDFHQW�SURSHUW\��RU�WKH�DSSOLFDQW�KDV�DFFXUDWHO\�DVVHVVHG�WKH�
LPSDFWV�RI�WKH�SURSRVHG�YDULDQFH�DQG�KDV�DJUHHG�WR�PLWLJDWH�WKRVH�
LPSDFWV��,Q�PDNLQJ�WKLV�GHWHUPLQDWLRQ�WKH�FLW\�FRXQFLO�VKDOO�EHJLQ�
ZLWK�WKH�DVVXPSWLRQ�WKDW�YDULDWLRQV�IURP�GHYHORSPHQW�VWDQGDUGV�
FUHDWH�LPSDFWV�RQ�DGMDFHQW�SURSHUWLHV��DQG�VKDOO�SODFH�WKH�EXUGHQ�RI�
SURRI�RQ�WKH�DSSOLFDQW�WR�VKRZ��

�
�� ��� ,PSDFWV�WR�DGMDFHQW�SURSHUWLHV�DUH�SUHVXPHG��
�
�� ��� 7KDW�WKHUH�DUH�QR�LPSDFWV��RU�WKDW�WKH�LPSDFWV�KDYH�EHHQ�

DGHTXDWHO\�PLWLJDWHG��8QVXSSRUWHG�RSLQLRQV�RI�LPSDFWV�
IURP�VXUURXQGLQJ�SURSHUW\�RZQHUV�VKDOO�QRW�EH�FRQFOXVLYH�
HYLGHQFH�RI�LPSDFWV��

�
�� F�� $GYDQWDJHV�RXWZHLJK�GLVDGYDQWDJHV��7KH�DSSOLFDQW�VKDOO�EHDU�WKH�

EXUGHQ�RI�SURRI�DQG�GHPRQVWUDWH�WKDW�WKH�DGYDQWDJHV�RI�WKH�
YDULDQFH�VXEVWDQWLDOO\�RXWZHLJK�LWV�GLVDGYDQWDJHV�WR�WKH�
FRPPXQLW\�DQG�WR�QHLJKERULQJ�ODQGV��

�
�� G�� 6XSHULRU�GHYHORSPHQW��7KH�DSSOLFDQW�VKDOO�GHPRQVWUDWH�WKDW�WKH�

UHTXHVWHG�YDULDWLRQ�V��IURP�WKH�GLPHQVLRQDO�RU�GHYHORSPHQW�
VWDQGDUGV�ZLOO�UHVXOW�LQ�D�GHYHORSPHQW�ZKLFK�EHWWHU�PHHWV�WKH�LQWHQW�
RI�WKH�XQGHUO\LQJ�]RQH�GLVWULFW�DQG�DGRSWHG�SODQV��

�
�� H�� 0LQLPXP�UHOLHI��7KH�DSSOLFDQW�VKDOO�GHPRQVWUDWH�WKDW�WKH�UHTXHVWHG�

YDULDWLRQ�V��LV��DUH��WKH�OHDVW�PRGLILFDWLRQ�SRVVLEOH�RI�WKH�&'&�WKDW�
ZLOO�PHHW�WKH�GHVLJQ�JRDOV�RI�WKH�GHYHORSPHQW��

�
�� ���� 9DULDQFH�FULWHULD��'HYHORSPHQW�SODQV��LQ�WKH�*RQGROD�RQH��*�����*RQGROD�

WZR��*�����UHVRUW�UHVLGHQWLDO�RQH��55�����DQG�UHVRUW�UHVLGHQWLDO�WZR��55����
]RQH�GLVWULFWV�VHHNLQJ�YDULDWLRQ�IURP�DQ\�GLPHQVLRQDO��GHYHORSPHQW�RU�
VXEGLYLVLRQ�VWDQGDUGV�OLVWHG�LQ�DUWLFOH�9��GHYHORSPHQW�VWDQGDUGV�DQG�DUWLFOH�
9,,��VXEGLYLVLRQ�VWDQGDUGV��VKDOO�PHHW�WKH�IROORZLQJ�FULWHULD�IRU�DSSURYDO�LQ�
DGGLWLRQ�WR�WKH�FULWHULD�LQ�VXEVHFWLRQV�������G�����������1RWH��1R�YDULDWLRQV�
DUH�SHUPLWWHG�WR�KHLJKW�RU�WKH�EDVH�DUHD�GHVLJQ�VWDQGDUGV�SHU�WKLV�YDULDQFH�
SURFHVV���

� �

��� 
���



�
�� D�� /HJDO�XVH��7KH�SURSHUW\�DQG�WKH�XVH�RI�VXFK�SURSHUW\�IRU�ZKLFK�WKH�

YDULDQFH�LV�UHTXHVWHG�LV�LQ�IXOO�FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�DOO�UHTXLUHPHQWV�RI�
WKH�]RQH�GLVWULFW�LQ�ZKLFK�WKH�SURSHUW\�LV�ORFDWHG��RU�WKHUH�LV�D�OHJDO�
QRQFRQIRUPLQJ�VWUXFWXUH�RU�ORW��RU�WKHUH�LV�D�FRQIRUPLQJ�VWUXFWXUH�
KRXVLQJ�D�OHJDO�QRQFRQIRUPLQJ�XVH��1R�YDULDQFH�PD\�EH�JUDQWHG�
ZKLFK�ZRXOG�SHUPLW�RU�H[SDQG�DQ\�XQODZIXO�XVH�RI�SURSHUW\��

�
�� E�� (TXDO�HQMR\PHQW��7KH�YDULDQFH�ZLOO�QRW�FRQVWLWXWH�D�JUDQW�RI�

VSHFLDO�SULYLOHJH�LQFRQVLVWHQW�ZLWK�WKH�OLPLWDWLRQ�XSRQ�XVHV�RI�RWKHU�
SURSHUWLHV�LQ�WKH�YLFLQLW\�DQG�]RQLQJ�GLVWULFW�LQ�ZKLFK�WKH�VXEMHFW�
SURSHUW\�LV�ORFDWHG��

�
�� F�� +DUGVKLS��7KH�VSHFLDO�FLUFXPVWDQFHV�RI�WKH�VXEMHFW�SURSHUW\�PDNH�

WKH�VWULFW�HQIRUFHPHQW�RI�WKH�SURYLVLRQV�RI�WKLV�&'&�DQ�
XQQHFHVVDU\�KDUGVKLS�WR�WKH�SURSHUW\�RZQHU��

�
�� G�� +DUGVKLS�QRW�VHOI�LPSRVHG��7KH�VSHFLDO�FLUFXPVWDQFHV�RI�WKH�

VXEMHFW�SURSHUW\�DUH�QRW�WKH�UHVXOW�RI�WKH�DFWLRQV�RI�WKH�DSSOLFDQW��
�
�� H�� 6SHFLDO�FLUFXPVWDQFHV��7KH�YDULDQFH�LV�QHFHVVDU\�EHFDXVH�RI�

VSHFLDO�FLUFXPVWDQFHV�UHODWLQJ�WR�WKH�VL]H��VKDSH��WRSRJUDSK\��
ORFDWLRQ�RU�VXUURXQGLQJV�RI�WKH�VXEMHFW�SURSHUW\��WR�SURYLGH�LW�ZLWK�
XVH�ULJKWV�DQG�SULYLOHJHV�SHUPLWWHG�WR�RWKHU�SURSHUWLHV�LQ�WKH�
YLFLQLW\�DQG�LQ�WKH�]RQLQJ�GLVWULFW�LQ�ZKLFK�WKH�VXEMHFW�SURSHUW\�LV�
ORFDWHG��

�
�� I�� +HLJKW�YDULDWLRQ��8QGHU�QR�FLUFXPVWDQFHV�ZLOO�YDULDQFHV�WR�WKH�

PD[LPXP�KHLJKW�LQ�WKH�*RQGROD�RQH��*�����*RQGROD�WZR��*�����
UHVRUW�UHVLGHQWLDO�RQH��55�����DQG�UHVRUW�UHVLGHQWLDO�WZR��55����
]RQH�GLVWULFWV�EH�SHUPLWWHG��

�
�� J�� 'HVLJQ�VWDQGDUGV�YDULDWLRQ��8QGHU�QR�FLUFXPVWDQFHV�ZLOO�YDULDQFHV�

WR�WKH�0RXQWDLQ�%DVH�$UHD�'HVLJQ�6WDQGDUGV�LQ�WKH�*RQGROD�RQH�
�*�����*RQGROD�WZR��*�����UHVRUW�UHVLGHQWLDO�RQH��55�����DQG�UHVRUW�
UHVLGHQWLDO�WZR��55����]RQH�GLVWULFWV�EH�SHUPLWWHG���

�
�H��7HUP�DQG�HIIHFW�RI�DSSURYDO��
�
�� ���� $SSURYDO�RI�D�GHYHORSPHQW�SODQ�VKDOO�EH�ILQDO�DV�RI�WKH�GDWH�RI�FLW\�FRXQFLO�

DSSURYDO��
�
�� ���� $SSURYDO�RI�D�GHYHORSPHQW�SODQ�VKDOO�UHPDLQ�HIIHFWLYH�IRU�D�SHULRG�RI�WZR�

����\HDUV�IURP�WKH�GDWH�RI�DSSURYDO��RU�RWKHU�WLPH�IUDPH�DSSURYHG�E\�FLW\�
FRXQFLO�WKURXJK�D�GHYHORSPHQW�DJUHHPHQW�SXUVXDQW�WR�VHFWLRQ���������$Q\�
UHTXHVW�IRU�DSSURYDO�ORQJHU�WKDQ�WZR�����\HDUV�PXVW�EH�PDGH�FRQFXUUHQWO\�

� �

��� 
���



ZLWK�WKH�DSSOLFDWLRQ�IRU�WKH�GHYHORSPHQW�SODQ��
�
�� ���� 5HYLVLRQV�WR�WKH�GHYHORSPHQW�SODQ�UHTXLUHG�DV�D�FRQGLWLRQ�RI�DSSURYDO�

PXVW�EH�PDGH�ZLWKLQ�RQH�\HDU�IURP�WKH�GDWH�RI�DSSURYDO��
�
�� ���� ,I�D�FRPSOHWH�DSSOLFDWLRQ�IRU�D�ILQDO�GHYHORSPHQW�SODQ�LV�QRW�ILOHG�ZLWK�WKH�

GHSDUWPHQW�ZLWKLQ�WKH�DSSURYDO�WHUP��WKH�GHYHORSPHQW�SODQ�VKDOO�EH�
FRQVLGHUHG�H[SLUHG���7KLV�SURYLVLRQ�VKDOO�QRW�DSSO\�LI�WKH�GHYHORSPHQW�
SODQ�ZDV�REWDLQHG�VROHO\�IRU�DSSURYDO�RI�D�FRQGLWLRQDO�XVH�ZKHUH�QR�
H[WHULRU�PRGLILFDWLRQV�WR�D�VWUXFWXUH�ZHUH�UHTXLUHG��,Q�WKDW�LQVWDQFH��WKH�
FRQGLWLRQDO�XVH�LV�UHTXLUHG�WR�KDYH�EHHQ�H[HFXWHG�ZLWKLQ�WKH�DSSURYDO�
WHUP��RU�WKH�GHYHORSPHQW�SODQ�VKDOO�EH�FRQVLGHUHG�H[SLUHG��,I�DQ�DFWLYH�
EXLOGLQJ�SHUPLW�KDV�EHHQ�REWDLQHG�IRU�WKH�FRQGLWLRQDO�XVH�RU�SDUW�WKHUHRI��
DQG�WKH�WHUP�RI�DSSURYDO�IRU�WKH�GHYHORSPHQW�SODQ�H[SLUHV��WKH�
GHYHORSPHQW�FRYHUHG�XQGHU�WKH�DFWLYH�EXLOGLQJ�SHUPLW�PD\�FRQWLQXH��
KRZHYHU��WKH�GHYHORSPHQW�SODQ�DSSURYDO�VKDOO�EH�FRQVLGHUHG�H[SLUHG�DQG�
QR�QHZ�EXLOGLQJ�SHUPLWV�PD\�EH�LVVXHG�EDVHG�RQ�WKH�H[SLUHG�DSSURYDO��
2QFH�WKH�GHYHORSPHQW�SODQ�RU�SDUW�WKHUHRI�KDV�EHHQ�IXOO\�H[HFXWHG��WKH�
DSSURYDO�RU�SDUW�WKHUHRI�VKDOO�UHPDLQ�LQ�HIIHFW�IRU�SHUSHWXLW\�RU�XQWLO�
DPHQGHG���

�
�� ���� $SSURYDO�RI�D�GHYHORSPHQW�SODQ�GRHV�QRW�UHOLHYH�WKH�SURMHFW�IURP�PHHWLQJ�

WKH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�RI�WKH�&'&�ZKHUH�LQFRQVLVWHQFLHV�EHWZHHQ�WKH�
GHYHORSPHQW�SODQ�DQG�WKH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�RI�WKH�&'&�PD\�H[LVW��DQG�

�
�� ���� $SSURYDO�RI�D�GHYHORSPHQW�SODQ�GRHV�QRW�UHOLHYH�WKH�SURMHFW�IURP�PHHWLQJ�

DOO�RWKHU�DSSOLFDEOH�ORFDO��VWDWH��DQG�IHGHUDO�UHJXODWLRQV���
�
� ���� $�GHYHORSPHQW�SODQ��SURFHVVHG�DV�D�&RQFHSWXDO�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ��

VKDOO�UHVXOW�LQ�WKH�DSSURYDO�RI�RQO\�WKRVH�DVSHFWV�DQG�TXDOLWLHV�RI�WKH�
SURSRVHG�GHYHORSPHQW�VSHFLILFDOO\�LGHQWLILHG�LQ�WKH�DSSOLFDWLRQ�DQG�
LQFOXGHG�WKH�&LW\�&RXQFLO�PRWLRQ�DSSURYLQJ�WKH�&RQFHSWXDO�
'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ���7KH�&RQFHSWXDO�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ�SURFHVV�PD\�
EH�XVHG�WR�REWDLQ�DSSURYDO�RI�VLWH�GHVLJQ��DFFHVV��DQG�EXLOGLQJ�GHVLJQ��
LQFOXGLQJ�KHLJKW�DQG�PDVVLQJ��

��
� � 7KH�DSSOLFDQW�PD\�SUHVHQW�LQIRUPDWLRQ�UHODWLQJ�WR�RWKHU�DVSHFWV�RI�WKH�

SURSRVHG�GHYHORSPHQW�LQFOXGLQJ��EXW�QRW�OLPLWHG�WR��JUDGLQJ�DQG�
GUDLQDJH��XWLOLWLHV��EXLOGLQJ�IHQHVWUDWLRQ��DQG�ODQGVFDSLQJ���7KHVH�
DVSHFWV�VKRXOG�EH�GHSLFWHG�DQG�ODEHOHG�DV�LOOXVWUDWLYH�RQO\���5HJDUGOHVV�
RI�WKH�ZKHWKHU�WKHVH�DVSHFWV�DUH�GHSLFWHG�DQG�ODEHOHG�DV�LOOXVWUDWLYH��
WKH�&LW\�ZLOO�UHYLHZ�WKHP�DV�VXFK�DQG�D�&RQFHSWXDO�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ�
DSSURYDO�VKDOO�QRW�FRQYH\�DQ\�DSSURYDO�RU�UHSUHVHQWDWLRQ�E\�WKH�&LW\�
DV�WR�WKH�FRPSOLDQFH�RI�WKHVH�DVSHFWV�ZLWK�WKH�&RPPXQLW\�
'HYHORSPHQW�&RGH��

��

� �

���� 
���



� � $OO�GHYHORSPHQW�DSSURYHG�YLD�WKH�&RQFHSWXDO�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ�
SURFHVV�VKDOO�EH�UHTXLUHG�WR�REWDLQ�)LQDO�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ�DSSURYDO���
7KH�)LQDO�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ�DSSOLFDWLRQ�VKDOO�VXEVWDQWLDOO\�FRQIRUP�
WR�WKH�DSSURYHG�&RQFHSWXDO�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ���$VSHFWV�RI�WKH�)LQDO�
'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ�QRW�DSSURYHG�DV�SDUW�RI�WKH�&RQFHSWXDO�
'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ�VKDOO�FRQIRUP�WR�DOO�SURYLVLRQV�RI�WKH�&'&���,Q�WKH�
HYHQW�DQ�DSSOLFDWLRQ�IRU�DQ�)LQDO�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ�GRHV�QRW�FRQIRUP�
WR�WKH�DSSURYHG�&RQFHSWXDO�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ�WKH�DSSOLFDWLRQ�VKDOO�
EH�GHQLHG�DQG�WKH�GHYHORSHU�VKDOO�HLWKHU�DPHQG�WKH�&RQFHSWXDO�
'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ��VXEPLW�D�QHZ�DSSOLFDWLRQ�IRU�D�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ��
RU�VXEPLW�D�QHZ�DSSOLFDWLRQ�IRU�DQ�)LQDO�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ�WKDW�
FRQIRUPV�WR�WKH�DSSURYHG�&RQFHSWXDO�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ��

�
�I��0RGLILFDWLRQV��0RGLILFDWLRQV�WR�D�GHYHORSPHQW�SODQ�PD\�EH�DFFRPSOLVKHG�WKURXJK�WKH�
ILQDO�GHYHORSPHQW�SODQ�SURFHVV��DV�ORQJ�DV�WKH�PRGLILFDWLRQV�DUH�LQ�VXEVWDQWLDO�
FRQIRUPDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�DSSURYHG�GHYHORSPHQW�SODQ�DV�GHWHUPLQHG�E\�WKH�GLUHFWRU��
0RGLILFDWLRQV�WKDW�DUH�QRW�LQ�VXEVWDQWLDO�FRQIRUPDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�GHYHORSPHQW�SODQ�UHTXLUH�
DQ�DSSOLFDWLRQ�IRU�DSSURYDO�IRU�D�QHZ�GHYHORSPHQW�SODQ��ZKLFK�VKDOO�EH�SURFHVVHG�
WKURXJK�WKH�SXEOLF�UHYLHZ�SURFHVV��VHH�VHFWLRQ���������7KH�GLUHFWRU�VKDOO�KDYH�IXOO�
GLVFUHWLRQ�WR�GHWHUPLQH�WKH�VXEPLWWDO�UHTXLUHPHQWV�DQG�UHYLHZ�SURFHVV�IRU�DOO�SURSRVHG�
DPHQGPHQWV���
�2UG��1R���������������������2UG��1R���������������������
�

�
6(&7,21���

�
1HZ�ODQJXDJH�LQ�EROG�DQG�ROG�ODQJXDJH�LQ�VWULNHWKURXJK�

�
6HF��������'HYHORSPHQW�5HYLHZ��

� �

���� 
���



� �

7DEOH�������5HYLHZ�3URFHGXUHV�7DEOH�
;� 5HTXLUHG�

QRWLFH�
&8� &DOO�8S� 3&� 3ODQQLQJ�&RPPLVVLRQ� 7$&� 7HFKQLFDO�DGYLVRU\�FRPPLWWHH�

$� $SSHDO�
ERG\�

'LU� 'LUHFWRU�RI�3ODQQL QJ�DQ G�
&RPPXQLW\�'HYHORSPHQW�

38'� 3ODQQHG�8QLW�'HYHORSPHQW� ���� $Q�H[WU D�U HYLHZ�WKDW� PD\�EH�U HTXLUHG�E\ �WKH�
'LUHFWRU�RU�UHTXHVWHG�E\�WKH�DSSOLFDQW�

%2$� %RDUG�R I�
$GMXVWPHQW�

'0� 'HFLVLRQ�0DNHU� 5� 5HYLHZLQJ�ERG\� ��!� 3XEOLF�KHDULQJ�

&&� &LW\�
&RXQFLO�

+3&� +LVWRULF�3U HVHUYDWLRQ�
&RPPLVVLRQ�

632� 6XUURXQGLQJ�SURSHUW\�RZQHU� ^�`� &RQVHQW�DJHQGD�

�
5HTXLUHPHQWV�IRU�DOO�DSSOLFDWLRQV�
���$�FRPSOHWH�VXEPLWWDO�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�VXEVHFWLRQV��G��DQG��I��RI�6HFWLRQ�������LV�UHTXLUHG�SULRU�WR�UHYLHZ��
���$GGLWLRQDO�7HFKQLFDO�VXEPLWWDOV����'XU LQJ�WKH� SURFHVVLQJ�RI�D�FRPSOHWH�DSSOLFDWLRQ��L I�WKH�FLW\ �RU�DQ\�UHYLHZ�DJHQF\�LGHQWLI LHV�DQ\�DGGLWLRQDO� PDWHULDOV�WKDW�DUH �
QHHGHG�WR�DFFXUDWHO\�HYDOXDWH�WKH�SRWHQWLDO�LPSDFWV�RI�WKH�SURSRVHG�DSSOLFDWLRQ�WKH�DGGLWLRQDO�PDWHULDOV�ZLOO�EH�SURYLGHG�,Q�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�VXEVHFWLRQ��J���RI�6HFWLRQ�
������
���%XUGHQ�RI�SURRI��7KH�DSSOLFDQW�IRU�GHYHORSPHQW�DSSURYDO�VKDOO�EHDU �WKH�EXUGHQ�RI�SUHVHQWLQJ�VXIILFLHQW�FRPSHWHQW�HYLGHQFH�WR�VXSSRU W�WKH�VWDQGDUGV�IRU�DSSURYDO�
VHW�IRUWK�E\�WKLV�DUWLFOH��
�
5HYLHZ�3URFHGXUHV�

7\SHV�RI�$SSOLFDWLRQV� 3XEOLF�1RWLFH�5HTXLUHPHQWV� $GPLQ�5HYLHZ� 3XEOLF�5HYLHZ�
� 632�1RWLFH�����

���F���
� �

$SSOL�
FDWLRQ�

3XEOLF�
KHDULQJ�
�ILQDO�

GHFLVLRQ�

3RVW� 3XEOLVK� 0LQHUDO�
5LJKWV�

3UH�
VXEPLWWDO� 7$&� 'LU� +3&� 3&� %2$� &&�

�

)LQDO�
'RFXPHQW�

&RPPXQLW\�SODQ�
ODQG�XVH� PDS�
DPHQGPHQW�������
����

;� ;� � ;� � ;� �5�� � � �5!� � � 5HVROXWLRQ�

3UH�DSSOLFDWLRQ�
UHYLHZ����������� ;� ;� ;� ;� ;� ;� �5�� � � ��5!�� � ��5!�� /HWWHU�

&'&�WH[W�
DPHQGPHQWV�������
����

� � � ;� � ;� �5�� � ��5!�� �5!� ��5!�� �'0!� 2UGLQDQFH�

2IILFLDO�= RQLQJ�
PDS�D PHQGPHQW� ���
�������

;� ;� ;� ;� ;� ;� 5� � � �5!� �
�'0!

2UGLQDQFH�

5HJXODWLQJ�3ODQV�� ��
������� ;� ;� ;� ;� ;� ;� 5� � � �5!� � �'0! $SSURYDO�

/HWWHU�
$QQH[DWLRQV�� ��� ��
���� ;� ;� ;� ;� ;� ;� 5� � � �5!� � �'0! 2UGLQDQFH�

8VH�ZLWK�F ULWHULD� ���
������� � � � � � � � '0� � � � $� 6LJQHG�

IRUP�
'HYHORSPHQW�SODQ�
���������� ;� ;� ;� ;� ;� ;� 5� � ��5!�� �5!� � ^'0`� $SSURYDO�

OHWWHU�
'HYHORSPHQW�3O DQ�
ZLWK�38'�����������
	��������

;� ;� ;� ;� ;� ;� 5� � ��5!�� �5!� �
�'0! $SSURYDO�

OHWWHU�
38'�±� PLQRU�
DPHQGPHQW� ;� ;� ;� ;� � � �5�� '0� � � � � $SSURYDO�

OHWWHU�
)LQDO�GHYHORS PHQW�
SODQ��)'3� ��� �� ��
����

;� ;� ;� ;� ;� ;� 5� � ��5!�� �5!� � �'0!� 6LJQHG�
)'3�

0LQRU�DGMXVWP HQW�
���������� � ;� ;� ;� � � �5�� '0� � � � $� 6HH����

���I��
9DULDQFH����������� ;� ;� ;� ;� � ;� �5�� � � � �'0!� $� %OGJ�

3HUPLW�
:DWHUERG\�VHWEDFN�
YDULDQFH����������� � ;� ;� ;� � ;� �5�� � � �5!� � ^'0`� %OGJ�

3HUPLW�
)ORRGSODLQ�
GHYHORSPHQW�SHU PLW�
����������

� � � � � � �5�� '0� � � � $� 3HUPLW�

:ULWWHQ�
LQWHUSUHWDWLRQ����� ��
����

� � � � � � � � � � � $� /HWWHU�

0DVWHU�VLJQ�SODQ� ���
������� � � � � � � �5�� '0� � � � $� $SSURYDO�

OHWWHU�
6LJQ�SHUP LW�� ��� ��
���� � � � � � � �5�� '0� � � � $� 3HUPLW�

&KDQJH�RI� XVH�� ��
������� ;� ;� ;� ;� � � � '0� � � � $� 6LJQHG�

IRUP�
0LQRU�H[WHU LRU�
PRGLILFDWLRQ�� �����
����

� ;� ;� ;� � ;� �5�� '0� � � � &8� $SSURYDO�
OHWWHU�

9DFDWLRQ�+RP H�
5HQWDO�3HUPLW�������
����

� � ;� ;� � � � '0� � � � $� /LFHQVH�

$GPLQLVWUDWLYH�)'3�
���������� � ;� ;� ;� ;� ;� �5�� '0� � &8� � &8� $SSURYDO�

OHWWHU�
7HOHFRPPXQLFDWLRQ�
)DFLOLW\���� ���
����J���

� ;� ;� ;� � ;� �5�� '0� � ��5!�� � ��5!�� $SSURYDO�
OHWWHU�

QG
�8
VH
�6
LWH
�'
HY
HO
RS
P
HQ
W�

% LOGL 3 LW %OG

���� 
���



�

� �
3UHOLPLQDU\�SODW ����
������� ;� ;� ;� ;� ;� ;� 5� � � � � �'0! $SSURYDO�

OHWWHU�
3UHOLPLQDU\�SODW�38'�
���������	��������� � � � � � ;� � � � � � �'0! $SSURYDO�

OHWWHU�
)LQDO�SODW����������� � ;� ;� ;� ;� � �5�� '0� � � � &8� 3ODW�
/RW�OLQH�DGMXVWPHQW����
������� � � � � � � �5�� '0� � � � $� 3ODW�

6X
EG
LY
LV
LR
Q�

/RW�OLQH�HOL PLQDWLRQ�
���������� � � � � � � �5�� '0� � � � $� 3ODW�

6(&7,21���
�

1HZ�ODQJXDJH�LQ�EROG�DQG�ROG�ODQJXDJH�LQ�VWULNHWKURXJK�

�
6HF���������3UH�DSSOLFDWLRQ�UHYLHZ���
�
�D��3XUSRVH��7KH�SXUSRVH�RI�WKH�SUH�DSSOLFDWLRQ�UHYLHZ�LV�JHQHUDOO\�WR�SURYLGH�
LQIRUPDWLRQ�WR�SRWHQWLDO�DSSOLFDQWV�EHIRUH�VXEVWDQWLDO�FRPPLWPHQWV�RI�WLPH�DQG�PRQH\�
DUH�PDGH�LQ�FRQQHFWLRQ�ZLWK�WKH�SURSRVHG�GHYHORSPHQW��7KH�SUH�DSSOLFDWLRQ�UHYLHZ�VHHNV�
WR�DVVLVW�RU�DLG�WKH�DSSOLFDQW�WR��
�
�� ���� ,GHQWLI\�WKH�QHFHVVDU\�PDWHULDOV�IRU�WKH�VXEPLWWDO�SDFNDJH�WKDW�WKH�

DSSOLFDQW�ZLOO�EH�UHTXLUHG�WR�SUHSDUH��
�
�� ���� ,GHQWLI\�DQG�FRRUGLQDWH�WKH�UHTXLUHG�SURFHGXUHV�IRU�UHYLHZ�DQG�DSSURYDO��
�
�� ���� ,GHQWLI\�WKH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�DQG�VWDQGDUGV�WKDW�PD\�DSSO\�WR�WKH�VSHFLILF�

SURMHFW��
�
�� ���� ,GHQWLI\�SUREDEOH�UHIHUUDO�DQG�UHYLHZ�DJHQFLHV�ZLWKLQ�WKH�7$&�DQG�RWKHUV�

LI�QHFHVVDU\��
�
�� ���� 2EWDLQ�SUHOLPLQDU\�IHHGEDFN�IURP�UHYLHZ�DJHQFLHV�DV�QHFHVVDU\��DQG�
�
�� ���� ,GHQWLI\�RWKHU�SRVVLEOH�LVVXHV�WKDW�PD\�DULVH�XQGHU�WKLV�&'&���
�
�E��$SSOLFDELOLW\��3UH�DSSOLFDWLRQ�UHYLHZ�ZLWK�SODQQLQJ�FRPPLVVLRQ�DQG�RU�FLW\�FRXQFLO�
PD\�EH�UHTXHVWHG�E\�WKH�DSSOLFDQW���
�
�F��6XEPLWWDO�UHTXLUHPHQWV��6XEPLWWDO�UHTXLUHPHQWV�DUH�VHW�IRUWK�LQ�IRUPV�PDLQWDLQHG�E\�
WKH�GLUHFWRU���
�
�G��6FRSH�DQG�HIIHFW�RI�UHYLHZ��
�
�� ���� 7KH�SULPDU\�LVVXHV�DQG�LQIRUPDWLRQ�WR�EH�GLVFXVVHG�DW�WKH�SUH�DSSOLFDWLRQ�

UHYLHZ�DUH�WKRVH�OLVWHG�LQ�VXEVHFWLRQ��D���
�
�� ���� 3UH�DSSOLFDWLRQV�ZLOO�EH�UHYLHZHG�E\�3ODQQLQJ�6WDII�RU�7$&�RU�ERWK��

DV�GHFLGHG�E\�WKH�DSSOLFDQW���3UH�DSSOLFDWLRQV�ZLOO�QRW�EH�UHYLHZHG�E\�
3ODQQLQJ�&RPPLVVLRQ�RU�&LW\�&RXQFLO���&RPPHQWV�DQG�RSLQLRQV�RIIHUHG�

� �

���� 
��	



E\�WKH�SODQQLQJ�FRPPLVVLRQ�RU�FLW\�FRXQFLO�GXULQJ�D�SUH�DSSOLFDWLRQ�
UHYLHZ�DUH�DGYLVRU\�RQO\��DQG�ZLOO�QRW�DIIHFW�WKHLU�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�RI�IRUPDO�
GHYHORSPHQW�DSSOLFDWLRQV�ZKHQ�WKH\�RFFXU��

�
�� ���� (IIHFW�RI�UHYLHZ��7KHUH�VKDOO�EH�QR�UHDO�RU�LPSOLHG�DSSURYDO�RU�GHQLDO�RI�DQ�

DSSOLFDWLRQ�DV�D�UHVXOW�RI�WKH�SUH�DSSOLFDWLRQ�UHYLHZ��7KH�SUH�DSSOLFDWLRQ�
UHYLHZ�LV�LQWHQGHG�WR�DVVLVW�DSSOLFDQWV�LQ�XQGHUVWDQGLQJ�FLW\�UHTXLUHPHQWV�
DQG�SURFHGXUHV��DV�ZHOO�DV�WR�LGHQWLI\�SRVVLEOH�LVVXHV�WKDW�FRXOG�GHOD\�
FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�RI�WKH�DSSOLFDWLRQ�LI�WKH\�DUH�QRW�LGHQWLILHG�HDUO\�LQ�WKH�
SURFHVV��6WDWHPHQWV�PDGH�E\�VWDII�PHPEHUV�GXULQJ�WKH�SUH�DSSOLFDWLRQ�
UHYLHZ�DUH�VWDWHPHQWV�RI�RSLQLRQ�DQG�DUH�QRW�LQWHQGHG�WR�HVWDEOLVK�ILQDO�
SRVLWLRQV�RU�FRQFOXVLRQV�RQ�WKH�SDUW�RI�WKH�FLW\���

�2UG��1R���������������������
�

6(&7,21���
�
1HZ�ODQJXDJH�LQ�EROG�DQG�ROG�ODQJXDJH�LQ�VWULNHWKURXJK�
�
6HFWLRQ���������0LQRU�([WHULRU�0RGLILFDWLRQ�
�
�E��$SSOLFDELOLW\��$SSURYDO�RI�D�PLQRU�H[WHUL RU�PRGLILFDWLRQ�VKDOO�EH�UHTXLUHG�IRU�DQ\�
FKDQJHV�WR�WKH�H[WHULRU�RI�DQ�H[LVWLQJ�PXOWL�IDPLO\�RU�FRPPHUFLDO�VWUXFWXUH�LQFOXGLQJ��
�
�� ���� &KDQJHV�RI�PDWHULDOV��
�
�� ���� 6LJQLILFDQW�FKDQJHV�LQ�SULPDU\�RU�VHFRQGDU\�FRORU��DQG��
�
�� ���� 6LJQLILFDQW�FKDQJHV�LQ�ZLQGRZ�RU�GRRU�ORFDWLRQV�RU�VL]LQJ���
�

([DPSOHV�RI�WKH�DERYH�LQFOXGH�FKD QJH�RI�FRORU�WR�D�P XOWL�IDPLO\�RU�
FRPPHUFLDO�EXLOGLQJ�IURP�ZKLWH�WR�EULJKW�E OXH��WKH�FKDQJH�RI�PDWHULDOV�RQ�
D�P XOWL�IDPLO\�R U�FRPP HUFLDO�EXLOG LQJ�IURP �ZRRG�WR�YLQ\O�VLG LQJ�RU�
DGGLQJ�DGGLWLRQDO�HQWU\ZD\V�WR�D�UHWDLO�EXLOGLQJ��

�
���� $SSURYDO�RI�D�P LQRU�H[WHULRU�P RGLILFDWLRQ�VKDOO�DOVR�EH�UHT XLUHG�IRU�DQ \�

EXLOGLQJ�DGGLWLRQ�RU�QHZ�DFFHVVRU\�VWUXFWXUH �WKDW�LQYROYHV�OHVV�WKDQ�RQH�
WKRXVDQG�ILYH�KXQGUHG���������VTXDUH�IHHW�RI�DGGLWLRQDO�IORRU�DUHD���

�
�

6(&7,21���
�
E�� 1HZ�ODQJXDJH�DQG�IHHV�LQ�EROG�DQG�ROG�ODQJXDJH�LQ�VWULNHWKURXJK��
�

� ��

���� 
��




DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING SERVICES 
DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION FEES 

Effective:  November 16, 2010 
�
All required fees include processing and publication costs and shall be paid 
in full at the time of application for approval of the development 
application.  The staff or Planning Commission shall not consider a 
development application unless it is deemed complete with the required 
fee paid in full.  No fees are refundable for any processing or partial 
processing of a development application.  Fees are not required for City-
initiated applications. 
�
�
�����Pre-Application Review 

Staff Review Only……………………………………………………………………………………………………..… No Charge 
Staff Review and TAC 
Review……………………………………………………………………………………………… $100 
Staff Review, TAC Review, and  
Planning Commission and/or City Council 
Review…………………………………….………………….… $1,000 

�
Note:  Pre-Applications that are reviewed by Staff, TAC, Planning Commission and 
City Council will receive a credit of $500 of the $1000 pre-application fee toward a 
formal development application for the same project at the time that the formal 
development application is submitted. 

�
(2) Community Plan Land Use Amendment……………………………………………………………..… $3,500 
 
(3) Community Development Code Text Amendment……………………………………………... $3,500 
 
(4) Annexation...……………………………………………………………………………………………….….… $2,000 deposit, 

 with final cost dependent upon processing time @ $50/hour 
 
(5) Official Zoning Map Amendment……………………………………………………………………………. $2,000 
 
(6) Development Plan 

Conditional Use review only – No external modifications or development 
review………………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………..…$500 

 
All other Development Plans  
Base 
Fee…………………………………………………………………………………………………….……………………….. $1,000 
 
With Conditional Use…………………………………………………………………………………………. $500 additional 
With Structure without variations……………………………………………………………………..$500 additional 

� ��

���� 
���



With Structure with 1 variation………………………………………………………………………….$500 additional 
With Structure with 2 variations…………………………………………………………………………$750 additional 

 
PUD…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..$2,000 additional  

        (A PUD does not pay any of the above additional fees.) 
 

For each 1,000 square feet of gross floor area in the development  
over 5,000 sf……………………………………………………………………………………………..………………. $50/1,000 sf 

         (This additional fee does apply to a PUD.) 
 

(7) Final Development Plan 
If the project has completed or required review as a Development 
Plan.…………………… $1,000 
If the project has not completed or required review as a Development 
Plan………………$1,500 
 
For each 1,000 square feet of gross floor area in the development over 
5,000sf………………………………..………………………………………………………………………..$50/1,000 sf 
 

(8) Administrative Final Development 
Plan…………………………….…………………………………$1,000 

For each 1,000 square feet of gross floor area in the development over 
5,000sf………………………………..……………………………………………
…………………………..$50/1,000 sf 

 
(9) Final Development Plan Vesting Extension 
Review……………………………..………………$500 
 
(10)Community Housing Plan 
Amendment……………………………………………………….……….…..$500 

No fee for Community Housing Plans submitted as part of a Development 
Plan or Final Development Plan 
 

(11) Preliminary Plat 
Base Fees: 
1 to 6 Lots or Units 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………… $1,000 
7 to 15 Lots or Units 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………. $1,500 
16+ Lots or Units…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. $2,000 
Vacation of Right-of-
Way………………………………………………………….………………………………………… $800 
 
One Variation………………………………………………………………………………………………………$500 additional 
Two Variations……………………………………………………………………………………………………..$750 additional 
Three Variations……………………………………………………………………………………………….$1,000 
additional 

� ��

���� 
���



Four Variations………………………………………………………………………………………………….$1,250 
additional 

 
(12) Final Plat 

1 to 3 Lots or 
Units………..……………………………………………………………………………………………………….. $500 
4 to 6 Lots or Units 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………….. $700 
7 to 15 Lots or Units …………………………………………………………………………………… ………………………$1,000 
16+ Lots or Units  
………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… $1,200 
Easement 
Vacation………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. $400 

 
(13) Use with Criteria 

If reviewed concurrent with a Building Permit application,  
development application, or development………………………………. …………………………… No Charge 
If reviewed prior to the Building Permit application,  
development application or 
development..…………………………………....….……………………………….. $50 
 

(14) Change of 
Use...………………………………………………………………...……………………………………………….. $100 
 
(15) Lot Line Adjustment.…………………………………………………………….……………………………………….. $200 
 
(16) Lot Line Elimination….………………………………………………………….……………………………………….. $200 
 
(17) Floodplain Development Permit………………………………………………………………………………….. $50 
 
(18) Master Sign 
Plan.………………………………………………………………………………………………………………$100 
 
(19) Sign 
Permit.……………………………………………………………………………………….…………………………………$50 
 
(20) Temporary 
Banner...…………………………………………………………….…………………………………………… $25 
 
(21) Variance 

Single-Family/Duplex 
Structure………………………………………………………………………………………….. $500 
Floodplain 
Variance……………………………………………………………………………………………………………… $500 
Sign 
Variance………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… $250 

 
 
(22) Waterbody Setback..……………………………………………………………………………………………………. $1,000 

� ��

���� 
���



 
(23) Minor Adjustment 

For a Single-Family or Duplex Structures or Land 
Use………………………………………………………… $75 
For all Other Structure Types or Land Uses 
………………………………………………………………………… $150 

 
(24) Minor Exterior Modification…………………………………………………….…………………………………… $500 
 
(25) Utility Easement Encroachment………………………………………………………………………………… $200 
 
(26) Wireless Communications Facility 

Minor…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
…… $500 
Major…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
… $2,500 

 
(27) Floodplain Map Revisions..………………………………………………………….……………………………. $1,000 
 
(28) Parking Fee-in-Lieu 

1 or more parking spaces ……………………..……………………………………………………….$25,000 
per space 
 

(29) After-the-Fact Development Application…………………………. Double the applicable fee 
�
(30) Research 

�
First three (3) hours……………………………………………………………………………………………………… No charge 
Each additional hour………………………………………………………………………………………………………$50/hour 

�
Note:  Research requests shall be submitted in writing to the Director of Planning 
Services for review and approval prior to the initiation of any staff research.  The 
Director shall determine if the requested research is appropriate based on the 
nature of the research requested, the amount of research requested, and available 
staff time. 

�
Research is defined as the interpretation of documents in the planning files of the 
City.  By way of example and not limitation, a party may request research as to the 
history of the zoning for a particular parcel or for the history and status of a 
planning approval for a specific parcel.  This section is not intended to replace or 
nullify a citizen's rights under the Open Records Act to inspect and copy a 
specifically described document or documents or file. 

�
(31) Minor Amendment to an Approved PUD………………………………………………………………… $250 

�
(32) Appeal of Administrative 
Decision……………………………………………………………………………$250�

�

� ��

���� 
���



(33) Request for Reconsideration of Condition(s) of Approval 
Administrative 
Review………………..……………………………………………………………………………………….. $250 
Public 
Review……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… $1,000 

 
Note:� � The request for reconsideration shall follow the same review process 
(administrative or public review) under which the original development permit 
application was reviewed and approved. 
�

(34) Revocable 
Permit…………………………………………………….………………………………………………………… $75�

The required fee includes processing and publication costs and shall be paid in full 
at the time of application for approval of the development application.  The staff 
or Planning Commission shall not consider a development application unless it is 
deemed complete with the required fee paid in full.  No fees are refundable for any 
processing or partial processing of a development application.  Fees are not 
required for City-initiated applications. 

�
(35) Vacation Home Rentals  
 Application 

Fee…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….$500 
 Additional Parking Inspection 

Fee…………………………………………………………….………………………..$100 
 Annual Renewal fee 

……………………………………………………………………………………………………….……..$50 
�
� �

�
�
�
�
�
�

6(&7,21���
�
$OO�RUGLQDQFHV�KHUHWRIRUH�SDVVHG�DQG�DGRSWHG�E\�WKH�&LW\�&RXQFLO�RI�WKH�&LW\�RI�6WHDPERDW�
6SULQJV��&RORUDGR��DUH�KHUHE\�UHSHDOHG�WR�WKH�H[WHQW�WKDW�VDLG�RUGLQDQFHV��RU�SDUWV��WKHUHRI��
DUH�LQ�FRQIOLFW�KHUHZLWK�� �
�

6(&7,21���
�
,I�DQ\�VHFWLRQ��VXEVHFWLRQ��FODXVH��SKUDVH�RU�SURYLVLRQ�RI�WKLV�2UGLQDQFH�LV��RU�WKH�DSSOLFDWLRQ�
WKHUHRI�WR�DQ\�SH UVRQ�RU�FLUFXPVWDQFH��VKDOO�WR�DQ\�H[WHQW��EH� KHOG�E\�D�F RXUW�RI�FRPSH WHQW�
MXULVGLFWLRQ�WR�EH�LQYDOLG��YRLG�RU�XQFRQVWLWXWLRQDO��WKH�UH PDLQLQJ�VHFWLRQV��VXEVHFWLRQV��
FODXVHV��SKUDVHV�DQG�SURYLVLRQV�RI�WKLV�2UGLQDQFH��RU�WKH�DSSOLFDWLRQ�WKHUHRI�WR�DQ\�SHUVRQ�RU�
FLUFXPVWDQFH��VKDOO�UHPDLQ�LQ �I XOO�IRUFH�DQG�VKDOO�LQ�QR�ZD \�EH�D IIHFWHG��L PSDLUHG�RU�
LQYDOLGDWHG��

� ��

���� 
���



� ��

�
6(&7,21���

�
7KH�&LW\�&RXQFLO�KHUHE\�ILQGV��GHWHUPLQHV�DQG�GHFODUHV�WKDW�WKLV�2UGLQDQFH�LV�QHFHVVDU\�IRU�
WKH�LPPHGLDWH�SUHVHUYDWLRQ�RI�WKH�SXEOLF�SHDFH��KHDOWK�DQG�VDIHW\��
�

6(&7,21���
�

7KLV�2UGLQDQFH�VKDOO�WDNH�HIIHFW�LPPHGLDWHO\�XSRQ�WKH�H[SLUDW LRQ�RI�ILYH�� ���GD\V�IURP�DQG�
DIWHU�LWV�SXEOLFDWLRQ�IROORZLQJ�ILQDO�SDVVDJH��DV�SURYLGHG�LQ�6HFWLRQ������K��RI�WKH�6WHDPERDW�
6SULQJV�+RPH�5XOH�&KDUWHU���
�
�
,1752'8&('��5($'��$1' �25'(5('�38%/,6+(' ��DV�SU RYLGHG�E\�OD Z��E\�WK H�
&LW\�&R XQFLO�R I�WKH �&L W\�R I�6WHD PERDW�6S ULQJV��D W�LWV �UHJXO DU�PH HWLQJ�KHO G�RQ�WKH ��������
BBBBBB�GD\�RI�BBBBBBBBBBBBBB��������
�
�

� � � � � �
�BBBBBBBBBBBBBBB BBBBBBBBBBBBBB�

� � � � � %DUN�.RXQRYVN\��3UHVLGHQW�
�����6WH DPERDW�6SULQJV�&LW\�&RXQFLO�
�
$77(67��
�
�
BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�
-XOLH�)UDQNOLQ��&LW\�&OHUN����
� � � � � � � �

����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
),1$//<�5($'��3$66 ('�$1'�$33529('� WKLVBBBBBGD\�RI �BBBBBBBBBBBBBB���
������
�
�
� � � � � � � � � � � �
�����BBBBBBBBBB BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�
� � � � � %DUN�.RXQRYVN\��3UHVLGHQW�
�����6WH DPERDW�6SULQJV�&LW\�&RXQFLO�
�
�
$77(67��
�
�
BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�
-XOLH�)UDQNOLQ��&LW\�&OHUN����

���� 
���



�
'(3$570(17�2)�3/$11,1*�	�&20081,7<�'(9(/230(17�

������WK�675((7�
3�2��%2;��������

67($0%2$7�635,1*6��&2/25$'2�������
���������������

�����������

�
68%0,77$/�5(48,5(0(176�)250�

�
7KH�I ROORZLQJ�VXEPL WWDO�U HTXLUHPHQWV�P XVW�DFFRP SDQ\�D�FRPSO HWHG�$SSOL FDWLRQ�
)RUP���$OO�LWHP V�EHO RZ�PXVW�E H�VX EPLWWHG�SULRU�W R�U HYLHZ�RI�D�SU RSRVHG�
GHYHORSPHQW��$�VLJQDWXUH�IURP �D�UHSUHVHQWDWLYH�RI�WKH� DSSURSULDWH�GHSD UWPHQW�LV�
UHTXLUHG�W R�Z DLYH�DQ\ �VXEPLW WDO�UHTXLU HPHQW��, QFRPSOHWH�DSSOL FDWLRQV�Z LWKRXW�D�
ZDLYHU�VLJQDWXUH�ZLOO�QRW�EH�DFFHSWHG�IRU�UHYLHZ��
�
�

&21&(378$/�'(9(/230(17�3/$1�
�
$SSURYDO�RI�WKH�&RQFHSWXDO�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ�VKDOO�EH�GHILQHG�DV�IROORZV��
�
$�GHYHORSPHQW�SODQ��SURFHVVHG� DV�D�&RQFHSWXDO �'HYHORSPHQW� 3ODQ��V KDOO�UHV XOW�LQ�W KH�
DSSURYDO�RI �RQO\�W KRVH�DV SHFWV�DQG�TXDOLW LHV� RI�W KH�SU RSRVHG�GHY HORSPHQW�VSHFL ILFDOO\�
LGHQWLILHG�LQ�WKH�DSSOLFDWLRQ�DQG�LQFOXGHG�WKH�&LW\�&RXQFLO�PRWLRQ�DSSURYLQJ�WKH�&RQFHSWXDO�
'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ�� �7KH�&RQFHSWXDO�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ�SURF HVV�PD\�EH �XVHG�WR�REWDLQ�
DSSURYDO�RI�VLWH�GHVLJQ��DFFHVV��DQG�EXLOGLQJ�GHVLJQ��LQFOXGLQJ�KHLJKW�DQG�PDVVLQJ��
��
7KH�DSSOL FDQW�PD\�SUHVHQW�LQIR UPDWLRQ�UHO DWLQJ� WR�RWKHU�DVSHFWV� RI�WKH�SURSRVHG�
GHYHORSPHQW�LQFO XGLQJ��EXW�QRW�OL PLWHG�WR ��JUDGLQJ�DQG�GUDLQDJH ��XW LOLWLHV��EXLOGLQJ�
IHQHVWUDWLRQ��DQG�ODQGVFDSLQJ ���7KHVH�DVSHFWV�VKRXOG�EH �GHSLFWHG�DQG�ODEHOHG�DV�
LOOXVWUDWLYH�RQO\�� �5HJDUGO HVV�RI�WKH�ZKHWKH U�WKHVH�DVSHFWV�DUH�GHSL FWHG�DQG�ODEHOHG�DV�
LOOXVWUDWLYH��WKH�&L W\�ZLOO�UHYLHZ�WKHP�DV�VXFK�D QG�D�&RQFHSWXDO�'H YHORSPHQW�3ODQ�
DSSURYDO�VKDOO�QRW�FRQYH\�DQ\�DSSURYDO �RU�UHSUHVHQWDWLRQ�E\�WKH�&L W\�DV�WR�WKH�FRPSOLDQFH�
RI�WKHVH�DVSHFWV�ZLWK�WKH�&RPPXQLW\�'HYHORSPHQW�&RGH��
��
$OO�GHYHORSPHQW�DSSURYHG�YLD�WKH�&RQFHSWXDO�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ�SURFHVV�VKDOO�EH�UHTXLUHG�
WR�REWDLQ�)LQDO�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ�DSSURYDO���7KH�)LQDO�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ�DSSOLFDWLRQ�VKDOO�
VXEVWDQWLDOO\�FRQIRUP�WR�WKH�DSSURYHG�&RQFHSWXDO�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ���$VSHFWV�RI�WKH�)LQDO�
'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ�QRW�DSSU RYHG�DV�SDUW�RI� WKH�&RQF HSWXDO�'HY HORSPHQW�3ODQ�VKDOO�
FRQIRUP�WR�DOO�SU RYLVLRQV�RI� WKH�&'&���,Q�WKH�HYHQW�DQ�DSSOLFDWLRQ�IRU�D�)LQDO�'HYHORSPHQW�
3ODQ�GRHV�QRW�FRQIRUP�WR�WKH�DSSURYHG�&RQFHSWXDO�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ�WKH�DSSOLFDWLRQ�VKDOO�
EH�GHQLHG�DQG�WKH�GHYHO RSHU�VKDOO�HL WKHU� DPHQG�WKH�& RQFHSWXDO�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ��
VXEPLW�D�QHZ�DSSOLFDWLRQ�IRU�D�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ��RU�VXEPLW�D�QHZ�DSSOLFDWLRQ�IRU�DQ�)LQDO�
'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ�WKDW�FRQIRUPV�WR�WKH�DSSURYHG�&RQFHSWXDO�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ��
�
BBBBBB�$SSOLFDWLRQ���$�FRPSOHWHG�DSSOLFDWLRQ�IRUP�DV�SURYLGHG�E\�WKH�'LUHFWRU��
�
BBBBBB�)HH��7KH�DSSURSULDWH�IHH�DV�DGRSWHG�E\�&LW\�RI�6WHDPERDW�6SULQJV�5HVROXWLRQ��
�

$WWDFKPHQW�� ���� 
���



�

3DJH���RI���

BBBBBB�3URRI�RI�2ZQHUVKLS���3URRI�RI�RZQHUVKLS�LQ�WKH�IRUP�RI�D�5RXW W�&RXQW\�$VVHVVRU�SULQWRXW�
LQ�FRQMXQFWLRQ�ZLWK�D�QRWDUL]HG�DIILGDYLW�VWDWLQJ�WKH�RZQHU�RI�WKH�SURSHUW\���:KHUH�WKH�RZQHU�
RI�WKH�SURSHUW\�LV�DQ�HQWLW\��LW�PXVW�EH�VWDWHG�ZKR�WKH�RZQHUV�PDQDJHUV�RI�WKH�HQWLW\�DUH�L�H��
RIILFHUV�� GLUHFWRUV�DQ G�V KDUHKROGHUV�RI�FRUSR UDWLRQV�� PDQDJHUV�D QG� PHPEHUV�RI� //&V��
JHQHUDO�DQG�OLPLWHG�SDUWQHUV�IRU�OLPLWHG�SDUWQHUVKLS��SDUWQHUV�LQ�SDUWQHUVKLSV���,Q�LQVWDQFHV�
ZKHUH�WKH�DSSOLFDQW�LV�QRW�WKH�RZQHU�RI�WKH�SURSHUW\��DQ�DXWKRUL]DWLRQ�IURP�WKH�RZQHU�IRU�WKH�
QRQ�RZQHU�DSS OLFDQW� WR� SURFHHG�PXVW � EH� LQFOXGHG�ZLW K�WK H� DERYH�UHIHUHQFHG�SUR RI�RI �
RZQHUVKLS���6 XEVHTXHQW�D SSOLFDWLRQV�I RU� WKH�VDPH �GHYHORSPHQW�SU RSRVDO�PD\�VXEP LW�D �
VLJQHG�DI ILGDYLW��W RJHWKHU� ZLWK�W KH�S UHYLRXV�VX EPLWWHG�SUR RI�RI �RZ QHUVKLS��VLJQ LI\LQJ�
RZQHUVKLS�KDV�QRW�EHHQ�DOWHUHG�LQ�DQ\�PDQQHU��

�
BBBBBB� 3XEOLF�1RWLF H�� ��1H ZVSDSHU�3XEO LFDWLRQ��632� 1RWLFH�� 0LQHUDO� 5LJKWV�1RW LILFDWLRQ� DQG�

3URSHUW\�3RVWLQJ��
�
BBBBBB&RQFHSWXDO� $SSURYDO�RI�6S HFLILF�&R GH�3UR YLVLRQV� ±�7KH�&RQF HSWXDO� 'HYHORSPHQW�3OD Q�

SURFHVV� DOORZV�D Q�D SSOLFDQW�WR� UHFHLYH�FR QFHSWXDO�D SSURYDO�RI�VS HFLILF� FRGH�SUR YLVLRQV���
:KHUH�DQ�DSSOLFDQW�LV�UHTXHVWLQJ�DSSURYDO�RI�D�VSHFLILF�FRGH�SURYLVLRQ�RU�D�YDULDQFH�WR�D�
SDUWLFXODU�S URYLVLRQ��WK H\� PXVW� SURYLGH� GHWDLOHG�LQI RUPDWLRQ�ZL WKLQ�W KH�DS SOLFDWLRQ�WR �
DGHTXDWHO\�DQDO\]H�VXFK�UHTXHVWV����

�
7KH�DSSOLFDQW�LV�UHTXHVWLQJ�DSSURYDO�DQG�FRPSOLDQFH�UHYLHZ�ZLWK�WKH�IROORZLQJ�VWDQGDUGV�RI�
WKH�&'&��7KH�DSSOLFDWLRQ� PXVW�FOHDUO\�LQGLFDWH� ZKHWKHU�WKH� UHTXHVW�LV�IRU�FRQILU PDWLRQ�RI �
FRPSOLDQFH� RU� DSSURYDO�RI� YDULDQFH��: KHQ�D �Y DULDQFH�LV �UHTX HVWHG�WK H�D SSOLFDQW� VKDOO�
VXEPLW�DOO�QHFHVVDU\�LQIRUPDWLRQ�WR�DGHTXDWHO\�VXSSRUW�WKH�UHYLHZ� VXFK�YDULDQFH�� �SOHDVH�
FKHFN�DOO�WKDW�DSSO\���
�

67$1'$5'6� &RPSOLDQFH�
5HYLHZ��

9DULDQFH�
5HTXHVWHG�

'LPHQVLRQDO�6WDQGDUGV�������� � �
2SHQ�6SDFH� � �
/DQGVFDSLQJ� � �
3DUNLQJ���/RDGLQJ� � �
3HGHVWULDQ�&LUFXODWLRQ���6LGHZDONV���7UDLOV� � �
5HIXVH�0DQDJHPHQW� � �
6LWH�3ODQQLQJ��%XLOGLQJ�	�3DUNLQJ�2ULHQWDWLRQ� � �
6QRZ�6WRUDJH� � �
:DWHUERG\�6HWEDFNV� � �
%XLOGLQJ�0DVVLQJ��)RUP�	�9DULHW\� � �
5RRI�)RUP�	�)XQFWLRQ� � �
3XEOLF�6SDFHV���&RPPXQLW\�$PHQLWLHV� � �
$FFHVV�/RFDWLRQ���9HKLFXODU� � �
8VH� � �
2WKHU�� � �
�, WHPV� PDUNHG� ZLWK�D Q�DV WHULVN� GHQRWH�W KH� PLQLPXP�V XEPLWWDO�UHT XLUHPHQWV� IRU�
FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�WKURXJK�WKH�&RQFHSWXDO�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ�SURFHVV���
7KH�I ROORZLQJ�VW DQGDUGV�FDQ QRW�EH�DS SURYHG�WK URXJK�W KLV�SURF HVV�DQG� PXVW� EH�
DSSURYHG�WKURXJK�DQ�)'3��ILQDO�XWLOLWLHV��ILQDO�JUDGLQJ��ILQDO�GUDLQDJH��ILQDO�DUFKLWHFWXUH��
IHQHVWUDWLRQ�WUDQVSDUHQF\��PDWHULDOV��FRORU��DQG�PHFKDQLFDO�HTXLSPHQW�ORFDWLRQ����
�

��

���� 
���



�

3DJH���RI���

BBBBBB�&RQ FHSWXDO� 'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ ���$ �FRPS OHWH� &RQFHSWXDO�'HYH ORSPHQW� 3ODQ� ZLWK�W KH�
IROORZLQJ�IRUPDW�DQG�LQIRUPDWLRQ�VKDOO�EH�VXEPLWWHG��

�
)RUPDW���7KH�IRUPDW�RI�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQV�VKDOO�EH�LQLWLDOO\�VXEPLWWHG�DV�DQ�HQWLUHO\�OHJLEOH�
EOXHOLQH��QRW� OHVV�WKDQ���´�E\���´�VKHHW�VL]H��FDSDEOH�RI�UH SURGXFWLRQ��ZL WK�D�VFDOH�RI �QR�
OHVV�WKDQ�RQH�LQFK�HTXDOV�IRUW\�IHHW���´ ��¶��,I�PXOWLSOH�SDJHV�DUH�SURYLGHG��WKHUH�VKDOO�EH�DQ�
LQGH[� SODFHG�RQ � WKH�ILU VW�S DJH�IRU � UHIHUHQFH���7K H�VP DOOHVW�IR QW� WR�E H�X VHG� RQ� D�
'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ�LV�D�WHQ�SRLQW�����SW��HTXLYDOHQW���
�
:KHQ�D�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ�KDV�EHHQ�UHYLHZHG�DQG�DSSURYHG��WKH�DSSOLFDQW�VKDOO�SURYLGH�DQ�
HQWLUHO\�OHJLEOH�� UHSURGXFLEOH�FRS\�RI� VXFK�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ�DV�DSSURYHG�LQ�EO DFN� LQN�RU�
SKRWRJUDSKLF�UHSURGXFWLRQ�RQ�IRXU�PLO�WKLFNQHVV�P\ODU��
�
$� ODUJHU�RU�VPDOO HU� VFDOH�� GLIIHUHQW�SDS HU� VL]H��IRQ W� RU�PH GLXP�PD \�EH � XVHG�ZLWK�SUL RU�
ZULWWHQ�DSSURYDO�RI�WKH�'LUHFWRU��

�
���
BBBBBB�&RQWHQWV��$OO�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQV�VKDOO�FRQWDLQ�WKH�IROORZLQJ�LQIRUPDWLRQ�XQOHVV�VSHFLILFDOO\�

ZDLYHG�LQ�ZULWLQJ�E\�WKH�'LUHFWRU���7KH�DSSOLFDQW�LV�HQFRXUDJHG�WR�SURYLGH�DGGLWLRQDO�UHOHYDQW�
LQIRUPDWLRQ�� �7K H�FR QWHQWV�R I�W KH� 'HYHORSPHQW� 3ODQ�V XEPLWWDO�VK DOO� EH� GLYLGHG�LQ WR� WKH�
IROORZLQJ�IRXU�VHFWLRQV�DQG�FOHDUO\�ODEHOHG�DV�VXFK��7KLV�VKDOO�QRW�EH�FRQVWUXHG�WR�PHDQ�WKDW�
DOO�RI�WKH�LQIRUPDWLRQ�LQ�HDFK�VHFWLRQ�QHHGV�WR�EH�SURYLGHG�RQ�RQH�VKHHW�RI�SDSHU�EXW�UDWKHU�
WKDW�WKH�LQIRUPDWLRQ�EH�ORFDWHG�LQ�WKH�VDPH�FOHDUO\�ODEHOHG�VHFWLRQ�RI�WKH�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ��
7KH�PDWHULDOV�OLVWHG�LQ�6XEVHFWLRQV��$��DQG��%��EHORZ�VKDOO�QRW�EH�UHTXLUHG�IRU�DSSURYDO�RI�
GHYHORSPHQW�ZLWKLQ�DQ�H[LVWLQJ�38'�L I�WKH�PDWHULDOV�UHTXLUHG�ZHUH�SUHYLRXVO\�VXEPLWWHG�DV�
SDUW�RI�WKH�38'�DSSOLFDWLRQ��DQG�WKH�DSSOLFDQW�LV�SURSRVLQJ�GHYHORSPHQW�FRQVLVWHQW�ZLWK�WKH�
PDWHULDOV�VXEPLWWHG�DW�WKDW�WLPH��

��
BBBBBB� 6HFWLRQ�2Q H��&R YHU�6K HHW���$O O�RI�W KH�IROO RZLQJ�L QIRUPDWLRQ�L V�UHT XLUHG� DQG�VK DOO�E H�

FRQWDLQHG�ZLWKLQ�6HFWLRQ�2QH����
�
7LWOH���$�WLWOH�ZLWK�WKH�IROORZLQJ�ODQJXDJH��
�
&21&(378$/�'(9(/230(17�3/$1�
)RU�
�/HJDO�'HVFULSWLRQ��
DOVR�NQRZQ�DV�
�1DPH�RI�'HYHORSPHQW��
�6WUHHW�$GGUHVV��
�

,I�WKH�OHJDO�GHVFULSWLRQ�LV�WRR�O HQJWK\�IRU�WK H�WLW OH�EORFN��VXFK�OHJDO�GHVFULSWLRQ�VKDOO�
EH�FOHDUO\�ODEHOHG�DV�DQ�H[KLELW�DQG�LQFOXGHG�DV�SDUW�RI�WKH�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ��

�
BBBBBB���,QGH[���7KH�LQGH[�VKRXOG�OLVW�DOO�WKH�VHFWLRQV�DQG�SDJH�QXPEHUV�RI�WKH��
� ���'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ��

���
BBBBBB�9LFLQLW\�0DS��� $�YLFLQLW\�PDS�ZLWK�DQ�DUURZ� LQGLFDWLQJ�QRUWK�DW�D�VFDOH� RI�QRW�OHVV�

WKDQ�RQH�LQFK�HTXDOV�RQH�WKRXVDQG�IHHW���´ �����¶��ZLWK�WKH�SXEOLF�VWUHHW�V��FORVHVW�
WR�WKH�SURSHUW\�JUDSKLFDOO\�GHSLFWHG�DQG�FOHDUO\�ODEHOHG��

�
BBBBBB�6LJQDWXUH�%ORFNV���6LJQDWXUH�EORFNV�IRU�WKH�IROORZLQJ��

�

���� 
��	



�

3DJH���RI���

3URSHUW\�2ZQHU��1DPH��DGGUHVV�DQG�VLJQDWXUH���
$SSOLFDQW��1DPH��DGGUHVV�DQG�VLJQDWXUH�RQO\�LI�GLIIHUHQW�WKDQ�3URSHUW\�2ZQHU���
3HUVRQ�5HVSRQVLEOH�IRU�SUHSDUDWLRQ�RI�WKH �'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ��1DPH��DGGUHVV�DQG�
VLJQDWXUH���

�
BBBBBB�([SL UDWLRQ�'DWH�� �6W DWHPHQW�ZLWK�W KH� GDWH�RI� DSSURYDO�DQG�GDWH� RI�'HYHORSPHQW�

3ODQ�H[SLUDWLRQ��
�

BBBBBB� ([LVWLQJ� =RQLQJ��� ,GHQWLILFDWLRQ�RI �W KH�H [LVWLQJ�]R QLQJ��DQ G� SURSRVHG�] RQLQJ��L I�
DSSOLFDEOH�� DQG�D� GHVFULSWLRQ�RI �W KH�H [LVWLQJ� SULQFLSDO� DQG�D FFHVVRU\�XV HV�R I�W KH�
SURSHUW\��

�����
BBBBBB�7 DEOH��� $� WDEOH�OLVWL QJ�WK H� GLPHQVLRQDO�UH TXLUHPHQWV�R I�W KH� ]RQH� GLVWULFW� ZLWK� D�

FROXPQ�OLVWLQJ�WKH�FRUUHVSRQGLQJ�GDWD�IRU�WKH�SURSRVHG�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ���
�
�
�

67$1'$5'6� =21(�',675,& 7�
5(48,5(0(176�

'(9(/230(17�
3/$1�

/RW�$UHD� � �
/RW�&RYHUDJH� � �
%XLOGLQJ�*URVV�)OR RU�
$UHD�

� �

)ORRU�$UHD�5DWLR� � �
%XLOGLQJ�+HLJKW� � �
)URQW�6HWEDFN� � �
6LGH�6HWEDFN� � �
5HDU�6HWEDFN� � �
%XLOGLQJ�6HSDUDWLRQ� � �
8QLW�6L]H�V��LI�DSSOLFDEOH� � �
1XPEHU�RI�8QLWV� � �
3DUNLQJ�5HT��3URYLGHG� � �
3DYHG�$ UHD�6QRZ�
6WRUDJH�

� �

2WKHU�� � �
���
�

BBBBBB�3KDVLQJ���$�GHWDLOHG�GHVFULSWLRQ�RI�KRZ�WKH�SURMHFW�ZLOO�EH�SKDVHG�DQG�ZKLFK�SXEOLF�
DQG�SULYDWH�LPSURYHPHQWV�ZLOO�EH�FRQVWUXFWHG�LQ�HDFK�SKDVH��

�
BBBBBB�&RQGLWLRQV�RI�$SSURYDO��$�VSDFH�IRU�FRQGLWLRQV�RI�DSSURYDO�DQG�RU�RWKHU�LQIRUPDWLRQ�

DV�UHTXLUHG�E\�WKH�3ODQQLQJ�&RPPLVVLRQ�DQG�&LW\�&RXQFLO���
�
�

BBBBBB�%XLOGLQJ�&RGH�$QDO\VLV�±�%DVHG�RQ�UHTXLUHPHQW�RI�WKH�,QWHUQDWLRQDO�%XLOGLQJ�&RGH��,%&��
� 3URYLGH�OLVW�RI�DGRSWHG�FRGHV�XVHG�IRU�DQDO\VLV�RI�WKLV�SURMHFW��
� 8VH�DQG�2FFXSDQF\�&ODVVLILFDWLRQ�±�,%&�&KDSWHUV���DQG���
� *HQHUDO�%XLOGLQJ�+HLJKWV�DQG�$UHDV�±�6TXDUH�IRRW�EUHDNGRZQ�IRU�HDFK�LQGLYLGXDO�XVHV���
� ,QFOXGH�PL[HG�XVH�RFFXSDQF\�FDOFXODWLRQV�LI�DSSOLFDEOH�SHU�,%&�&KDSWHU����LI�GLIIHUHQW�IURP��
�$ ERYH���
� 7\SH�RI�&RQVWUXFWLRQ�±�,%&�&KDSWHU���

���� 
��




�

3DJH���RI���

� )LUH�3URWHFWLRQ�±�,%&��
�
�

BBBBBB�6HFWLRQ�7ZR��6LWH�3ODQ���$�VLWH�SODQ�ZLWK�WKH�IROORZLQJ�LQIRUPDWLRQ�VKDOO�EH�UHTXLUHG�ZLWK�DOO�
'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQV�DQG�VKDOO�EH�FRQWDLQHG�LQ�6HFWLRQ�7ZR���
�
BBBBBB:ULWWHQ�DQG�JUDSKLF�VFDOH��
�
BBBBBB1RUWK�DUURZ�GHVLJQDWLQJ�WUXH�QRUWK��
�
BBBBBB'DWH�RI�SUHSDUDWLRQ�DQG�VSDFH�WR�LQGLFDWH�GDWHV�IRU�VXEVHTXHQW�UHYLVLRQV��
�
BBBBBB([LVWLQJ�]RQH�GLVWULFW�DQG�SURSRVHG�]RQH�GLVWULFW�LI�DSSOLFDEOH��
���
BBBBBB�3HULPHWHU�RXWOLQH�RI�H[WHULRU�DQG�LQ WHULRU�ORW� OLQHV�ZLWK�DSSUR[LPDWH�GLPHQVLRQV�LQ �

VTXDUH�IRRWDJH�RU�DFUHDJH�FOHDUO\�LQGLFDWHG���
�
BBBBBB� ([LVWLQJ� SULQFLSDO�D QG�DFF HVVRU\�VW UXFWXUHV� WR� EH�UHW DLQHG��FO HDUO\�GL IIHUHQWLDWHG�

IURP�SURSRVHG�QHZ�VWUXFWXUHV�DQG�DGGLWLRQV���$�URRI�SODQ�LV�WKH�SUHIHUUHG�PHWKRG�WR�
VKRZ�WKHVH�VWUXFWXUHV���

�
BBBBBB�/ RFDWLRQ� RI�UL SDULDQ� DUHDV��ZDW HUFRXUVHV�� ZHWODQGV��� ���\HDU�IOR RGSODLQ� DQG�

IORRGZD\� DV�GHIL QHG�E \�)(0$� DQG�RU�RW KHU�D YDLODEOH�GUDL QDJH�L QIRUPDWLRQ�
DFFHSWDEOH�WR�WKH�)ORRGSODLQ�$GPLQLVWUDWRU�IRU�WKH�&LW\��

�
BBBBBB�/RFDWLRQ�RI� H[LVWLQJ�VDQLWDU\�DQG�VWRUP�VHZHU�PDLQV��ZDWHU�PDLQV�DQG�RWKHU�GU\�

XWLOLWLHV��
�
BBBBBB*UDSKLF�LGHQWLILFDWLRQ�DQG�GHOLQHDWLRQ�RI�H [LVWLQJ�DQG�SURSRVHG�HDVHPHQWV�DV�ZHOO�

DV�D�GHVF ULSWLRQ�RI�WK H�W \SH�R I�HDVHPHQW���1R WH���7KH�RQO \�HDVHPHQWV�H[HPSWHG�
IURP�WKLV�JUDSKLF�LGHQWLILFDWLRQ�DQG�GHOLQHDWLRQV�DUH�HPHUJHQF\�DFFHVV�HDVHPHQWV�
DQG�RWKHU�EODQNHW�HDVHPHQWV��KRZHYHU��DOO�EODQNHW�HDVHPHQWV�PXVW�EH�GHVFULEHG�LQ�
WH[W�RQ�WKH�SODQ��

�
BBBBBB1DPHV�RI�DGMDFHQW�VXEGLYLVLRQV�RU�QDPHV�RI�RZQHUV�RI�DGMDFHQW�XQSODWWHG�SURSHUW\��
�
BBBBBB*UDSKLF�LGHQWLILFDWLRQ�DQG�GH OLQHDWLRQ�R I�HDVHPHQWV�RQ�SURSHUWLHV�DGMDFHQW�WR �WKH�

VXEMHFW�VL WH� DV�ZH OO�DV�D �GHVFULSW LRQ�RI�WK H�W \SH�RI�HDV HPHQW���7KH�GL UHFWRU�PD\�
UHTXLUH�OR FDWLRQ�R I�HDVHPHQWV�ZL WKLQ�RQH�K XQGUHG�������IHHW�RI�WK H�VXEM HFW�VL WH�LI �
KH�VKH� GHWHUPLQHV�W KDW�VXFK�D�UH TXLUHPHQW�L V�QHFH VVDU\�WR�H YDOXDWH�SR WHQWLDO�
SURMHFW�LPSD FWV�� �1R WH��� 7KH� RQO\�HD VHPHQWV�H[HP SWHG�I URP�W KLV�J UDSKLF�
LGHQWLILFDWLRQ�DQG�G HOLQHDWLRQ�DUH�H PHUJHQF\�DFFHVV�HDVHPHQWV�DQG�RWKHU�EODQNHW�
HDVHPHQWV��KRZHYHU��DOO�EODQNHW�HDVHPHQWV�PXVW�EH�GHVFULEHG�LQ�WH[W�RQ�WKH�SODQ��

�
BBBBBB/RFDWLRQ�RI�VLJQLILFDQW�QDWXUDO�IHDWXUHV�LQFOXGLQJ�EXW�QRW�OLPLWHG�WR�URFN�RXWFURSSLQJV��

PDWXUH�YHJHWDWLRQ�DQG�SUHGRPLQDWH�YHJHWDWLYH�FRYHU���7UHHV�H[FHHGLQJ�RQH�IRRW�LQ�
FDOLSHU�VKDOO�EH�VSHFLILFDOO\�LGHQWLILHG��

��
BBBBBB/RFDWLRQ�D QG� GLPHQVLRQV�R I�VHW EDFNV�I URP�DO O�VW UXFWXUHV� WR� DGMDFHQW�O RW� OLQHV��

ZDWHUFRXUVHV��ZHWO DQGV��KLJK� ZDWHU�PD UNV��IO RRGZD\V��IOR RGSODLQV�� ZDWHU� PDLQV��
VHZHU�PDLQV��UHTXLUHG�EXIIHUV��DQG�QR�GLVWXUEDQFH�]RQHV��/RFDWLRQ�DQG�GLPHQVLRQV�

���� 
���



�

3DJH���RI���

RI�VHWEDFNV�IURP�/LQFROQ�$YHQXH�FHQWHUOLQH�DQG�HGJH�RI�SDYHPHQW�VKDOO�EH�VKRZQ�LI�
DSSOLFDEOH��

���
BBBBBB�/RFDWLRQ�DQG�GLPHQVLRQV�RI�VLWH� LPSURYHPHQWV�LQFOXGLQJ�EXW�QRW�OLPLWHG�WR�SDUNLQJ�

DUHDV��VW UHHWV��GU LYHZD\V��VLG HZDONV��W UDQVLW�IDF LOLWLHV��W UDLOV�� ELNH�I DFLOLWLHV��SX EOLF�
VSDFHV�� DPHQLW\�VS DFHV��RX WGRRU�V HDWLQJ�DUHD V��RX WGRRU� GLVSOD\�D UHDV��OR DGLQJ�
DUHDV��WUDVK�HQFORVXUHV��GUDLQDJH�ZD\V��DQG�UHF\FOLQJ�IDFLOLWLHV���

��
BBBBBB�7KH�DSSUR[LPDWH�ORFDWLRQ�DQG�GLPHQVLRQV�RI�DOO�VQRZ�VWRUDJH�DUHDV��
�
BBBBBB�7KH�DSSUR[LPDWH�ORFDWLRQ�DQG�GLPHQVLRQV�RI�DOO�UHTXLUHG�RSHQ�VSDFH�DUHDV��
��
BBBBBB�/RFDWLRQ�DQG�GLPHQVLRQV�RI�ULJKW�RI�ZD\�DQG�SDYHPHQW�ZLGWK�IRU�DGMDFHQW�VWUHHWV��
�
BBBBBB�%XLOGLQJ�IRRWSULQWV�IRU�DOO�SULQFLSDO�DQG�DFFHVVRU\�VWUXFWXUHV��
�

BBBBBB�6HFWLRQ�7KUHH��%XLOGLQJ�(OHYDWLRQV���$OO� 'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQV�VKDOO�EH�DFF RPSDQLHG�E\�
FKDUDFWHU�VNHWFKHV�DQG�W\SLFDO�EXLOGLQJ�HOHYDWLRQV�IRU�DOO�SULQFLSDO�DQG�DFFHVVRU\�VWUXFWXUHV�
WKDW�IDFH�D�VWUHHW�RU�SXEOLF�VSDFH�DW�D�VFDOH�RI�QR�OHVV�WKDQ�RQH�VL[WHHQWK�RI�DQ�LQFK�HTXDOV�
RQH�IRRW������´ �¶����([LVW LQJ�JUDGH�VKDOO�EH�VKRZQ�ZLWK�EXLOGLQJ�HOHYDWLRQV�IRU�SXUSRVHV�RI�
EXLOGLQJ�KHLJKW�FDOFXODWLRQ���1RWH��$Q\�VLJQV�WKDW�DUH�VKRZQ�RQ�EXLOGLQJ�HOHYDWLRQV�DUH�QRW�
DSSURYHG�W KURXJK�W KH� GHYHORSPHQW� SODQ�S URFHVV�DQ G� DUH�UHTX LUHG� WR�R EWDLQ� DSSURYDO�L Q�
DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�6HFWLRQ�������DQG�������DV�DSSOLFDEOH��

�
BBBBBB�6H FWLRQ�)R XU��/DQ GVFDSH� 3ODQ�� $OO� 'HYHORSPHQW�3OD QV�V KDOO�EH �DFF RPSDQLHG�E \�D �

FRQFHSWXDO�/DQGVFDSH�3ODQ�6KRZLQJ�WR�VF DOH�WKH�SURSRVHG�ORFDWLRQ�RI� ODQGVFDSLQJ�DUHDV�
RQ�WKH�VLWH�SODQ��
�

BBBBBB�6HFWLRQ�)LYH��3KDVLQJ�3ODQ��,I �D� PXOWL�SKDVH�GHYHORSPHQW�LV�SURSRVHG��D� SKDVLQJ�S ODQ�
VKDOO�E H�V XEPLWWHG�� �7 KH� SKDVLQJ� SODQ�VK DOO�LQ FOXGH�J HQHUDO�L QIRUPDWLRQ�VK RZLQJ� HDFK�
SURSRVHG�SKDVH�RI�SURSRVHG�GHYHORSPHQW��
�

BBBBBB�6HFWLRQ�6L[��([LVWLQJ�&RQGLWLRQV�3ODQ��$OO�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQV�VKDOO�EH�DFFRPSDQLHG�E\�
DQ�([LVWLQJ�&RQGLWLRQV�3ODQ�ZLWK�WKH�IROORZLQJ�LQIRUPDWLRQ��

�
BBBBBB3HULPHWHU�RXWOLQH�DQG�LQWHUQDO�ORW�OLQHV�RI�WKH�VXEMHFW�VLWH��
�
BBBBBB7KH�DSSUR[LPDWH�ORFDWLRQ��GLPHQVLRQV��DQG�DUHD�R I�DQ\�H[LVWLQJ�VWUXFWXUHV�RU�RWKHU�

VLWH�LPSURYHPHQWV��VXFK�DV�EULGJHV��UDGLR�WRZHUV��DQG�IHQFHV�ORFDWHG�RQ�DGM DFHQW�
SURSHUW\��7K H�'LUHF WRU�PD \�UH TXLUH� WKH� ORFDWLRQ��GL PHQVLRQV��DQ G�DUH D� RI�DQ \�
H[LVWLQJ�VWUXFWXUHV�RU�RWKHU�VL WH�LPSURYHPHQWV��VXFK�DV�E ULGJHV��UDGLR�WRZHUV��DQG�
IHQFHV�ORFDWHG�ZL WKLQ�RQH�KXQGUHG�������IHHW�RI �WKH�VXEMHFW�VLWH � LI�KH�VKH�'LUHF WRU�
GHWHUPLQHV� WKDW�VX FK�D �UHT XLUHPHQW�LV�Q HFHVVDU\� WR�H YDOXDWH�S RWHQWLDO�S URMHFW�
LPSDFWV��

�
BBBBBB7KH�DSSUR[LPDWH�ORFDWLRQ�DQG�VL]H�RI�H[LVWLQJ�VDQLWDU\�DQG�VWRUP�VHZHU�PDLQV�DQG�

ZDWHU�PDL QV� RQ� VLWH�DQ G� RQ�DGM DFHQW�SURS HUWLHV�� 7KH�'LUH FWRU�PD \�UH TXLUH� WKH�
ORFDWLRQ�DQG�VL]H�RI�H[LVWLQJ�VDQLWDU\�DQG�VWRUP�VHZHU�PDLQV�DQG�ZDWHU�PDLQV�ZLWKLQ�
RQH�KXQGUHG�������IHHW�RI�WKH�VXEMHFW�VLWH� LI�KH�VKH�'LUHFWRU�GHWHUPLQHV�WKDW�VXFK�D�
UHTXLUHPHQW�LV�QHFHVVDU\�WR�HYDOXDWH�SRWHQWLDO�SURMHFW�LPSDFWV��

�
BBBBBB&XOYHUWV�DQG�RWKHU�XQGHUJURXQG�VWUXFWXUHV�ZLWKLQ�WKH�VLWH��RU�FRQWULEXWLQJ�WR�WKH�VLWH��

���� 
���



�

3DJH���RI���

�
BBBBBB&HQWHUOLQH��HGJH�RI�SDYHPHQW�DQG�ZLGWK�RI�ULJKW�RI�ZD\�RU�HDVHPHQW��IRU�DOO�LQWHUQDO�

RU�DGMDFHQW�SXEOLF�DQG�SULYDWH�VWUHHWV��
�
BBBBBB7KH� ORFDWLRQ�RI�D GMDFHQW�SURS HUW\�O LQHV��7 KH�'LUHFW RU�PD\�UH TXLUH�WKH�ORF DWLRQ�RI ����������

SURSHUW\�O LQHV�ZLW KLQ�RQH�KXQG UHG������� IHHW�RI�W KH�VXEMHFW�V LWH�LI� KH�VKH�'LUHFW RU�
GHWHUPLQHV� WKDW�VX FK�D �UHT XLUHPHQW�LV�Q HFHVVDU\� WR�H YDOXDWH�S RWHQWLDO�S URMHFW�
LPSDFWV��

�
BBBBBB/RFDWLRQ�RI�H[LVWLQJ�HDVHPHQWV�DV�ZHOO�DV�D�GHVFULSWLRQ�RI�WKH�W\SH�RI�HDVHPHQW��
��
BBBBBB+LJK�ZDWHU�OLQH�IRU�ZDWHU�FRXUVHV��OLPLWV�RI�RQH�KXQGUHG�\HDU�IORRGSODLQ��DQG��

SHULPHWHU�RI�H[LVWLQJ�ZHWODQGV��DQG�
�
BBBBBB2WKHU�QDWXUDO�IHDWXUHV�RI�WKH�VLWH�LQFOXGLQJ�SUHGRPLQDWH�YHJHWDWLYH�FRYHU��RXWOLQH�RI�

PDMRU�WUHH�VWDQGV��DQG�URFN�RXWFURSSLQJV���7UHHV�H[FHHGLQJ�RQH�IRRW�LQ�FDOLSHU�VKDOO�
EH�VSHFLILFDOO\�LGHQWLILHG��DQG�H[LVWLQJ�WRSRJUDSK\�ZLWK�WZR�����IRRW�FRQWRXUV��

�
BBBBBB�6HFWLRQ�6HYHQ��3UHOLPLQDU\�8WLOLW\�3ODQ���$OO�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQV�VKDOO�EH�DFFRPSDQLHG�

E\�3UHOLPLQDU\�8WLOLW\�3ODQV�ZLWK�WKH�IROORZLQJ�LQIRUPDWLRQ��
�
BBBBBB�3HULPHWHU�R XWOLQH�RI�DO O�VW UXFWXUHV�D QG� VLWH�L PSURYHPHQWV�LQF OXGLQJ�DS SUR[LPDWH�

ORFDWLRQV�RI�ODQGVFDSH�DUHDV��
���
BBBBBB7KH�DSSUR[LPDWH�ORFDWLRQ�RI�SODQQHG�ZDWHU�OLQHV��K\GUDQWV��VHZHU�OLQHV��QDWXUDO�JDV��

HOHFWULFLW\��SKRQH��H[LVWLQJ�DQG�SURSRVHG�XWLOLW\�HDVHPHQWV�DQG�RWKHU�XWLOLW\�IHDWXUHV��
�
BBBBBB�$SSUR[LPDWH�ORFDWLRQ�RI�RII�VLWH�ZDWHU�DQG�VHZHU�PDLQV�WKDW�ZLOO�EH�FRQQHFWHG�WR��RU�

SODQV�IRU�RII�VLWH�LQVWDOODWLRQ�RI�ZDWHU�DQG�VHZHU�PDLQV�WR�VHUYH�WKH�VLWH��
�

BBBBBBB�6HFWLRQ�(LJKW��3UHOLPLQDU\�*UDG LQJ�'UDLQDJH�3ODQ�� �$OO�'HYHORSPHQW�3O DQV�VKDOO�EH �
DFFRPSDQLHG�E\�D�3UHOLPLQDU\�*UDGLQJ�'UDLQDJH�3ODQ���7KH�3UHOLPLQDU\�*UDGLQJ�'UDLQDJH�
3ODQ�VKDOO�SURYLGH�HQRXJK�GHWDLO�WR�GHPRQVWUDWH�WKDW� WKH�SURSRVHG�GHYHORSPHQW�FDQ�EH�
DFFRPSOLVKHG�LQ�FRQ IRUPDQFH�ZL WK�&LW \�VW DQGDUGV�ZL WKRXW�UHTX LULQJ�I LQDO�H QJLQHHULQJ�
FDOFXODWLRQV��7KH�I ROORZLQJ�LQ IRUPDWLRQ�VK DOO�EH�LQF OXGHG� ZLWK�W KH�3UH OLPLQDU\�
*UDGLQJ�'UDLQDJH�3ODQ��

�
BBBBBB�([LVWLQJ�FRQWRXUV�DW�WZR�����IRRW�LQWHUYDOV��
�
BBBBBB�3URSRVHG�ILQLVKHG�JUDGH�FRQWRXUV�DW�WZR�����IRRW�LQWHUYDOV��
�
BBBBBB�3URSRVHG�ILQLVKHG�IORRU�HOHYDWLRQV�RI�WKH�ILUVW�IORRU��

�
BBBBBB�6HFWLRQ�1LQH��6KDGRZ�3ODQ��0D\�EH��ZDLYHG�E\�WKH�GLUHFWRU�DW�D�SUH�VXEPLWWDO��PHHWLQJ���
�
BBBBBB�6HFWLRQ�7HQ��) ORRU�3O DQV�� �7\SLFDO�I ORRU�SO DQV�R I�V XIILFLHQW� GHWDLO�W R�DOO RZ� DQ�DF FXUDWH�

DQDO\VLV�RI�SDUNLQJ�UHTXLUHPHQWV�IRU�WKH�VLWH��
�
BBBBBBB6HFWLRQ�(OHYHQ��6LWH�&URVV�6HFWLRQ�	�3HUVSHFWLYH�6NHWFK��PD\�EH�UHTXLUHG�E\�WKH�

GLUHFWRU�DW� RU�SULRU�WR�WKH�7 $&�PHHWLQJ� LI�KH�VKH�GHWHUPLQHV�WKDW�LW� LV�QHFHVVDU\� WR�
HYDOXDWH�S RWHQWLDO� SURMHFW� LPSDFWV������ $�F URVV�VHFW LRQ� DQG�SH UVSHFWLYH�VNH WFK� RI� WKH�
SURSRVHG�GHYHORSPHQW���

���� 
���



�

3DJH���RI���

�
BBBBBB�6HFWLRQ�7ZHOYH��(QJLQHHUHG�&HQWHUOLQH�3URILOHV�DQG�&URVV�6HFWLRQ�IRU�3XEOLF�5RDGV��

1RW�DSSOLFDEOH�DW�WKLV�SKDVH��
�
BBBBBB�6HFWLRQ�7KLUWHHQ��3UHO LPLQDU\�7UDIILF�,PSDFW�$QD O\VLV�5HSRUW��1RW�D SSOLFDEOH�DW� WKLV�

SKDVH��
�
BBBBBB�6HFWLRQ�)RXUWHHQ��3UHOLPLQDU\�6RLOV�DG�*HR�7HFKQLFDO�5HSRUW���$�SUHOLPLQDU\�PDS�DQG�

UHSRUW�IURP�D�TXDOLILHG��UHJLVWHUHG�SURIHVVLRQDO�HQJLQHHU�LGHQWLI\LQJ�VLWH�FRQGLWLRQV��VXEVRLO�
FRQGLWLRQV��KD]DUGV�WKDW�PD\�OLPLW�GHYHORSPHQW�LI�DQ\����

�
BBBBBB�6HFWLRQ�)LIWHHQ��)LUH�)ORZ�'HPDQG�DQG�$YDLODELOLW\�&DOFXODWLRQV��� �)LUH�IORZ�GHPDQG�

DQG�DYDLODELOLW\�FDOFXODWLRQV�LQ�D�IRUP�DQG�FRQWHQW�DFFHSWDEOH�WR�WKH�ILUH�PDUVKDO��
�
BBBBBB�6HFWLRQ�6L[WHHQ��3UHOLPLQDU\�/LJKWLQJ�3ODQ��1RW�$SSOLFDEOH�DW�WKLV�SKDVH��
�
BBBBBB��6HFWLRQ�6HYH QWHHQ��3K RWRJUDSKLF�3D QRUDPD�RU�&R PSXWHU�0 RGHOLQJ��� 7KLV�

UHTXLUHPHQW�PD\�EH�ZDLYHG�E\�WKH�GLUHFWRU�DW�D�SUH�VXEPLWWDO�PHHWLQJ��
�
BBBBBB6HFWLRQ�(LJKWHHQ��3UHOLPLQDU\�)ORRGSODLQ�$QDO\VLV����
�
BBBBBB�6HFWLRQ�1LQHWHHQ��3UHOLPLQDU\�:LOGILUH�0LWLJDWLRQ�3ODQ��LI�DSSOLFDEOH���

1RW�DSSOLFDEOH�DW�WKLV�SKDVH��&LW\�ZLOO�LGHQWLI\�VXEVHTXHQW�SKDVHG�VXEPLWWDO�UHTXLUHPHQWV���,I�
D�SODQ�ZLOO�QRW�EH�UHTXLUHG�DSSOLFDQW�VKDOO�VXEPLW�D�VLJQHG�OHWWHU�WR� WKDW�DIIHFW�IURP�WKH�)LUH�
0DUVKDO�ZLWK�WKH�)LQDO�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ����

�
BBBBBB�6HFWLRQ�7ZHQW\��3K\VLFDO�RU�'LJLWDO�0DVVLQJ�0RGHO��6KDOO�EH�DQ�DFFXUDWH�GHSLFWLRQ�RI�

WRSRJUDSK\��PDVVLQJ�DQG�IRUP�RI�SURSRVHG�GHYHORSPHQW�DV�ZHOO�DV� LPPHGLDWHO\�DGMRLQLQJ�
VWUXFWXUHV���'H WDLOHG�DUFKLWHFWXUH�LV�QRW�UHT XLUHG���7KLV�UHT XLUHPHQW�PD\�EH�ZDLYHG�E\�WKH�
GLUHFWRU�DW�D�SUH�VXPELWWDO�PHHWLQJ��

�
BBBBBB�6HF WLRQ�7Z HQW\� 2QH��: DWHU� 'HPDQG�5H SRUW�SH U�6HF WLRQ� ������R I�WKH �0XQL FLSDO�

&RGH��0D\�EH�UHTXHVWHG�DW�SUH�DSSOLFDWLRQ�PHHWLQJ���
�
BBBBBB�6HFWLRQ�7ZHQW\�7ZR��$GGLWLRQDO�6WX GLHV��$G GLWLRQDO� VWXGLHV�PD \� EH�SUR YLGHG�E \� WKH�

DSSOLFDQW�DV � D� SDUW� RI� WKH�&R QFHSWXDO�6X EPLWWDO� LI�WKH�DS SOLFDQW�EHO LHYHV� WKDW�WK H\� DUH�
UHOHYDQW�WR�XQGHUVWDQGLQJ�WKH�SURSRVHG�SURMHFW�DW�WKH�FRQFHSWXDO�VXEPLWWDO�OHYHO���&LW\�PD\�
LGHQWLI\�DGGLWLRQDO�VXEVHTXHQW�SKDVHG�VXEPLWWDO�UHTXLUHPHQWV��
���
�����

(1'�

���� 
���



�

�
3/$11,1*�6(59,&(6�67$))�5(3257�

3/$11,1*�&200,66,21�$*(1'$�,7(0�������

3URMHFW�1DPH��� 3WDUPLJDQ�,QQ�&RQGRV��3WDUPLJDQ�5HGHYHORSPHQW���'3)������

3UHSDUHG�%\�� %RE�.HHQDQ��6HQLRU�3ODQQHU��([W��
�����

7KURXJK�� 7\OHU�*LEEV��$,$��3ODQQLQJ�
'LUHFWRU��([W�������

3ODQQLQJ�
&RPPLVVLRQ��3&���

6HSWHPEHU����������

�

&LW\�&RXQFLO��&&��� 2FWREHU����������

=RQLQJ�� *RQGROD�7ZR��*����

�
�

$SSOLFDQW�� %UXFH�6KXJDUW��7KH�3RUFKHV��F�R�(ULF�6PLWK��(ULF�6PLWK�$VVRFLDWHV�������
�WK�6WUHHW��%RXOGHU��&2����������������������

/RFDWLRQ�� �����$SUqV�6NL�:D\�

5HTXHVW�� $Q�DSSOLFDWLRQ�WR�DSSURYH�D� &RQFHSWXDO�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ �IRU�D����XQLW�
��������VTXDUH�IRRW�P XOWL�IDPLO\�EXLOGL QJ�DQG�DVVRFLDWHG�LPSURYHP HQWV��
7KURXJK�WKLV�DSSOLFDWLRQ�WKH�DSSOL FDQW�LV�UHTXHVWL QJ�DSSURYDO�RI�D�
&RQGLWLRQDO�8VH�WR�ORFDWH�P XOWL�IDPLO\�XVH�DORQJ�WKH�SHGHVWULDQ�OHY HO�RU�
RWKHU�SXEOLF�DFFHVV�IURQWDJH��

3URMHFW�
/RFDWLRQ

�����
$SUqV�6NL�
:D\

�
�

'HYHORSPHQW�6WDWLVWLFV�±�2YHUYLHZ�*���=RQH�

/RW�$UHD�� �������VTXDUH�IHHW�
*URVV�)ORRU�$UHD�� ��������VTXDUH�IHHW�
/RW�&RYHUDJH�� �����
5HVLGHQWLDO�8QLWV�� ���
3DUNLQJ�6SDFHV�� ���
&RPPHUFLDO�6SDFH� 1RQH�
2YHUDOO�+HLJKW��
�
�

���¶�

6WDII�5HSRUW���7DEOH�RI�&RQWHQWV�
6HFWLRQ� 3J�
,�� &'&�±6WDII�$QDO\VLV�6XPPDU\� ����
,,�� %DFNJURXQG� ����
,,,� 3ULQFLSDO�'LVFXVVLRQ� ����
,9� 3URMHFW�'HVFULSWLRQ� ����
9� 2YHUYLHZ�RI�'LPHQVLRQDO�	�

'HYHORSPHQW�6WDQGDUGV�
����

9,� 3URMHFW�$QDO\VLV� ����
9,,� 6WDII�)LQGLQJV�	�&RQGLWLRQV� �����
9,,,� $WWDFKPHQWV� �����

$WWDFKPHQW�� ���� 
���



3WDUPLJDQ�,QQ�&RQGRV��3WDUPLJDQ�5HGHYHORSPHQW���'3)������� 3&�+HDULQJ������������
� &&�+HDULQJ�������������

� �
� �

6WDII�5HSRUW������������ � 3DJH�����

,�� &20081,7<�'(9(/230(17�&2'(��&'&��±�67$))�$1$/<6,6�6800$5<�

&'&���6(&7,21��������'���12�'(9(/230(17�3/$1�6+$//�%(�$33529('�81/(66�7+(�&,7<�&281&,/�
),1'6�7+$7�7+(�3/$1�0((76�$//�2)�7+(�)2//2:,1*�&5,7(5,$��

&RQVLVWHQW�6XEVHFWLRQ�
<HV� 1R� 1$�

1RWHV�

��� &RQIRUPLW\�ZLWK�&RPPXQLW\�3ODQ� 5� � � �
��� &RQVLVWHQF\�ZLWK�6XUURXQGLQJ�8VHV� 5� � � �
��� 0LQLPL]H�$GYHUVH�,PSDFWV� 5� � � �
��� $FFHVV� 5� � � �
��� 0LQLPL]H�(QYLURQPHQWDO�,PSDFWV� 5� � � �
��� 3KDVLQJ� 5� � � �
��� &RPSOLDQFH�:LWK�2WKHU�6WDQGDUGV� 5� � � �
��� 9DULDQFH�&ULWHULD� � � 5� 1R�YDULDQFHV�DUH�EHLQJ�UHTXHVWHG�
6WDII�)LQGLQJ�� 6WDII�ILQGV�WKDW�WKH�SURSRVHG �&RQFHSWXDO �'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ�IRU�D�PXOWL�IDP LO\�
EXLOGLQJ�DQG�DVVRFLDWHG �VLWH�SODQQLQJ�LV� FRQVLVWHQW�ZLWK�WKH�F ULWHULD�I RU�DSS URYDO�RI �D �
'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ�ZLWK�FRQGLWLRQV��
�'HWDLOHG�SROLF\�DQDO\VLV�LV�ORFDWHG�LQ�6HFWLRQ�9��6WDII�)LQGLQJV�DQG�&RQGLWLRQV�DUH�LQ�6HFWLRQ�9,,��

�
�
�

�

3URMHFW�
6LWH

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

� ���� 
���



3WDUPLJDQ�,QQ�&RQGRV��3WDUPLJDQ�5HGHYHORSPHQW���'3)������� 3&�+HDULQJ������������
� &&�+HDULQJ�������������

� �
� �

6WDII�5HSRUW������������ � 3DJH�����

�

,,�� %$&.*5281'�
7KH�SURSRVHG�3WDUP LJDQ�5HGHYHORSP HQW�LV�VXEM HFW�WR�WKH�SROLFLHV�DQ G�UHJXODWLRQV�RI�WKH�
6WHDPERDW�6SULQJV�$UHD�&RPP XQLW\�3ODQ��0RE LOLW\�DQG�& LUFXODWLRQ�3ODQ��0RXQWDLQ�7RZQ�
6XE�DUHD�3ODQ��&RPPXQLW\�'HYHORSP HQW�& RGH�DQG�WKH�0RXQWDLQ� %DVH�$UHD�'HVLJQ�
6WDQGDUGV��7KH�VLWH�LV�D������DFU H�SDUFHO�WKDW�LQFOXGHV�WKH�H[LVWL QJ�3WDUPLJDQ�,QQ�WKDW�LV�WR�EH�
GHPROLVKHG�WR�PDNH�ZD\�IRU�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�RI�WKH�SURSRVHG�SURMHFW����
�
7KH�DSSOLFDQW�RULJLQDOO\�VXEPLWWHG�D�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ�)LQDO�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ�DSSOLFDWLRQ�
WR�WKH�&LW\�RI�6WHDPERDW�6SULQJV�LQ������EXW�GLG�QRW�FRPSOHWH�WKH�SURFHVV�GXH�WR�D�YDULHW\�RI�
UHDVRQV���7 KH�FXUUHQW�SURSRVDO�LV�EDVHG�RQ�WK H�SUHYLRXV�VXEP LWWDO�E XW�LV�EHLQJ�SURFHVVHG �
WKURXJK�D�QHZ�³WULDO´�SURFHVV�NQRZQ�DV�WKH�³& RQFHSWXDO�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ´���7KH�LQWHQW�RI�
WKH�&RQFHSWXDO�'HYHORS PHQW�3ODQ�LV�WR�SURY LGH�FRQFHSWXDO�DSSURYDO�RI�VLWH�SODQQLQJ�DQG�
EXLOGLQJ�PDVVLQJ�ZLWKRXW�D�VLJQLILFDQW�LQLWLDO�LQYHVWPHQW�E\�WKH�DSSOLFDQW���2QFH�WKH�DSSOLFDQW�
UHFHLYHV�FRQFHSWXDO�DSSURYDO�RI �D�'HYHORSP HQW�3ODQ�WKHQ�ILQDO�HQJLQHHULQJ��VLWH�SODQQLQJ��
DQG�DUFKLWHFWXUDO�UHYLHZ�ZLOO�EH�UHTXLUHG�DW�WKH�WLPH�RI�)LQDO�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ����
�
7KH�&RQFHSWXDO�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ�LV�IXUWKHU�GHVFULEHG�E\�WKH�IROORZLQJ�VWDWHPHQW����
�
³$SSURYDO�RI�D�'HYHORSP HQW�3ODQ�V KDOO�EH�OLP LWHG�WR�WKRVH�DVSHFWV�DQG�TXDOLWLHV�H[SUHVVO\�
GHSLFWHG�LQ�WKH�VXEP LWWDO��HLWKHU�LQ�Z RUGV�RU�JUDSKLFV��$SSURYDOV�RI�VLWH�GHVLJQ��DFFHVV��DQG �
EXLOGLQJ�GHVLJQ��LQFOXGLQJ�KHL JKW�DQG�P DVVLQJ��DUH�LQWHQGHG� WR�GHILQH�P LQLPXP�DQG�RU�
PD[LPXP�DFFHSWDE OH�OLP LWV�DQG�DUH�VXEMHFW�WR �FRQILUP DWLRQ�DW�)LQDO�'HYHORSP HQW�3ODQ� �
,QIRUPDWLRQ�LQFOXGLQJ��EXW�QRW�OLP LWHG�WR�� JUDGLQJ�DQG�GUDLQDJH�� XWLOLWLHV��EXLOGLQJ �
IHQHVWUDWLRQ��ODQGVF DSLQJ�P D\�EH�GHSLFWHG�DQ G�ODEH OHG�D V�FRQFHS WXDO�RQO\ �DQG�ZLOO�E H�
UHYLHZHG�DV�VXFK�VXEMHFW�WR�DSSURYDO�DW�)LQDO�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ�´��
�

,,,��3 5,1&,3$/�',6&866,21�,7(06�
3ULQFLSDO�GLVFXVVLRQ�LWHPV�UHFRPPHQGHG�WR�3ODQQLQJ�&RPPLVVLRQ�LQFOXGH��
�
��� &RPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�0RXQWDLQ� %DVH�$UHD�' HVLJQ�6 WDQGDUGV��6WDII�ILQGV�WKDW�WKH �

SURSRVHG�EXLOGLQJ�DQG�VLWH�SODQQLQJ�PHHWV�DOO�WKH�DSSOLFDEOH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�RI�WKH�%DVH�
$UHD�'HVLJ Q�6WDQGDUGV �IRU�D�&RQFHSWXDO�'HYHORSP HQW�3ODQ�H[FHSW�IRU�RQH�DUHD� ��
3ODQQLQJ�6 WDII�ILQGV�WKDW�WKH�DSSOLFDQ W�QH HGV�WR �P DNH�EXLOGLQJ �DU WLFXODWLRQ�
PRGLILFDWLRQV�WR�WKH�QRUWK�IDoDGH�RI�WKH�HDVW�ZLQJ�WR�SURYLGH�SHGHVWULDQ�VFDOH�DGMDFHQW�
WR�WKH�VNL�V ORSHV���7KLV�LV�LQ�U HIHUHQFH�WR�WKH�6HF WLRQ�,,,��$�����E�����³6WHSSLQJ�%DFN�
RI�%XLOGLQJ�0DVV´�VWDQGDUG����
6HH�6HFWLRQ�9,�IRU�GHWDLOHG�DQDO\VLV�RI� FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK �WKH�%DVH�$UHD�'HVLJ Q�
6WDQGDUGV���

�
��� 8VH���&RQGLWLRQDO�8VH�DSSURYDO�RI�PXOWL�IDPLO\�XVH�DORQJ�WKH�SHGHVWULDQ�OHYHO���0XOWL�

IDPLO\�XVH�LQ�WKH�*�� �]RQH�GLV WULFW�LV�FODV VLILHG�LQ�WKH �&'&�DV�D�³8VH �ZLWK�&U LWHULD´�
DQG�RQH�RI�WKH�FULWHULD�VWDWHV�WK DW�³PX OWL�IDPLO\�XQLWV�VKDOO�QRW�EH�OR FDWHG�DORQJ�D�
SHGHVWULDQ�OHYHO�RU�RWKHU� SXEOLF�DFFHVV�IURQWDJH�LQ�WKH� *���]RQH´���:KHUH�WKH�XVH�
FULWHULD�F DQQRW�EH�P HW�WKH�DSSOLFD QW�P D\�UHTXHVW�DSS URYDO�RI �D�&R QGLWLRQDO�8 VH�

���� 
���



3WDUPLJDQ�,QQ�&RQGRV��3WDUPLJDQ�5HGHYHORSPHQW���'3)������� 3&�+HDULQJ������������
� &&�+HDULQJ�������������

� �
� �

6WDII�5HSRUW������������ � 3DJH�����

�

WKURXJK�D�'HYHORSP HQW�3ODQ���7KH�DSSOLFDQW� KDV�UHTXHVWHG�WR�ORFDWH�D�PXOWL�IDP LO\�
XVH�DORQJ�WKH�SHGHVWULDQ�OHYHO���6HH�6HFWLRQ�,9�IRU�GHWDLOHG�DQDO\VLV��

�
��� %XLOGLQJ�+HLJKW���+HLJKW��%DVH�$UHD�LV�GHILQHG�DV�IROORZV���³$SSOLFDEOH�RQO\�IRU�]RQH�

GLVWULFWV�UHVRUW�UHVLGHQWLDO�RQH��55�����UHVRUW�UHVLGHQWLDO�WZR��55�����*RQGROD�RQH��*�
����DQG�*RQGROD�WZR��*�����$Q\�SRLQW�RQ�WKH�VWUXFWXUH��P HDVXUHG�YHUWLFDOO\�SOXPE��WR�
WKH�QHDUHVW�DGMDFHQ W�SURSRVHG�JUDGH�DV�GH WHUPLQHG�WKURXJK�WKH�GHYHORS PHQW�UHYLHZ�
SURFHVV��LI�DSSOLFDEOH���7KH� JUHDWHVW�RI�WKHVH�PHDVXUHP HQWV�LV�WKH�RY HUDOO�EX LOGLQJ�
KHLJKW��6KRXOG�D�SRLQW�RQ�D�EXLOGLQJ�EH�HTXLGL VWDQW�WR�DGMDFHQW�JU DGH�WKH�ORZHU�RI�WKH�
WZR�����JUDGHV�VKDOO�EH�XVHG�WR�GHWHUPLQH�KHLJKW�´��

�
3ODQQLQJ�6WDII�KDV�PDGH�D�GHWHUPLQDWLRQ�WKDW�WKH�KHLJKW�IRU�ULGJH�����DV�VKRZQ�RQ�WKH�
QRUWK�HOHYDWLRQ�FDQ�EH�PHDVXUHG��DV�GHSLFWHG �E\�WKH�DSSOLFDQ W��IURP�WKDW�ULGJH�WR�WK H�
LQWHULRU�FRXUW\DUG�JUDGH���7KH�HOHYDWLRQ� RI�WKDW�FRXUW\DUG�JUDGH�P DWFKHV�SURSRVHG�
JUDGH�DW�WKH�HQWUDQFH�WR�WKH�FRXUW\DUG��DORQJ�WKH�VNL�DUHD��DQG��WKHUHIRUH��DSSHDUV�DV�DQ�
H[WHQVLRQ�RI�QDWXUDO�JUDGH��� ,I�WKHUH�ZHUH�QR�SDUNLQJ�JDUD JH�EHORZ�WKH�FRXUW\DUG�VWDII �
EHOLHYHV�WKDW�WKH�DSSOLFDQW�ZRXOG�KDYH�D�ILQL VKHG�JUDGH�LQ�WKLV�D UHD�YHU\�VLPLODU�WR�
ZKDW�H[LVWV���6WDII�ILQGV�WKDW�WKLV�LQWHUSUHWDWLRQ�PHHWV�WKH�LQWHQW�RI�WKH�EXLOGLQJ�KHLJKW�
VWDQGDUG��
�
7KH�GRUPHU�LQ�WKH�P LGGOH�RI�WKH�ZHVW�HOHYD WLRQ�KDV�EHHQ�GHWH UPLQHG�WR�QRW�P HHW�WKH�
DOORZDEOH�PD[LPXP�KHLJKW���3 ODQQLQJ�6WDII�KDV�LQFOXGHG�D�FRQGLWLRQ�RI�DSSURYDO�WKDW�
WKH�DSSOLFDQW�PXVW�PDNH�FKDQJHV�WR �WKLV� HOHYDWLRQ�WR�FRP SO\�ZLWK�P D[LPXP�KHLJKW�
UHTXLUHPHQWV��

�
,9�� 352-(&7�'(6&5,37,21�

)RU�D�FRPSOHWH�SURMHFW�GHVFULSWLRQ�SOHDVH�UHIHU�WR�WKH�QDUUDWLYH�DQG�FRPSOHWH�DSSOLFDWLRQ�SDFNHW��
LQFOXGHG�DV�$WWDFKPHQWV���DQG����7KH�IROORZLQJ�LV�D�EULHI�VXPPDU\�RI�WKDW�LQIRUPDWLRQ��
�
7KH�DSSOLFDQW�LV�SURSRVLQJ�DSSURYDO�RI�D���������VTXDUH�IHHW�����XQLW�PXOWL�IDPLO\�EXLOGLQJ�ZLWK�
XQGHUJURXQG�SDUNL QJ��D QG�LQGRRU �D QG�RXWGRRU�D PHQLW\�VSD FH��� 7KH�VLW H�SODQQLQJ�IRU�WKLV�
GHYHORSPHQW�LQFOXGHV�SHGHVWULDQ�FRQQHFWLRQV �WR�$SU qV�6NL �: D\��W KH�QH ZO\�F RQVWUXFWHG�
3URPHQDGH��WKH�QRW�\HW�EXLOW�VRIW�VXUIDFH�/LWWOH�3URPHQDGH��DQG�LPSURYHPHQWV�WR�WKH�H[LVWLQJ�VNL�
HDVHPHQW�WKDW�LV�ORFDWHG�RQ�WKH�HDVW�VLGH�RI�WKH�SURSHUW\���$OO�SHGHVWULDQ�DUHDV�DUH�SURSRVHG�WR�EH�
FRPSOHWHG�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�%DVH�$UHD�3DWWHUQ�%RRN�����
�
6NL�7LPHV�6TXDUH�8VH�DQG�$UHD�7DEOH��
�

86(� 648$5(�)227$*(� ��2)��
81,76�

:KROH�DQG�RU�
)UDFWLRQDO�2ZQHUVKLS�
&RQGRPLQLXPV�

�������� ���

���� 
���



3WDUPLJDQ�,QQ�&RQGRV��3WDUPLJDQ�5HGHYHORSPHQW���'3)������� 3&�+HDULQJ������������
� &&�+HDULQJ�������������

� �
� �

6WDII�5HSRUW������������ � 3DJH�����

�

7RWDO�5HVLGHQWLDO� �������� ���
%XLOGLQJ�6HUYLFHV�
�FLUFXODWLRQ��
PHFKDQLFDOV��

������� �

&RPPHUFLDO�6SDFH� 1RQH� ��
,QWHULRU�$PHQLWLHV� ������� �
3DUNLQJ�'ULYLQJ� ������� ���VSDFHV�
0LVFHOODQHRXV� ������� �

3URMHFW�7RWDO� �������� �
�

�
&RQGLWLRQDO�8VHV�
�
7KH�DSSOLFDQW�LV�UHTXHVWLQJ�DSSURYDO�RI�D �&RQGLWLRQDO�8VH�ZLWK�WKLV�DSSOLFDWLRQ�WR�DOORZ�D�
PXOWL�IDPLO\�XVH�DORQJ�WKH�SHGHVWULDQ�IURQWDJH� ��7KH�&RPPXQLW\�'HYHORSP HQW�&RGH��
WKURXJK�3HUP LWWHG�8VH�7DEOH��HQ FRXUDJHV�GHYHO RSPHQWV�ZLWKLQ�WKH�*���]RQH�G LVWULFW�WR�
SURYLGH�UHWDLO�RU�HQWHUWDLQPHQW�W\SH�XVHV�DORQJ�WKH�SHGHVWULDQ�IURQWDJHV�WR�KHOS�DG�YLWDOLW\�WR�
WKH�EDVH�DUHD�����
�
&RQGLWLRQDO�XVHV�DUH�WKRVH�XVHV�WKDW�DUH�JHQHUDOO\�LQ�NHHSLQJ�ZLWK�WKH�SXUSRVH�DQG�LQWHQW�RI�
WKH�]RQH�GLVWULFW�\HW�P D\�KDYH�PRUH�LPSDFWV�WR�VXUURXQGLQJ�SURSHU WLHV�DQG�WKH�FRPPXQLW\�
WKDQ�XVHV�E\�ULJKW�RU�XVHV�ZLWK�FULWHULD����
�
6WDII�LV�VXSSRUWLYH�RI�WKH�DSSOLFDQWV�UHTXHVW�DV�WKHUH�P D\�EH�LQVXIILFLHQW�GHP DQG�IRU �
QRQUHVLGHQWLDO�XVHV�LQ�WKHVH�DUHDV ���)RUFLQJ�XQP DUNHWDEOH�UHWDLO �WR�EH�ORFDWHG �ZLWKLQ�WKLV�
GHYHORSPHQW�PD\�EH�GHWULPHQWDO�WR�WKH�GHYHORSPHQW�DQG�WKH�EDVH�DUHD�DV�D�ZKROH�����
�

9�� 29(59,(:�2)�',0(16,21$/�$1'�'(9(/230(17�67$1'$5'6�±�*���=21(�
7KH�GLP HQVLRQDO�VWDQGDUGV�LQ�WKH�*���]RQH� GLVWULFW�DUH�VRP HZKDW�OLPLWHG��7KH�*���]RQH�
GLVWULFW�LV�LQWHQGHG�IRU�YHU\� KLJK�GHQVLW\��P L[HG�XVH��SHGHVWUL DQ�RULHQWHG�GHYHORSPHQWV��7KH�
VLPSOLILHG�VHWEDFN�DQG�GLPHQVLRQDO�VWDQGDUGV�WKDW �DUH�HIIHFWLYH�LQ�WUDGLWLRQDO�V LQJOH�XVH�]RQH�
GLVWULFWV�DUH�QRW�HIIHFWLYH�IRU�PRUH�FRPSOH[�GHYHORSPHQWV��,Q�RUGHU�WR�DGHTXDWHO\�JXLGH�WKH �
IRUP�DQG�IXQFWLRQ�RI�WKHVH�W\SHV�RI�GHYHORSP HQW�WKH�0RXQWDLQ�%DVH�$UHD�'HVLJQ�6WDQGDUGV�
ZHUH�DGRSWHG��DQDO\VLV�LQFOXGHG�LQ�VHFWLRQ�9,�F�����
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

���� 
��	



3WDUPLJDQ�,QQ�&RQGRV��3WDUPLJDQ�5HGHYHORSPHQW���'3)������� 3&�+HDULQJ������������
� &&�+HDULQJ�������������

� �
� �

6WDII�5HSRUW������������ � 3DJH�����

�

67$1'$5'� 0$;,080� 0,1,080� 352326('� &203/,(6"�
/RW�$UHD� 1R�0D[� 1R�PLQ� �����DFUHV� <HV�

/RW�&RYHUDJH� ����� 1R�PLQ� ����� <HV�

%XLOGLQJ�+HLJKW� 2+�±�����IW��
�� 1R�0LQ�� ���¶�

<HV��
Z�FRQGLWLRQ�RI�
DSSURYDO���

6HWEDFNV� � � � �

)URQW�%DFN�6LGH� ��

3HU�0WQ�7RZQ�6XE�
DUHD�3ODQ�UHT��WR�
SURYLGH�SXEOL F�
JDWKHULQJ�VSDFH�SHG��
FRUULGRU�

9DULHV� <HV�

3DUNLQJ� 1R�0D[� ���VSDFHV� ��� <HV�
2SHQ�6SDFH� 1R�0D[� ���� !���� <HV�
�

9,�� 352-(&7�$1$/<6,6�
7KH�IROORZLQJ�VHFWLRQ�SURYLGHV�VWDII�DQDO\VLV�RI�WKH�DSSOLFDWLRQ�DV�LW�UHODWHV�WR�NH\�VHFWLRQV�RI�
WKH�&'&�DQG�WKH�0RXQWDLQ�%DVH�$ UHD�'HVLJQ�6WD QGDUGV��,W�LV�LQWHQGHG�WR�KLJKOLJKW�WKRVH�
DUHDV�WKDW�PD\�EH�RI�LQWHUHVW �RU�FRQFHUQ�WR�3 ODQQLQJ�&RPPLVVLRQ��&LW\�&RXQFLO��VWDII�RU�WKH�
SXEOLF��)RU�D�FRP SUHKHQVLYH�OLVW�RI �VWDQGDUGV�D QG�UHTXLUHPHQWV�DSSOLFDEOH�WR�WKLV�SURSRVDO�
SOHDVH�UHIHU�WR�WKH�&'&�RU�FRQWDFW�WKH�VWDII�SODQQHU���

�
$��&5,7(5,$�)25�$33529$/�
�
&'&���6HFWLRQ��������G���1R�GHYHORSPHQW�SODQ� VKDOO�EH�DSSURYHG�XQOHVV�WKH�FLW\�FRXQFLO�
ILQGV�WKDW�WKH�SODQ�PHHWV�DOO�RI�WKH�IROORZLQJ�FULWHULD��
�
&'&���6HFWLRQ�������G������&RQIRUPLW\�ZLWK�&RPPXQLW\�3ODQ�
6WDII�$QDO\V LV��&RQVLVWHQW�� 7KH�3WDU PLJDQ�UH GHYHORSPHQW�SURMHFW�F RPSOLHV�ZLW K�DQG�
VXEVWDQWLDOO\�LP SOHPHQWV�WKH�OLVWHG�SROLFLHV�I URP�WKH�6W HDPERDW�6SULQJV�$ UHD�&RPPXQLW\�
3ODQ���%HORZ�LV�D�OLVWHG�RI�WKH�SROLFLHV�WKDW�VXSSRUW�WKH�SURSRVHG�SURMHFW���

*RDO�/8����2XU�FRPPXQLW\�ZLOO�SURPRWH� D�IXQFWLRQDO��FRPSDFW��DQG�PL[HG�XV H�
SDWWHUQ�WKDW�LQWHJUDWHV�DQG�EDODQFHV�UHVLGHQWLDO�DQG�QRQ�UHVLGHQWLDO�ODQG�XVHV��
/8�������)XWXUH�GHYHORSPHQW�ZLOO�EH�LQ�FRPSDFW�PL[HG�XVH�QHLJKERUKRRGV��
/8�������,QILOO�DQG�UHGHYHORSPHQW�ZLOO�RFFXU�LQ�DSSURSULDWH�ORFDWLRQV��DV�GHVLJQDWHG�E\�WKH�FLW\��
/8�������'HYHORS�DSSURSULDWH�ODQG�XVH�GHQVLWLHV�WR�VXSSRUW�WUDQVLW��
/8�������1HZ�QHLJKERUKRRGV�ZLOO�EH�ZHOO�FRQQHFWHG�E\�VWUHHWV��VLGHZDONV��WUDLOV��ZDONZD\V��DQG�
ELF\FOH�ODQHV��
�
*RDO�7����7KH�FRPPXQLW\�FRQVLGHUV�WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ�WR�EH�D�EDVLF�XWLOLW\�LQ�DOO�ODQG�XVH�
GHFLVLRQV��

���� 
��




3WDUPLJDQ�,QQ�&RQGRV��3WDUPLJDQ�5HGHYHORSPHQW���'3)������� 3&�+HDULQJ������������
� &&�+HDULQJ�������������

� �
� �

6WDII�5HSRUW������������ � 3DJH�����

�

7������1HZ�GHYHORSP HQW��LQFOXGLQJ�LQILOO�� VKDOO�EH�GHVLJQHG�WR�DFKLHYH�ZDONDEOH�
FRPPXQLWLHV�DQG�OLPLW�WULS�JHQHUDWLRQ��
7������1HZ�GHYHORSPHQW�VKDOO�LQFRUSRUDWH�WUDQVLW�IULHQGO\�GHVLJQ��
�
*RDO�7����7KH�FRPPXQLW\�ZLOO�VXSSRUW�LP SURYHPHQWV�WR�WKH� ORFDO�WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ�
V\VWHP��
7�������1HZ�GHYHORSPHQW�VKDOO�LQFOXGH�DQ�LQWHUFRQQHFWHG�SHGHVWULDQ�DQG�ELF\FOH�V\VWHP��
�
*RDO�('����6WHDPERDW�6SULQJV� ZLOO�KDYH�D�YLWDO��VXVWDLQDEO H��DQG�GLYHUVH�\HDU�URXQG�
HFRQRP\��
('������&RQWLQXH�WR�VXSSRUW�WRXULVP�UHODWHG�ODQG�XVHV��EXVLQHVVHV��DQG�PDUNHWLQJ��
('�����E���)RFXV�RQ�6NL�%DVH�$UHD�,PSURYHPHQWV�
�
*RDO�&'����2XU�FRPPXQLW\�ZLOO�SUHVHUYH�LW V�VPDOO�WRZQ�FKDUDFWHU�DQG�WKH�LPDJH�RI�
QHLJKERUKRRGV�DQG�WKH�FRPPXQLW\��
&'�������(QFRXUDJH�KLJK�TXDOLW\�VLWH�SODQQLQJ�DQG�EXLOGLQJ�GHVLJQ��
&'������, QILOO�DQG�U HGHYHORSPHQW�SU RMHFWV�V KDOO�EH �FRPSDWLEOH�ZLWK�WKH� FRQWH[W�RI�H [LVWLQJ�
QHLJKERUKRRGV�DQG�GHYHORSPHQW��
�
*RDO�&'����2XU�FRPPXQLW\� ZLOO�PDLQWDLQ�DQG�LPSURYH� WKH�DSSHDUDQFH�RI�LWV�
FRUULGRUV�DQG�JDWHZD\V�DQG�ZLOO�FRQWLQXH�WR�KDYH�YLEUDQW�SXEOLF�VSDFHV��
&'�������3XEOLF�EXLOGLQJV�DQG�SXEOLF�RXWGRR U�VSDFHV�VKDOO�FRQWLQX H�WR�EH�EXLOW�WR�D�KLJK �
GHVLJQ�VWDQGDUG��
&'�������1HZ�FRPPHUFLDO�GHYHORSPHQW�VKDOO�LQFRUSRUDWH�KLJK�TXDOLW\�SXEOLF�VSDFHV��
�
*RDO�63$����2XU�FRPPXQLW\�ZLOO�FRQWLQXH�WR �SURPRWH�WKH�0RXQWDLQ�$UHD�DV�WKH�IRFDO�
SRLQW�IRU�WRXULVP�DFWLYLW\��
63$�������3URPRWH�UHGHYHORSPHQW�RI�WKH�0W��:HUQHU�EDVH�DUHD��
63$�������&UHDWH�D�OLYHO\��\HDU�URXQG�PL[HG�XVH�FRPPHUFLDO�FRUH�IRU�WKH�0RXQWDLQ�DUHD��
63$������6XSSRUW�QHLJKERUKRRG�SODQQLQJ�IRU�0RXQWDLQ�DUHD�QHLJKERUKRRGV��
63$�������,PSURYH�SHGHVWULDQ�DQG�ELF\FOH�FLUFXODWLRQ�SDWWHUQV�LQ�WKH�0RXQWDLQ�$UHD�DQG�UHGXFH�
YHKLFXODU�FRQIOLFWV�DQG�WKH�YLVXDO�LPSDFW�RI�SDUNLQJ��
�
&'&�±�6HFWLRQ��������G������&RQVLVWHQF\�ZLWK�6XUURXQGLQJ�8VHV�
6WDII�$QDO\VL V��&RQVLVWHQW� �7KH�SURSRVHG�UHVLGHQWLDO�XVH�LV� FRQVLVWHQW�ZLWK�WKH�VXUURXQGLQJ�
UHVRUW�GHYHORSPHQW���7KH�GHYHORSPHQW�VXUURXQGLQJ�WKH�VXEMHFW�ORW�LV�DV�IROORZV���WR�WKH�HDVW�LV�
&KDWHDX[�&KDPRQL[�FRQGRV��WR�W KH�VRXWK�LV�3WDUPLJDQ�+RXVH�FRQGRV�DQG�,URQZRRG�&RQGRV ��
WR�WKH�ZHVW�LV�2QH�6WHDPERDW�3ODFH��DQG�WR�WKH�QRUWK�LV�WKH�VNL�DUHD�VORSHV�����

&'&�±�6HFWLRQ��������G�����0LQLPL]H�$GYHUVH�,PSDFWV��
6WDII�$QDO\VLV��&RQVLVWHQW��,W�LV�QRW�DQWLFLSDWHG�WKDW�WKH�SU RMHFW�ZLOO�KDYH�DQ\�DGYHUVH�LPSDFWV�
WR�VXUU RXQGLQJ�SU RSHUWLHV�RU�XVH V���7KH�EXLO GLQJ�KDV�EHH Q�GHVL JQHG�WR�VWHS�GRZQ�L Q�KHL JKW�
WRZDUGV�WKH�&KDWHDX[�&KDPRQL[�EXLOGLQJ�DQG�LV�VHWEDFN�DW�OHDVW���¶�IURP�WKH�FORVHVW�EXLOGLQJV�

���� 
���



3WDUPLJDQ�,QQ�&RQGRV��3WDUPLJDQ�5HGHYHORSPHQW���'3)������� 3&�+HDULQJ������������
� &&�+HDULQJ�������������

� �
� �

6WDII�5HSRUW������������ � 3DJH�����

�

WR�WKH�VRXWK���9LVXDO�LPS DFWV�KDYH�EHHQ�PLWLJDWHG�WKURXJK�YDULHG �XVH�RI �PDWHULDOV��VWHS�EDFNV�
LQ�EXLOGLQJ�PDVV��DQG�FKDQJHV�WR�URRI�SLWFK�DQG�URRI�KHLJKW�����

&'&�±�6HFWLRQ��������G�����$FFHVV�
6WDII�$QDO\ VLV��&R QVLVWHQW��$ FFHVV�LV�SURYLGHG �E\�D�VKDUHG�DFFH VV�HDVHPHQW�EHWZHHQ�
3WDUPLJDQ�,QQ�DQG�3WDUPLJDQ�+RXVH�IURP�$SUqV�6NL�:D\���7KLV�DFFHVV�ZLOO�DOVR�LQFOXGH�D�VL[�
IRRW�VLGHZDON���7KH�DFFHVV�LV�DO VR�DGHTXDWH�IRU�GHOLYHUL HV�WR� WKH�EXLOGLQJ�DQG�WUDVK�U HF\FOLQJ�
WUXFN�DFFHVV����

&'&�±�6HFWLRQ��������G�����0LQLPL]H�(QYLURQPHQWDO�,PSDFWV�
6WDII�$QDO\V LV��&RQVLVWHQW� �,W�GRHV�QRW�DSSHDU�WKDW�WKH� SURMHFW�ZLOO�KDYH�DQ\�VLJQLILFDQW�
HQYLURQPHQWDO�LPSDFWV�� �7KH�DSSOLFDQW�LV�UHTXLUHG�WR�FRPS O\�ZLWK�WKH�&LW\ ¶V�ZDWHU�TXDOLW\�
GUDLQDJH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�DQG�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�VLWH�PDQDJHPHQW�WR�PLQLPL]H�DQ\�DGYHUVH�LPSDFWV��

&'&�±�6HFWLRQ��������G�����3KDVLQJ�
6WDII�$QDO\VLV��&RQVLVWHQW� �7KH�D SSOLFDQW�LV�SU RSRVLQJ�WKDW� WKLV�SURMHFW�EH�FRPSOHWHG�ZLWKLQ�
RQH�SKDVH����

�
&'&�±�6HFWLRQ��������G�����&RPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�RWKHU�6WDQGDUGV���
6WDII�$QDO\VLV��&RQVLVWHQW� �'XH�WR�WKH�OLP LWHG�OHYHO�RI �GHWDLO�SURYLGHG�XQGHU�WKH�&RQFH SWXDO�
'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ�UH YLHZ�SURFHVV��WKH�SURSRVDO�GHPRQVWUDWHV�WKDW�WKHUH�D UH�QRW�REYL RXV�IDWDO�
IODZV�ZKHQ�L W�FRPHV�WR� FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�DOO�DSSOLFDEOH�VWDQ GDUGV�RI�WKH�&'&���7KH�DSSOLFDQW�
ZLOO�EH�UHTXLUHG�WR�VKRZ�FRPS OLDQFH�ZLWK�DOO�DSSOLFDEOH�VWDQ GDUGV�DW�WKH�WL PH�RI�)LQDO�
'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ����

&'&�±�6HFWLRQ��������G�����9DULDQFH�&ULWHULD���
6WDII�$QDO\VLV��1�$��7KH�SURSRVDO�GRHV�QRW�LQFOXGH�DQ\�UHTXHVWV�IRU�YDULDQFHV��

�
9,,�� 67$))�),1',1*�	�&21',7,216��

�
([LVWLQJ�)LQGLQJ�0RWLRQ�6HFWLRQ�RI�5HSRUW��
�
)LQGLQJ��
7KH�&RQFHSWXDO�'HYHORSPHQW� 3ODQ�IRU�WKH�3W DUPLJDQ�UHGHYHO RSPHQW���'3)��������WKDW �
LQFOXGHV����PXOWL�IDPLO\�XQLWV �ZLWKLQ�D��������� VTXDUH�IRRW�EXLOGLQJ�DQG�D�&RQGLWLRQDO�8VH�
DSSURYDO�IRU�PXOWL�IDPLO\�XVH�DO RQJ�WKH�SHGHVWULDQ�OHYHO�LV� FRQVLVWHQW�ZLWK�WKH�UHTXLUHG �
ILQGLQJV�IRU�DSSURYDO�ZLWK�WKH�IROORZLQJ�FRQGLWLRQV��
�
��� $SSURYDO�RI�D�'HYHORS PHQW�3ODQ�VKDOO� EH�OLPLWHG�WR �WK RVH�DVSHFWV�DQG�TXDOLWLHV�

H[SUHVVO\�GH SLFWHG�LQ�WK H�VXEPLWWD O��HLWKH U�LQ�Z RUGV�RU�JUD SKLFV��$SSU RYDOV�RI�VLWH�
GHVLJQ��DFFHVV��DQG�EXLOGLQJ�GHVLJQ��LQFO XGLQJ�KHLJKW�DQG�PDVVLQJ��DUH�LQWHQGHG�WR�
GHILQH�PLQLPXP�DQG�RU�PD[LPXP�DFFHSWDEOH�OLPLWV�DQG�DUH�VXEMHFW�WR�FRQILUPDWLRQ�DW�
)LQDO�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ��,QIRUPDWLRQ�LQFO XGLQJ��EXW�QRW�OLPLWHG�WR��J UDGLQJ�DQ G�

���� 
���



3WDUPLJDQ�,QQ�&RQGRV��3WDUPLJDQ�5HGHYHORSPHQW���'3)������� 3&�+HDULQJ������������
� &&�+HDULQJ�������������

� �
� �

6WDII�5HSRUW������������ � 3DJH�����

�

GUDLQDJH��XWLOLWLHV��EXLOGLQJ�IHQHVWUDWLRQ��ODQGVFDSLQJ�PD\�EH�GHSLFWHG�DQG�ODEHOHG�DV�
FRQFHSWXDO�RQO\�DQG�ZLOO�EH�U HYLHZHG�DV �V XFK�VXEMHFW�WR�DSSURYDO�DW�)LQDO�
'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ��

��� 6WDII�KDV�LGHQWLILHG�EXLOGLQJ�KHLJKW�RYHU� WKH�DOORZDEOH����¶�PD[LPXP�DW�WKH������
SLWFK�GRUPHU�WRZDUGV�WKH�PLGGOH�RI�WKH� ZHVW�HOHYDWLRQ���& KDQJHV�WR�WKH�EXLOGLQJ�
KHLJKW�LQ�WKLV�ORFDWLRQ�PXVW�EH�PDGH�SULRU�WR�DSSURYDO�RI�D�)LQDO�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ����

��� 7KH�QRUWK�IDoDGH�RI�WKH�HDVW�ZLQJ�GRHV� QRW�FRPSO\�ZLWK�EXLOGLQJ�PDVVLQJ�VWDQGDUGV�
DV�LW�GRHV�QRW�SURYLGH�IRU�SHGHVWULDQ�VF DOH�DUWLFXODWLRQ�DQG�PXVW�EH�IXUWKHU�
DUWLFXODWHG�SULRU�WR�DSSURYDO�RI�D�)LQDO�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ�DSSURYDO�

��� &RPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�%DVH�$UHD�'HVLJQ�6WDQGDUGV�IRU�SXEOLF�D PHQLWLHV�DQG�
FRQWULEXWLRQV�WR�85$�VKDOO�EH�GHPRQVWUDWHG�SULRU�WR�DSSURYDO�RI�D�)LQDO�
'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ��

��� &RPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�DOO�RWKHU�DSSOLFDEOH�VWDQGDUGV�QRW�DSSURYHG�WKURXJK�WKH�&RQFHSWXDO�
'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ�VKDOO�EH�GHPRQVWUDWHG�SU LRU�WR�DSSURYDO�RI�D�)LQDO�'HYHORSPHQ W�
3ODQ��

��� $Q�DSSURYHG�&RPPXQLW\�+RXVLQJ�3ODQ�VKDOO�EH�LQ�SODFH�SULRU�WR�DSSURYDO�RI�D�
EXLOGLQJ�SHUPLW�IRU�WKH�SURSRVHG�GHYHORSPHQW��

��� 9DFDWLRQ�RI�DOO�HDVHPH QWV�LGHQWLILH G�WR�IDFLOLWD WH�WKH�SURS RVHG�GHYHORSPHQW�ZLOO�EH�
UHTXLUHG�SULRU�WR�*UDGLQJ�([FDYDWLRQ�RU�%XLOGLQJ�3HUPLW�DSSURYDO���

��� $�ILQDO�SODW�LV�UHTXLUHG�WR�UHPRYH�DOO�OR W�OLQHV�FUHDWHG�E\�WK H�FRQGRPLQLXP�SODW��WR�
UHPRYH�RXWORW�ORW�OLQHV�� DQG�VKRZ�YDFDWHG�DQG�QHZ�HDVHPHQWV�SULRU�WR�
*UDGLQJ�([FDYDWLRQ�RU�%XLOGLQJ�3HUPLW���

��� 3XEOLF�DFFHVV�HDVHPHQWV�DQG�HPHUJHQF\�D FFHVV�HDVHPHQWV �ZLOO�EH�UHTXLUHG�IRU�DOO�
VLGHZDON�DQG�WUDLO�DUHD V�SULRU�WR�FRQGRP LQLXP�SODWWLQJ�RU �FHUWLILFD WH�RI�RFFXSDQF\�
ZKLFKHYHU�FRPHV�ILUVW���

����3ULRU�WR�DQ\�ZRUN�ZLWKLQ�WKH�%XUJHVV�&UHHN�IORRGSODLQ�D�)ORRGSODLQ�'HYHORSPHQ W�
3HUPLW�ZLOO�EH�UHTXLUHG���

����1R�SDUNLQJ�LV�DOORZHG�RXWVLGH�RI�WKH�SDU NLQJ�JDUDJH�IRU�FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�(PHUJHQF\�
$FFHVV�UHTXLUHPHQWV����

����7KH�GHYHORS HU�VKDOO�SD\�D�SURSRUWLRQDWH�VKDU H�RI�IXWXUH�WUDIILF�LPSURYHPHQWV�DV�
LGHQWLILHG�LQ �WKH�%DVH�$ UHD�0DV WHU�7UD IILF�6WXG \�WR �EH�FDOFXODWHG �DQG�DVVLJQHG�D W�
)LQDO�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ���

����7KH�52:�2XWORW�IRU�LQJUHVV�DQG�HJUHVV�PXVW� EH�YDFDWHG�SULRU�WR �EXLOGLQJ�SHUPLW�IRU�
WKH�SURSRVHG�EXLOGLQJ���

����7KH�SURSRVDO�GHSLFWV�JUDGLQJ� DQG�XWLOLW\�ZRUN�WKDW�LV �WR�EH�GRQH�RQ�DGMDFHQW�
SURSHUWLHV�DQG�D�VKDUHG�DFFHVV�HDVHPHQW�� �$SSURYDO�IURP�WKH�R ZQHU�RI�WK HVH�
SURSHUWLHV�DQG�DOO�SDUWLHV�WKDW�KROG�DQ�LQWHUHVW �LQ�WKH�HDVHP HQWV�PXVW�EH�SURYLGHG�WR�
WKH�&LW\�SULRU�WR�EXLOGLQJ�SHUPLW�RU�JUDGLQJ�DQG�H[FDYDWLRQ�SHUPLW����

����1R�KRUL]RQWDO�HQFURDFKPHQWV�LQWR�HDVHPHQWV�RU�DGMDFHQW�SURSHUWLHV�DUH�SHUPLWWHG����
����'RFXPHQWDWLRQ�IURP�D�UHIXVH�PDQDJHPHQW�FRPSDQ\�WKDW�WKH\�ZLOO�EH�DEOH�WR�VHUYH�WKH�

GHYHORSPHQW�DV�FRQILJXUHG�VKDOO�EH�JLYHQ�WR�WKH�&LW\�SULRU�WR�)LQDO�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ�
DSSURYDO����

����&RPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�VXVWDLQDEOH�GHVLJQ�UHTXLUHPH QWV�DV�OLVWHG�LQ�WKH�%DVH�$UHD�'HVLJQ�
*XLGHOLQHV�PXVW�EH�GHPRQVWUDWHG�SULRU�WR�&HUWLILFDWH�RI�2FFXSDQF\�IRU�WKH�EXLOGLQJ����

���� 
���



3WDUPLJDQ�,QQ�&RQGRV��3WDUPLJDQ�5HGHYHORSPHQW���'3)������� 3&�+HDULQJ������������
� &&�+HDULQJ�������������

� �
� �

6WDII�5HSRUW������������ � 3DJH������

�

����&RPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�VQRZ�UHWHQWLRQ�DQG�FDWFKPHQW�UHTXLUHPHQWV�VKDOO�EH�
GHPRQVWUDWHG�DW�WLPH�RI�)LQDO�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ������

����7KH�VDQLWD U\�VHZHU�UHS ODFHPHQW�G HVLJQ�LV�XQD FFHSWDEOH�D V�SURSRVHG� �'HVLJQLQJ�D�
PDQKROH�DSSURDFKLQJ����IHHW�LQ�GHSWK�FUHDWH V�D�VDIHW\�KD]DUG�IRU�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�DQG�
PDLQWHQDQFH�ZRUNHUV��& RRUGLQDWH�VHSDUDWH� PHHWLQJ�ZLWK�0RXQW�:HUQHU�:DWHU�WR�
GLVFXVV�RWKHU�RSWLRQV��

����9DULRXV�H[LVWLQJ�VDQLWDU\�VHZHU�GDWD�LV�LQ FRUUHFW�DV�VKRZQ��5HYLVH�DV �QHHGHG�SHU �
VHSDUDWH�PHHWLQJ�ZLWK�0RXQW�:HUQHU�:DWHU��

����3HU�WKH������VXEPLWWDO�ZH�FRPPHQWHG�WKDW�WKH� VDQLWDU\�VHZHU�PDLQ�PXVW�EH�UHSODFHG�
ZLWK�D���´�39&��5HYLVH�DOO�GUDZLQJV�DFFRUGLQJO\��

����0RUH�HQJ LQHHULQJ�LQIRU PDWLRQ�LV�U HTXLUHG� WR�GHWHUPLQH�IHDVLELOLW\��D QG�XOWLPDWH�
DSSURYDO��IRU�WKH�VHSDUDWLRQ�RI�WKH�SURSRVHG� VWRUP�VHZHU�ZLWK�WKH�VDQLWDU\�VHZHU��
0RXQW�:HUQHU�:DWHU�ZLOO�QRW�VXSSRUW�DQ\�SURM HFW�WKDW�LQWHQGV�WR� YDFDWH�ULJKW�RI�ZD\�
RU�XWLOLW\�HDVHPHQWV�ZKLFK�XOWLPDWH O\�OLPLW�WKH� 'LVWULFW¶V�DELOLW\�WR�PDLQ WDLQ�LWV�ZDWH U�
DQG�VHZHU�IDFLOLWLHV��

����$GG�DGMDFHQW�SURSHUW\�LQIRUPDWLR Q�WR�H[LV WLQJ�FRQGLWLRQ V�SODQ��LQFOXGLQJ�H[LV WLQJ�
HDVHPHQWV�RQ�263�SURSHUW\��(DVHPHQWV�VKRZQ�RQ�263�DUH�LQFRUUHFW��

����%DVHG�RQ�WKH������VX EPLWWDO��0R XQW�:HUQ HU� :DWHU�QRWLILHG�WKH�DS SOLFDQW�WKD W�LQ�
RUGHU�WR�SURYLGH�UHOLDEOH�ZDWHU�VXSSO\�WR� WKH�GHYHORSPHQW�ZDWHUPDLQ�ORRSLQJ�ZLOO�EH �
UHTXLUHG��7KH�SUHOLPLQ DU\�HQJLQ HHULQJ�DVVR FLDWHG�ZLWK �VX FK�UHYHD OHG�WKDW�ORRSLQ J�
ZRXOG�EH�YHU\�GLIILFXOW�DQG�FRVW O\��,Q�OLHX�RI�WK H�DERYH��DQG�WR�PHHW�WKH�JRDO�RI�ZDWHU�
V\VWHP�UHOLDELOLW\��0RXQW�:HUQHU�:DWH U�DQG�WKH�GHYHORSHU�DJUHHG�WR�XSVL]H�WKH�
ZDWHUPDLQ�LQ�$SUqV�6NL�:D\��0HHWLQJV�ZHUH �KHOG�ZLWK�WKH�GHYHORSHU��\HW�SODQV�ZHU H�
QHYHU�UHYLVHG�DV�WKH�HFRQRP\�GDPSHQHG�WKH� SURMHFW�VFKHG XOH��5HYLVH�GUDZLQJ�WR �
LQFOXGH�WKLV�VFRSH�RI�ZRUN��

�
3URSRVHG�)LQGLQJ�0RWLRQ�6HFWLRQ�IRU�5HSRUW��
�
$SSOLFDWLRQ�5HTXHVW�
7KH�DSSOLFDWLRQ�KDV�UHTXHVWHG�FRQFHSWXDO�GH YHORSPHQW�SODQ�DSSURYD O��FRPSOLDQFH�UHYLHZ�
DQG�RU�YDULDQFH�IRU�WKH�IROORZLQJ�VWDQGDUGV��PDUNHG�ZLWK�DQ�³;´����
�
�

67$1'$5'6� &RPSOLDQFH�
5HYLHZ��

9DULDQFH�
5HTXHVWHG�

'LPHQVLRQDO�6WDQGDUGV�������� ;� �
2SHQ�6SDFH� � �
/DQGVFDSLQJ� � �
3DUNLQJ���/RDGLQJ� � �
3HGHVWULDQ�&LUFXODWLRQ���6LGHZDONV���7UDLOV� � �
5HIXVH�0DQDJHPHQW� � �
6LWH�3ODQQLQJ��%XLOGLQJ�	�3DUNLQJ�2ULHQWDWLRQ� ;� �
6QRZ�6WRUDJH� � �
:DWHUERG\�6HWEDFNV� � �

���� 
���



3WDUPLJDQ�,QQ�&RQGRV��3WDUPLJDQ�5HGHYHORSPHQW���'3)������� 3&�+HDULQJ������������
� &&�+HDULQJ�������������

� �
� �

6WDII�5HSRUW������������ � 3DJH������

�

%XLOGLQJ�0DVVLQJ��)RUP�	�9DULHW\� ;� �
5RRI�)RUP�	�)XQFWLRQ� ;� �
3XEOLF�6SDFHV���&RPPXQLW\�$PHQLWLHV� � �
$FFHVV�/RFDWLRQ���9HKLFXODU� � �
8VH� � ;�
2WKHU�� � �
�,WHPV� PDUNHG�ZLWK �DQ�DVWHULVN �G HQRWH�WKH� PLQLPXP�VXE PLWWDO�UHTXL UHPHQWV� IRU�
FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�WKURXJK�WKH�&RQFHSWXDO�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ�SURFHVV���
7KH�IROORZLQJ�VWDQGDUGV�FDQQRW�EH� DSSURYHG�WKURXJK�WKLV�SURFHVV�DQG�PXVW�EH�DSSURYHG �
WKURXJK�DQ �)'3��ILQDO�XWLOLWLHV��I LQDO�JUDG LQJ��ILQDO� GUDLQDJH��ILQDO �DUFKLWHFWXUH��
IHQHVWUDWLRQ�WUDQVSDUHQF\��PDWHULDOV��FRORU��DQG�PHFKDQLFDO�HTXLSPHQW�ORFDWLRQ����
�
�
5HFRPPHQGHG�0RWLRQ��
�
�7H[W�LQ�ER OG�ZLOO�FKDQJH�SHU�SURMHFW��D OO� HOVH�ZLOO�EH�W KH�&'3�WHPSODWH�IRU�PRWLRQV�
DQG�DSSURYDO�OHWWHUV���
�
6WDII�UHFRPPHQGV�DSSURYDO�RI�WKH�IROORZLQJ�PRWLRQ�EDVHG�RQ�WKH�ILQGLQJ�WKDW�WKH�SURSRVHG�
SURMHFW�LV�FRQVLVWHQW�ZLWK�WKH�FULWHULD�IRU�DSSURYDO�RI�D�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ�SHU�&'&�6HF�����
����G����
�
7KH�&RQFHSWXDO�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ��&'3��IRU�WKH��3WDUPLJDQ�UHGHYHORSPHQW���'3)���������
LV�KHU HE\�D SSURYHG�IRU�W KH�IROORZL QJ�VWDQGDUGV�DV�UH TXHVWHG�E\�W KH�DSSOLFDWLRQ�� �ZLWKRXW�
YDULDWLRQV��GLPH QVLRQDO�VWD QGDUGV�IR U�*� ��]R QH�GLV WULFW��EXLO GLQJ�DQG�SDUNLQJ�
RULHQWDWLRQ��EXLOGLQJ�PDVVLQJ��IRUP��DQG�YDUL HW\�SHU�W KH�%DVH�$UHD �'HVLJQ�6WDQGDUGV��
URRI�I RUP�DQG�IXQFWL RQ�SHU�W KH�%DVH�$UHD�'HVLJQ�6WDQGDUGV��ZLWK�YDULDWLRQV��>QRQH@��
DQG�D� FRQGLWLRQDO�XVH �IRU�PXOWL�IDPLO\�XVH� DORQJ�WKH�SH GHVWULDQ�OHYHO��DV�GH SLFWHG�LQ�
SURSRVHG�SODQV�GDWHG�2FWREHU��������� ��ZKLFK�DUH�VXEMHFW �WR�F RQILUPDWLRQ�RI�FRQIRUPDQFH�
ZLWK�SURYLVLRQV�LQ�WKH�&'&�DW�WLPH�RI�)LQDO�'HYHORSPHQW�3ODQ��)'3����$OO�RWKHU�L QIRUPDWLRQ�
GHSLFWHG�LQ�W KH�DERYH�PHQWLRQHG�SODQV�LV�LOO XVWUDWLYH�RQO\�DQG�DUH�VXEMHFW�WR�DSSURYDO�DW�)'3�
DQG�DUH�127�DSSURYHG�DW�WKLV�WLPH�����
�
$W�WKH�WLPH�RI�)'3�WKH�DSSOLF DWLRQ�VKDOO�EH� LQ�VXEVWDQWLDO�FRQIRUPDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�DSSURYHG�
&'3��DOO�SURYLVLRQV�RI�WKH�&'&��DQG�DOO�RWKHU�DSSOLFDEOH�UHTXLUHPHQWV���,Q�WKH�HYHQW�WKDW�DQ�
DSSOLFDWLRQ�IRU�)'3�LV�QRW�LQ�VXEVWDQWLDO�FRQIRUPDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�DSSURYHG�&'3��WKH�DSSOLFDQW�
PXVW�HLWKHU�DPHQG�WKHLU�&'3�RU�VWDWH�LQ�ZULWLQJ�WR�WKH�GLUHFWRU�WKDW�WKH�DSSURYHG�&'3�LV�QR�
ORQJHU�DSSOLFDEOH����

�
9,,,��$77$&+0(176�

$WWDFKPHQW���±�3URMHFW�QDUUDWLYH��
� $WWDFKPHQW���±�3URMHFW�3DFNHW�

���� 
���



1 

Planning Commission Minutes 

02/23/12 DRAFT 

 

STEAMBOAT SPRINGS PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 
February 23, 2012 

 
The special meeting of the Steamboat Springs Planning Commission was called 
to order at approximately 5:02 p.m. on Thursday, February 23, 2012, in the 
Citizens’  Meeting  Room,  Centennial  Hall, 124 10th Street, Steamboat Springs, 
Colorado. 
 
Planning Commission members in attendance were Chairman Jason Lacy, Troy 
Brookshire, Brian Hanlen, Rich Levy, Kathi Meyer, Norbert Turek, and Jennifer 
Robbins. One alternate position is vacant. 
 
Staff members present were Director of Planning & Community Development 
Tyler Gibbs, Seth Lorson, City Planner, Bob Keenan, Senior Planner, Jen 
Johnson, Staff Assistant. 
 
_______________________________________________________________ 
 
Text Amendment to the CDC ~ DP & MEM #TXT-12-01 
 
Discussion on this agenda item started at approximately 5:02 p.m. 
 
Keenan- Hello. Tonight before you is a text amendment for short-term revisions 
to the Community Development Code that includes changes to the Development 
Plan to allow for reduced submittal requirements but the same review procedure 
of a development plan. Minor exterior modification changes to allow accessory 
structures to be processed through a review if they are 1,500 square-feet or less. 
To allow conditional uses to be processed with a reduced application fee of $500 
compared to $1,500. We also are recommending to remove the pre-application 
that goes to Planning Commission and City Council, now that we are proposing 
this new Conceptual Development Plan process. We feel that that takes the 
place of the pre-application to Planning Commission and City Council because 
there will be a vote with that Conceptual Development Plan. We are also looking 
at changes to the fee schedule to include administrative Final Development Plan, 
the base fee of $1,000; Community Housing Plan amendments would be $500; 
Final Development Plan, extending vesting requests for Final Development Plans 
at $500; and re-use revisions as I already mentioned at $500.  
 
Staff has provided the text amendment language within the draft ordinance. 
We’ve  also  provided  a  sample  staff  report  for  what  the  Conceptual  Development  
Plan would look like as well as a draft motion for that sample staff report, that 
specifically includes items that are approved through the Conceptual 
Development Plan process so that there is no questions in what is being 
approved  in  that  process.  We’ll  take  any  questions. 
 
Commissioner Robbins- Are we voting on the approval of the fee structure today 
as well? 
 
Keenan- Yes. 


���

vdietrich


vdietrich


vdietrich


vdietrich


vdietrich


vdietrich


vdietrich
Attachment 2

vdietrich


vdietrich




2 

Planning Commission Minutes 

02/23/12 DRAFT 

 

 
Chairman Lacy- But we are going to re-visit the whole fee structure as part of our 
whole  overall   fees  review.  We  are   just   looking  at   the  fees  that   they’ve  changed  
now. The short-term revision plan. 
 
Commissioner Robbins- But we will be seeing this again. 
 
Chairman Lacy- Yep. 
 
Lorson- We  will  also  be  revisiting  the  Conceptual  Development  Plan  so  we’ll  be  
revising  that.  That’s  why  it’s  only  the  short-term. 
 
Chairman Lacy- Right. Other questions? 
 
Commissioner Levy- On page 2-5, Attachment 1, where you describe the 
development plan and   you   say   in   bold   “commensurate   with   the   type   of   the  
development  plan   requested”   - I was thinking more accurate would be the type 
and complexity of the approval requested. Because with the Conceptual Plan, 
there’s   not   just   one   plan,   there’s   lots   of   variables on what a Conceptual 
Development Plan could look like. They could only be asking for a setback 
variance   and   things   like   that   and   it’s   really   a   broader   sense   of   things   that   we  
could be reviewing in the development plan and I just thought that that...because 
we still only have two types - a Final Development Plan and a Conceptual 
Development   Plan.   Those   aren’t   the   only   two   types   of   distinction...that   is   the  
purpose  of  a  development  plan.  Right,  so  it’s  a  little  broader  now.  Just  a  thought. 
 
Keenan- Yes, so  you’re  suggesting  add  complexity? 
 
Commissioner Levy- Type and complexity of the approval requested.  
 
Keenan- Yes, thank you. 
 
Chairman Lacy- I  don’t  see  any  issues  with  that;;  Commissioners  have  any  issues  
with that? O.K.  
 
Commissioner Levy- The other one was on the fee schedule on 2-15, we have all 
other development plans and we have base fee. Do you feel like we need to add 
a line that says Conceptual Development Plan and a fee for that specifically? Or 
is that still just the base? 
 
Keenan- Yes, we found the need to have the distinction between the two 
because all of the other development plans talk about a base fee of a $1,000. 
And it goes on to say with conditional uses. So I thought it would just be easier to 
separate the two.  
 
Commissioner Levy- I   said  Conceptual  Development  Plan.  You  don’t  have   that  
specifically listed.  
 


���



3 

Planning Commission Minutes 

02/23/12 DRAFT 

 

Keenan- It’s  just  going  to  be  a  process  in  the  Development  Plan.  And  that’s  if  you  
notice   in   the  code  section.  We  didn’t   create  a  new  process   for   the  Conceptual  
Development Plan.  It’s  under  the  heading  of  Development  Plan. 
 
Chairman Lacy- O.K. Anything else Rich? 
 
Commissioner Levy- Not really. 
 
Chairman Lacy- Other questions, comments? Brian? 
 
Commissioner Hanlen- 2-10,  down  at  the  bottom,  “regardless  of  the  wether  these  
aspects”  remove  “the”. 
 
Commissioner Robbins- I have a couple of other typos in that section. In the 
fourth   paragraph   in   the   first   line,   it   says   “included   the  City   Council  motion...”   I  
think  it  should  say  “included  in  the  City  Council  motion.” 
 
And then on the first paragraph on 2-11, 7th line down, in front of Final 
Development  Plan,  it  should  be  “a”  not  “an”. 
 
Chairman Lacy- Same thing on the 11th line down. 
 
Keenan- Thank you. 
 
Chairman Lacy- Anything else Jen?  
 
Commissioner Robbins- I  didn’t  have  any  more  typos but I did have a suggestion. 
On 2-13,   (d)   (2),   “Pre-applications will be be reviewed....as decided by the 
applicant.”   Is   that   normally   decided   by   the   applicant?   Wouldn’t   that   be   up   to  
Planning Staff or TAC? 
 
Keenan- I think it is up to the applicant. Staff review only is no charge. They can 
elect   just   to  do  the  staff  review.  We  would  caveat   in  our  review  that  we  haven’t  
reviewed it with any other agencies and we would suggest that they do so and 
pay the $100 fee and go to the TAC.  
 
Commissioner Robbins- O.K.  
 
Gibbs- I think you are right, we would certainly advise the applicant to go through 
the TAC process if we thought it was warranted.  
 
Commissioner Robbins- O.K.  
 
Chairman Lacy- Brian? 
 
Commissioner Hanlen- Did staff have any follow-up with the discussion of last 
Thursdays meeting on how well substantial conformance, the definition, is going 
to be able to be applied to this if we feel that needs to be revised or if we feel we 


���



4 

Planning Commission Minutes 

02/23/12 DRAFT 

 

need to make to versions of substantial conformance based on the size of the 
project? Or have you had any discussion about that? 
 
Gibbs- In having read through the definition of substantial conformance once 
again.   It   is  quite  extensive  and  specific.   I’m  comfortable  that   it  adequate  for  our  
needs in this case as well.  
 
Commissioner Hanlen- Regardless of size? 
 
Gibbs- Yes. 
 
Chairman Lacy- Other questions or comments? Back on 2-11, the second 
sentence at the top, it uses the phrase substantially conformed. Do we need to 
change that in order to be in line with the definition? Just say   “shall   be   in  
substantial  conformance  with  the  approved  Conceptual  Development  Plan.”   
 
Keenan- No problem. 
 
Chairman Lacy- And   then   the   next   sentence,   it   says   “   Aspects   of   the   Final  
Development Plan not approved as part of the Conceptual Development Plan 
shall  conform  to  all  provisions  of  the  CDC.”  Do  we  need  to  change  that  to  read,  
“all  aspects  of   the  Final  Development  Plan  shall  be   in  substantial  conformance  
with all provisions of the CDC. Or maybe we should be something in there like 
“all  aspects  of  the Final Development Plan, unless otherwise approved as part of 
the Conceptual Development Plan, shall be in substantial conformance with all 
provisions  of  the  CDC.”  Does  that  make  sense? 
 
Commissioner Turek- Is it possible just to amend the definition of substantial 
conformance  so  that  it  include  the  verb  form.  You’ve  got  a  noun,  and  if  you  have  
to modify every sentence to that it uses the noun. You could just change the 
definition instead of constantly twisting sentences around to make it work. But if 
you think this is more consistent with the CDC, we can do it that way. 
 
(side  discussions  of  “substantial  conformance”  - definition, use and meaning). 
 
Gibbs- If  we  may,  we’ll  review  this  with  the  City  Attorney  and  make  sure  that  we  
are in line with use of the   term.   I   couldn’t   tell   you   if   it  was  used   in  a  variety  of  
ways in the code right now or not. So what we are talking about here, gets us into 
looking into the whole code to see if we are consistent or are not. If it is not 
consistent, then simply a clarification to the definition. So those terms are equal 
would  satisfy  that.  If  it  isn’t  consistent  then  we’ll  make  sure  that  it  is  consistent. 
 
Commissioner Robbins- Back  to  Jason’s  point  on  that  sentence.  I  think  it  would  
be written better if it was a positive not a negative. I think that was your original 
point.  
 
Chairman Lacy- Right.  
 


��	



5 

Planning Commission Minutes 

02/23/12 DRAFT 

 

Gibbs- I’ve  made  that  note. 
 
Keenan- Jason, to get back to your question to the correction of the sentence, 
“all  aspects  of  the  Final  Development  Plan,  unless  otherwise  approved as part of 
the Conceptual Development Plan, shall be in substantial conformance with all 
provisions   of   the  CDC.”  We   don’t   want   to   use   substantial   conformance   in   that  
case   because   we   are   saying   that   the   stuff   that   we   hadn’t   reviewed   yet   to  
Conceptual Development   Plan   still   needs   to   meet   the   CDC   and   can’t   just   be  
somewhere   within   there.   We   would   still   like   to   do   “all   aspects   of   the   Final  
Development  Plan”  - otherwise...Tyler do you have that language? 
 
Gibbs- Yes. 
 
Chairman Lacy- Other questions? O.K. Anything else from staff on this?  
 
Commissioner Levy- On page 2-20, somebody unintentionally misspelled the 
City  Council  President’s  last  name.   
 
Chairman Lacy- I’ll  come  to  commissioners  for  a  deliberation  and  a  motion. 
 
MOTION 
 
Motion by Commissioner Robbins to approve Text Amendment to the CDC ~DP 
& MEM #TXT-12-01 and a second by Commissioner Meyer.  
 
VOTE 
Vote: 7; 0 
Voting for approval of motion to approve: Lacy, Brookshire, Hanlen, Levy, Meyer, 
Turek and Robbins.  
One alternate position is vacant. 
 
Discussion on this agenda item ended at approximately 5:18 p.m. 
 
APPROVAL OF FEBRUARY 9, 2012 MEETING MINUTES 
 
Chairman Lacy- Did everyone get the final review on those?  
 
(All nod). 
 
Commissioner Meyer- I   have   one   change.   Please   find   and   replace   “Erik”   with  
“Eric”. 
 
MOTION 
Commissioner moved to approve Levy the Planning Commission Meeting 
minutes   from   February   9,   2012   with   Meyer’s   edit.      Commissioner   Robbins  
seconded the motion. 
 
VOTE 


��




6 

Planning Commission Minutes 

02/23/12 DRAFT 

 

Vote: 7; 0 
Voting for approval of motion to approve: Lacy, Brookshire, Hanlen, Levy, 
Robbins, and Meyer 
Abstaining:  
One alternate position is vacant. 
 


���



 1

CITY OF STEAMBOAT SPRINGS 
 

ORDINANCE NO.  _____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 26-65 DEVELOPMENT 
PLAN; AMEND SECTION 26-42 DEVELOPMENT REVIEW; 
AMEND SECTION 26-60 PRE-APPLICATION REVIEW; 
AMEND SECTION 26-78 MINOR EXTERIOR MODIFICATION; 
AND AMEND THE DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION FEE 
SCHEDULE. 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council adopted the revised Community 

Development Code as Ordinance #1802 on July 23, 2001; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Steamboat Springs is committed to a regular, 

ongoing review of the Community Development Code so that the provisions 
contained therein are relevant and applicable to the community at any given 
point in time; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that it is proper and 

necessary to allow for the conceptual review and approval of development plans 
and with this conceptual review it is no longer necessary to have pre-application 
review at the Planning Commission and City Council level; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has found it appropriate to modify the minor 

exterior modification process to allow the administrative review of accessory 
structures of 1,500 square-feet or less; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds it appropriate to update the 

Development Application Fee Schedule to allow for a reduced conditional use 
application fee, to amend the pre-application fee, and to create new fees for: 
community housing plan amendment, administrative final development plan, and 
final development plan vesting extension requests.   

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF STEAMBOAT SPRINGS, COLORADO: 
 

SECTION 1 
 

New language in bold and old language in strikethrough. 
 
Sec. 26-65. Development plan.  
 
(a) Purpose. The development plan is intended to allow public review of development 
proposals at a level of detail commensurate with the type and complexity of 


���



 2

development plan requested where informed decisions can be made by the planning 
commission and city council.  
 
(b) Applicability. Approval of a development plan is required for: 
 
  (1) Applications for a conditional use (when the development plan is utilized 

for a conditional use that does not involve external modifications to a 
structure, no final development plan is required); 

 
  (2) Applications for development of a site with PUD, or a major amendment 

to an existing PUD pursuant to section 26-81 or 26-82; 
 
  (3) Applications for development of a site requesting two (2) or fewer 

variations to dimensional, or development standards listed in article V, 
development standards where such variations do not qualify as minor 
adjustments in section 26-69. 

 
  (4) Applications for a variation from more than two (2) dimensional, or 

development standards listed in article V development standards, where 
such variances do not qualify as minor adjustments (section 26-69). Such 
applications shall be processed as a PUD pursuant to section 26-81 or 26-
82. (For the purposes of determining the number of variations, each 
dimensional standard, regardless of the number of buildings it is applied 
to, shall count for one variation; each development standard provision 
shall count as one variation. Example of this is when a front setback and 
side setback variance are requested, that constitutes two (2) variations. 
Example: when a parking space and parking size variation are requested, 
that shall constitute two (2) variations. Example: when a front setback 
variation is requested for any number of structures, that constitutes one 
variation.) 

 
 (5) In addition to subsection 26-65(b)(1) & (3) above, a conceptual review 

of a development plan is permitted (Conceptual Development Plan) 
for applications for development of a site where an applicant is 
requesting limited approval per subsection 26-65(e)(7) below.   

 
(c) Submittal requirements. Submittal requirements are set forth in forms maintained by 
the director.  
 
(d) Criteria for review and approval. No development plan shall be approved unless the 
planning commission and city council find that the plan meets all of the following 
criteria: 
 
  (1) Conformity with community plan. The development plan significantly 

furthers the preferred direction and policies outlined in the community 
plan or approved master plans. 


���



 3

 
  (2) Consistency with surrounding uses. The proposed development shall be 

consistent with the character of the immediate vicinity of the parcel 
proposed for development, or shall enhance or compliment the mixture of 
uses, structures and activities present in the immediate vicinity. 

 
  (3) Minimize adverse impacts. The design and operating characteristics of the 

proposed development shall minimize any adverse impacts on surrounding 
uses and shall not cause a nuisance, considering factors such as proposed 
setbacks, planned hours of operation, and the potential for odors, noise, 
smoke, dust, glare, vibrations, shadows, and visual impacts from the 
proposed development. 

 
  (4) Access. Access to the site shall be adequate for the proposed development, 

considering the width, grades, and capacities of adjacent streets and 
intersections and the entrance to the site. The adequacy of the facilities 
provided for any necessary service delivery, parking and loading, and 
trash removal shall also be considered. When appropriate, public 
transportation or other public or private transportation services and 
appropriate pedestrian facilities shall be made available to serve the use. 

 
  (5) Minimize environmental impacts. The proposed development shall 

minimize its adverse impacts on the natural environment, including water 
quality, air quality, wildlife habitat, vegetation, wetlands, and natural 
landforms. 

 
  (6) Phasing. If the proposed development is to be developed in phases, then 

each phase shall contain the required streets, utilities, landscaping, and 
other improvements that are necessary and desirable for residents of the 
project for that phase. Each phase of the phasing plan shall meet the 
requirements of the CDC on its own unless a variation is granted. If the 
development incorporates any amenities for the benefit of the city, such as 
trail connections, these shall be constructed within the first phase of the 
project, or, if this is not practical, then as early in the project as is 
reasonable. 

 
  (7) Compliance with other standards. The proposed development shall 

comply with all other applicable requirements of this CDC, including 
article V, development standards. 

 
  (8) Variance criteria. Development plans, in all zone districts with the 

exception of the Gondola one (G-1), Gondola two (G-2), resort residential 
one (RR-1), and resort residential two (RR-2) seeking variation from up to 
two (2) of dimensional, development or subdivision standards listed in 
article V, development standards and article VII, subdivision standards, 
where such variances do not qualify as minor adjustments shall meet the 


���



 4

following criteria for approval in addition to the criteria in subsections 26-
65(e)(1)--(8): 

 
  a. Legal use. The property and the use of such property for which the 

variance is requested is in full compliance with all requirements of 
the zone district in which the property is located, or there is a legal 
nonconforming structure or lot, or there is a conforming structure 
housing a legal nonconforming use. No variance may be granted 
which would permit or expand any unlawful use of property. 

 
  b. Injury to adjoining property mitigated. The variance will not 

permanently injure or adversely impact legal conforming uses of 
adjacent property; or the applicant has accurately assessed the 
impacts of the proposed variance and has agreed to mitigate those 
impacts. In making this determination the city council shall begin 
with the assumption that variations from development standards 
create impacts on adjacent properties, and shall place the burden of 
proof on the applicant to show: 

 
  1. Impacts to adjacent properties are presumed. 
 
  2. That there are no impacts, or that the impacts have been 

adequately mitigated. Unsupported opinions of impacts 
from surrounding property owners shall not be conclusive 
evidence of impacts. 

 
  c. Advantages outweigh disadvantages. The applicant shall bear the 

burden of proof and demonstrate that the advantages of the 
variance substantially outweigh its disadvantages to the 
community and to neighboring lands. 

 
  d. Superior development. The applicant shall demonstrate that the 

requested variation(s) from the dimensional or development 
standards will result in a development which better meets the intent 
of the underlying zone district and adopted plans. 

 
  e. Minimum relief. The applicant shall demonstrate that the requested 

variation(s) is (are) the least modification possible of the CDC that 
will meet the design goals of the development. 

 
  (9) Variance criteria. Development plans, in the Gondola one (G-1), Gondola 

two (G-2), resort residential one (RR-1), and resort residential two (RR-2) 
zone districts seeking variation from any dimensional, development or 
subdivision standards listed in article V, development standards and article 
VII, subdivision standards, shall meet the following criteria for approval in 
addition to the criteria in subsections 26-65(d)(1)--(7):(Note: No variations 


���



 5

are permitted to height or the base area design standards per this variance 
process.) 

 
  a. Legal use. The property and the use of such property for which the 

variance is requested is in full compliance with all requirements of 
the zone district in which the property is located, or there is a legal 
nonconforming structure or lot, or there is a conforming structure 
housing a legal nonconforming use. No variance may be granted 
which would permit or expand any unlawful use of property. 

 
  b. Equal enjoyment. The variance will not constitute a grant of 

special privilege inconsistent with the limitation upon uses of other 
properties in the vicinity and zoning district in which the subject 
property is located. 

 
  c. Hardship. The special circumstances of the subject property make 

the strict enforcement of the provisions of this CDC an 
unnecessary hardship to the property owner. 

 
  d. Hardship not self-imposed. The special circumstances of the 

subject property are not the result of the actions of the applicant. 
 
  e. Special circumstances. The variance is necessary because of 

special circumstances relating to the size, shape, topography, 
location or surroundings of the subject property, to provide it with 
use rights and privileges permitted to other properties in the 
vicinity and in the zoning district in which the subject property is 
located. 

 
  f. Height variation. Under no circumstances will variances to the 

maximum height in the Gondola one (G-1), Gondola two (G-2), 
resort residential one (RR-1), and resort residential two (RR-2) 
zone districts be permitted. 

 
  g. Design standards variation. Under no circumstances will variances 

to the Mountain Base Area Design Standards in the Gondola one 
(G-1), Gondola two (G-2), resort residential one (RR-1), and resort 
residential two (RR-2) zone districts be permitted.  

 
(e) Term and effect of approval. 
 
  (1) Approval of a development plan shall be final as of the date of city council 

approval. 
 
  (2) Approval of a development plan shall remain effective for a period of two 

(2) years from the date of approval, or other time frame approved by city 


���



 6

council through a development agreement pursuant to section 26-203. Any 
request for approval longer than two (2) years must be made concurrently 
with the application for the development plan. 

 
  (3) Revisions to the development plan required as a condition of approval 

must be made within one year from the date of approval. 
 
  (4) If a complete application for a final development plan is not filed with the 

department within the approval term, the development plan shall be 
considered expired. (This provision shall not apply if the development 
plan was obtained solely for approval of a conditional use where no 
exterior modifications to a structure were required. In that instance, the 
conditional use is required to have been executed within the approval 
term, or the development plan shall be considered expired. If an active 
building permit has been obtained for the conditional use or part thereof, 
and the term of approval for the development plan expires, the 
development covered under the active building permit may continue; 
however, the development plan approval shall be considered expired and 
no new building permits may be issued based on the expired approval. 
Once the development plan or part thereof has been fully executed, the 
approval or part thereof shall remain in effect for perpetuity or until 
amended.) 

 
  (5) Approval of a development plan does not relieve the project from meeting 

the requirements of the CDC where inconsistencies between the 
development plan and the requirements of the CDC may exist; and 

 
  (6) Approval of a development plan does not relieve the project from meeting 

all other applicable local, state, and federal regulations.  
 
 (7) A development plan, processed as a Conceptual Development Plan, 

shall result in the approval of only those aspects and qualities of the 
proposed development specifically identified in the application and 
included in the City Council motion approving the Conceptual 
Development Plan.  The Conceptual Development Plan process may 
be used to obtain approval of site design, access, and building design, 
including height and massing. 

  
  The applicant may present information relating to other aspects of the 

proposed development including, but not limited to, grading and 
drainage, utilities, building fenestration, and landscaping.  These 
aspects should be depicted and labeled as illustrative only.  Regardless 
of whether these aspects are depicted and labeled as illustrative, the 
City will review them as such and a Conceptual Development Plan 
approval shall not convey any approval or representation by the City 
as to the compliance of these aspects with the Community 


���



 7

Development Code. 
  
  All development approved via the Conceptual Development Plan 

process shall be required to obtain Final Development Plan approval.  
The Final Development Plan application shall be in substantial 
conformance with the approved Conceptual Development Plan.  All 
aspects of the Final Development Plan, unless otherwise approved as 
part of the Conceptual Development Plan, shall conform to all 
provisions of the CDC.  In the event an application for a Final 
Development Plan does not conform to the approved Conceptual 
Development Plan the application shall be denied and the 
developer shall either amend the Conceptual Development Plan, 
submit a new application for a Development Plan, or submit a new 
application for Final Development Plan that conforms to the 
approved Conceptual Development Plan. 

 
(f) Modifications. Modifications to a development plan may be accomplished through the 
final development plan process, as long as the modifications are in substantial 
conformance with the approved development plan as determined by the director. 
Modifications that are not in substantial conformance with the development plan require 
an application for approval for a new development plan, which shall be processed 
through the public review process (see section 26-47). The director shall have full 
discretion to determine the submittal requirements and review process for all proposed 
amendments.  
(Ord. No. 2187, § 1, 6-3-08; Ord. No. 2254, § 6, 7-7-09) 
 

 
SECTION 2 

 
New language in bold and old language in strikethrough 

 
Sec. 26-42 Development Review  


���



 8

Table 26-42 Review Procedures Table 
X Required 

notice 
CU Call Up PC Planning Commission TAC Technical advisory committee 

A Appeal 
body 

Dir Director of Planning and 
Community Development 

PUD Planned Unit Development ( ) An extra review that may be required by the 
Director or requested by the applicant 

BOA Board of 
Adjustment 

DM Decision Maker R Reviewing body < > Public hearing 

CC City 
Council 

HPC Historic Preservation 
Commission 

SPO Surrounding property owner { } Consent agenda 

 
Requirements for all applications 
1) A complete submittal in accordance with subsections (d) and (f) of Section 26-42 is required prior to review. 
2) Additional Technical submittals -  During the processing of a complete application, if the city or any review agency identifies any additional materials that are 
needed to accurately evaluate the potential impacts of the proposed application the additional materials will be provided In accordance with subsection (g)  of Section 
26-42 
3) Burden of proof. The applicant for development approval shall bear the burden of presenting sufficient competent evidence to support the standards for approval 
set forth by this article. 
 
Review Procedures 

Types of Applications Public Notice Requirements Admin Review Public Review Final 
Document  SPO Notice (26-

51(c)) 

Post Publish Mineral 
Rights 

Pre-
submittal TAC Dir HPC PC BOA CC 

 
  

Appli-
cation 

Public 
hearing 
/final 

decision 

La
nd

 U
se

/S
ite

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

Community plan 
land use map 
amendment (§ 26-
32) 

X X  X  X (R)   <R>   Resolution 

Pre-application 
review (§ 26-46) X X X X X X (R)   (<R>)  (<R>) Letter 

CDC text 
amendments (§ 26-
61) 

   X  X (R)  (<R>) <R> (<R>) <DM> Ordinance 

Official Zoning 
map amendment (§ 
26-62) 

X X X X X X R   <R>  
<DM> 

Ordinance 

Regulating Plans (§ 
26-90) X X X X X X R   <R>  <DM> Approval 

Letter 
Annexations (§ 26-
63) X X X X X X R   <R>  <DM> Ordinance 

Use with criteria (§ 
26-64)        DM    A Signed 

form 
Development plan 
(§ 26-65) X X X X X X R  (<R>) <R>  {DM} Approval 

letter 
Development Plan 
with PUD (§§ 26-65 
& 26-81) 

X X X X X X R  (<R>) <R>  
<DM> Approval 

letter 
PUD – minor 
amendment X X X X   (R) DM     Approval 

letter 
Final development 
plan (FDP) (§ 26-
66) 

X X X X X X R  (<R>) <R>  <DM> Signed 
FDP 

Minor adjustment 
(§ 26-69)  X X X   (R) DM    A See 26-

69(f) 
Variance (§ 26-70) X X X X  X (R)    <DM> A Bldg 

Permit 
Waterbody setback 
variance (§ 26-71)  X X X  X (R)   <R>  {DM} Bldg 

Permit 
Floodplain 
development permit 
(§ 26-72) 

      (R) DM    A Permit 

Written 
interpretation (§ 26-
73) 

           A Letter 

Master sign plan (§ 
26-75)       (R) DM    A Approval 

letter 
Sign permit (§ 26-
76)       (R) DM    A Permit 

Change of use (§ 
26-77) X X X X    DM    A Signed 

form 
Minor exterior 
modification (§ 26-
78) 

 X X X  X (R) DM    CU Approval 
letter 

Vacation Home 
Rental Permit (§ 26-
88) 

  X X    DM    A License 

Administrative FDP 
(§ 26-89)  X X X X X (R) DM  CU  CU Approval 

letter 
Telecommunication 
Facility (§ 26-
147(g)) 

 X X X  X (R) DM  (<R>)  (<R>) Approval 
letter 

Building Permit Bldg 


��	



 9

 
SECTION 3 

 
New language in bold and old language in strikethrough 

 
Sec. 26-60. Pre-application review.  
 
(a) Purpose. The purpose of the pre-application review is generally to provide 
information to potential applicants before substantial commitments of time and money 
are made in connection with the proposed development. The pre-application review seeks 
to assist or aid the applicant to: 
 
  (1) Identify the necessary materials for the submittal package that the 

applicant will be required to prepare; 
 
  (2) Identify and coordinate the required procedures for review and approval; 
 
  (3) Identify the requirements and standards that may apply to the specific 

project; 
 
  (4) Identify probable referral and review agencies within the TAC and others 

if necessary; 
 
  (5) Obtain preliminary feedback from review agencies as necessary; and 
 
  (6) Identify other possible issues that may arise under this CDC.  
 
(b) Applicability. Pre-application review with planning commission and/or city council 
may be requested by the applicant.  
 
(c) Submittal requirements. Submittal requirements are set forth in forms maintained by 
the director.  
 
(d) Scope and effect of review. 
 
  (1) The primary issues and information to be discussed at the pre-application 

review are those listed in subsection (a). 
 
  (2) Pre-applications will be reviewed by Planning Staff or TAC or both, 

as decided by the applicant.  Pre-applications will not be reviewed by 
Planning Commission or City Council.  Comments and opinions offered 

  
Su

bd
iv

is
io

n 
Preliminary plat (§ 
26-67) X X X X X X R     <DM> Approval 

letter 
Preliminary plat/PUD 
(§ 26-67 & §26-81)      X      <DM> Approval 

letter 
Final plat (§ 26-68)  X X X X  (R) DM    CU Plat 
Lot line adjustment (§ 
26-79)       (R) DM    A Plat 

Lot line elimination 
(§ 26-80)       (R) DM    A Plat 


��




 10

by the planning commission or city council during a pre-application 
review are advisory only, and will not affect their consideration of formal 
development applications when they occur. 

 
  (3) Effect of review. There shall be no real or implied approval or denial of an 

application as a result of the pre-application review. The pre-application 
review is intended to assist applicants in understanding city requirements 
and procedures, as well as to identify possible issues that could delay 
consideration of the application if they are not identified early in the 
process. Statements made by staff members during the pre-application 
review are statements of opinion and are not intended to establish final 
positions or conclusions on the part of the city.  

(Ord. No. 2187, § 1, 6-3-08) 
 

SECTION 3 
 
New language in bold and old language in strikethrough 
 
Section 26-78.  Minor Exterior Modification 
 
(b) Applicability. Approval of a minor exterior modification shall be required for any 
changes to the exterior of an existing multi-family or commercial structure including: 
 
  (1) Changes of materials; 
 
  (2) Significant changes in primary or secondary color; and, 
 
  (3) Significant changes in window or door locations or sizing.  
 

Examples of the above include change of color to a multi-family or 
commercial building from white to bright blue, the change of materials on 
a multi-family or commercial building from wood to vinyl siding or 
adding additional entryways to a retail building. 

 
(4) Approval of a minor exterior modification shall also be required for any 

building addition or new accessory structure that involves less than one 
thousand five hundred (1,500) square feet of additional floor area.  

 
 

SECTION 4 
 
b. New language and fees in bold and old language in strikethrough. 
 


���



 11

DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING SERVICES 
DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION FEES 

Effective:  November 16, 2010 
 
All required fees include processing and publication costs and shall be 
paid in full at the time of application for approval of the development 
application.  The staff or Planning Commission shall not consider a 
development application unless it is deemed complete with the required 
fee paid in full.  No fees are refundable for any processing or partial 
processing of a development application.  Fees are not required for City-
initiated applications. 
 
 
 (1) Pre-Application Review 

Staff Review 
Only……………………………………………………………………………………
………………..… No Charge 
Staff Review and TAC 
Review…………………………………………………………………………………
…………… $100 
Staff Review, TAC Review, and  
Planning Commission and/or City Council 
Review…………………………………….………………….… $1,000 

 
Note:  Pre-Applications that are reviewed by Staff, TAC, Planning Commission and 
City Council will receive a credit of $500 of the $1000 pre-application fee toward a 
formal development application for the same project at the time that the formal 
development application is submitted. 

 
(2) Community Plan Land Use 
Amendment……………………………………………………………..… $3,500 
 
(3) Community Development Code Text 
Amendment……………………………………………... $3,500 
 
(4) 
Annexation...………………………………………………………………………………
……………….….… $2,000 deposit, 

 with final cost dependent upon processing time @ $50/hour 
 
(5) Official Zoning Map 
Amendment……………………………………………………………………………. $2,000 


���



 12

 
(6) Development Plan 

Conditional Use review only – No external modifications or development 
review…………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………..…$500 

 
All other Development Plans  
Base 
Fee……………………………………………………………………………………
……………….……………………….. $1,000 
 

With Conditional 
Use……………………………………………………………………………………

……. $500 additional 
With Structure without 

variations…………………………………………………………………….. $500 additional 
With Structure with 1 

variation………………………………………………………………………….$500 additional 
With Structure with 2 

variations…………………………………………………………………………$750 additional 
 

PUD……………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………….. $2,000 additional  

        (A PUD does not pay any of the above additional fees.) 
 

For each 1,000 square feet of gross floor area in the development  
over 5,000 
sf……………………………………………………………………………………………..…
……………. $50/1,000 sf 

         (This additional fee does apply to a PUD.) 
 

(7) Final Development Plan 
If the project has completed or required review as a Development 
Plan.…………………… $1,000 
If the project has not completed or required review as a Development 
Plan………………$1,500 
 
For each 1,000 square feet of gross floor area in the development over 
5,000sf………………………………..………………………………………………
………………………..$50/1,000 sf 
 

(8) Administrative Final Development 
Plan…………………………….…………………………………$1,000 

For each 1,000 square feet of gross floor area in the development over 


���



 13

5,000sf………………………………..………………………………………………
………………………..$50/1,000 sf 

 
(9) Final Development Plan Vesting Extension 
Review……………………………..………………$500 
 
(10)Community Housing Plan 
Amendment……………………………………………………….……….…..$500 

No fee for Community Housing Plans submitted as part of a Development Plan or 
Final Development Plan 
 

(11) Preliminary Plat 
Base Fees: 
1 to 6 Lots or Units 
…………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………… $1,000 
7 to 15 Lots or Units 
…………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………. $1,500 
16+ Lots or 
Units……………………………………………………………………………………
……………………………. $2,000 
Vacation of Right-of-
Way………………………………………………………….…………………………
……………… $800 
 
One 
Variation………………………………………………………………………………
……………………… $500 additional 
Two 
Variations………………………………………………………………………………
…………………….. $750 additional 
Three 
Variations………………………………………………………………………………
……………….$1,000 additional 
Four 
Variations………………………………………………………………………………
………………….$1,250 additional 

 
(12) Final Plat 

1 to 3 Lots or 
Units………..…………………………………………………………………………
…………………………….. $500 
4 to 6 Lots or Units 


���



 14

…………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………….. $700 
7 to 15 Lots or Units 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………$1,000
16+ Lots or Units  
…………………………………………………………………………………………
……………………… $1,200 
Easement 
Vacation………………………………………………………………………………
………………………………. $400 

 
(13) Use with Criteria 

If reviewed concurrent with a Building Permit application,  
development application, or development………………………………. 
…………………………… No Charge 
If reviewed prior to the Building Permit application,  
development application or 
development..…………………………………....….……………………………….. $50 
 

(14) Change of 
Use...………………………………………………………………...……………………
………………………….. $100 
 
(15) Lot Line 
Adjustment.…………………………………………………………….…………………
…………………….. $200 
 
(16) Lot Line 
Elimination….………………………………………………………….…………………
…………………….. $200 
 
(17) Floodplain Development 
Permit………………………………………………………………………………….. $50 
 
(18) Master Sign 
Plan.………………………………………………………………………………………
………………………$100 
 
(19) Sign 
Permit.……………………………………………………………………………………
….…………………………………$50 
 


���



 15

(20) Temporary 
Banner...…………………………………………………………….……………………
……………………… $25 
 
(21) Variance 

Single-Family/Duplex 
Structure………………………………………………………………………………

………….. $500 
Floodplain 
Variance………………………………………………………………………………
……………………………… $500 
Sign 
Variance………………………………………………………………………………
………………………………………… $250 

 
 
(22) Waterbody 
Setback..……………………………………………………………………………………
………………. $1,000 
 
(23) Minor Adjustment 

For a Single-Family or Duplex Structures or Land 
Use………………………………………………………… $75 
For all Other Structure Types or Land Uses 
………………………………………………………………………… $150 

 
(24) Minor Exterior 
Modification…………………………………………………….…………………………
………… $500 
 
(25) Utility Easement 
Encroachment……………………………………………………………………………
…… $200 
 
(26) Wireless Communications Facility 

Minor…………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………… $500 
Major……………………………………………………………………………………
……………………………………………… $2,500 

 
(27) Floodplain Map 
Revisions..………………………………………………………….………………………
……. $1,000 
 


���



 16

(28) Parking Fee-in-Lieu 
1 or more parking spaces 
……………………..……………………………………………………….$25,000 
per space 
 

(29) After-the-Fact Development Application………………………….Double the applicable fee 
 
(30) Research 

 
First three (3) 
hours……………………………………………………………………………………
………………… No charge 
Each additional 
hour……………………………………………………………………………………
………………… $50/hour 

 
Note:  Research requests shall be submitted in writing to the Director of Planning 
Services for review and approval prior to the initiation of any staff research.  The 
Director shall determine if the requested research is appropriate based on the 
nature of the research requested, the amount of research requested, and 
available staff time. 

 
Research is defined as the interpretation of documents in the planning files of the 
City.  By way of example and not limitation, a party may request research as to 
the history of the zoning for a particular parcel or for the history and status of a 
planning approval for a specific parcel.  This section is not intended to replace or 
nullify a citizen's rights under the Open Records Act to inspect and copy a 
specifically described document or documents or file. 

 
(31) Minor Amendment to an Approved 
PUD………………………………………………………………… $250 

 
(32) Appeal of Administrative 
Decision……………………………………………………………………………$250 

 
(33) Request for Reconsideration of Condition(s) of Approval 

Administrative 
Review………………..………………………………………………………………
……………………….. $250 
Public 
Review…………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………… $1,000 

 
Note:  The request for reconsideration shall follow the same review process 


���



 17

(administrative or public review) under which the original development permit 
application was reviewed and approved. 
 

(34) Revocable 
Permit…………………………………………………….………………………………
………………………… $75 

The required fee includes processing and publication costs and shall be paid in full 
at the time of application for approval of the development application.  The staff 
or Planning Commission shall not consider a development application unless it is 
deemed complete with the required fee paid in full.  No fees are refundable for 
any processing or partial processing of a development application.  Fees are not 
required for City-initiated applications. 

 
(35) Vacation Home Rentals  
 Application 

Fee……………………………………………………………………………………
……………………………….$500 

 Additional Parking Inspection 
Fee…………………………………………………………….………………………..
$100 

 Annual Renewal fee 
…………………………………………………………………………………………
…………….……..$50 

 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 

SECTION 5 
 
All ordinances heretofore passed and adopted by the City Council of the City of Steamboat 
Springs, Colorado, are hereby repealed to the extent that said ordinances, or parts, thereof, 
are in conflict herewith.  
 

SECTION 6 
 
If any section, subsection, clause, phrase or provision of this Ordinance is, or the application 
thereof to any person or circumstance, shall to any extent, be held by a court of competent 
jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unconstitutional, the remaining sections, subsections, 
clauses, phrases and provisions of this Ordinance, or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance, shall remain in full force and shall in no way be affected, impaired or 
invalidated. 


���



 18

 
SECTION 7 

 
The City Council hereby finds, determines and declares that this Ordinance is necessary for 
the immediate preservation of the public peace, health and safety. 
 

SECTION 8 
 

This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon the expiration of five (5) days from and 
after its publication following final passage, as provided in Section 7.6 (h) of the Steamboat 
Springs Home Rule Charter.  
 
 
INTRODUCED, READ, AND ORDERED PUBLISHED, as provided by law, by 
the City Council of the City of Steamboat Springs, at its regular meeting held on the        
______ day of ______________, 2012. 
 
 

      
 _____________________________ 

     Bart Kounovsky, President 
     Steamboat Springs City Council 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________ 
Julie Franklin, CMC 
City Clerk    
        

                                                                                                               
 FINALLY READ, PASSED AND APPROVED this_____day of 
______________ , 2012. 
 
 
            
     _____________________________ 
     Bart Kounovsky, President 
     Steamboat Springs City Council 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________ 
Julie Franklin, CMC 
City Clerk    


��	



 

 

AGENDA ITEM # 9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT UPDATE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

There is no written report. 

���



 

 

AGENDA ITEM # 10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL UPDATES 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This is a discussion item only. 

����



*****TENTATIVE AGENDA FOR TUESDAY, MARCH 20, 2012***** 
This agenda is tentative and the information is subject to change until the agenda is finalized. 
 

CITY OF STEAMBOAT SPRINGS 
 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING NO. 2012-06 

 TUESDAY, MARCH 20, 2012  
 

5:00 P.M. 
 
MEETING LOCATION:  Citizens’  Meeting  Room,  Centennial  Hall;;   

124 10th Street, Steamboat Springs, CO 
 
MEETING PROCEDURE: Comments from the Public are welcome at two 
different times during the course of the meeting: 1) Comments no longer than 
three (3) minutes on items not scheduled on the Agenda will be heard under 
Public Comment; and 2) Comments no longer than three (3) minutes on all 
scheduled public hearing items will be heard following the presentation by Staff 
or the Petitioner.  Please wait until you are recognized by the Council President.  
With the exception of subjects brought up during Public Comment, on which no 
action will be taken or a decision made, the City Council may take action on, and 
may make a decision regarding, ANY item referred to in this agenda, including, 
without   limitation,   any   item   referenced   for   “review”,   “update”,   “report”,   or  
“discussion”.    It  is  City  Council’s  goal  to  adjourn  all  meetings by 10:00 p.m. 
 
A City Council meeting packet is available for public review in the lobby of City 
Hall, 137 10th Street, Steamboat Springs, CO, or on our website at 
http://steamboatsprings.net/city_council/council_meetings. The e-packet is 
typically available by 1pm on the Friday before the meeting. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Public Comment will be provided at 7 p.m., or at 
the end of the meeting, (whichever comes first). CITY COUNCIL WILL MAKE NO 
DECISION NOR TAKE ACTION, EXCEPT TO DIRECT THE CITY MANAGER.  THOSE ADDRESSING CITY 
COUNCIL ARE REQUESTED TO IDENTIFY THEMSELVES BY NAME AND ADDRESS.  ALL 
COMMENTS SHALL NOT EXCEED THREE MINUTES. 
 
 
A. ROLL CALL 
 
 
B.  COMMUNITY REPORTS/CITY COUNCIL DISCUSSION TOPIC:  
 

1. Yampa Street Revitalization Presentation. (Hinsvark)  

����

http://steamboatsprings.net/city_council/council_meetings
vdietrich
AGENDA ITEM #11

vdietrich


vdietrich


vdietrich




*****TENTATIVE AGENDA FOR TUESDAY, MARCH 20, 2012***** 
This agenda is tentative and the information is subject to change until the agenda is finalized. 
 

2. Discussion of Parks and Recreation Commission waiving 
fees. (Wilson) 

 
3. Update on the Chief Theater Project. (Jim and Bill Rangitsch) 

(15 minutes) 
 
 
C. CONSENT CALENDAR: MOTIONS, RESOLUTIONS AND 

ORDINANCES FIRST READINGS 
 

ITEMS ON THE CONSENT CALENDAR GENERALLY REQUIRE LITTLE COUNCIL DELIBERATION AND 
MAY BE APPROVED WITH A SINGLE MOTION.  ANY MEMBER OF THE COUNCIL OR THE PUBLIC 
MAY WITHDRAW ANY ITEM FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR FOR FURTHER DISCUSSION AT ANY 
TIME PRIOR TO APPROVAL.   
 
4. FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE:  

 
 
D. PUBLIC HEARING: ORDINANCE SECOND READINGS 

 
THE CITY COUNCIL PRESIDENT OR PRESIDENT PRO-TEM WILL READ EACH ORDINANCE TITLE 
INTO THE RECORD. PUBLIC COMMENT WILL BE PROVIDED FOR EVERY ORDINANCE.   
 

 
 

E. PUBLIC COMMENT: Public Comment will be provided at 7 p.m., or 
at the end of the meeting, (whichever comes first). CITY COUNCIL WILL 
MAKE NO DECISION NOR TAKE ACTION, EXCEPT TO DIRECT THE CITY MANAGER.  THOSE 
ADDRESSING CITY COUNCIL ARE REQUESTED TO IDENTIFY THEMSELVES BY NAME 
AND ADDRESS.  ALL COMMENTS SHALL NOT EXCEED THREE MINUTES. 

 
 
F. PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT 
 
 
G. CONSENT CALENDAR - PLANNING COMMISSION REFERRALS: 

ITEMS ON THE CONSENT CALENDAR GENERALLY REQUIRE LITTLE OR NO COUNCIL 
DELIBERATION AND MAY BE APPROVED WITH A SINGLE MOTION. A CITY COUNCIL MEMBER 
MAY REQUEST AN ITEM(S) BE REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR FOR FURTHER 
DISCUSSION.  ALL ORDINANCES APPROVED BY CONSENT SHALL BE READ INTO THE 
RECORD BY TITLE. 
 
5. FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE: West Acres Ranch 

Subdivision Tract C zoning map amendment. (Lorson) 
 
6. PROJECT: Walton Creek & Ride a River Parks  
 PETITION: Final development plan 

����



*****TENTATIVE AGENDA FOR TUESDAY, MARCH 20, 2012***** 
This agenda is tentative and the information is subject to change until the agenda is finalized. 
 

 LOCATION: 
 APPLICANT: 
 PLANNING COMMISSION VOTE: To be heard March 8, 2012. 

 
 
H. PUBLIC HEARING – PLANNING COMMISSION REFERRALS 
 
PUBLIC HEARING FORMAT: 
 Presentation by the Petitioner (estimated at 15 minutes).  Petitioner 

to state name and residence address/location. 
 Presentation by the Opposition. Same guidelines as above. 
 Public Comment by individuals (not to exceed 3 minutes).   

Individuals to state name and residence address/location. 
 City staff to provide a response. 

 
7. SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE: An ordinance to amend 

Section 26-65 Development Plan; amend Section 26-42 
Development Review; amend Section 26-60 Pre-application Review; 
amend Section 26-78 Minor Exterior Modification; and amend the 
Development Application Fee Schedule. (Keenan) 

 
 
I. REPORTS 

 
8. Economic Development Update. 
 
9. City Council  

 
10. Reports 

a. Agenda Review (Franklin): 
1.) City Council agenda for April 3, 2012.  
2.) City Council agenda for April 17, 2012. 

 
11. Staff Reports 

a. City  Attorney’s  Update/Report.  (Lettunich) 
b. Manager’s  Report: Ongoing Projects. (Roberts) 

  c. 2012 Heritage Award. (Franklin) 
 
 
J. ADJOURNMENT     BY: JULIE FRANKLIN, CMC 
        CITY CLERK 

����



*****TENTATIVE AGENDA FOR TUESDAY, APRIL 3, 2012***** 
This agenda is tentative and the information is subject to change until the agenda is finalized. 
 

CITY OF STEAMBOAT SPRINGS 
 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING NO. 2012-07 

 TUESDAY, APRIL 3, 2012  
 

5:00 P.M. 
 
MEETING LOCATION:  Citizens’ Meeting Room, Centennial Hall;  

124 10th Street, Steamboat Springs, CO 
 
MEETING PROCEDURE: Comments from the Public are welcome at two 
different times during the course of the meeting: 1) Comments no longer than 
three (3) minutes on items not scheduled on the Agenda will be heard under 
Public Comment; and 2) Comments no longer than three (3) minutes on all 
scheduled public hearing items will be heard following the presentation by Staff 
or the Petitioner.  Please wait until you are recognized by the Council President.  
With the exception of subjects brought up during Public Comment, on which no 
action will be taken or a decision made, the City Council may take action on, and 
may make a decision regarding, ANY item referred to in this agenda, including, 
without limitation, any item referenced for “review”, “update”, “report”, or 
“discussion”.  It is City Council’s goal to adjourn all meetings by 10:00 p.m. 
 
A City Council meeting packet is available for public review in the lobby of City 
Hall, 137 10th Street, Steamboat Springs, CO, or on our website at 
http://steamboatsprings.net/city_council/council_meetings. The e-packet is 
typically available by 1pm on the Friday before the meeting. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Public Comment will be provided at 7 p.m., or at 
the end of the meeting, (whichever comes first). CITY COUNCIL WILL MAKE NO 
DECISION NOR TAKE ACTION, EXCEPT TO DIRECT THE CITY MANAGER.  THOSE ADDRESSING CITY 
COUNCIL ARE REQUESTED TO IDENTIFY THEMSELVES BY NAME AND ADDRESS.  ALL 
COMMENTS SHALL NOT EXCEED THREE MINUTES. 
 
 
A. ROLL CALL 
 
 
B.  COMMUNITY REPORTS/CITY COUNCIL DISCUSSION TOPIC:  
 

����

http://steamboatsprings.net/city_council/council_meetings


*****TENTATIVE AGENDA FOR TUESDAY, APRIL 3, 2012***** 
This agenda is tentative and the information is subject to change until the agenda is finalized. 
 

1. Presentation of Summer Marketing Campaign Metrics and 
Goals and Return on Investment Report. (Kara Givnish, 
Director of Marketing, Chamber) (10 minutes) 

  
2. Community Indicators Project. (Kate Nowak, Yampa Valley 

Data Partners) (30 minutes) 
 
 
C. CONSENT CALENDAR: MOTIONS, RESOLUTIONS AND 

ORDINANCES FIRST READINGS 
 

ITEMS ON THE CONSENT CALENDAR GENERALLY REQUIRE LITTLE COUNCIL DELIBERATION AND 
MAY BE APPROVED WITH A SINGLE MOTION.  ANY MEMBER OF THE COUNCIL OR THE PUBLIC 
MAY WITHDRAW ANY ITEM FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR FOR FURTHER DISCUSSION AT ANY 
TIME PRIOR TO APPROVAL.   
 
3. RESOLUTION: A resolution to provide Steamboat Ski & Resort 

Corporation wastewater treatment services for an out of 
district location at the Four Points Hut expansion. (Shelton) 

 
4. FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE:  

 
 
D. PUBLIC HEARING: ORDINANCE SECOND READINGS 

 
THE CITY COUNCIL PRESIDENT OR PRESIDENT PRO-TEM WILL READ EACH ORDINANCE TITLE 
INTO THE RECORD. PUBLIC COMMENT WILL BE PROVIDED FOR EVERY ORDINANCE.   
 
5. SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE:  
 

 
 

E. PUBLIC COMMENT: Public Comment will be provided at 7 p.m., or 
at the end of the meeting, (whichever comes first). CITY COUNCIL WILL 
MAKE NO DECISION NOR TAKE ACTION, EXCEPT TO DIRECT THE CITY MANAGER.  THOSE 
ADDRESSING CITY COUNCIL ARE REQUESTED TO IDENTIFY THEMSELVES BY NAME 
AND ADDRESS.  ALL COMMENTS SHALL NOT EXCEED THREE MINUTES. 

 
 
F. PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT 
 
 
G. CONSENT CALENDAR - PLANNING COMMISSION REFERRALS: 

ITEMS ON THE CONSENT CALENDAR GENERALLY REQUIRE LITTLE OR NO COUNCIL 
DELIBERATION AND MAY BE APPROVED WITH A SINGLE MOTION. A CITY COUNCIL MEMBER 
MAY REQUEST AN ITEM(S) BE REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR FOR FURTHER 
DISCUSSION.  ALL ORDINANCES APPROVED BY CONSENT SHALL BE READ INTO THE 

LEGISLATION 
 

PLANNING 
PROJECTS 

PLANNING 
PROJECTS 

����



*****TENTATIVE AGENDA FOR TUESDAY, APRIL 3, 2012***** 
This agenda is tentative and the information is subject to change until the agenda is finalized. 
 

RECORD BY TITLE. 
 
6. PROJECT: Howelsen Place Building B (Wireless Antennas) 
 PETITION: Final development plan 
 LOCATION: 
 APPLICANT: 
 PLANNING COMMISSION VOTE: To be heard March 22, 2012. 

 
 
H. PUBLIC HEARING – PLANNING COMMISSION REFERRALS 
 
PUBLIC HEARING FORMAT: 
•••• Presentation by the Petitioner (estimated at 15 minutes).  Petitioner 

to state name and residence address/location. 
•••• Presentation by the Opposition. Same guidelines as above. 
• Public Comment by individuals (not to exceed 3 minutes).   

Individuals to state name and residence address/location. 
• City staff to provide a response. 

 
7. SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE: West Acres Ranch 

Subdivision Tract C zoning map amendment. (Lorson) 
 
 
I. REPORTS 

 
8. Economic Development Update. 
 
9. City Council  

 
10. Reports 

a. Agenda Review (Franklin): 
1.) City Council agenda for April 17, 2012.  
2.) City Council agenda for May 1, 2012. 

 
11. Staff Reports 

a. City Attorney’s Update/Report. (Lettunich) 
b. Manager’s Report: Ongoing Projects. (Roberts) 

 
 
J. OLD BUSINESS 

 
12. Minutes (Franklin) 

a. Regular Meeting 2011-05, March 6, 2012. 
b. Regular Meeting 2012-06, March 20, 2012. 

����



*****TENTATIVE AGENDA FOR TUESDAY, APRIL 3, 2012***** 
This agenda is tentative and the information is subject to change until the agenda is finalized. 
 
 
 
K. ADJOURNMENT     BY: JULIE FRANKLIN, CMC 
        CITY CLERK 

���	



 

 

AGENDA ITEM # 12 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

STAFF REPORTS: 
 

a.)  City Attorney’s Update/Report  
   1. Oil and Gas Update (Materials to be   
   emailed prior to the meeting) 
 

b.)  Manager’s Report: Ongoing Projects  
   2. Request for sponsorship for Oil and Gas  
   Informational Public meeting (pertaining  
   documents follow this page) 

 

c.)  False Alarm Ordinance Discussion (pertaining  
  documents follow this page) 

 

 

 

 

����



 

AGENDA ITEM # 12b Attachment 1 

                                                              
PO Box 1641, Craig, CO 81626 

970-824-1133 Phone   970-824-5004 Fax     www.yampavalleypartners.com 
 
 

February 29, 2012 

Steamboat Springs City Council 
 
Dear Council members, 
 
Yampa Valley Data Partners and the Community Ag Alliance are partnering once 
again to produce the Oil & Gas Symposium II March 14, 2012 at the Hayden High 
School auditorium.  Both Marsha and I feel there is room for even more education 
on oil and gas development impacts.  We are pretty excited about our lineup of 
speakers. 
 
John C. Lamb from Steamboat Energy Consultants has been a completion 
consultant for oil & gas for 30 years.  He understands the process and will give us 
an overview of the whole process from selecting a geologic area to drilling to 
reclamation. 
 
George Blankenship from Blankenship Consultants has traveled the country 
producing economic and urban development impact studies for communities that 
have been impacted from oil and gas development.  I have asked him specifically 
to describe economic impacts similar to our two counties. 
 
Bill Stearns from Metis Consulting has been providing scientific water quality 
testing and other environmental testing services to citizens, industry and 
governments for years and is adamant on proper testing methods.  He will speak 
about environmental testing that is commonly done in communities, for 
landowners and industry. 
 

����

http://www.yampavalleypartners.com/


Ralph Cantafio, attorney will talk about the impacts of landowner leases that have 
been sold to different companies and what their rights are, how to prepare for such 
a sale, etc 
 
Chad Phillips from Routt County Planning will talk about what regulations Routt 
County is considering to implement. 
 
Michael Warren from Colorado Parks & Wildlife is not totally confirmed yet, but 
hopefully he will attend and speak on how the CPW protects wildlife in oil and gas 
development areas. 
 
Again, we feel it is pertinent to host the symposium in Hayden as this is where the 
majority of the activity will take place.  The location is suitable to invite our 
neighbors in Moffat County as well.  We also recognize there are multiple 
viewpoints on the subject of oil and gas development in our area.  We want to try 
to provide balanced education and let the citizens make their own opinions.  We 
consider ourselves neutral education providers. 
 
We would like to ask the council for a $200 sponsorship to help defer the expenses 
in producing such an event and we ask for your support in providing education to 
the public. Thank you for your consideration. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Kate Nowak 

 
Kate Nowak 
Executive Director 
Yampa Valley Data Partners 
 

����



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 

Sponsor & Exhibitor Registration and Information 
 
Thank you for your interest in sponsoring or exhibiting at the Oil & Gas Symposium II on March 14, 2012 from 
5:30 to 9:00pm.  The event will be held at the Hayden High School Auditorium, 495 W. Jefferson, Hayden, CO.   
The exhibitors will have tabletops lining the walls outside the auditorium.  Exhibitors will be able to network and 
receive booth traffic during registration, dinner and breaks.  .   

Sponsorship & Exhibit Fees 
Table Top Exhibitor               $75 
Event Sponsorship               $200 
Sponsor & exhibit                $250 
Quarter Page Ad in program  $50 

 

 Booths will be reserved on a first paid basis.  Please provide payment information below.  

Contact Name _____________________________________________________________________________ 

Phone ___________________________________________________________________________________ 

Company _________________________________________________________________________________ 

Email ____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Payment Information   Full payment must accompany this form.  Make checks payable to Community 
Agriculture Alliance. Send checks to Yampa Valley Data Partners, PO Box 1641, Craig, CO 81626 
Please register before March 7, 2012. 

 

 

 

$200 Event Sponsorship             Table Top Exhibitor $75 
Public recognition at event (1) 8ft table with 2 chairs 

    (1) complimentary registration         (1) complimentary registration 
Banner posting availability  (1) 8ft table with 2 chairs 

����

vdietrich
AGENDA ITEM #12b Attachment 2

vdietrich


vdietrich


vdietrich




Page 2 of 2 

 

Additional Information 
 
Sponsors & Exhibitors: 

Registration for the event:  We will ask you to register by calling Kate Nowak at Yampa Valley 
Partners at 970-824-1133.   We will accept cash or check by March 7 to reserve your space.  Checks 
should be made out to the Community Agriculture Alliance and sent to Yampa Valley Partners, PO 
Box 1641, Craig, CO 81626. 
 
Sponsor company logo:  Sponsors, please send your company logo for use in signage to 
kate@yampavalleypartners.com 
 
Quarter page ad:  We accept your complete designed ad in a pdf or jpeg format.  All ads are vertical, 
inset and in full color.  Size 3.5”  x  4.875”.    Send  your  ad  to  kate@yampavalleypartners.com.  
 

Exhibitors: 

Set up:  Please plan to arrive Wednesday afternoon, March 14 4:30pm to set up your exhibit.  We 
would like all exhibits completely set up by 5:15 pm as the symposium starts at 5:30pm.  It would 
behoove the exhibit company to be set up by 5:00pm as this is when people will start arriving to 
register and have time to visit your booth. 
 
Take down:  Please do not take down your exhibit until 9:00pm or when the last question and answer 
ends.  Thank you for your cooperation. 
 
Contact information:  Thank you for sponsoring this event and/or exhibiting with us.  Please do not 
hesitate to contact me with any questions.  Kate Nowak, Executive Director, Yampa Valley Data 
Partners, 970-824-1133 or kate@yampavalleypartners.com.  We are delighted to have you a part of the 
event! 
 
 
 
 

                     
 
 

 
 
 
 

����

mailto:kate@yampavalleypartners.com
mailto:kate@yampavalleypartners.com
mailto:kate@yampavalleypartners.com


AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  ##1122cc  AAttttaacchhmmeenntt  11  
  

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  CCOOMMMMUUNNIICCAATTIIOONN  FFOORRMM 
                                                                                                                 
 
FROM:  Joel Rae, Director of Public Safety (ext. 113) 
  
THROUGH:  Jon Roberts, City Manager (ext. 228) 
 
DATE:   March 6, 2012 
 
RE:   Unnecessary Alarm Ordinance 
                                                                                                                 
 
                    X    DIRECTION 
                     X    INFORMATION   
                                                                                                                 
 
I.   REQUEST OR ISSUE:  
 
In May 2010 City Council adopted an unnecessary alarm ordinance (attached) which the 
Police and Fire Departments began enforcing around October 1, 2010.  Since that time 
several issues relating to the ordinance have surfaced and staff believes a discussion is 
needed to improve the existing ordinance. 
 
II. RECOMMENDED ACTION/NEXT STEP:  
 
It is the recommendation of staff that a revised ordinance be drafted and presented to 
City Council as a first reading in the near future.  Recommended language changes 
include allowing alarm holders four false alarms within a six month period and six false 
alarms within a one-year period before punitive impacts are levied against the responsible 
parties.  It is recommended that a substantial alarm fee be included within the ordinance 
upon any business or homeowner receiving their fifth violation within a 6-month period or 
seventh violation within a one-year period.  Homeowners or business owners could then 
be reimbursed a portion or the entire fee if they provide the police or fire department a 
copy of an invoice from a reputable alarm service/repair company that documents what 
problems were causing the unnecessary alarms, that the repairs were made to fix the 
issue and what the costs were in repairing the alarm system. 
 
III. FISCAL IMPACTS: 
 
The existing ordinance has generated minimum revenue for the City of Steamboat 
Springs.    The ordinance was designed to reduce the number of false alarms within the 
community which consume valuable time of police officers and firefighters.  Since 
inception and through February 1, 2012, the Police Department has billed out $24,600 
and collected $6,250 for false alarm violations.   During the same time period, the fire 
department has billed out $9,100 and collected $3,250 for false alarm violations. 

����



 
It is estimated that the adoption of a new ordinance will have minimal financial impact to 
the City Of Steamboat Springs, as the ordinance will be in place as a tool to reduce the 
number of overall false alarms, while generating minimal revenue as a result of revenue 
collections from the most serious repeat violators. 
 
IV. BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
The existing ordinance and communication form from 2010 is attached for your review, 
which provides the history that lead to the adoption of an unnecessary alarm ordinance.  
Once the adoption of the ordinance happened, letters were sent to the alarm companies 
as well as their clients who had alarm systems within their business or residence.  When 
enforcement of the ordinance began a letter was then drafted (attached) which informed 
the home/business owner when and where the violation occurred, the specifics of the 
ordinance and the progressive fine schedule.  Spreadsheets were also developed to track 
dates, locations, violations, fee letters and collections.  As time has gone on, it has been 
extremely time consuming for staff to manage the existing ordinance.  We have seen a 
minimal decrease in the number of false fire/smoke alarms and a 25% decrease in the 
number of intrusion alarms since enforcement of the ordinance began.   
 
For the one year period prior to enforcement of the ordinance taking effect (10/1/2009- 
10/1/2010) the Steamboat Springs police department handled 410 alarms.  For the one 
year period since enforcement began (10/1/2010- 10/1/2011) we have handled 327 
alarms, a 25% decrease.   
 
The fire department handled 583 alarms for the year prior to the ordinance taking effect 
(08/1/2009- 8/1/2010) and handled 547 alarms since the ordinance began (08/1/2010- 
08/1/2011) a 6% decrease. 
 
While the numbers for the police department seem significant, false alarms today make 
up about 3% of our total calls for service, which average 10,000 per year. 
 
The number is more significant for the fire department as alarms account for roughly 
30% of their total calls for service. 
 
We are now at a point where businesses are reaching false alarm fee levels that are 
exceeding the $2,000.00 mark.  Some have adamantly denied paying, others pay one 
hundred or two hundred dollars and some simply ignore any communication generated 
from the City. If the existing ordinance remains in effect, staff would like City Council to 
provide direction to staff to begin issuing summonses into the Steamboat Springs 
Municipal Court to proceed with collections against the most serious unnecessary alarm 
violators who refuse to pay fees.  This process would be similar to what Staff has done in 
the past for sales tax license holders who fail to pay City sales tax.  Summonses would 
not be issued until repeated attempts of communication with the violator have been made 
and non-payment has exceeded the 90 day mark. 
 
   
 
IV. LEGAL ISSUES: 

���	



 
None 
 
 
VI. CONFLICTS OR ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES: 
 
None 
 
VII. SUMMARY AND ALTERNATIVES:  
 

1. Revise the existing unnecessary alarm ordinance to include suggestions in section 
II. 

2. Keep the existing unnecessary alarm ordinance in place without revisions and 
direct staff to pursue non-payment of unnecessary alarm fees, including the 
issuance of summonses into Steamboat Springs Municipal Court. 

3. Repeal the existing ordinance, so the Steamboat Springs Municipal Code does not 
contain an unnecessary alarm ordinance. 

 

���




    840 Yampa Street, P.O. Box 775088, Steamboat Springs, Colorado 80477-5088  (970) 879-4344  FAX (970) 870-1271 

   
MMEEMMOORRAANNDDUUMM  

 
TO:  Joel Rae, Chief of Police 
 
FROM: Barb Simms, Asst. to the Chief of Police  
 
DATE:  March 1, 2012 
 
SUBJECT: FALSE ALARMS 
 
The following is a summary of total intrusion alarms (false & non-false) from: 
  

10/1/2009 – 10/1/2010 410 
10/1/2010 – 10/1/2011 327 

 
It appears that overall intrusion alarms have gone down 25% since the inception of the 
ordinance. 
 
Since inception (Sept. 2010) of the False Alarm Ordinance, we had the following false 
intrusion alarms: 
 

Business 224 
Residential 115 
TOTAL: 339 

 
Statistical facts: 
 

 sent out 339 violation letters 
 billed out $24,600.00 in false alarm violations 
 collected $6,250.00 in false alarm violations 
 42 repeat offenders have not paid 

 
 

Steamboat Springs Police Services 
 

����

vdietrich


vdietrich


vdietrich


vdietrich


vdietrich


vdietrich


vdietrich
AGENDA ITEM #12c Attachment 2

vdietrich




    840 Yampa Street, P.O. Box 775088, Steamboat Springs, Colorado 80477-5088  (970) 879-4344  FAX (970) 870-1271 

The chart below shows the number of multiple offenses that a business or residence 
received. 
 

Number of Letters

194

75

38
18

5 3 2 2 1 1
0

50

100

150

200

250

Warni
ng

2n
d O

ffe
ns

e

3rd
 O

ffe
ns

e

4th
 O

ffe
nse

5th
 O

ffe
nse

6th
 O

ffe
nse

7th
 O

ffe
nse

8th
 O

ffe
nse

9th
 O

ffe
nse

10
th 

Offe
ns

e

Warning
2nd Offense
3rd Offense
4th Offense
5th Offense
6th Offense
7th Offense
8th Offense
9th Offense
10th Offense

 

�����



927 Oak Street, P.O. Box 775088, Steamboat Springs, CO 80477-5088 
(970) 871-8216 • Fax (970) 871-6306 

AGENDA ITEM #12c Attachment 3 
 
 

SteamboatSprings
Cityof

Fire Prevention Services  
 
Proudly serving the City of Steamboat Springs and the Steamboat Springs Rural Fire Protection District 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO : Joel Rae, Director of Public Safety 
 
FROM: Jay Muhme, Fire Marshal 
 
RE : Alarm Ordinance Procedure and update  
 
DATE : 01/31/12 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Alarm Ordinance 2317 was adopted by City Council on May 18, 2010, however, we did not 
actually start tracking and sending out letters until August 1, 2010.  The process for Unnecessary 
Emergency alarms is as follows:   
 
When the fire crews respond to a call for service they create a NIFIRS report which collects 
information about the call.  The Lt. in charge will determine if the alarm is a “Chargeable” or 
“Non-Chargeable” offense based on the ordinance.  The report is then submitted to the Fire 
Marshal for review of content.   
 
Once all the reports have been reviewed, a query is run in Highplains which searches the 
“Chargeable” offenses for a designated time period.  The queried information is then exported to 
an Excel spread sheet and the corresponding responses are processed.  This is typically done by 
the Fire Marshal once a week.   
 
The weekly data is sorted and stored in Excel with “old files” that have already been dealt with 
and combined with the current week’s query.  From this report a letter is sent to the responsible 
party notifying them of the call for service.  The letter for the first offence specifically states that 
is a “one time only warning letter”.  If they have a second “Chargeable” alarm at their location 
they are sent a letter of an “assessed fee” per the ordinance.   
 
If the owner, Management Company, or contractor contacts Fire Prevention to contest the letter 
or to confirm that the system is being repaired, we will discuss the matter.   If I feel the problem 
has been fixed or that they have been adequately educated about what the ordinance is trying to 
accomplish, then I commonly change the letter of “warning” to a one time “courtesy letter”.  If 

�����



927 Oak Street, P.O. Box 775088, Steamboat Springs, CO 80477-5088 
(970) 871-8216 • Fax (970) 871-6306 

the letter assessed a fee and the system has been repaired or maintained then I will reduce the fee 
by 50% per the ordinance. 
 
 
 
 
Fire Prevention began sending out letters on August 1, 2010, and since that date 204 “Warning 
Letters” have gone out.  Of those “Warning Letters”, 19 were rescinded and changed to 
“Courtesy Letters” after discussing the “issue” with Fire Prevention.  There have been 31 “Fee 
Letters” for $200 sent, seven “$300 Fee Letters” have been sent and only two $400 Fee Letters 
sent (see attached table).  The figures show that only a small percentage of those which have 
received a “Warning Letter” have had a recurring incident.  The attached table reflects the 
statistics of the program to date. 
 
It is our hope this reflects that systems are being serviced and maintained to avoid further 
correspondence about system failures or problems.  One local alarm contractor recently 
commented on the increased number of calls they have received requesting service and 
maintenance on systems.  That is exactly the type of results we are hoping for from this 
ordinance.     
 
The goal of this ordinance is not to be punitive, rather to educate the system owners and 
operators of the expense to tax payers if these systems are not properly serviced and maintained.   
In addition to alleviating the misuse of manpower and City resources, this Ordinance has also 
improved the guest experience at our local resorts due to the inconvenience of unnecessary 
emergency alarms.   
 
However, enforcing the ordinance as written has become a very time consuming operation.  I 
believe the goal of the ordinance is working but the level of detail associated has become 
unmanageable.  It is my recommendation this ordinance be reviewed and simplified.  It can still 
continue to meet the goal of the original ordinance while decreasing the amount of administration 
need to gain compliance. 

�����



927 Oak Street, P.O. Box 775088, Steamboat Springs, CO 80477-5088 
(970) 871-8216 • Fax (970) 871-6306 

 
FIRE/RESCUE NUISANCE ALARMS 

FEE COLLECTION - 08/01/10 - 01/11/12 

  
Commercial 
Occupancies  

Private 
Residential 

Occupancies Contractors Totals 
Courtesy Letters sent 9 8 2 19 
Warning Letters sent 77 81 27 185 
$200 Fee Letters sent 18 9 4 31 
$300 Fee Letters sent 5 1 1 7 
$400 Fee Letters sent 2     2 
          
FEES ASSESSED $5,900 $2,100 $1,100 $9,100 
FEES COLLECTED $1,850 $500 $900 $3,250 
FEES UNPAID $4,050 $1,600 $200 $5,850 
     
NOTE: Ordinance #2317 allows a 50% reduction in Fee      
 if proof of repair or maintenance is submitted to Fire Marshal.   
     
TOTAL FEES COLLECTED reflects many reduced collections.    
 Therefore FEES UNPAID is higher than actual    
     

DATE RANGE 

TOTAL ALARMS 
Chargeable and 
Nonchargeable 

TOTAL 
ALARMS 
Chargeable 
Only   

08/01/09 to 08/01/10 583 
N/A Pre-
ordinance   

08/01/10 to 08/01/11 547 188   
08/10/11 to Present 227 72   

 

�����



    840 Yampa Street, P.O. Box 775088, Steamboat Springs, Colorado 80477-5088  (970) 879-4344  FAX (970) 870-1271 

 

 

Steamboat Springs  
 
 
            "[Type Date Here]"  

 
[Click here and insert property owner name]  
[Click here and insert property owner address]  
[Click here and insert city, state, zip]  
 
 Re: Emergency Alarm Violation - SSPD Case # 
 
Dear      : 
 
We have been notified that your property at       had a Category II emergency alarm on       at 
     .  This is the       emergency alarm violation since the ordinance was adopted.  As a result, the 
City has assessed an Excessive and/or Unnecessary Emergency Alarm Fee of $     .  Please remit 
this to the City of Steamboat Springs, Attention: Police Department, P.O. Box 775088, Steamboat 
Springs, CO 80477-5088. 
 
Please be advised that each successive violation within any one year time period may result in an 
additional fee in accordance with the following schedule: 
 
  First Offense    Warning Letter 
  Second Offense  $100.00 
  All additional offenses  $200.00 
    
If, within thirty days of the citation, you provide Police Department personnel with a written document 
showing that necessary repairs or corrections have been made to the Emergency Alarm System by a 
qualified agency, then you may be eligible for a fifty percent rebate on the assessed fees.  We 
encourage you to do everything possible to voluntarily ensure that your detection systems at your 
property are maintained to proper standards. 
 
Responding to false alarms cost the taxpayers of Steamboat Springs and Routt County tens of 
thousands  of  dollars  per  year.    It  is  the  goal  of  the  City’s  False  Alarm  Ordinance  to  reduce  the  number  of  
false alarms and not for this ordinance to be a source of revenue for the City of Steamboat Springs.  
With that, the Steamboat Springs Police Department is here to work with you and help eliminate false 
alarms in any way we can.  The City of Steamboat Springs is committed to maintaining safe and timely 
responses to emergency fire, police, and medical calls.  We know that this can only be achieved through 
the cooperation of everyone involved.  If you have any questions or we can be a resource to you, please 
give us a call at any time at 970-879-4344. 
 
       Sincerely, 
 
 
 
       Joel Rae 
       Chief of Police 
 
CC:       

Police Services 

City of 
 

�����

vdietrich


vdietrich


vdietrich


vdietrich


vdietrich
AGENDA ITEM #12c Attachment 4

vdietrich


vdietrich


vdietrich




Emergency Alarms – False Alarms Fee  1 

AGENDA ITEM #12c Attachment 5 
 
 

CITY OF STEAMBOAT SPRINGS, COLORADO 
 

ORDINANCE NO.   2317 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER FIVE OF THE 
STEAMBOAT SPRINGS MUNICIPAL CODE BY ADOPTING A 
NEW ARTICLE IV CREATING A FEE SCHEDULE FOR 
EXCESSIVE AND/OR UNNECESSARY EMERGENCY ALARMS; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; ESTABLISHING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE; AND SETTING A HEARING DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Steamboat Springs finds that excessive and/or 

unnecessary emergency alarms cause a significant misuse of the manpower and 
resources of the City of Steamboat Springs by causing the dispatch of emergency 
units to the scene of a emergency alarm , which renders them out of service and 
unavailable to respond to legitimate emergency situations; and  

  
WHEREAS, the City of Steamboat Springs finds that the continued 

excessive and/or emergency alarms are a threat to the health, safety and welfare 
of the citizens of the City of Steamboat Springs; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Fire Chief and Police Chief have reviewed the new 

Excessive and/or Unnecessary Emergency Alarm fee schedule and recommend 
its adoption; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council believes it is in the best interest of the public 

health, safety and welfare of its citizens and visitors to adopt a fee schedule for 
excessive and/or unnecessary emergency alarms. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF STEAMBOAT SPRINGS, COLORADO: 
 

Section 1. Chapter 5 of the Steamboat Springs Revised Municipal Code 
is hereby amended by the addition of the following Article IV: 
 
ARTICLE IV.  EXCESSIVE AND/OR UNNECESSARY EMERGENCY 
ALARMS. 
 
Sec. 5-101.  Purpose. 
 

�����



Emergency Alarms – False Alarms Fee  2 

A) The purpose of this Article is to encourage Owners and Alarm Companies 
to maintain the operational effectiveness of Emergency Alarm Systems in 
order to improve the reliability of Emergency Alarm Systems and reduce 
or eliminate excessive and/or unnecessary emergency alarms. 

 
 B) This Article governs Emergency Alarm Systems intended to summon Fire 

and Law Enforcement personnel, and requires assessment of fees for 
excessive and/or unnecessary emergency alarms, and provides 
procedures for repeat offenders. 

 
  Sec. 5-102. Definitions. The following definitions shall apply to this Article: 
 

A) Emergency Alarm System: A system or portion of a combination 
system consisting of components and circuits arranged to monitor the 
status of emergency alarm or supervisory signal-initiating devices and to 
signal or transmit Emergency Alarms of any kind, including, but not 
limited to, fire alarms, smoke alarms, emergency alarms as well as 
burglar, robbery and panic alarms. 

 
 

B) Emergency Alarm:  A signal or transmission to any public Fire or Law 
Enforcement agency, or to any officer or employee thereof, whether by 
telephone, spoken word or otherwise, of information to the effect that 
there is an emergency at or near a place indicated by the signal or 
transmission. 
 

C) Category I Emergency Alarm: Any Emergency Alarm requiring a Fire 
and/or Law Enforcement response to a non-emergency situation where 
the system operated properly under the following conditions: 

 
1) Accidental: The Emergency Alarm was caused by the 

following: 
 

a. A guest or circumstances beyond the control of the 
Emergency Alarm System Owner. 

 
b. An accidental smoke, fire or intrusion condition. 

 
Category I Emergency Alarms shall not be assessed a fee. 

 
D) Category II Emergency Alarm: Any emergency alarm requiring a Fire 

and/or Law Enforcement response to a non-emergency situation under 
the following conditions: 

 

�����



Emergency Alarms – False Alarms Fee  3 

1) System Malfunctions: The Emergency Alarm was caused 
by poor or improper maintenance, improper installation of 
Emergency Alarm equipment, hardware or wiring. An 
improper action by the Emergency Alarm monitoring center 
or Emergency Alarm installation/testing company shall also 
be considered a system malfunction. 

 
2) User Error: The act or omission of an agent, employee or 

contractor of the Emergency Alarm System Owner or, in the 
case of a construction site, by the general contractor.  

 
3) Undetermined Cause: Any Emergency Alarm which after 

investigation by Fire and/or Law Enforcement personnel 
does not reveal the apparent cause of the emergency alarm. 
If the Emergency Alarm System owner or, in the case of a 
construction site, the general contractor, or their agent, can 
provide proof of cause within two working days from the 
emergency alarm time, the responding agency may re-
evaluate the assessment. 

 
Category II Emergency Alarms shall be termed “unnecessary” and will be 
assessed a fee as outlined in Table 1, Section 5-104. 
 

E) Malicious: Any Emergency Alarm caused by malicious or mischievous 
action. 

Malicious Emergency Alarms will be assessed a fee as outlined in Table 1, 
Section 5-104. These emergency alarms are also unlawful. The individual(s) 
responsible for a Malicious Emergency Alarm(s) may be subject to criminal action 
as defined in the Colorado Revised Statutes. 18-8-111(1)(a) 
  
Sec. 5-103.  Excessive and/or Unnecessary Alarm Rate: 
 

a) Emergency Alarm System Owner Liability: Any Emergency Alarm 
System found to have two or more Category II Emergency Alarms, as 
defined in this ordinance, within a twelve month period shall be 
considered in violation of this ordinance. 

 
b) Emergency Alarm Installation/Testing, Emergency Alarm Monitoring 
or Emergency Alarm Maintenance Company Liability: Any emergency 
alarm monitoring or maintenance company found to have two or more 
Category II Emergency Alarms at any combination of properties, as 
defined in this ordinance, within a twelve month period shall be 
considered in violation of this ordinance. 

 

����	



Emergency Alarms – False Alarms Fee  4 

c) New Construction Contractor Liability: Any new construction site 
found to have two or more Category II Emergency Alarms, as defined in 
this ordinance, shall be considered in violation of this ordinance.  

 
Sec. 5-104.  Excessive and/or Unnecessary Emergency Alarm Fees.  
 

a) A fee shall be charged to the owner of any Emergency Alarm 
System in violation of Section 5-103(a) of this ordinance. 

 
b) A fee shall be charged to the emergency alarm installation/testing 
company, emergency alarm monitoring company, or emergency alarm 
maintenance company depending upon which is found to be the cause of 
the emergency alarm in violation of Section 5-103(b) of this ordinance. If 
designation of cause cannot be distinguished between companies, then 
the owner of the property found to be in violation of Section 5-103(b) of 
this ordinance shall be charged the appropriate fee. 

 
c)  A fee shall be charged to the owner or general contractor of said 
property found to be in violation of Section 5-103(c) of this ordinance. 

 
The fee shall be assessed as follows: The second Category II Emergency 
Alarm in violation of Section 5-103 within a twelve month period, will be 
assessed a fee of $200.00. The fee will progressively increase by an additional 
$100.00 for each violation with no fee limit. See Table 1 for Fee Schedule. 
 
 
Table 1- Fee Schedule 
 
In Violation of Section 5-103(a), 
(b), or (c)  Malicious Alarms 
Number of 
Emergency 
Alarms 

Fee For Each   
Emergency Alarm  

Number of 
Emergency 
Alarms 

Fee for Each 
Emergency 
Alarm 

1 Warning Letter  1 $200.00 
2 $200.00  2 $300.00 
3 $300.00  3 $400.00 
4 $400.00  4 $500.00 
5 $500.00  5 $600.00 
6 $600.00  6 $700.00 
7 $700.00  7 $800.00 

 
Sec. 5-105. Rebate Eligibility.  Within thirty days following any emergency 
alarm in violation of Section 5-103(a) of this ordinance the owner may provide 
Fire and/or Law Enforcement personnel with a written document which shows 

����




Emergency Alarms – False Alarms Fee  5 

that necessary repairs or corrections have been made to the Emergency Alarm 
System by a qualified agency. Upon determination by Fire and/or Law 
Enforcement personnel that all necessary repairs to the Emergency Alarm 
System have been made, the owner is eligible to receive a fifty percent rebate on 
the assessed Excessive and/or Unnecessary Emergency Alarm fee, if requested 
within thirty days of the determination by Fire and/or Law Enforcement 
personnel. 
 
This Section shall not apply to Sections 5-103(b) or (c). 
 
Sec. 5-106.  Failure to Pay Fees. Failure of any fees to be paid by contracted 
companies or general contractors shall be charged to the owner of the 
Emergency Alarm System in violation of this ordinance. Owners of Emergency 
Alarm Systems more than ninety days in arrears for all assessed Excessive 
and/or Unnecessary Emergency Alarm fees, due under this ordinance, shall have 
a perpetual lien placed against the property. In addition, the failure of any 
person, corporation, or other entity that to pay a fee assessed hereunder within 
ninety days of its assessment shall be a violation of this Code punishable as 
provided in Section 1-15 of this Revised Municipal Code. 
 
Sec. 5-107.  Determination of violation/Appeal.  
 
The senior official of the primary agency responding to an emergency alarm shall 
have authority to assess fees pursuant to Table 1 of Section 5-104.  The 
assessing agency shall provide written notice of the assessment to the offending 
party.  The assessing agency shall also provide copies of the notice to the 
following:  when a property owner is assessed, to the alarm maintenance or 
monitoring company; when an alarm maintenance or monitoring company is 
assessed, to the property owner; and when a general contractor is assessed, to 
both the property owner and the alarm maintenance or monitoring company.  
Any person assessed a fee may request reconsideration of the assessment within 
ten (10) days of receiving notice of the fee assessment.  The official responsible 
for the assessment shall consider evidence submitted by the appellant and shall 
withdraw the assessment if the official determines by a preponderance of the 
evidence that the alarm for which the fee is assessed is not a Category II or 
malicious alarm.”  
 

Section 2. All ordinances heretofore passed and adopted by the City 
Council of the City of Steamboat Springs, Colorado, are hereby repealed to the 
extent that said ordinances, or parts thereof, are in conflict herewith.  

 
Section 3. If any section, subsection, clause, phrase or provision of this 

Ordinance, or the application thereof to any person or circumstance, shall to any 
extent, be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or 

�����



Emergency Alarms – False Alarms Fee  6 

unconstitutional, the remaining sections, subsections, clauses, phrases and 
provisions of this Ordinance, or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance, shall remain in full force and shall in no way be affected, impaired or 
invalidated. 

 
Section 4. The City Council hereby finds, determines and declares that 

this Ordinance is necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, 
health and safety. 

 
Section 5. This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon the 

expiration of five (5) days from and after its publication following final passage, as 
provided in Section 7.6(h) of the Steamboat Springs Home Rule Charter. 
 
INTRODUCED, READ AND ORDERED PUBLISHED, as provided by law, by the 
City Council of the City of Steamboat Springs, at its regular meeting held on the  
  4th   day of   May  , 2010. 
 
 
 
 Cari Hermacinski 

 Cari Hermacinski, President 
 Steamboat Springs City Council 
ATTEST: 
 
 
Julie Franklin 

Julie Franklin, CMC 
City Clerk 
 
 
 

FINALLY READ, PASSED AND APPROVED this   18th   day of  
  May  , 2010. 
 
 
 
 Cari Hermacinski 

 Cari Hermacinski, President 
 Steamboat Springs City Council 
ATTEST: 
 
 
Julie Franklin 

Julie Franklin, CMC 

�����



Emergency Alarms – False Alarms Fee  7 

City Clerk 
 

�����



AGENDA ITEM #12c Attachment 6 
 

CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM 
 
 
FROM:  Dan Foote, Staff Attorney (Ext. 223)  

J.D. Hays, Director of Public Safety (Ext. 113) 
Ron Lindroth, Fire Chief (879-7170) 

 
THROUGH:  Jon Roberts, City Manager (Ext. 228) 
 
DATE:  May 18, 2010  
 
ITEM: AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING A FEE SCHEDULE FOR 

EXCESSIVE AND/OR UNNECESSARY EMERGENCY 
ALARMS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND SETTING A 
HEARING DATE. (Foote) 

 
NEXT STEP: APPROVE THE ORDINANCE ON SECOND READING. 
 
 
    X  ORDINANCE 
         RESOLUTION 
         MOTION 
  ____ DIRECTION 
  ____ INFORMATION 
 
 
I.  REQUEST OR ISSUE: 
 
Adopt an ordinance imposing fees on property owners, contractors, and 
emergency alarm companies who are responsible for excessive and/or 
unnecessary emergency alarms. 
 
II.  RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Adopt the ordinance. 
 
III. BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  
 

�����



The frequent incidence of false emergency alarms, i.e. burglar and fire alarms, 
results in excessive and unnecessary use of fire and police department 
resources. Dispatch of emergency response units to false emergency alarms 
renders responding units unavailable to respond in a timely fashion to legitimate 
emergency situations. 
 
The Fire Chief and Director of Public Safety recommend that the City adopt the 
attached ordinance, which authorizes the assessment of fees for false emergency 
alarms, in order to encourage property owners, construction contractors, and 
emergency alarm companies to improve the reliability of their emergency alarm 
systems. 
 
Staff has amended the ordinance since first reading to add a sentence providing 
that failure to pay a fee is a violation of the municipal code. Municipal code 
violations may result in citations to the municipal court and fines of up to $999. 
 
IV.  LEGAL ISSUES.  
 
None. 
 
V.  FISCAL IMPACTS.  
 
The ordinance creates a fee system that will result in a small increase in City 
revenue. Hopefully, the ordinance will also result in a reduction in expenditures 
incurred in responding to false emergency alarms. 
 
 

�����



 

 

AGENDA ITEM #13 
 

CITY OF STEAMBOAT SPRINGS 
 

Regular Meeting NO. 2012-03 
 

Tuesday, February 07, 2012 
 

 
ROLL CALL (5:00 PM) 
 

City Council Members present:  Bart Kounovsky, Scott Myller, Cari Hermacinski, Kevin 
Kaminski, Sonja Macys, Walter Magill, and Kenny Reisman. 
 
Staff Members present: Jon Roberts, City Manager; Tony Lettunich, City Attorney; Julie 
Franklin, City Clerk; Deb Hinsvark; Deputy City Manager; Tyler Gibbs, Director of 
Planning Services; Chris Wilson, Director of Parks, Open Space and Recreation; Anne 
Small, Director of General Services; Philo Shelton, Director of Public Works; Joel Rae, 
Chief of Police, Kim Weber, Director of Financial Services; and Jay Muhme, Fire 
Marshall.  
 
LLA HEARING (5:00PM) 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION (5:05PM) 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION: To discuss the topics set forth below. The specific 
citation to the provision or provisions of C.R.S. §24-6-402, subsection (4) that 
authorize(s) the City Council to meet in an executive session is set out below. 
The description of the topic is intended to identify the particular matter to be 
discussed in as much detail as possible without compromising the purpose for 
which the executive session is authorized: 
   
A discussion related to the possible purchase, acquisition, and/or lease of 
interests in real property:  

   This discussion is authorized under the following provisions:  

§24-6-402(4)(a), which permits an executive session to discuss “[t]he purchase, 
acquisition, lease, transfer, or sale of any real, personal, or other property 
interest;”  

§24-6-402(4)(b), which permits an executive session to have “[c]onferences with 
an attorney for the local public body for the purposes of receiving legal advice on 
specific legal questions;” and  

����



STEAMBOAT SPRINGS CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
Regular Meeting NO. 2012-03 
Tuesday, February 07, 2012 

 2

 

 

§24-6-402(4)(e), which permits an executive session for the purpose of 
“[d]etermining positions relative to matters that may be subject to negotiations; 
developing strategy for negotiations; and instructing negotiators;”  
 
MOTION: Bart Kounovsky moved and Scott Myller seconded to adjourn into Executive 
Session at approximately 5:07pm.  

 
The motion carried 7/0.  
 

MOTION: Bart Kounovsky moved and Scott Myller seconded to adjourn the Executive 
Session and reconvene the regular meeting at approximately 5:56pm.  

 
The motion carried 7/0.  
 
Persons attending the Executive Session: Bart Kounovsky, Scott Myller, Cari 
Hermacinski, Kevin Kaminski, Sonja Macys, Walter Magill, and Kenny Reisman, Anne 
Small, Tony Lettunich, Deb Hinsvark and Jon Roberts.  
 
City Council President Kounovsky noted for the record, that if any person who 
participated in the executive session believes that any substantial discussion of 
matters not included in the motion to go into the executive session occurred during the 
executive session, or that any improper action occurred during the executive session in 
violation of the Open Meetings Law, that person should state his/her concerns for the 
record. 
 
No concerns were indicated. 
 
COMMUNITY REPORTS/CITY COUNCIL DISCUSSION TOPIC: 
 
 

1. Review of Noise Ordinance. 
 
Hermacinski stepped down and left the meeting at approximately 6:00pm. 

Gibbs stated that the ordinance has been in place for the summer and holiday season, 
which was a good test. Council received a summary of complaints received.  

Rae stated that there were 40 complaints in City, and only 3 in the downtown area. 
There were no significant problems or complaints on either side. The noise ordinance 
appears to be working; however there has not been an incident where a noise reading 
was needed.  

����



STEAMBOAT SPRINGS CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
Regular Meeting NO. 2012-03 
Tuesday, February 07, 2012 

 3

 
 
 

2. City Response to ICMA Report.  
 
Rae stated that the following presentation from the interim Fire Chief has the support 
of Management Team and Fire personnel. It shows that the City provides adequate 
and safe protection to the Fire District, does not recommend privatization of EMS 
because there is no cost savings, and the cross-training that has been done has built 
an efficient team who are both firefighter and EMT trained.  

Stewart spoke to the presentation in Council's packet, highlighting the following: how 
firefighters are paid, staffed and scheduled; comparing the traditional to the non 
traditional firefighter; utilize part time staff to reduce costs and increase flexibility; 
reduce overtime expenses; the mandatory 4 person staffing; reducing staffing at night; 
engine companies should begin a program of fire inspectors; automatic AED program; 
public education programs; IGA and strategic planning; and privatization.  

Kaminski asked about the "rule of 2". Stewart stated that this speaks to having two 
firefighters inside a structure fire and two outside in order to have an affective attack on 
a fire.  

Macys asked about the SAFER grant. Stewart stated that it is a three year grant that 
ends in 2013. Macys asked about staffing in the shoulder season? Stewart stated that 
if they do not "backfill" there will be less overtime. However people become dependent 
on that overtime to make their living and may be looking for other jobs to supplement 
their income.  

Reisman asked about firefighter’s ability to make a livable wage? Staff retention? Staff 
morale? Stewart stated that there would be an impact from cutting overtime; however 
the department sees the need to cut expenses City-wide and this is an area 
where they can do that. 

Stewart clarified that the plan is to first rework the IGA then work on a strategic plan. 

Macys asked about the status of the "reserve" program? Stewart stated that he 
is working on it. 

 
3. District Response to ICMA Report.  

 
Connell, President of the Fire District Board, was present as well as Board members 
and legal counsel. She stated that firefighters do not get enough credit for the work 
that they do. She thanked them for the excellent services they provide.  

 

����



STEAMBOAT SPRINGS CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
Regular Meeting NO. 2012-03 
Tuesday, February 07, 2012 

 4

 

 

They support what was presented by Stewart and support him as the new Fire Chief. 
She noted the need for Council and the Board to set policies on how to move forward, 
and then continue to iron out the specifics with legal staff. She noted that the District is 
paying the SAFER grant match, not the City. Additionally studies show that  response 
times have not changed in 12 years, yet look at how the community has changed in 
that time. Finally, the oil and gas industry will have a big, long term impact. There will 
be more traffic on our highways as well as accidents on drilling sites.  

PUBLIC COMMENT:  

Jennifer Tamburrino stated that she has used local emergency medical 
services numerous times because she has a son with medical issues who would not 
be here if not for these people. She can't say enough about this staff.  

Kounovsky asked if Council agrees to have him and another member of Council move 
forward with negotiations for the IGA.  

Reisman thinks the City and District are headed in right direction, but need to solve 
governance issue. He thinks that just Connell and Kounovsky should start the 
negotiation process.  

Macys believes there is a shared interest in moving forward with IGA and is pleased 
that all are on same page about not moving forward with privatization of EMS. She 
wants to keep firefighters working at full time capacity and keep them trained and 
to move forward in a productive and expedient way. She noted the need to value and 
retain the staff we have.  

Connell suggested four people total, two from Council and two from the District. 
Reisman stated if that is the case he would like all four people to attend all meetings.  

Magill asked about staff involvement. Connell stated that staff is available to 
provide information, but decisions are driven by the Boards.  

Myller would like to try to accomplish agreement on governance before July. 

UNANIMOUS CONSENT: Kounovsky and Kaminski to be the Council representatives. 
 

4. Report on Firefighter Salary.  
 
Small thanked Anna Miller, the City's student intern, who put this information together. 
She stated that staff surveyed 11 different agencies and four different positions, using 
the midpoint. There was a wide variety of governance so it was hard to compare 

����



STEAMBOAT SPRINGS CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
Regular Meeting NO. 2012-03 
Tuesday, February 07, 2012 

 5

"apples to apples". They found that the "Kelly shift" is the norm and that at the 50th  

 

percentile the City is 6.27% lower. The City's 2008 salary survey showed these same 
gaps. 

They also surveyed compensation increases for the different agencies with varied 
results. The City will be conducting an organizational wide salary survey and position 
audit because as the City has downsized jobs have changed. Staff hopes to complete 
this process and present to Council in May.  

Kounovsky asked if staff also surveyed benefit packages. Small stated that staff will 
look at the full package in May.  

Macys asked what the City's goal is organization-wide, what percentile do we strive 
to be? Small stated that we want to be on market and competitive so we can retain 
employees. However, there is a cost to implement that type of pay plan.  

Reisman voiced concern that we are already on the low end with firefighter salary and 
we are talking about reducing staff in the shoulder season, and therefore cutting 
salaries. He would like to have this discussion before May or talk about firefighter 
salary individually. Kaminski stated that his view is that no pieces move until all the 
pieces start moving, in other words no staffing reductions until salaries have been 
adjusted.  

Kaminski stepped down and left the meeting at 6:55pm. 

Macys stated that it is her understanding that unless there is specific direction from 
Council for staff to cut the budget, then the 2012 budget would be status quo. Council 
is not asking staff to make those cuts yet.  

Small stated that Council will see this difference across the board in all City positions 
and will have a better overall picture of salaries and the cost to change that. Myller 
does not want to look at salaries one by one. Magill agrees, possibly for next year's 
budget. Macys reminded that there is a small savings in losing the Fire Chief. 

Stewart stated that staff was asked to respond to the ICMA report and this is where 
they found money savings. 

Roberts asked Stewart if he thought the implementation of the shift changes would 
have an adverse affect on firefighter’s income level. Stewart stated that he is not sure; 
he will have to report back on that.  

Macys stated that the City has an approved budget to pay for current staff and she 

����



STEAMBOAT SPRINGS CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
Regular Meeting NO. 2012-03 
Tuesday, February 07, 2012 

 6

does not understand why staff is looking at more cuts.  

 

Roberts stated that he assumed that the impact of shift changes had already been 
analyzed and assumed that fire staff was comfortable moving forward. Stewart stated 
that the Fire Department is "on board" with the shift changes as a reasonable way to 
save money.   

Kounovsky stated that the City needs to be aware if there will be an adverse affect to 
employees by making this change and staff needs to work this out. 

PUBLIC COMMENT: 

Laura Hetrick noted the need to "humanize this" and stated that her husband has been 
a fulltime firefighter for seven years and makes $12 an hour. He then works another 
job as well in order to survive here.  

Lila Powers, EMS Director, asked if the City surveyed comparable cities. Rifle is not 
comparable, but Vail, Aspen, Eagle and Summit are.  

Erica Wright, former firefighter, stated that she had to leave her position partly due to 
salary.  

 
5. Report and Response to Privatization of Ambulance Services.  

 
Kounovsky noted that staff and the District have recommended to not moving forward 
with privatization. UNANIMOUS CONSENT: Council agrees. 

GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT 

Victoria Barron, Kent Barron and Allison Williams of the Teen Council were present. 
Barron stated that she went to the State Review Commission meeting in January to 
share the City's success with the N-CTRL ordinance, which has opened the door for 
other communities. Kent Barron stated that they provide tobacco education to 
students, are hosting a poster contest, and an event called "kick butts day". Williams 
stated that the event is on March 21 and they are seeking community leaders to judge 
the poster contest.  

Myller stated that he will judge.  

Luke Falcon, owner of an exterior roofing company, voiced concern with the lack of 
wind requirements in the Code. Council directed him to speak with the City Manager 
on how to move forward. 

 
 

����



STEAMBOAT SPRINGS CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
Regular Meeting NO. 2012-03 
Tuesday, February 07, 2012 

 7

 
 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR: MOTIONS, RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES FIRST 
READINGS 

 
6. FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE: An ordinance amending section 22-

126 and section 22-129 of the Steamboat Springs Revised Municipal 
Code implementing a onetime $25 Sales Tax application fee beginning 
June 1, 2012.  

 
Reisman asked if this only applies to new licenses. Weber clarified yes and it is a one 
time fee. She stated that the City receives approximately 300 new applications a year. 
Also, sales tax licenses for special events are excluded from this ordinance. 
 

7. FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE:  An ordinance amending section 12-
82 (2) of the Steamboat Springs Revised Municipal Code implementing 
a $25 fee for a Special Activity Permit.  

 
8. FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE:  An ordinance vacating a 10 foot 

wide utility easement in Lot 2, Burgess Creek Ridge Subdivision, 
Filing 2 and vacating a 10 foot wide utility easement in Lot 40, 
Rendezvous Trails Subdivision, Filing 2; providing an effective date 
and setting a hearing date.  

 
 

MOTION: Walter Magill moved and Scott Myller seconded to approve items 6, 7 and 8 
of the Consent Calendar. 
 
The motion carried 5/0. Hermacinski and Kaminski left the meeting. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: ORDINANCE SECOND READINGS 

 
There are no items scheduled for this portion of the agenda. 

 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT 
 

9. Planning Commissioners Update.  
 
A written report was provided. 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR - PLANNING COMMISSION REFERRALS: 

 
 

���	



STEAMBOAT SPRINGS CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
Regular Meeting NO. 2012-03 
Tuesday, February 07, 2012 

 8

There are no items scheduled for this portion of the agenda. 
 

 
PUBLIC HEARING – PLANNING COMMISSION REFERRALS 

 
10. PROJECT:  Rendezvous Trail Subdivision Filing 2, Lot 40 and Burgess 

Creek Ridge Subdivision Filing 2, Lot 2  #PP-11-03  
PETITION: Preliminary plat for a lot line adjustment that contains variances 
to the usable lot area and access easement in excess of 100 feet in length 
for two lots located at 2493 & 2529 Ridge Road. 
LOCATION: 2493 & 2529 Ridge Road. 
APPLICATION: Ridge Road LLC c/o Ed Becker, Mountain Architecture, 
P.O. Box 770420, Steamboat Springs, CO 80477 (970) 879-5764. 
PLANNING COMMISSION VOTE: Recommended approval on January 26, 
2012 (6-0 Vote). 

 
Kounovsky read the project into the record.  

Gibbs had no report. He stated that this project is consistent with all criteria and staff 
recommends approval. 

CONDITIONS: 

1.      Prior to recordation of the final plat, complete an improvements agreement and 
provide surety for incomplete improvements. Items noted as incomplete are installation 
of the guardrail at the fire turnaround and installation of pavement. 
 
2.   A utility easement vacation ordinance for the easements that exist along the 
original common lot line shall be approved by City Council prior to Final Plat. 
 
MOTION: Scott Myller moved and Sonja Macys seconded to approve Rendezvous 
Trail Subdivision Filing 2, Lot 40 and Burgess Creek Ridge Subdivision Filing 2, 
Lot 2 Preliminary Plat with conditions 1-2.  

 
The motion carried 5/0. Hermacinski and Kaminski left the meeting. 

 
REPORTS 

 
11. Economic Development Update  

 
Roberts stated that as directed staff is aggressively pursuing economic development, 
including the micro grant program.  

Hinsvark clarified that the micro grant program is "economic stimulus". 
 
 

���




STEAMBOAT SPRINGS CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
Regular Meeting NO. 2012-03 
Tuesday, February 07, 2012 

 9

 
 
 

12. City Council  
 
Macys: 

1.     Attended a Rodeo Board meeting and noted the absence of the horse 
community from the master plan meetings. 

2.     Attended a Yampa Valley Sustainability Council meeting and discussed "talking 
green"; the CAST presentation on sustainability; and the Fort Collins model.  

3.     Attended the CAST meeting and noted that the City was a great host and put on 
a great show at Howelsen Hill.  

4.     Attended a Kiwanis Club meeting. 

5.     Asked about the status of providing written comments to the County regarding oil 
and gas activity. Lettunich stated that it was his understanding that the City was going 
to wait for the County to develop regulations so the City can develop its based on 
theirs. It is the right of local government to regulate, except to prevent drilling. 
DIRECTION: Lettunich to provide a report on March 6, 2012. 

Myller: 

1.     Received a call from a constituent about the lack of scoria sweeping. Does the 
City do less of it? Shelton stated that the City went to one sweeper instead of two in 
budget cuts.  

2.     Received another call of concern about the false alarm ordinance. Rae stated that 
staff has been working on this and has concerns with the way the ordinance is written 
and enforced. It may not be as affective as it could be and staff would like to redraft the 
ordinance.  

3.     Noted that Mary Alice Page Allen will be leaving the Yampa Valley Housing 
Authority and they will be seeking a new director. 

4.     Noted that a representative is needed to attend the next Parks and Recreation 
Commission meeting. Reisman stated that he will attend the next meeting if Myller will 
attend this week. Myller will attend. 

 

 

����



STEAMBOAT SPRINGS CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
Regular Meeting NO. 2012-03 
Tuesday, February 07, 2012 

 10

 

 

Reisman: 

1.     Attended a Yampa Valley Sustainability Council meeting and there was much 
discussion on oil and gas. The affects are wide ranging and is a property rights issue. 
The Community Alliance has a sub committee and he will try to attend one of their 
meetings. 

2.     Noted that "Earth Hour" is in March and he thinks it would be fun to involve 
Howelsen Hill in the event.  

3.     Spoke to the "Excellence Project" which is a sub group of Grand Futures that 
will bring in leadership speakers for the students. There will be one on February 26, 
and Danielle Gallagher, a World Cup lacrosse player will speak. 

Magill: 

1.     Attended the Colorado Water Congress.  

2.     Attended the Chamber's Special Event funding meeting. He noted that the 
group only allocated $80,000 out of $100,000 and there will be a lot of good events this 
summer.  

Kounovsky: 

1.     Asked for an update on the flooded area at the bottom of High Point Drive. 
Shelton stated that there are issues City wide with frost penetration and corrugated 
metal pipes due to ice flow and lack of snow.  
 

 
13. Reports  

 
a. Agenda Review:  

 
Kounovsky reminded Council that it will meet again next week, instead of the normal 
first and third Tuesday schedule.  

 
1. City Council agenda for February 14, 2012.  

 
2. City Council agenda for March 6, 2012.  

 
 
 

�����



STEAMBOAT SPRINGS CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
Regular Meeting NO. 2012-03 
Tuesday, February 07, 2012 

 11

 
 
 

14. Staff Reports  
 

a. City Attorney's Update/Report.   
 
Lettunich had no report. 

 
b. Manager's Report: Ongoing Projects.  

 
1. Report on Citizen's Survey.  

 
Roberts stated that Management Team discussed the results but are not prepared to 
draw any conclusion.  

Hinsvark provided a summary of the data from the survey and agreed that staff may 
not have any final determinations to make. The game was on the City's website for 
the month of January and received 584 responses. She noted that if staff were to do 
this again she would make the demographics part a mandatory response. 

Comments were optional and very interesting. There were some on the mathematical 
logistics of the game and comments of gratitude for a chance to provide input. There 
were a few requests of things to fund that we don’t currently fund, like a community 
center. There were some “get back to the basics” type comments as well as comments 
on how expensive the Police Department is. There were 13 requests to start charging 
a fee for the bus and a request that Parks and Recreation fees truly cover the cost of 
services.  

A conclusion one could draw from the results is that this City values recreation as a 
core service. Roberts noted that staff's budgeting priorities seem to be in line with 
the community’s rankings.  

Macys cautioned Council and staff about using the results of this survey because it 
does not represent the segment of the community that does not have access to the 
internet.  

 
OLD BUSINESS 

 
15. Minutes  

  
a. Regular Meeting 2011-20, December 20, 2011.  
b. Regular Meeting 2012-01, January 3, 2012.  
c. Regular Meeting 2012-02, January 17, 2012.  

 
 

�����



STEAMBOAT SPRINGS CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
Regular Meeting NO. 2012-03 
Tuesday, February 07, 2012 

 12

 
 

 

MOTION: Sonja Macys moved and Kenny Reisman seconded to approve the 
December 20, January 3 and January 17 minutes.  

 
The motion carried 5/0. Hermacinski and Kaminski left the meeting. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
MOTION: Kenny Reisman moved and Scott Myller seconded to adjourn Regular 
Meeting 2012-03 at approximately 7:35pm. 

 
The motion carried 5/0. Hermacinski and Kaminski left the meeting. 

 
 
         

�����



 

 

 
CITY OF STEAMBOAT SPRINGS 

 
Regular Meeting NO. 2012-04 

 
Tuesday, February 14, 2012 

 
 
ROLL CALL (5:00 PM)  

 
City Council Members present:  Bart Kounovsky, Scott Myller, Cari Hermacinski, Kevin 
Kaminski, Sonja Macys, Walter Magill, and Kenny Reisman. 
 
Staff Members present: Jon Roberts, City Manager; Tony Lettunich, City Attorney; Julie 
Franklin, City Clerk; Deb Hinsvark; Deputy City Manager; Tyler Gibbs, Director of 
Planning Services; Chris Wilson, Director of Parks, Open Space and Recreation; Anne 
Small, Director of General Services; Philo Shelton, Director of Public Works; Joel Rae, 
Chief of Police, and Kim Weber, Director of Financial Services.  
 
COMMUNITY REPORTS/CITY COUNCIL DISCUSSION TOPIC:  

 
1. Allocations for Special Event Funding.  

 
Sarah Leonard and Marion Taylor, Steamboat Springs Chamber Resort Association, 
were present. 

Leonard, Special Events Director, stated that they had $100,000 to allocate but did not 
allocate the full amount in case a large event like the Pro Challenge comes through. If 
an event was not funded it was because the criteria were not met. She also noted that 
she represents events on behalf of the Chamber so she does not stay in the room 
when decisions are made. 

Magill clarified that this is a six person committee. The bike calendar did not get funded 
because they did not get their application in on time. Cultural heritage was not funded 
because the Committee did not believe it was summer marketing. Additionally, the 
Chamber intends to turn the air fest event over to the Airport Commission.  

Kaminski stated that the process included a lot of "moving pieces" with respect to size, 
scope and revenues. 

 

 

 

�����



STEAMBOAT SPRINGS CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
Regular Meeting NO. 2012-04 
Tuesday, February 14, 2012 

 2

 
CONSENT CALENDAR: MOTIONS, RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES FIRST 
READINGS  

 
 
2. RESOLUTION:  A resolution supporting the grant application for a 

local Government Planning Grant from the State Board of the Great 
Outdoors Colorado for the Howelsen/Emerald Mountain Park Master 
Plan.    

 
Item #2 was removed for discussion. 

It was noted that the approval is contingent on the $14,000 being in a City held escrow 
account until the grant is submitted. 

 
MOTION: Scott Myller moved and Walter Magill seconded to approve a resolution 
supporting the grant application for a local Government Planning Grant from the State 
Board of the Great Outdoors Colorado for the Howelsen/Emerald Mountain Park 
Master Plan.   

 
The motion carried 7/0.  

 
3. RESOLUTION:  A resolution approving the First Amendment to the 

Air Contribution Agreement dated June 15, 2010 by and between the 
Steamboat Ski & Resort Corporation ("SSRC") and the Steamboat 
Springs Local Marketing District ("LMD") concerning the operation of 
the LMD.  

 
4. RESOLUTION: A resolution acknowledging the appointment of a 

member to the Local Marketing District Board of Directors.   
 
MOTION: Scott Myller moved and Cari Hermacinski seconded to approve items 3 and 
4 of the Consent Calendar.  

 
The motion carried 7/0.  

 
PUBLIC HEARING: ORDINANCE SECOND READINGS  

 
There were no items scheduled for this portion of the agenda. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

�����



STEAMBOAT SPRINGS CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
Regular Meeting NO. 2012-04 
Tuesday, February 14, 2012 

 3

 
CONSENT CALENDAR - PLANNING COMMISSION REFERRALS:  

 
5. PROJECT:  Whitewater Run F2 - #PP-11-02  (Lorson)  

PETITION: Approval of a Preliminary Plat to subdivide one (20,731 S.F.) lot 
into four lots (1A: 4,225 S.F., 2A: 5,099 S.F., 3A: 5,751 S.F., 4A: 5,626 
S.F.) 
LOCATION: 841 Yampa Street. 
APPLICATION: Riverfront Partners, LLC. C/O Mike McKernan; 2618 2nd 
Avenue, Seattle, WA 98101 
PLANNING COMMISSION VOTE: Recommended approval on February 9, 
2012 (7-0 Vote)  

 
Kounovsky read the project into the record. 
 
CONDITIONS: 
 
1. Civil construction plans prepared by a licensed Colorado civil engineer must be 

submitted to Public Works for review and approval by Public Works, Planning, 
and City Utilities prior to approval of any improvements agreement, final plat, or 
building permit and prior to the start of any construction of these improvements. 
 We recommend submitting the construction plans a minimum of five weeks 
prior to improvements agreement, final plat or building permit application to 
allow time for review, comment response, and approval. Grading and drainage 
modifications may be required from what is conceptually shown on the 
preliminary plat to address final engineering design comments per civil plan and 
final drainage report approval.  Additionally, notes shall be required on the civil 
plans indicating the curb conditions shall be confirmed with City Engineering 
prior to construction and each lot may be required to reconstruct portions of the 
streetscape to accommodate individual development plans.  

2. Prior to civil construction plan submittal the developer shall verify pipe type and 
size assumptions from proposed inlet #1 to the Yampa River outfall, as made in 
the Final Drainage Study dated April 1, 2009 by Landmark Consultants, Inc. and 
submitted with the Whitewater Run filing 1 application. The as-built conditions 
will be used to determine any necessary upgrades as suggested in the Final 
Drainage Study to satisfy City Drainage Criteria.  

3. At time of final plat dedicate a utility easement according to the Yampa St. 
undergrounding design to accommodate underground electric service to these 
lots.  Per Yampa Valley Electric Associated additional pocket easements may 
be required at time of final development plans for these lots.  

4. The owner shall be responsible for constructing and maintaining any snow-melt 
and any other streetscape features located in the City Right-of-Way per the 
approved construction plans and coordinated with the Steamboat Springs 
Downtown Design Guidelines. 

�����



STEAMBOAT SPRINGS CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
Regular Meeting NO. 2012-04 
Tuesday, February 14, 2012 

 4

5. Any required Army Corp, FEMA, etc. approvals must be granted prior to 
approval of the civil construction plans, and any design requirements must be 
included on the plans.  

6. The following items to be identified on the construction plans are considered 
critical improvements and must be warranted until final acceptance can be 
issued: 
� Public Drainage Improvements 
� Roadway Patching 

 
MOTION: Scott Myller moved and Kevin Kaminski seconded to approve the 
Whitewater Run Preliminary Plat with conditions 1-6.   

 
The motion carried 7/0.  

 
PUBLIC HEARING – PLANNING COMMISSION REFERRALS  

 
There were no items scheduled for this portion of the agenda. 

 
REPORTS  

 
6. Economic Development Update   

 
No report was provided. 

 
7. City Council   

 
Kaminski: 

1. Will be out of town for the February 22, 2012 IRAC meeting. Kounovsky to see if 
he can attend. 

2. Participated in the "swat analysis” of both airports, which went well.  

Magill: 

1. Attended the Winter Carnival activities that were terrific. He thanked all for their 
work specifically the Chamber and City staff. 

2. Will attend the Airport celebration on February 15, 2012. 

 

 

 

�����



STEAMBOAT SPRINGS CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
Regular Meeting NO. 2012-04 
Tuesday, February 14, 2012 

 5

 

Reisman: 

1. Also thanked all for the amazing Winter Carnival events. 
2. Met with the Haymaker golf pro to discuss operations and the fact that there are 

three different entities at the course (food and beverage, the pro shop and the 
greens staff). He would like to task the Golf Committee to find more efficient 
ways to run the course. Hermacinski supports this. Reisman clarified that this 
would not involve consultants, just looking at different course models. Myller 
asked if it is the way the City does RFP's that contributes to having three 
different entities. Reisman clarified that this is not about the pros or City staff, all 
the surveys indicate that they do a great job. This is a matter of seeing if there is 
a more efficient way to structure. UNANIMOUS CONSENT: Golf Committee to 
look into this. 

Myller: 

1. Attended a Chamber Board meeting and was reminded that there used to be a 
Transportation Solutions Group. This group stepped aside while the Chamber 
worked on the airline program and he wonders if they should start meeting 
again. He would like to see if City or County staff could facilitate this. 
Hermacinski asked who at the Chamber was involved in this. Myller thinks that 
maybe the Chamber does not want to do that anymore. Magill stated that the 
group discussed an RTA, but instead went for the airline tax. Is the City 
proposing a ballot tax? Myller stated no, but the group looked at things 
like shuttle parking on side streets and came up with some good ideas. 
Hermacinski suggested that Myller ask the original group members if they 
feel there is ”undone work" first. DIRECTION: Myller to do that. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

����	



STEAMBOAT SPRINGS CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
Regular Meeting NO. 2012-04 
Tuesday, February 14, 2012 

 6

 

2. Attended the Parks and Recreation Commission meeting on February 8, 
2012 and there was interesting discussion on a request from the Steamboat 
Mountain Soccer tournament to waive fees. The Commission struggled with 
whether this is a Council issue or if it is their prerogative. Wilson stated that they 
are having a meeting to discuss this issue and will come back to Council to 
discuss where the responsibilities are split and what Council wants to see. They 
have various waiver requests for room/facility rentals and sponsorships that 
Parks and Recreation Commission has historically made decisions on. 
Kounovsky asked if the City is waiving fees at the Parks and Recreation level or 
advisory level. Wilson stated at the advisory level, based on established policy 
and procedure. Kounovsky stated that Council needs to see fee waiver 
requests. Wilson stated that these requests used to come to Council but Council 
did not want to see them anymore and it was delegated to the Parks and 
Recreation Commission. Hermacinski stated that this policy surprises her 
because the Planning Commission is the only Commission named in the 
Charter and they don't waive fees. Wilson stated that Parks and 
Recreation Commission does this under the direction of the City Manager as 
allowed by the Code. Kounovsky would like to schedule this item on an agenda. 
Roberts stated that he is not comfortable with staff having the authority to waive 
fees without Council approval. Hermacinski confirmed that the Commission 
will suspend the practice of waiving fees until Council has this discussion. Magill 
stated that the soccer group is asking to waive fees so they can reduce the cost 
of programs and offer scholarships. He noted that Winter Carnival does not pay 
fees to close streets. Hermacinski clarified that the difference is that this was 
approved by Council. DIRECTION: City Clerk to schedule this item on the 
March 20, 2012 Council agenda. 

Kounovsky: 

1. Noted that Kaminski has too much on his plate and will not be able to represent 
Council in the Fire District IGA meetings. UNANIMOUS CONSENT: Magill to do 
it.  

2. Provided a general reminder to Council that they are policy makers and not to 
get in too deep to the day-to-day operations of the City and directing staff.  

8. Reports   
 

a. Agenda Review:  
 

1. City Council agenda for March 6, 2012.  
 

2. City Council agenda for March 20, 2012.  
 
Council reviewed the above agendas. 

����




STEAMBOAT SPRINGS CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
Regular Meeting NO. 2012-04 
Tuesday, February 14, 2012 

 7

 
9. Staff Reports   

 
a. City Attorney's Update/Report.  

 
Lettunich had no report. 

 
b. Manger's Report: Ongoing Projects.  

 
Roberts stated that while attending Winter Carnival he watched the golunda ski 
jumping. Council Member Kaminski was competing! 

Roberts provided an update on the firefighter shift schedule noting that there was 
concern about impacts caused by the reduction of overtime pay. Management Team 
met to address this concern and recommended to implement the new schedule with an 
impact mitigation plan, similar to what is offered with the furlough. If there is a hardship 
case then the employee will be allowed to work more hours. Rae and Stewart 
recommend implementing the new schedule in April. They have met with fire staff who 
is comfortable with this as well. 

Reisman stated that he did not want to have these as "separate pieces". If the City is 
not going to talk about salaries until May then he would like to hold off on the new 
schedule until then so that it can be implemented as a whole. Kaminski agrees, that is 
what Council said at the last meeting. A month or two will not make much of a 
difference, and this does not send the right message. Roberts stated that Management 
Team discussed accelerating the salary study, but this is not possible. Hermacinski 
stated that in terms of directing overtime and salaries, this is the job of the City 
Manager; while policy and the overall salary survey are in their purview. She also 
noted that every department has pursued costs savings. 

Macys agrees with Reisman and Kaminski. Council authorizes the budget, and she 
does not understand why staff is continuing to ask them to cut. This decision is 
concerning. Council discussed strategic initiatives, but this was very vague. She does 
not support any cuts before having the discussion about our fire department in a global 
context.  

Magill agrees with Hermacinski and is okay with the current decision. 

MOTION: Hermacinski moved and Magill seconded to accept the recommendation of 
the City Manager. 

Discussion during the motion:  

 

�����



STEAMBOAT SPRINGS CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
Regular Meeting NO. 2012-04 
Tuesday, February 14, 2012 

 8

 

Reisman does think that cuts can be made out of the budget season; however he does 
not support the motion. Additionally, "all things fire" is a Council goal, which makes it 
okay for Council to get into the "nitty gritty" of it. 

Hermacinski clarified that the Charter says that Council should not get into operations 
of any department. From a governance perspective yes, but not staffing and overtime. 

Kounovsky supports the motion noting that Council does not do this with other 
departments.  

Myller stated that Council received the ICMA report that suggested certain savings. 
Council then asked staff to analyze the report and this is what they came up with. He 
supports the motion. 

Kaminski asked Roberts to rethink this. This will upset employees that are very 
important to this community. Staff is going after the “low hanging fruit”, but this is 
the wrong low hanging fruit.  

Roberts stated that he is sensitive to hardships on employees. He is relying on the 
Acting Director of Public Safety who spoke with his staff, and they support moving 
forward.  

Rae assured Council that if there is an adverse hardship, he will recommend staffing 
back up to eight. This shift change is the recommendation of all fire staff. If needed, the 
situation will be rectified immediately; however staff is still responsible for trying to save 
money across the City. 

The motion carried 5/2. Reisman and Macys opposed. 

Hinsvark provided an update on the inaccurate Verizon City tax. Verizon has 
been charging some County residents a City tax on their phones based on zip codes. 
Staff has been trying to work with Verizon however they continue to inaccurately 
charge people. Staff is aware of 7 cases over the last 5 years but is not aware of how 
many others may be affected. The bottom line is that people can get a refund from the 
City. If Verizon does not stop doing this, people will have to keep applying for a refund.  

Weber stated that staff has made phone calls over the years and does not get much 
response and gets no response to letters. Verizon is not under-collecting so staff can't 
assess them.  

Roberts believes that this is unacceptable, and would like to work with the City 
Attorney on this. It is inappropriate to incorrectly tax our citizens on our behalf.  

 

�����



STEAMBOAT SPRINGS CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
Regular Meeting NO. 2012-04 
Tuesday, February 14, 2012 

 9

 
c. Board and Commission Benefits. (Information only, no action 

necessary)   
 
Franklin provided a spreadsheet of Board/Committee "perks". 

Macys noted that a Golf Committee applicant brought up the topic of them paying for 
their own golf passes. Reisman stated that this was not discussed at the last meeting. 
Hermacinski noted that Council offered golf passes to the Planning Commission 
because the City wasn't getting enough applicants and it is good to keep strong 
applicants coming in. Reisman asked if staff has looked into the free food question. 
Wilson is looking into that. Reisman noted the need to make sure that 
compensation/perks for our volunteers are clearly defined. Macys stated that she 
always thought that the reason the City gives is freebies to get people involved who 
may not be able to purchase these things on their own. She believes that we do we 
have inconsistencies in how we compensate our boards. 

GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT 

No one appeared for General Public Comment. 
 
ADJOURNMENT  

 
MOTION: Sonja Macys moved and Scott Myller seconded to approve adjourning 
Regular Meeting 2012-04 at approximately 6:04pm.  

 
The motion carried 7/0.  

 
   

�����


	AGENDA
	ROLL CALL (5:00 PM)
	PROCLAMATIONS:
	1. PROCLAMATION: A proclamation recognizing 2012 as "The Year of Water" in Steamboat Springs, Colorado.
	[communication_year_of_water_cc_form.doc]
	[year_of_water.doc]


	COMMUNITY REPORTS/CITY COUNCIL DISCUSSION TOPIC:
	2. Vision 2030 Report. (Marsha Daughenbaugh) (15 minutes)
	[communication_vision_2030.doc]
	[Vision2030FinalReport.pdf]

	3. Capital Improvements Program/Conservation Trust Fund. (Weber)
	[communication_CIP_Presentation.doc]
	[Copy of ProjectList.xls]
	[Capital Improvement Program.pdf]


	CONSENT CALENDAR: MOTIONS, RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES FIRST READINGS
	4. RESOLUTION:A resolutionsupporting thegrant application for a River Corridors Initiative Grant from the State Board of the Great Outdoors Colorado for the YampaRiver System Legacy Project. (DelliQuadri)
	[communication_03_06_12_GOCO Yampa River and Bear River park.doc]
	[resolution_GOCO.docx]


	PUBLIC HEARING: ORDINANCE SECOND READINGS
	5. SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE: An ordinance amending Section 22-126 and Section 22-129 of the Steamboat Springs Revised Municipal Code implementing a onetime $25 Sales Tax application fee beginning June 1, 2012. (Vale)
	[communication_SalesTaxApFee.docx]
	[ordinance_SalesTaxApFee.docx]

	6. SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE: An ordinance amending Section 12-82 (2) of the Steamboat Springs Revised Municipal Code implementing a $25 fee for a Special Activity Permit. (Franklin)
	[communication_special_activity_fee.docx]
	[ordinance_special_act_fee.docx]

	7. SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE: An ordinance vacating a 10 foot wide utility easement in Lot 2, Burgess Creek Ridge Subdivision, Filing 2 and vacating a 10 foot wide utility easement in Lot 40, Rendezvous Trails Subdivision, Filing 2; providing an effective date and setting a hearing date. (Peasley)
	[communication_EasementVacaCCAGENDA ITEM_2nd_reading.doc]
	[Att_1.pdf]
	[Att_2.pdf]
	[ordinance_easement_vacation.doc]
	[Exhibit A.pdf]


	PUBLIC COMMENT: Public Comment will be provided at 7 p.m., or at the end of the meeting, (whichever comes first).
	CONSENT CALENDAR - PLANNING COMMISSION REFERRALS:
	8. FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE: An ordinance to amend Section 26-65 Development Plan; amend Section 26-42 Development Review; amend Section 26-60 Pre-application Review; amend Section 26-78 Minor Exterior Modification; and amend the Development Application Fee Schedule. (Keenan)
	[communication_CDC.doc]
	[PCFullStaffReport_Full_Packet_Agenda_2_TXT_12_01.pdf]
	[PC Minutes_February_23_2012_DRAFT_ShorTermChangesdoc.pdf]
	[ordinance_Attach 1 Ordinance 2_28_12.doc]


	PUBLIC HEARING – PLANNING COMMISSION REFERRALS
	REPORTS
	9. Economic Development Update
	[Filler Economic Development Update.doc]

	10. City Council
	[Filler City Council Updates.doc]

	11. Reports
	[03_20_2012_agenda.pdf]
	[04_03_2012_agenda.doc]
	a. Agenda Review (Franklin):
	1. City Council agenda for March 20, 2012.
	2. City Council agenda for April 3, 2012.


	12. Staff Reports
	[Filler Staff Reports.doc]
	[Steamboat Springs letter of sponsorship request.doc]
	[Oil _Gas _Symposium II_Exhibitor_sponsor registration and information packet.pdf]
	[communication_false alarm comm form 03062012.doc]
	[Alarm Stats MEMO 02012012.pdf]
	[fire attahment 03202012.doc]
	[sample false alarm leter.pdf]
	[2317_EmergencyAlarms_FalseAlarmsFee (2).doc]
	[May 2010 CC Comm Form.doc]
	a. City Attorney's Update/Report. (Lettunich)
	1. Oil and Gas Update.

	b. Manager's Report: Ongoing Projects. (Roberts)
	2. Request for sponsorship for Oil and Gas Informational Public Meeting. (Roberts)

	c. Unnecessary Alarm Ordinance Discussion. (Rae)


	OLD BUSINESS
	13. Minutes (Franklin)
	[02_07_2012_draft_minutes.doc]
	[02_14_2012_draft_minutes.doc]
	a. Regular Meeting 2012-03, February 7, 2012.
	b. Regular Meeting 2012-04, February 14, 2012.


	ADJOURNMENT

